
AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

March 08, 2022 

6:00pm Regular Session 

Loyalton: Sierra County Office of Education, Room 4, 109 Beckwith Rd, Loyalton CA 96118 

**Masks are required/or in-person attendance** 

In accordance with AB 361, effective October 1, 2021, pertaining to the convening of public meetings in response 
to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Sierra County Board of Education will suspend the Brown Act teleconferencing 

posting requirements for any Board members that choose to participate via Zoom videoconferencing. 

Zoom: htt ://us02web.zoom.us/"/868 I 6448670 

Phone dial-in: 669-900-9128 
(Press *6 to unmute) 

Webinar ID: 868 1644 8670 

Any individual who requires disability-related accommodations or modifications including azai/iary aids and services in order to participate in the 
Board meeting should contact the Superintendent or designee in writing. 

Public inspection of agenda documents that are distributed to the Board less than 72 hours before the meeting, will be made available al the Sierra 
County Office of Education, Room 3, 109 Beckwith Road, Loyalton, CA, 96118, and posted with the online agenda al 

/,t/n:llw111w.s1ermco11nt1m/ficl!o/i.,d11ca11011.urg (Government Code 54957.5). 

A. CALL TO ORDER
Please be advised that this meeting will be recorded.

B. ROLL CALL

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

D. FLAG SALUTE

E. 2020-2021 AUDIT PRESENTATION - CWDL CPAs

1. Acceptance of 2020-2021 Audited Actuals**

F. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. Superintendent's Report
None 

2. Business Report
a. Account Object Summary-Balance from 07/01/2021 to 02/28/2022**

3. Staff Reports (5 minutes)

4. Board Member Reports (5 minutes)

5. Public Comment - This is an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the governing

board on any item of interest that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the governing board whether or
not it is listed on the agenda. Three (3) minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a maximum of twenty
(20) minutes to each subject matter. (Education Code 35145.5; Bylaw 9322; Government Code 54954.3)

G. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Approval of minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held February 08, 2022**
2. Approval of Board Report-Checks Dated 02/01/2022 through 02/28/2022**

Page I of 3 
SCOE Agenda - March 08, 2022 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86816448670


H. ACTION ITEMS

1. Old Business
a. Approval of canceling the SCOE Mask Policy after 11 :59pm March 11, 2022,

when the current mask mandate for K-12 schools in California expires.
***Already in place for the District side per the motion made at the 
meeting held 2/8/22 

2. New Business
a. Adoption of SCOE 2021-2022 Second Interim Actuals and Criteria and

Standards Report as ofJanuary 31, 2022**
b. Approval of Safe Schools Plan, annual review and revisions**

(this plan can be found in its entirety on our website,
hLtpJ/www.sicrrw.:oun1vofficeoleduculion.org/upload/? how""/S 'HOOL SAr ·TY PLAN/)

c. Approval of purchase of second portable for the Adult Education program
including all capital improvements

d. 2022 Delegate Assembly Ballot for California School Boards Association
(CSBA), County Delegate Region 4**

e. Approval of utilizing AB 361 for meetings conducted through April 12, 2022
**This suspends the Brown Act teleconferencing posting requirements for
any Board members that choose to participate via Zoom videoconferencing
**AB 361 expires January OJ, 2024
**Zoom will be available for the public with or without utilizing AB 361

BOARD POLICIES, ADMINISTRATIVE REGULA TJONS, EXHIBITS, BOARD BYLAWS 

BATCH FROM FEBRUARY MEETING 

f. 4 21 7 .3-Layoff/Reh ire
I. Administrative Regulation, revisions***

g. 6112-School Day
1. Board Policy, revisions***
2. Administrative Regulation, revisions***

h. 615 8-Independent Study
1. Board Policy, revisions***
2. Administrative Regulation, revisions***

1. 6170.1-Transitional Kindergarten
1. Board Policy, revisions***

J. 9320-Meetings and Notices
1. Board Bylaw, revisions***

NEW BATCH FOR MARCH MEETING 

k. 0420.42-Charter School Renewal
I. Board Policy, revisions**

I. 1312.3-Uniform Complaint Procedures
I. Board Policy, revisions**
2. Administrative Regulation, revisions**

m. 3515.6-Criminal Background Checks for Contractors
I. Administrative Regulation, revisions**

n. 5125-Student Records
1. Administrative Regulation, revisions**

o. 5145 .3-Nondiscrimination/Harassment
1. Administrative Regulation, revisions**

Page 2 of3 
SCOE Agenda - March 08, 2022 



I. ADV AN CED PLANNING

1. Next Regular Board Meetings will be held on April 12, 2022, at Downieville School, 130
School St, Downieville CA 95936, beginning with Closed Session as needed at 5:00pm and
the Regular Board Meetings at 6:00pm. Zoom videoconferencing will be available for the
public.

2. Suggested Agenda Items

J. ADJOURN

** * prior month handout 
** enclosed 
* handout

James Berardi, Superintendent 
Secretary to the County Board of Education 

James Berardi, Superintendent (jbcrardi@spju d. rg) 
Kristie Jacobsen, Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent (kiacobsen@spju d.org) 
Nona Griesert, Business Manager (ngriesert@spju d.org) 
Office: 530-993-1660 x0 

Email schoolinfo@spjusd.org to be added to the agenda email list. 

Page 3 of3 
SCOE Agenda - March 08, 2022 





See what’s possible. 

858‐565‐2700 
www.cwdl.com 

 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
COUNTY OF SIERRA 

LOYALTON, CALIFORNIA

AUDIT REPORT

June 30, 2021



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

 

  

1

4

Governmental-wide Financial Statements

11

12

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds - Balance Sheet 13

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheets to the Statement of Net Position 14

Governmental Funds - Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 15

in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities 16

17

General Fund - Budgetary Comparison Schedule 41

42

43

44

46

Notes to Required Supplementary Information 48

50

51

52

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements 53

54

Note to the Supplementary Information 55

Independent Auditors' Report

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements:

Statement of Net Position

Statement of Activities

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

Note to the Financial Statements

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis

Schedule of Charter Schools

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Schedule of Contributions - OPEB

Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Schedule of Contributions - Pensions

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Local Education Agency Organization Structure

FINANCIAL SECTION

Schedule of Instructional Time

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

 

  

56

58

61

Financial Statement Findings 62

State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 63

64

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Independent Auditors' Report on State Compliance 

Summary of Auditors' Results

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial

Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an

Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance

with Government Auditing Standards

 



 1 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees 

Sierra County Office of Education 

Loyalton, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental acclivities, each major fund, and the 

aggregate remaining fund information of the Sierra County Office of Education ("the County Office of Education") 

as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 

comprise the County Office of Education's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 

implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 

in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 

applicable to financial audits contained in Government. Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 

the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 

assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the County Office of Education's preparation and 

fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County Office of 

Education's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 

management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinions. 

8 5 8 . 5 6 5 . 2 7 0 0
w w w . c w d l . c o m  



 

 
 2 

Opinions 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 

financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information 

of Sierra County Office of Education as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position, for the 

year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 

Other Matters 

 

Required Supplementary Information 

 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 

Discussion and Analysis, and budgetary comparison information and schedule of the County Office of Education's 

proportionate share of the net pension liability and schedule of County Office of Education pension contributions, 

and schedule of the County Office of Education's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability and schedule of 

County Office of Education OPEB contributions identified as Required Supplementary Information in the table of 

contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 

basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be 

an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 

economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 

information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 

consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 

information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 

other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 

provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 

evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

 

Other Information 

 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 

comprise the Sierra County Office of Education's basic financial statements. The accompanying other 

supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the State's audit guide, 

2020-21 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting prescribed in 

Title 5, California Code of Regulations, Section 19810 and is also not a required part of the basic financial 

statements. 

 

The other supplementary information is the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate 

directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such 

information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements 

and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 

underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 

statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 

in the United States of America. In our opinion, the other supplementary information is fairly stated in all material 

respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

 
8 5 8 . 5 6 5 . 2 7 0 0  
w w w . c w d l . c o m  

 



 3 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 25, 2022 on 

our consideration of Sierra County Office of Education's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 

of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 

The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 

and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County 

Office of Education's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 

an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Sierra County Office of 

Education's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

San Diego, California 

February 25, 2022 

8 5 8 . 5 6 5 . 2 7 0 0
w w w . c w d l . c o m  



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 4 

INTRODUCTION 

 

Our discussion and analysis of Sierra County Office of Education's (County Office) financial performance provides 

an overview of the County Office's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. It should be read in 

conjunction with the County Office's financial statements (including notes and supplementary information), which 

follow this section. 

 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 

• Total Net Position was $2,575,183 at June 30, 2021. This was an increase of $909,818 over the prior year. 

• Overall revenues were $3,648,661 which was more than expenses of $2,738,843. 

• The fund balance of the general fund was $3,725,958, an increase of $829,628 from the prior year. 

• Fund balance increased from prior year due to revenues exceeding expenditures. 

• The total cost of the County Office's programs was $2,738,843, a decrease of $106,261 from prior year 

 

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

This annual report consists of three parts - management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic financial 

statements and required supplementary information. The three sections together provide a comprehensive 

overview of the County Office. The basic financial statements are comprised of two kinds of statements that 

present financial information from different perspectives: 

 

• Government-wide financial statements, which comprise the first two statements, provide both short-

term and long-term information about the entity's overall financial position. 

• Fund financial statements focus on reporting the individual parts of the County Office operations in 

more detail. The fund financial statements comprise the remaining statements. 

• Governmental funds statements tell how general government services were financed in the short term 

as well as what remains for future spending. 

 

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and provide 

more detailed data. The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required supplementary 

information that further explains and supports the financial statements. A comparison of the County Office's 

budget for the year is included. 

 

Government-Wide Statements 

 

The government-wide statements report information about the County Office as a whole using accounting 

methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net assets includes all of the 

government's assets and liabilities. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the 

statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 5 

Government-Wide Statements, continued 

 

The two government-wide statements report the County Office's net assets and how they have changed. Net 

assets, the difference between the assets and liabilities, are one way to measure the County Office's financial health 

or position. 

 

• Over time, increases or decreases in the County Office's net assets are an indicator of whether its financial 

health is improving or deteriorating, respectively. 

• To assess the overall health of the County Office, one needs to consider additional nonfinancial factors 

such as changes in enrollment, changes in the property tax base, changes in program funding by the 

Federal and State governments, and condition of facilities. 

 

The government-wide financial statements of the County Office include governmental activities. Most of the 

County Office's basic services are included here, such as regular education, food service, maintenance and general 

administration. Revenue limit funding and federal and state grants finance most of these activities. 

 

Fund Financial Statements 

 

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the County Office's most significant funds-

not the County Office as a whole. Funds are accounting devises that the County Office uses to keep track of specific 

sources of funding and spending for particular programs. Some funds are required to be established by state law 

and by bond covenants. The Board of Trustees establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular 

purposes or to show that the County Office is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain revenues. The County 

Office has one kind of fund: 

 

• Governmental funds - Most of the County Office's basic services are included in governmental funds, 

which generally focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow 

in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the 

governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether 

there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the County 

Office's programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the 

government-wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the government funds 

statements that explains the relationship (or differences) between them. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 6 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE 

 

Governmental Activities 

 

The County Office's net position increased from $1,665,365 at June 30, 2020 to $2,575,183 at June 30, 2021, an 

increase of 55%. 

 

2021 2020 Net Change

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

Current and other assets 4,105,407$        3,115,248$          990,159$             

Capital assets 247,168            229,263              17,905                 

Deferred outflows 522,311            517,371              4,940                  

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 4,874,886          3,861,882            1,013,004            

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS

Current liabilities 198,834            160,640              38,194                 

Long-term liabilities 1,928,284          1,770,280            158,004               

Deferred inflows 172,585            265,597              (93,012)                

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 2,299,703          2,196,517            103,186               

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 247,168            229,263              17,905                 

Restricted 257,830            15,356                242,474               

Unrestricted 2,070,185          1,420,746            649,439               

Total Net Position 2,575,183$        1,665,365$          909,818$             

Governmental Activities

 
 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2021  

 

 7 

Changes in Net Position 

 

The County Office's total revenues were $3,648,661. A majority of the revenue came from Unrestricted Federal and 

State Aid, which accounted for 45% of total revenues. 

 

The total cost of all programs and services was $2,738,843. The County Office's expenses are predominately related 

to educating and caring for students and administrative which account for a combined total cost of 51%. The 

remaining expenses were for plant services (maintenance and operations), ancillary services, and other outgo. 

 

The County Office's total current year revenues exceeded total current year expenses by $909,818. 

 

2021 2020 Net Change

REVENUES

Program revenues

Operating grants and contributions 1,498,726$        945,855$            552,871$             

General revenues  

Property taxes 77,599              75,644                1,955                  

Unrestricted federal and state aid 1,635,148          1,359,857            275,291               

Other 437,188            683,124              (245,936)              

Total Revenues 3,648,661          3,064,480            584,181               

EXPENSES

Instruction 999,482            968,460              31,022                 

Instruction-related services 520,521            486,419              34,102                 

Pupil services 160,766            108,600              52,166                 

General administration 665,250            668,686              (3,436)                 

Plant services 64,341              58,347                5,994                  

Ancillary services 51,847              65,434                (13,587)                

Other outgo 257,824            493,714              (235,890)              

Depreciation (Unallocated) 18,812              19,521                (709)                    

Total Expenses 2,738,843          2,869,181            106,261               

Change in net position 909,818            195,299              714,519               

Net Position - Beginning 1,665,365          1,470,066            195,299               

Net Position - Ending 2,575,183$        1,665,365$          909,818$             

Governmental Activities

 
 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2021  

 

 8 

Governmental Activities 

 

The table below presents the cost of each of the County Office's functions as well as each function's net cost (total 

cost less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid). The net cost reflects what was funded by 

charges for services, operating grants and capital grants and contributions. 

 

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $2,738,843. 

 

Some of the costs were paid directly from grants and contributions $1,498,726. 

 

Net Cost of Governmental Activities 

 

2021 2020

Instruction 228,677            371,686              

Instruction-related services 166,047            398,699              

Pupil services (2,893)               (2,432)                 

General administration 564,932            639,940              

Plant services 18,702              32,978                

Ancillary services (5,527)               (5,450)                 

Other outgo 251,367            468,384              

Depreciation (Unallocated) 18,812              19,521                

1,240,117$        1,923,326$          

Net Cost of Services

 
 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY OFFICE'S FUNDS 

 

The overall financial performance of the County Office as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well. As 

the County Office completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $3,906,573 

which is greater than last year's ending fund balance of $2,954,608. This change was due to the increase in overall 

revenues. 

 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

 

Over the course of the year, the County Office revises its annual budget to reflect unexpected changes in revenues 

and expenditures. The final amendment to the budget was approved on March 9, 2021. A schedule of the County 

Office's original and final budget amounts compared with actual revenues and expenses is provided in the 

supplemental section of the audited financial report. 

 

 

 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2021  

 

 9 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

 

Capital Assets 

 

At June 30, 2021, the County Office had invested $804,993 in a broad range of capital assets including buildings 

and improvements, machinery and equipment. During the year the District invested in new energy efficient 

lighting. More detailed information about the County Office's capital assets is presented in the notes to the 

financial statements. 

 

2021 2020 Net Change

CAPITAL ASSETS

Buildings 506,614$           501,899$            4,715$                 

Equipment 298,379            266,377              32,002                 

Accumulated depreciation (557,825)           (539,013)             (18,812)                

Total Capital Assets 247,168$           229,263$            17,905$               

Governmental Activities

 
 

The County Office budgeted $35,000 capital spending for building improvements and new equipment for the 

2021-22 fiscal year. 

 

Long-Term Debt 

 

Total long-term liability increased $151,222 due to the increase the net pension liability, as shown in the table 

below. More detailed information about the County Office's debt is presented in the notes to the financial 

statements. 

 

2021 2020 Net Change

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Net pension liability 1,815,953          1,663,367            152,586               

Net OPEB liability 92,485              93,849                (1,364)                 

Compensated absences 19,846              13,064                6,782                  

Less: current portion of long-term debt (19,846)             (13,064)               (6,782)                 

Total Long-term Liabilities 1,908,438$        1,757,216$          151,222$             

Governmental Activities

  
 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2021  

 

 10 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES  

 

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the County Office was aware of several 

circumstances that could affect its future financial health:  

 

• The uncertainty of federal and state funding can have a profound impact on the financial health of the 

County Office. Although no changes are currently anticipated, the federal and the state governments 

could implement budget cuts. There is presently no update on the continuance of Forest Reserve funding 

which if implemented could have a positive impact on the budget and reduced deficit spending patterns. 

• The continuing increases in premiums for health care insurance, retirement, and worker's compensation 

could have a significant effect on the future financial health of the County Office. The 2020 premium for 

health insurance did not change over the 2020 composite premiums. However, health care premiums and 

retirement liabilities are predicted to continue to increase into the foreseeable future.  

• The budget assumptions used to prepare the budget for 2020/2021 included a 0% cost of living allowance 

(COLA) and a deficit factor of 7.92% to LCFF. Reduction of 10% to all other State funding. In addition, 

employer rate of 16.00% and 22.91% was used in 21/22 for CalSTRS and CalPERS contributions to 

California certificated and classified retirement systems, respectively.  

• The inevitable increases in PERS and STRS contribution rates that will be necessary to fund the Net Pension 

Liability will likely require careful budgeting and planning. 

 

CONTACTING THE COUNTY OFFICE'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, parents, participants, investors and creditors 

with. a general overview of the County Office's finances and to demonstrate the County Office's accountability for 

the money it receives. If you have questions about this report, or need additional financial information, contact: 

 

Nona Griesert, Business Manager 

Sierra County Office of Education 

Post Office Box 955 

109 Beckwith Road 

Loyalton, CA 96118 

 



  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2021 

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 11 

Governmental

Activities

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 3,153,526$           

Due from grantor government 951,881                

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 247,168                

Total Assets 4,352,575             

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows related to pensions 522,311                

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 522,311                

LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities 87,628                 

Due to grantor government 178                      

Unearned revenue 111,028                

Long-term liabilities, current portion 19,846                 

Net pension liability 1,815,953             

Net OPEB liability 92,485                 

Total Liabilities 2,127,118             

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflows related to pensions 172,585                

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 172,585                

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 247,168                

Restricted:

Educational programs 247,040                

Other restrictions 10,790                 

Unrestricted 2,070,185             

Total Net Position 2,575,183$            
 

 

 

 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 12 

Revenues and

Changes in

Net Position

Operating

Grants and Governmental

Expenses Contributions Activities

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Instruction 999,482$                              770,805$                              (228,677)$                             

Instruction-related services

Instructional supervision and administration 105,530                                62,118                                  (43,412)                                 

School site administration 414,991                                292,356                                (122,635)                               

Pupil services

Home-to-school transportation 2,313                                   2,477                                   164                                      

All other pupil services 158,453                                161,182                                2,729                                   

General administration

Centralized data processing 161,400                                1,370                                   (160,030)                               

All other general administration 503,850                                98,948                                  (404,902)                               

Plant services 64,341                                  45,639                                  (18,702)                                 

Ancillary services 51,847                                  57,374                                  5,527                                   

Other outgo 257,824                                6,457                                   (251,367)                               

Depreciation (unallocated) 18,812                                  -                                          (18,812)                                 

Total Governmental Activities 2,738,843$                            1,498,726$                            (1,240,117)                            

General revenues

Taxes and subventions

Property taxes, levied for general purposes 77,599                                  

Federal and state aid not restricted for specific purposes 1,635,148                             

Interest and investment earnings 41,557                                  

Interagency revenues 389,606                                

Miscellaneous 6,025                                   

Subtotal, General Revenue 2,149,935                             

Change in Net Position 909,818                                

Net Position - Beginning 1,665,365                             

Net Position - Ending 2,575,183$                            

Function/Programs

Revenues

Program

 
 

 

 

 

. 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS  

JUNE 30, 2021 

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 13 

General Fund

Adult Education 

Fund

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 2,994,393$           159,133$              3,153,526$           

Due from grantor governments 928,105                23,776                 951,881                

Total Assets 3,922,498             182,909                4,105,407             

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 85,334                 2,294                   87,628                 

Due to grantor governments 178                      -                          178                      

Uearned revenue 111,028                -                          111,028                

Total Liabilities 196,540                2,294                   198,834                

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable 600                      -                          600                      

Restricted

Educational programs 124,653                122,387                247,040                

Child nutrition 10,790                 -                          10,790                 

Committed 92,485                 -                          92,485                 

Assigned -                          58,228                 58,228                 

Unassigned 3,497,430             -                          3,497,430             

Total Fund Balances 3,725,958             180,615                3,906,573             

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 3,922,498$           182,909$              4,105,407$            
 

 

 

 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2021 

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 14 

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds 3,906,573$      

Amounts reported for assets and liabilities for governmental activities in the 

statement of net position are different from amounts reported in governmental 

funds because:

Capital assets: 

In governmental funds, only current assets are reported.  In the statement of 

net position, all assets are reported, including capital assets and 

accumulated depreciation:

Capital assets 804,993$              

Accumulated depreciation (557,825)               247,168           

Long-term liabilities:

In governmental funds, only current liabilities are reported.  In the statement 

of net position, all liabilities, including long-term liabilities, are reported.  

Long-term liabilities relating to governmental activities consist of:

Net pension liability 1,815,953$           

Net OPEB liability 92,485                 

Compensated absences 19,846                 (1,928,284)       

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions:

In governmental funds, defered outflows and inflows of resources relating 

to pensions are not reported because they are applicable to future periods.  

In the statement of net position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources 

relating to pensions are reported:

Deferred outflows of resources relating to pensions: 522,311$              

Deferred inflows of resources relating to pensions: (172,585)               349,726           

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities 2,575,183$       

 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 15 

General Fund

Adult Education 

Fund

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

REVENUES

LCFF sources 1,360,566$         -$                      1,360,566$           

Federal sources 511,048              31,025               542,073                

Other state sources 906,882              332,502              1,239,384             

Other local sources 445,915              1,503                 447,418                

Total Revenues 3,224,411           365,030              3,589,441             

EXPENDITURES

Current

Instruction 853,282              83,176               936,458                

Instruction-related services

Instructional supervision and administration 94,394               -                        94,394                 

School site administration 219,992              151,152              371,144                

Pupil services

All other pupil services 150,572              -                        150,572                

General administration

Centralized data processing 160,305              -                        160,305                

All other general administration 512,578              -                        512,578                

Plant services 58,910               4,414                 63,324                 

Ancillary services 51,847               -                        51,847                 

Transfers to other agencies 294,541              -                        294,541                

Total Expenditures 2,398,734           238,742              2,637,476             

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures 825,677              126,288              951,965                

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in 3,951                 -                        3,951                   

Transfers out -                        (3,951)                (3,951)                  

Net Financing Sources (Uses) 3,951                 (3,951)                -                          

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 829,628              122,337              951,965                

Fund Balance - Beginning 2,896,330           58,278               2,954,608             

Fund Balance - Ending 3,725,958$         180,615$            3,906,573$            

 

 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 16 

Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 951,965$             

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different from 

amounts reported in governmental funds because:

Capital outlay:

In governmental funds, the costs of capital assets are reported as expenditures in the 

period when the assets are acquired.  In the statement of activities, costs of capital assets 

are allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.  The difference 

between capital outlay expenditures and depreciation expense for the period is:

Expenditures for capital outlay: 36,717$               

Depreciation expense: (18,812)                17,905                 

Compensated absences:

In governmental funds, compensated absences are measured by the amounts paid during 

the period.  In the statement of activities, compensated absences are measured by the 

amount earned.  The difference between compensated absences paid and compensated 

absences earned, was: (6,782)                 

Pensions:

In government funds, pension costs are recognized when employer contributions are made.  

In the statement of activities, pension costs are recognized on the accrual basis.  This year, 

the difference between accrual-basis pension costs and actual employer contributions was: (54,634)                

Postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB):

In governmental funds, OPEB expenses are recognized when employer contributions are 

made.  In the statement of activities, OPEB expenses are recognized on the accrual basis.  

This year, the difference between OPEB costs and actual employer contributions was:
1,364         

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 909,818$              
 

 

 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 17 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Sierra County Office of Education (County Office of Education) accounts for its financial transactions in accordance 

with the policies and procedures of the Department of Educations "California School Accounting Manual'. The 

accounting policies of the County Office of Education conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the 

United States of America (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the 

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). 

 

A. Reporting Entity 

 

The County Office of Education's combined financial statements include the accounts of all its operations. The 

County Office of Education evaluated whether any other entity should be included in these financial 

statements. The criteria for including organizations as component units within the County Office of Education's 

reporting entity, as set forth in GASB Statement No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity," include whether: 

 

• the organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in its name) 

• the County Office of Education holds the corporate powers of the organization 

• the County Office of Education appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board 

• the County Office of Education is able to impose its will on the organization 

• the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the County Office of 

Education 

• there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the County Office of Education 

 

The County Office of Education also evaluated each legally separate, tax-exempt organization whose resources 

are used principally to provide support to the County Office of Education to determine if its omission from 

the reporting entity would result in financial statements which are misleading or incomplete. GASB Statement 

No. 14 requires inclusion of such an organization as a component unit when: 1) The economic resources 

received or held by the organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the County Office 

of Education, its component units or its constituents; and 2) The County Office of Education or its component 

units is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources received or 

held by the organization; and 3) Such economic resources are significant to the County Office of Education. 

 

Based on these criteria, the County Office of Education has no component units. Additionally, the County 

Office of Education is not a component unit of any other reporting entity as defined by the GASB Statement. 

 

B. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting 

 

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities include the 

financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations have been made. to minimize the double-counting 

of internal activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental 

revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. 

 

 

 

 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 18 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

 

B. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting, continued 

 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each 

function of the County Office of Education's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are 

specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular 

function. The County Office of Education does not allocate indirect expenses in the statement of activities. 

Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by 

the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 

requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, 

are presented as general revenues. 

 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the County Office of 

Educations funds, with separate statements presented for each fund category. The emphasis of fund financial 

statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental 

funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. 

 

The County Office of Education reports the following major governmental funds: 

 

General Fund: This is the County Office of Education's primary operating fund. It accounts for all 

financial resources of the County Office of Education except those required to be accounted for 

in another fund. 

 

Adult Education Fund: This fund is used to account separately for federal, state, and local 

revenues for adult education programs.  Money in this fund shall be expended for adult education 

purposes only. Moneys received for programs other than adult education shall not be expended 

for adult education (Education Code Sections 52616[b] and 52501.5[a]).   

 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting 

 

Government-wide Financial Statements: These financial statements are reported using the economic resources 

measurement focus. They are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when 

earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows 

take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the County Office of Education gives (or receives) value 

without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and 

donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes 

are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all 

eligibility requirements have been satisfied.



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 19 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, continued 

 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the current financial 

resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are 

recognized when measurable and available. The County Office of Education considers all revenues reported 

in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after year-end. 

Revenues from local sources consist primarily, of property taxes. Property tax revenues and revenues received 

from the State are recognized under the susceptible-to-accrual concept. Miscellaneous revenues are recorded 

as revenue when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually received. 

Investment earnings are recorded as earned, since they are both measurable and available. Expenditures are 

recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term 

debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent 

they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 

Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing 

sources. 

 

When the County Office of Education incurs an expenditure or expense for which both restricted and 

unrestricted resources may be used, it is the County Office of Education's policy to use restricted resources 

first, then unrestricted resources. 

 

D. Encumbrances 

 

Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable appropriations for 

which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase orders, contracts, and other 

commitments when they are written. Encumbrances are liquidated when the commitments are paid. All 

encumbrances are liquidated as of June 30. 

 

E. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

 

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for all 

governmental funds. By state law, the County Office of Education's governing board must adopt a final budget 

no later than July 1. A public hearing must be conducted to receive comments prior to adoption. The County 

Office of Education's governing board satisfied these requirements. 

 

These budgets are revised by the County Office of Education's governing board and district superintendent 

during the year to give consideration to unanticipated income and expenditures. 

 

Formal budgetary integration was used as a management control device during the year for all budgeted 

funds. The County Office of Education employs budget control by minor object and by individual 

appropriation accounts. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by major object code. 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 20 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

 

F. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position  

 

Deposits and Investments 

 

Cash balances held in banks and in revolving funds are insured to $250,000 by the Federal Depository 

Insurance Corporation. All cash held by the financial institutions is fully insured or collateralized. 

 

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the County Office of Education maintains substantially all 

its cash in the Sierra County Treasury. The county pools these funds with those of other districts in the county 

and invests the cash. These pooled funds are carried at cost, which approximates market value. Interest earned 

is deposited quarterly into participating funds, except for the Tax Override Funds, in which interest earned is 

credited to the general fund. Any investment losses are proportionately shared by all funds in the pool. 

 

The county is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code Section 

53648 et seq. The funds maintained by the county are either secured by federal depository insurance or are 

collateralized. 

 

Information regarding the amount of dollars invested in derivatives with Sierra County Treasury was not 

available. 

 

Stores Inventories and Prepaid Expenditures 

 

Inventories are recorded using the purchases method in that the cost is recorded as an expenditure at the 

time individual inventory items are purchased. Inventories are valued at average cost and consist of 

expendable supplies held for consumption. Reported inventories are equally offset by a fund balance reserve, 

which indicates that these amounts are not 'available for appropriation and expenditure' even though they 

are a component of net current assets. 

 

The County Office of Education has the option of reporting an expenditure in governmental funds for prepaid 

items either when purchased or during the benefiting period. The County Office of Education has chosen to 

report the expenditure when incurred. 

 

Capital Assets 

 

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated fixed assets 

are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the donation. The cost of normal maintenance and 

repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. A 

capitalization threshold of $5,000 is used. 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 21 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

 

F. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position, 

continued  

 

Capital Assets 

 

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

 

Asset Class Years

Infrastructure 30 years

Buildings 50 years

Bulding Improvements 20 years

Vehicles 2-15 years

Office Equipment 3-15 years

Computer Equipment 3-15 years  
 

Receivable and Payable Balances 

 

The County Office of Education believes that sufficient detail of receivable and payable balances is provided 

in the financial statements to avoid the obscuring of significant components by aggregation. Therefore, no 

disclosure is provided which disaggregates those balances. 

 

There are no significant receivables which are not scheduled for collection within one year of year end. 

 

Compensated Absences 

 

Accumulated unpaid employee vacation benefits are recognized as liabilities of the County Office of Education. 

The current portion of the liabilities is recognized in the general fund at year end. 

 

Accumulated sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the County Office of Education. The County 

Office of Educations policy is to record sick leave as an operating expense in the period taken since such 

benefits do not vest nor is payment probable; however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable service 

period for calculation of retirement benefits when the employee retires. 

 

Unearned Revenue 

 

Unearned revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet both the “measurable” and “available" criteria 

for recognition in the current period or when resources are received by the County Office of Education prior 

to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria 

are met, or when the County Office of Education has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned 

revenue is removed from the balance sheet and revenue is recognized. 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 22 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

 

F. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position, 

continued  

 

Interfund Activity 

 

Interfund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers between funds. Loans are 

reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon 

consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and 

expenditures or expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate 

benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated 

as transfers. Transfers In and Transfers Out are netted and presented as a single "Transfers" line on the 

government-wide statement of activities. Similarly, interfund receivables and payables are netted and 

presented as a single "Internal Balances" line of the government-wide statement of net position. 

 

Property Taxes 

 

Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of March 1. Taxes are payable in two 

installments on November 15 and March 15. Unsecured property taxes are payable in one installment on or 

before August 31. The County of Sierra bills and collects the taxes for the County Office of Education. 

 

Fund Balances – Governmental Funds 

 

Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows: 

 

Nonspendable Fund Balance - represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in 

spendable form (such as inventory or prepaid insurance) or legally required to remain intact (such as notes 

receivable or principal of a permanent fund). 

 

Restricted Fund Balance - represents amounts that are constrained by external parties, constitutional 

provisions or enabling legislation. 

 

Committed Fund Balance - represents amounts that can only be used for a specific purpose because of a 

formal action by the County Office of Education's governing board. Committed amounts cannot be used 

for any other purpose unless the governing board removes those constraints by taking the same type of 

formal action. Committed fund balance amounts may be used for other purposes with appropriate due 

process by the governing board. Commitments are typically done through adoption and amendment of 

the budget. Committed fund balance amounts differ from restricted balances in that the constraints on 

their use do not come from outside parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation. 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 23 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

 

F. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position, 

continued  

 

Fund Balances – Governmental Funds, continued 

 

Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows: 

 

Assigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which the County Office of Education intends to use for a 

specific purpose, but that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Intent may 

be stipulated by the governing board or by an official or body to which the governing board delegates 

the authority. Specific amounts that are not restricted or committed in a special revenue, capital projects, 

debt service or permanent fund are assigned for purposes in accordance with the nature of their fund 

type or the funds primary purpose. Assignments within the general fund conveys that the intended use of 

those amounts is for a specific purpose that is narrower than the general purposes of the County Office 

of Education itself. 

 

Unassigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which are unconstrained in that they may be spent for 

any purpose. Only the general fund reports a positive unassigned fund balance. Other governmental funds 

might report a negative balance in this classification because of overspending for specific purposes for 

which amounts had been restricted, committed or assigned. 

 

When an expenditure is incurred for a purpose for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is 

available, the County Office of Education considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an 

expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the County 

Office of Education considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, 

and finally unassigned funds. 

 

Deferred Inflows and Deferred Outflows of Resources 

 

Deferred outflows of resources is a consumption of net assets or net position that is applicable to a future 

reporting period. Deferred inflows of resources is an acquisition of net assets or net position that is applicable 

to a future reporting period. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are recorded in 

accordance with GASB Statement numbers 63 and 65. 

 

Pensions 

 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 

resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 

CaIPERS Schools Pool Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Plan (CaIPERS Plan) and CaISTRS Schools Pool Cost-

Sharing Multiple Employer Plan (CaISTRS Plan) and additions to/deductions from the CaIPERS Plan and 

CaISTRS Plan's fiduciary net positions have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the 

CaIPERS Financial Office and CaISTRS Financial Office. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds 

of employee contributions) are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit 

terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 24 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

 

F. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position, 

continued  

 

Use of Estimates 

 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of management’s estimates. 

Actual results could differ from those estimates 

 

Fair Value Measurements 

 

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally 

accepted accounting principles as defined by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 

No. 72. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. The hierarchy 

is detailed as follows: 

 

Level 1 Inputs: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 

a government can access at the measurement date 

 

Level 2 Inputs: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 

an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly 

 

Level 3 Inputs: Unobservable inputs for an asset or liability 

 

For the current fiscal year the District did not have any recurring or nonrecurring fair value measurements. 

 

New Accounting Pronouncements 

 

GASB Statement No. 84 – In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This standard’s 

primary objective is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and 

financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. The statement is effective for periods 

beginning after December 15, 2019. The County has implemented GASB Statement No. 84 for the year ending 

June 30, 2021.  

 

GASB Statement No. 87 – In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. This standard’s primary 

objective is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and 

financial reporting for leases by governments. The statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 

2021. The County has not determined the impact on the financial statements.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 25 

NOTE 2 – COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

 

1. Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions 

 

In accordance with I GASB Statement No. 38, 'Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures,' violations 

of finance related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along with actions taken 

to address such violations. 

 

Violation    Action Taken 

None reported   Not applicable 

 

2. Deficit Fund Balance or Fund Net Position of Individual Funds 

 

Following are funds having deficit fund balances or fund net position at year end, if any, along with 

remarks which address such deficits: 

 

Fund Name    Deficit Amount  Remarks 

None reported   Not applicable  Not applicable 

 

NOTE 3 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

 

Cash in County Treasury 

 

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the County Office of Education maintains substantially all of its 

cash in the Sierra County Treasury as part of the common investment pool ($3,152,926 as of June 30, 2021). The 

fair value of the County Office of Educations portion of this pool as of that date, as provided by the pool sponsor, 

was $3,185,656. Assumptions made in determining the fair value of the pooled investment portfolios are available 

from the County Treasurer. 

 

Cash on Hand, in Banks, and in Revolving Fund 

 

Cash balances on hand and in banks ($0 as of June 30, 2021) and in the revolving fund ($600) are insured up to 

$250,000 by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation. All cash held by the financial institution is fully insured 

or collateralized. 

 

The County Office of Education is required by GASB Statement No. 31 to disclose its policy for determining which 

investments, if any, are reported at amortized cost. The County Office of Educations general policy is to report 

money market investments and short-term participating interest-earning investment contracts at amortized cost 

and to report nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts using a cost-based measure. However, if the 

fair value of an investment is significantly affected by the impairment of the credit standing of the issuer or by 

other factors, it is reported at fair value. All other investments are reported at fair value unless a legal contract 

exists which guarantees a higher value. The term "short-term" refers to investments which have a remaining term 

of one year or less at time of purchase. The term "nonparticipating" means that the investment's value does not 

vary with market interest rate changes. Nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are examples of nonparticipating 

interest-earning investment contracts.  

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 26 

NOTE 3 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS, continued 

 

The County Office of Education's investments in external investment pools are reported in conformity with GASB 

Statement No. 77 unless the pool is 2a7-like, in which case they are reported at share value. A 2a7-like pool is one 

which is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission ('SEC") as an investment company, but 

nevertheless has a policy that it will, and does, operate in a manner consistent with the SEC's Rule 2a7 of the 

Investment Company Act of 1940. 

 

NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS 

 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows: 

 
Balance Balance

July 01, 2020 Additions Deductions June 30, 2021

Capital assets being depreciated

Buildings 501,899$            4,715$               -$                      506,614$            

Equipment 266,377              32,002               -                        298,379              

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 768,276              36,717               -                        804,993              

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Buildings 285,057              11,496               -                        296,553              

Equipment 253,956              7,316                 -                        261,272              

Total Accumulated Depreciation 539,013              18,812               -                        557,825              

Capital Assets, net 229,263$            17,905$              -$                      247,168$             
 

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITIES 

 

Do To/From Other Funds 

 

There were no balances due to and from other funds at June 30, 2021. 

 

Transfers To/From Other Funds 

 

Transfers to and from other funds at June 30, 2021 consisted of $3,951 transferred from the Adult Education Fund 

to the General fund. 

 

NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

 

Long-Term Obligation Activity 

 

Long-term obligations include debt and other long-term liabilities. Changes in long-term obligations for the year 

ended June 30, 2021, are as follows: 

 
Balance Balance Due in

July 01, 2020 Additions Deductions June 30, 2021 One Year

Governmental Activities

Net pensions liability 1,663,367$          152,586$            -$                      1,815,953$          -$                      

Net OPEB liability 93,849                -                        1,364                 92,485                -                        

Compensated absences 13,064                6,782                 -                        19,846                19,846                

Total 1,770,280$          159,368$            1,364$                1,928,284$          19,846$               



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 27 

NOTE 7 – JOINT VENTURES (JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS) 

 

The County Office participates in two Joint Powers Agreements (JPA's), the Tn-Counties Schools Insurance Group 

and the Northeastern JPA. The insurance groups arrange for and provide property, liability, health and worker's 

compensation insurance for their members. The County Office pays premiums commensurate with the level of 

coverage requested. These are partial self-insurance programs. 

 

An executive committee consisting of representatives from each member's County Office/District governs the 

JPA's. The governing boards control the operations of their JPA's independent of any influence by the County 

Office beyond the County Office's representation on the governing boards. 

 

The JPA's are independently accountable for their fiscal matters. The insurance groups maintain their own 

accounting records. The budget is not subject to any approval other than that of the executive committee. The 

relationship between the County Office and the JPA's is such that the JPA's are not component units of the County 

Office for financial reporting purposes. 

 

Condensed financial information for the JPA's for June 30, 2021 was not available as of our report date. 

 

NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS  

 

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained by agencies 

of the State of California. Academic employees are members of CalSTRS and classified employees are members of 

CalPERS.  

 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the District reported its proportionate share of the net pension liabilities, 

pension expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources for each of the above plans 

as follows: 

 

Collective Collective

Collective Net Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows Collective 

Pension Plan Pension Liability of Resources of Resources Pension Expense

CalSTRS 1,126,441$           388,573$              41,087$                195,900$              

CalPERS 689,512                133,738                131,498                51,307                 

Total 1,815,953$           522,311$              172,585$              247,207$               
 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 28 

NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS, continued 

 

California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS)  

 

Plan Description  

 

The District contributes to the State Teachers' Retirement Plan (STRP) administered by CalSTRS. STRP is a cost-

sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan. Benefit provisions 

are established by State statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State Teachers' Retirement Law.  

 

A full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions (for funding, but not accounting 

purposes), and membership information is listed in the June 30, 2019, annual actuarial valuation report, Defined 

Benefit Program Actuarial Valuation. This report and CalSTRS audited financial information are publicly available 

reports that can be found on the CalSTRS website under Publications at: http://www.calstrs.com/member-

publications. 

 

Benefits Provided  

 

The STRP provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefits are based on members' 

final compensation, age, and years of service credit. Members hired on or before December 31, 2012, with five 

years of credited service are eligible for the normal retirement benefit at age 60. Members hired on or after January 

1, 2013, with five years of credited service are eligible for the normal retirement benefit at age 62. The normal 

retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final compensation for each year of credited service.  

 

The STRP is comprised of four programs: Defined Benefit Program, Defined Benefit Supplement Program, Cash 

Balance Benefit Program, and Replacement Benefits Program. The STRP holds assets for the exclusive purpose of 

providing benefits to members and beneficiaries of these programs. CalSTRS also uses plan assets to defray 

reasonable expenses of administering the STRP. Although CalSTRS is the administrator of the STRP, the State is 

the sponsor of the STRP and obligor of the trust. In addition, the State is both an employer and nonemployer 

contributing entity to the STRP. The District contributes exclusively to the STRP Defined Benefit Program; thus 

disclosures are not included for the other plans. 

 

The STRP provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2021, are summarized as follows: 

On or before On or after

Hire date December 31, 2012 January 1, 2013

Benefit formula 2% at 60 2% at 62

Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service

Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life

Retirement age 60 62

Monthly benefits as a percentage of eligible compensation 2.0% - 2.4% 2.0% - 2.4%

Required employee contribution rate 10.25% 9.205%*

Required employer contribution rate 16.15% 16.15%

Required state contribution rate 10.328% 10.328%

*The rate imposed on CalSTRS 2% at 62 members assuming no change in the normal cost of benefits.

STRP Defined Benefit Plan



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 29 

NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS, continued 

 

Contributions  

 

Required member, District, and State of California contribution rates are set by the California Legislature and 

Governor and detailed in Teachers' Retirement Law. The contribution rates are expressed as a level percentage of 

payroll using the entry age normal actuarial method. In accordance with AB 1469, employer contributions into the 

CalSTRS will be increasing to a total of 19.1 percent of applicable member earnings phased over a seven-year 

period. The contribution rates for each plan for the year ended June 30, 2021, are presented above, and the 

District's total contributions were $114,958.  

 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 

Resources Related to Pensions  

 

At June 30, 2021, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that reflected 

a reduction for State pension support provided to the District. The amount recognized by the District as its 

proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net pension 

liability that was associated with the District were as follows: 

 

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 1,126,441$          

State's proportionate share of the net pension liability 

associated with the District 580,676              

Total 1,707,117$           
 

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020. The District's proportion of the net pension liability 

was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 

projected contributions of all participating college districts and the State, actuarially determined. The District's 

proportionate share for the measurement periods of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019, was 0.0012 percent and 

0.0011 percent, respectively, resulting in a net increase in the proportionate share of 0.0001 percent  

 

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized pension expense of $195,900. In addition, the District 

recognized pension expense and revenue of $59,219 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2021, the 

District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 

following sources: 

 

Deferred Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred Inflows of 

Resources

Difference between projected and actual earnings on

plan investments 26,749$                   -$                           

Differences between expected and actual experience 1,989                      31,747                    

Changes in assumptions 109,824                   -                             

Net changes in proportionate share of net pension liability 135,053                   9,340                      

District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 114,958                   -                             

Total 388,573$                 41,087$                    
 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 30 

NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS, continued 

 

The deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent fiscal year. The 

deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources related to pensions will be recognized as follows: 

 

Deferred

Outflows/(Inflows)

Year Ended June 30, of Resources

2022 61,373$                   

2023 57,418                     

2024 73,172                     

2025 22,914                     

2026 7,292                       

Thereafter 10,359                     

232,528$                   
 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions  

Total pension liability for STRP was determined by applying update procedures to a financial reporting actuarial 

valuation as of June 30, 2019, and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2020. The financial reporting 

actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, used the following methods and assumptions, applied to all prior periods 

included in the measurement: 

 

Valuation date June 30, 2019

Measurement date June 30, 2020

Experience study July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2018

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal

Discount rate 7.10%

Investment rate of return 7.10%

Consumer price inflation 2.75%

Wage growth 3.50%  
 

CalSTRS uses custom mortality tables to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. These custom tables 

are based on RP2000 series tables adjusted to fit CalSTRS experience.  

 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 

method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension 

plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The best estimate ranges were 

developed using capital market assumptions from CalSTRS general investment consultant. Based on the model 

for CalSTRS consulting actuary investment practice, a best estimate range was determined assuming the portfolio 

is re-balanced annually and that the annual returns are lognormally distributed and independent from year to year 

to develop expected percentile for the long-term distribution of annualized returns. 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 31 

NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS, continued 

 

The assumed asset allocation is based on board policy for target asset allocation in effect on February 2, 2012, the 

date the current experience study was approved by the board. Best estimates of 20-year geometric real rates of 

return and the assumed asset allocation for each major asset class used as input to develop the actuarial 

investment rate of return are summarized in the following table: 

 

Asset Class

Assumed Asset 

Allocation 

Global Equity 47%

Fixed Income 12%

Real Estate 13%

Private Equity 13%

Cash/Liquidity 2%

Risk Mitigating Strategies 9%

Inflation Sensitive 4%

100%

*20-year geometric average

3.80%

6.30%

0.30%

5.20%

9.30%

-1.00%

2.90%

Long-term Expected 

Real Rate of Return*

 
 

Discount Rate  

 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10 percent. The projection of cash flows used 

to determine the discount rate assumed the contributions from plan members and employers will be made at 

statutory contribution rates. Projected inflows from investment earnings were calculated using the long-term 

assumed investment rate of return (7.10 percent) and assuming that contributions, benefit payments, and 

administrative expense occurred midyear. Based on these assumptions, the STRP's fiduciary net position was 

projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the 

long-term assumed investment rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 

determine total pension liability. 

 

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the current 

discount rate, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 

one percent lower or higher than the current rate: 

 

1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Rate Increase

(6.10%) (7.10%) (8.10%)

Plan's net pension liability 1,701,896$       1,126,441$         651,322$             
 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position  

 

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in CalSTRS’ separately issued 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 32 

NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS, continued 

 

California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS)  

 

Plan Description  

 

Qualified employees are eligible to participate in the School Employer Pool (SEP) and the Safety Risk Pool under 

CalPERS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan 

administered by CalPERS. Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as legislatively amended, within the 

Public Employees' Retirement Law.  

 

A full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions (for funding, but not accounting 

purposes), and membership information is listed in the June 30, 2019, annual actuarial valuation reports, Schools 

Pool Actuarial Valuation, and the Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation Report, Safety. These report(s) and CalPERS audited 

financial information are publicly available reports that can be found on the CalPERS website under Forms and 

Publications at: https://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/forms-publications 

 

Benefits Provided  

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits 

to plan members who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of service credit, 

a benefit factor, and the member's final compensation. Members hired on or before December 31, 2012, with five 

years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. Members hired on or after 

January 1, 2013, with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 52 with statutorily reduced benefits. All 

members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after five years of service. The Basic Death Benefit is paid to 

any member's beneficiary if the member dies while actively employed. An employee's eligible survivor may receive 

the 1957 Survivor Benefit if the member dies while actively employed, is at least age 50 (or age 52 for members 

hired on or after January 1, 2013), and has at least five years of credited service. The cost of living adjustments for 

each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees' Retirement Law. 

 

The CalPERS provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2021, are summarized as follows: 

 

On or before On or after

Hire date December 31, 2012 January 1, 2013

Benefit formula 2% at 55 2% at 62

Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service

Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life

Retirement age 55 62

Monthly benefits as a percentage of eligible compensation 1.1% - 2.5% 1.0% - 2.5%

Required employee contribution rate 7.000% 6.500%

Required employer contribution rate 20.700% 20.700%

School Employer Pool (CalPERS)

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 33 

NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS, continued 

 

Contributions  

 

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution rates 

for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on July 1 following 

notice of a change in the rate. Total plan contributions are calculated through the CalPERS annual actuarial 

valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of 

benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. 

The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution 

rate of employees. The contribution rates are expressed as a percentage of annual payroll. The contribution rates 

for each plan for the year ended June 30, 2021, are presented above, and the total District contributions were 

$77,615. 

 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 

Resources Related to Pensions  

 

As of June 30, 2021, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate share of the CalPERS net 

pension liability totaling $689,512. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020. The District’s 

proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions 

to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating college districts, actuarially 

determined. The District's proportionate share for the measurement periods of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019, 

was 0.0022 percent and 0.0024 percent, respectively, resulting in a net decrease the proportionate of .0002 percent.  

 

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized pension expense of $51,307. At June 30, 2021, the District 

reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following 

sources: 

 

Deferred Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred Inflows of 

Resources

Difference between projected and actual earnings on

plan investments 14,354$                   -$                           

Differences between expected and actual experience 34,198                    -                             

Changes in assumptions 2,528                      -                             

Net changes in proportionate share of net pension liability 5,043                      131,498                   

District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 77,615                    -                             

Total 133,738$                 131,498$                  
 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 34 

NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS, continued 

 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 

Resources Related to Pensions  

 

The deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent fiscal year. The 

deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources related to pensions will be recognized as follows: 

 

Deferred

Outflows/(Inflows)

Year Ended June 30, of Resources

2022 (50,995)$                  

2023 (35,848)                    

2024 8,935                       

2025 2,533                       

(75,375)$                   
 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions  

 

Total pension liability for the SEP was determined by applying update procedures to a financial reporting actuarial 

valuation as of June 30, 2019, and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2020. The financial reporting 

actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, used the following methods and assumptions, applied to all prior periods 

included in the measurement 

 

Valuation date June 30, 2019

Measurement date June 30, 2020

Experience study July 1, 1997, through June 30, 2015

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal

Discount rate 7.15%

Investment rate of return 7.15%

Consumer price inflation 2.50%

Wage growth Varies by entry age and service  
 

Mortality assumptions are based on mortality rates resulting from the most recent CalPERS experience study 

adopted by the CalPERS Board. For purposes of the post-retirement mortality rates, those revised rates include 

five years of projected ongoing mortality improvement using Scale AA published by the Society of Actuaries.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 35 

NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS, continued 

 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions , continued 

 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term 

market return expectations, as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all the 

funds' asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term (first ten years) and the long-

term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and 

long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund.  

 

The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same 

present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. 

 

The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded 

down to the nearest one quarter of one percent. The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real 

rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 

 

Asset Class*

Assumed Asset 

Allocation 

Global Equity 50%

Fixed Income 28%

Inflation Assets 0%

Private Equity 8%

Real Assets 13%

Liquidity 1%

100%

***An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period

*In the System's CAFR, Fixed Income is included in Global Debt Securities; Liquidity is included in Short-term 

Investments; Inflation Assets are included in both Global Equity Securities and Global Debt Securities.

**An expected inflation of 2.0% used for this period

6.30% 7.23%

3.75% 4.93%

0.00% -0.92%

4.80% 5.98%

1.00% 2.62%

0.77% 1.81%

Real Return

Years 1 - 10**

Real Return

Years 11+***

 
 

Discount Rate  

 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. The projection of cash flows used 

to determine the discount rate assumed the contributions from plan members and employers will be made at 

statutory contribution rates. Based on these assumptions, the School Employer Pool fiduciary net position was 

projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the 

long-term assumed investment rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 

determine total pension liability.  



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 36 

NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS, continued 

 

Discount Rate, continued  

 

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the current 

discount rate, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 

one percent lower or higher than the current rate: 

 

1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Rate Increase

(6.15%) (7.15%) (8.15%)

Plan's net pension liability 991,299$          689,512$            439,044$             
 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position  

 

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in CalPERS’ separately issued 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). 

 

On-Behalf Payments  

 

The District was the recipient of on-behalf payments made by the State of California to CalSTRS for K-12 education. 

These payments consist of state general fund contributions of approximately $116,122 to CalSTRS. 

 

NOTE  9 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS 

 

Plan Description 

 

The County Office of Education's defined benefit OPEB plan (the Plan), provides OPEB for all permanent fulltime 

employees of the County Office of Education. The Plan is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan 

administered by the County Office of Education. Authority to establish and amend the benefit terms and financing 

requirements lies with the County Office of Education's board of directors. No assets are accumulated in a trust 

that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75. 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 37 

NOTE  9 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS, continued 

 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the District reported net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources, 

deferred inflows of resources, and OPEB expense for the following plans: 

 

Net OPEB Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows OPEB

OPEB Plan Liability (Asset) of Resources of Resources Expense (Benefit)

District Plan 92,485$                 -$                          -$                          (1,364)$                   
 

Plan Description  

 

The District's defined benefit OPEB plan (the Plan), provides OPEB for all permanent fulltime employees of the 

District. The Plan is a single employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by the District. Authority to establish 

and amend the benefit terms and financing requirements lies with the District's board of directors. No assets are 

accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75. 

 

Benefits Provided 

 

Confidential and Classified Employees with a minimum of 25 years of experience 5 years with the County, who 

have reached the age of 55, may elect to take advantage of their choice of one of the following offers: 

 

A. 1 year of retiree benefits (at the Tiered Rate) for medical, dental, and vision plans for the retiree, spouse 

and family, or 

B. $13,840 for the term of 1 year 

 

Certificated employees with a minimum of 25 years of experience 5 years with the County Office, who have reached 

the age of 55, may elect to take advantage of their choice of one of the following offers: 

 

A. 3 years of retiree benefits (at the Tiered Rate) for medical, dental, and vision plans for the retiree, spouse 

and family, capped at the employer dollar contribution in the year of the unit member's final year of 

service, or 

B.  A lump sum dollar amount per year for 3 years set up at the dollar contribution per paragraph "a" above 

made by the employer in the year of the unit members final year of service. 

 

All contracts with County Office employees will be renegotiated periodically in the future, thus costs and benefits 

are subject to change. Benefits and contribution requirements for the Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) 

plan are established by various labor agreements. 

 

For the County Office, OPEB benefits are administered by its personnel. No separate financial statements are 

issued. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 38 

NOTE  9 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS, continued 

 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 

 

At the June 30, 2020 measurement date, the following retirees were covered by the benefit terms: 

 

Number of

Participants

Inactive Employees Receiving Benefits 1                    

Active Employees 11                   

12                    
 

Total OPEB Liability 

 

The County Office of Education's total OPEB liability of $92,485 was measured as of June 30, 2020 and was 

determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

 

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs 

 

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 

assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified. 

 

Valuation date June 30, 2018

Measurement date June 30, 2020

Fiscal year July 1st to June 30th

Actuarial cost methods Entry age normal cost method

Inflation rate 2.75%

Discount rate 3.89%

Payroll increase 3.25% for CalPERS

3.50% for CalSTRS

Healthcare cost trend rate 7.50% decreasing to 5.00% for years 2024 

and after  
 

Discount Rate  

 

The discount rate of 3.89% based on a yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal 

bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. 

 

Mortality Rates 

 

Mortality rates were based on the 2014 CaIPERS Active Mortality for Miscellaneous Employees table created by 

CaIPERS. The CaIPERS mortality tables created by CaIPERS are modified versions of the Society of Actuaries Scale 

BB mortality table, as adjusted for data from CaISTRS members. 

 

 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 39 

NOTE  9 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS, continued 

 

Changes in Total OPEB Liability 

 

Total OPEB Total Fiduciary Net OPEB

Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balance July 1, 2019 93,849$               -$                       93,849$               

Changes for the year:

Service cost 5,430                  -                         5,430                  

Interest 3,555                  -                         3,555                  

Employer contributions -                         10,349                (10,349)               

Expected benefit payments (10,349)               (10,349)               -                         

Net change (1,364)                 -                         (1,364)                 

Balance June 30, 2020 92,485$               -$                       92,485$               

Increase/(Decrease)

 
 

There were no changes in benefit terms or assumptions and other inputs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. 

 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the County Office of Education's total 

OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.89%) or 1-

percentage-point-higher (4.89%) than the current discount rate: 

 

Discount Rate Current Discount Rate

1% Lower Discount Rate 1% Higher

(2.89%) (3.89%) (4.89%)

Net OPEB liability 97,109$                   92,485$                   87,768$                    
 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 

 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's total OPEB liability would 

be, if. it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point-lower (6.50% per year) or 

1-percentage-point higher (8.50% per year) than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

 

Trend Rate Current Trend Rate

1% Lower Trend Rate 1% Higher

(6.50% decreasing

to 4.00%)

(7.50% decreasing

to 5.00%)

(8.50% decreasing

to 6.00%)

Net OPEB liability 84,901$                   92,485$                   104,508$                  
 

 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 40 

NOTE  9 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS, continued 

 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

 

For the year ended June 30, 2021 the County Office of Education recognized OPEB expense of $(1,364). At June 

30, 2021 the County Office of Education did not report any deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of 

resources relating to OPEB.  

 

NOTE 10 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

 

Litigation 

 

The County Office of Education is not involved in litigation. 

 

State and Federal Allowances. Awards. and Grants 

 

The County Office of Education has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to view 

and audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under terms 

of the grants, it is believed that any required reimbursement will not be material. 

 

NOTE 11 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS  

 

Sierra County Office of Education has evaluated subsequent events for the period from June 30, 2021 through 

February 25, 2022 the date the financial statements were available to be issued. Management did not identify any 

transactions that require disclosure or that would have an impact on the financial statements. 



 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

GENERAL FUND  

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

See note to the required supplementary information. 41 

Actual Variances - 

Original Final (Budgetary Basis) Final to Actual

REVENUES

LCFF sources 805,845$              805,845$              1,360,566$           554,721$              

Federal sources 173,924                173,924                164,529                (9,395)                  

Other state sources 788,028                788,028                906,882                118,854                

Other local sources 321,293                321,293                445,915                124,622                

Total Revenues 2,089,090             2,089,090             2,877,892             788,802                

EXPENDITURES

Certificated salaries 609,216                609,216                591,048                (18,168)                

Classified salaries 499,935                499,935                416,032                (83,903)                

Employee benefits 643,801                643,801                556,890                (86,911)                

Books and supplies 69,204                 69,204                 24,327                 (44,877)                

Services and other operating expenditures 525,380                525,380                466,164                (59,216)                

Capital outlay 94,255                 94,255                 49,732                 (44,523)                

Other outgo

Excluding transfers of indirect costs 49,428                 49,428                 -                          (49,428)                

Total Expenditures 2,491,219             2,491,219             2,104,193             (387,026)               

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures (402,129)               (402,129)               773,699                401,776                

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers in 62,340                 62,340                 55,929                 (6,411)                  

Net Financing Sources (Uses) 62,340                 62,340                 55,929                 (6,411)                  

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (339,789)               (339,789)               829,628                1,169,417             

Fund Balance - Beginning 2,896,330             2,896,330             2,896,330             -                          

Fund Balance - Ending 2,556,541$           2,556,541$           3,725,958$           1,169,417$           

Budgeted Amounts

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

See note to the required supplementary information. 42 

2021 2020 2019 2018

Total OPEB liability

Service cost 5,430$                 5,260$                 5,094$                 5,796$                 

Interest 3,555                   3,763                   3,938                   3,261                   

Changes of assumptions -                         -                         -                         (8,789)                  

Benefit payments (10,349)                (18,548)                (3,571)                  (27,681)                

Other -                         -                         (1,993)                  -                         

Net change in total OPEB liability (1,364)                  (9,525)                  3,468                   (27,413)                

Total OPEB liability, beginning of year 93,849                 103,374               99,906                 127,319               

Total OPEB liability, end of year (a) 92,485$               93,849$               103,374$              99,906$               

Plan fiduciary net position

Employer contributions 10,349$               18,548$               3,571$                 27,681$               

Expected benefit payments (10,349)                (18,548)                (3,571)                  (27,681)                

Change in plan fiduciary net position -                         -                         -                         -                         

Fiduciary trust net position, beginning of year -                         -                         -                         -                         

Fiduciary trust net position, end of year (b) -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        

Net OPEB liability, ending (a) - (b) 92,485$               93,849$               103,374$              99,906$               

Covered payroll 1,171,148$           1,134,284$           1,098,580$           861,043$              

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of

the total OPEB liability 0% 0% 0% 0%

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll 8% 8% 9% 12%

Note: In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.  



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS – OPEB  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

See note to the required supplementary information. 43 

2021 2020 2019 2018

Actuarially  determined contribution 13,703$              10,349$              18,548$              8,671$               

Contributions in relations to the actuarially determined contribution -                        6,624                 18,548               20,760               

Contribution deficiency (excess) 13,703$              3,725$               -$                      (12,089)$             

Covered-employee payroll 1,171,148$         1,134,284$         1,098,580$         861,043$            

Contribution as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 0.00% 0.58% 1.69% 2.41%

Note: In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.  
 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

See note to the required supplementary information. 44 

2021 2020 2019 2018

CalSTRS (2020) (2019) (2018) (2017)

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.0012% 0.0011% 0.0010% 0.0010%

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 1,126,441$    973,498$      919,609$      889,661$      

State's proportionate share of the net pension liability 

associated with the District 580,676        531,112        526,545        528,221        

Total 1,707,117$    1,504,610$    1,446,154$    1,417,882$    

District's covered - employee payroll 711,814$      641,556$      618,833$      548,850$      

District's proportionate Share of the net pension liability as

  percentage of covered-employee payroll 158% 152% 149% 162%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

  total pension liability 72% 73% 71% 69%

2021 2020 2019 2018

CalPERS (2020) (2019) (2018) (2017)

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.0022% 0.0024% 0.0024% 0.0025%

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 689,512$      689,869$      631,055$      607,454$      

District's covered - employee payroll 374,952$      371,655$      374,028$      312,193$      

District's proportionate Share of the net pension liability as

  percentage of covered-employee payroll 184% 186% 169% 248%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

  total pension liability 70% 70% 71% 72%

Note: In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.

Reporting Fiscal Year

(Measurement Date)

Reporting Fiscal Year

(Measurement Date)

 
 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

See note to the required supplementary information. 45 

2017 2016 2015

CalSTRS (2016) (2015) (2014)

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.0007% 0.0011% 0.0007%

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 620,236$      497,299$      269,092$      

State's proportionate share of the net pension liability 

associated with the District 323,525        268,306        139,965        

Total 943,761$      765,605$      409,057$      

District's covered - employee payroll 508,613$      341,351$      336,050$      

District's proportionate Share of the net pension liability as

  percentage of covered-employee payroll 122% 146% 80%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

  total pension liability 70% 74% 77%

2017 2016 2015

CalPERS (2016) (2015) (2014)

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.0026% 0.0027% 0.0029%

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 523,055$      390,964$      329,221$      

District's covered - employee payroll 313,538$      294,962$      294,958$      

District's proportionate Share of the net pension liability as

  percentage of covered-employee payroll 243% 133% 112%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

  total pension liability 74% 79% 83%

Note: In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.

Reporting Fiscal Year

(Measurement Date)

Reporting Fiscal Year

(Measurement Date)

 
 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS – PENSIONS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

See note to the required supplementary information. 46 

CalSTRS 2021 2020 2019 2018

Statutorily required contribution 114,958$     109,706$     100,746$     79,199$       

District's contributions in relation to

    the statutorily required contribution 114,958       109,706       100,746       79,199        

District's contribution deficiency (excess) -$               -$               -$               -$               

District's covered-employee payroll 711,814$     641,556$     618,833$     548,850$     

District's contributions as a percentage of

    covered-employee payroll 16.15% 17.10% 16.28% 14.43%

CalPERS 2021 2020 2019 2018

Statutorily required contribution 77,615$       73,294$       67,557$       57,268$       

District's contributions in relation to

    the statutorily required contribution 77,615        73,294        67,557        57,268        

District's contribution deficiency (excess) -$               -$               -$               -$               

District's covered-employee payroll 374,952$     371,655$     374,028$     368,995$     

District's contributions as a percentage of

    covered-employee payroll 20.70% 19.72% 18.06% 15.52%

Note: In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.

Reporting Fiscal Year

Reporting Fiscal Year

 
 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS – PENSIONS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

See note to the required supplementary information. 47 

CalSTRS 2017 2016 2015

Statutorily required contribution 38,811$       30,312$       27,015$       

District's contributions in relation to

    the statutorily required contribution 38,811        30,312        27,015        

District's contribution deficiency (excess) -$               -$               -$               

District's covered-employee payroll 508,613$     381,088$     336,050$     

District's contributions as a percentage of

    covered-employee payroll 7.63% 7.95% 8.04%

CalPERS 2017 2016 2015

Statutorily required contribution 37,641$       34,720$       34,421$       

District's contributions in relation to

    the statutorily required contribution 37,641        34,720        34,421        

District's contribution deficiency (excess) -$               -$               -$               

District's covered-employee payroll 270,994$     317,658$     294,958$     

District's contributions as a percentage of

    covered-employee payroll 13.89% 10.93% 11.67%

Note: In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.

Reporting Fiscal Year

Reporting Fiscal Year

 
 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 48 

NOTE 1 – PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES  

 

Budgetary Comparison Schedules  

 

The District employs budget control by object codes and by individual appropriation accounts. Budgets are 

prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 

in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and provisions 

of the California Education Code. The governing board is required to hold a public hearing and adopt an operating 

budget no later than July 1 of each year. The adopted budget is subject to amendment throughout the year to 

give consideration to unanticipated revenue and expenditures primarily resulting from events unknown at the 

time of budget adoption with the legal restriction that expenditures cannot exceed appropriations by major object 

account.  

 

The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts when 

the original appropriations were adopted. The amounts reported as the final budgeted amounts in the budgetary 

statements reflect the amounts after all budget amendments have been accounted for.  

 

This schedule presents information for the original and final budgets and actual results of operations, as well as 

the variances from the final budget to actual results of operations.  

 

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios  

 

This schedule presents information on the District's changes in the total OPEB liability, including beginning and 

ending balances, and the total OPEB liability. In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will 

be presented.  

 

Change in Benefit Terms - There were no changes in benefit terms since the previous valuation for other 

postemployment benefits.  

Change of Assumptions - There were no change in assumptions since the previous valuation for other 

postemployment benefits.  

 

Schedule of Contributions – OPEB  

 

A 10-year schedule presenting for each year the information indicated in subparagraphs (1)−(6), if an actuarially 

determined contribution is calculated for employers or non-employer contributing entities. The schedule should 

identify whether the information relates to the employers, non-employer contributing entities, or both.  An 

actuarially determined contribution was not calculated, therefore the Schedule of OPEB Contributions is not 

applicable and not presented. 

 

 

 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 49 

NOTE 1 – PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES, contributions  

 

Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability  

 

This 10-year schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 68 for each cost-sharing pension plan. Until a full 10-

year trend is compiled, the schedule will only show those years under which GASB Statement No. 68 was 

applicable. The schedule presents the District’s proportion (percentage) of the collective net pension liability, the 

District’s proportionate share (amount) of the collective net pension liability, the District’s covered-employee 

payroll, and the pension plan’s fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability.  

 

Changes in Benefit Terms - There were no changes in benefit terms since the previous valuations for 

both CalSTRS and CalPERS.  

Changes of Assumptions - There were no changes of assumptions since the previous valuations for both 

CalSTRS and CalPERS.  

 

Schedule of Contributions – Pensions  

 

This 10-year schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 68 for each cost-sharing pension plan. Until a full 10-

year trend is compiled, the schedule will only show those years under which GASB Statement No. 68 was 

applicable. The schedule presents the District’s statutorily or contractually required employer contribution, the 

amount of contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation to the statutorily or contractually required 

employer contribution, the difference between the statutorily or contractually required employer contribution and 

the amount of contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation to the statutorily or contractually required 

employer contribution, the District’s covered-employee payroll, and the amount of contributions recognized by 

the pension plan in relation to the statutorily or contractually required employer contribution as a percentage of 

the District’s covered-employee payroll. 

 

 

 



 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE  

JUNE 30, 2021 

 

See note to the supplementary information. 50 

The Sierra County Office of Education was established in 1956 and operates in an area of approximately 1,600 

square miles in Plumas and Sierra Counties. There were no changes in the area of operation during the year. The 

County Office provides Special Education, Counseling, and County School services. Sierra County has one school 

district, the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District. 

 

GOVERNING BOARD

Name Office Term Expires

Patricia Hall Member December 2024

Nona Griesert

Business Manager

Superintendent

Nicole Stannard Member December 2024

ADMINISTRATION

James T. Berardi

Christina Potter Clerk December 2024

Mike Moore President December 2022

Allen Wright Vice President December 2022

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

See note to the supplementary information. 51 

Traditional Multitrack

Grade Level Calendar Calendar Status

Kindergarten 180 N/A Complied

Grade 1 180 N/A Complied

Grade 2 180 N/A Complied

Grade 3 180 N/A Complied

Grade 4 180 N/A Complied

Grade 5 180 N/A Complied

Grade 6 180 N/A Complied

Grade 7 180 N/A Complied

Grade 8 180 N/A Complied

Grade 9 180 N/A Complied

Grade 10 180 N/A Complied

Grade 11 180 N/A Complied

Grade 12 180 N/A Complied

Number of Days

 
 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

See note to the supplementary information. 52 

2022 (Budget) 2021 2020 2019

General Fund - Budgetary Basis**

Revenues and Other Financing Sources 2,677,989$           2,933,822             2,460,919             2,188,760             

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 2,431,987             2,104,194             2,074,274             2,525,134             

Net Change in Fund Balance 246,002                829,628                386,645                (336,374)               

Ending Fund Balance 3,971,960$           3,725,958$           2,896,330$           2,509,685$           

Available Reserves* 3,743,534$           3,497,432$           2,736,525$           2,384,712$           

Available Reserves as a 

Percentage of Outgo 153.9% 166.2% 131.9% 94.4%

Long-term Debt 1,928,284$           1,928,284$           1,770,280$           1,659,042$           

Average Daily

Attendance at P-2 20                       20                       20                       14                       

* Available reserves consist of all unassigned fund balances and all funds reserved for economic uncertainty contained within 

the General Fund.

**This schedule reflects General Fund budgetary fund basis, which excludes the Forest Reserve Fund.  
 

The General Fund balance has increased by $1,216,712 over the past two years. The fiscal year 2021-2022 budget 

projects a budget increase of $246,002 For a district this size, the State recommends available reserves of at least 

three percent of total General Fund expenditures, transfers out, and other uses (total outgo).  

 

Total long-term obligations have increased by $269,242 over the past two years.  

 

Average daily attendance has increase by 6 over the past two years. No change in ADA is anticipated during fiscal 

year 2021-2022. 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET REPORT  

WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

See note to the supplementary information. 53 

There were no adjustments to the Unaudited Actual Financial Report which require reconciliation to the audited 

financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

SCHEDULE CHARTER SCHOOLS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

See note to the supplementary information. 54 

Included in

Charter School Audit Report

None N/A  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

NOTE TO THE SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 55 

NOTE 1 – PURPOSES OF SCHEDULES 

  

Local Education Agency Organization Structure  

 

This schedule provides information about the District's boundaries and schools operated, members of the 

governing board, and members of the administration.  

 

Schedule of Instructional Time  

 

The District has received incentive funding for increasing instructional time as provided by the Incentives for 

Longer Instructional Day. This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by the 

District and whether the District complied with the provisions of Education Code Sections 46200 through 46206.  

The District neither met nor exceeded its targeted funding.  

 

Districts must maintain their instructional minutes at the 1986-87 requirement as required by Education Code 

Section 46201.  

 

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements  

 

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balance of all funds reported on the 

Unaudited Actual Financial Report to the audited financial statements.  

 

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis  

 

This schedule discloses the District's financial trends by displaying past years' data along with current year budget 

Information. These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the District's ability to continue as a going 

concern for a reasonable period of time.  

 

Schedule of Charter Schools  

 

This schedule provides information for the California Department of Education to monitor financial reporting by 

Charter Schools. 

 

 

 

 



 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTS 

 



 

 
 56 

 

 

 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND 

ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 

 

Board of Trustees 

Sierra County Office of Education 

Loyalton, California  

 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 

and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 

Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, 

and the aggregate remaining fund information of Sierra County Office of Education, as of and for the year ended 

June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Sierra County Office 

of Education's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated February 25, 2022. 

 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Sierra County Office of 

Education's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not 

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sierra County Office of Education's internal 

control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sierra County Office of Education's 

internal control. 

 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 

employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 

misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 

control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 

will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 

to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 

and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 

deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. 

Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider 

to be material weaknesses. 

 

 
8 5 8 . 5 6 5 . 2 7 0 0  
w w w . c w d l . c o m  



 

 
 57 

Compliance and Other Matters 

 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Sierra County Office of Education's financial 

statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 

laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 

effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 

those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results 

of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 

Government Auditing Standards. 

 

Purpose of this Report 

 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 

the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on 

compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 

Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 

suitable for any other purpose. 

 

 

 

 

San Diego, California 

February 25, 2022 

 

 
8 5 8 . 5 6 5 . 2 7 0 0  
w w w . c w d l . c o m  

 



 

 
 58 

 

 

 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE 

 

 

Board of Trustees 

Sierra County Office of Education 

Loyalton, California 

 

Report on State Compliance 

 

We have audited the County Office's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 

2020-21 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed in 

Title 5, California Code of Regulations, Section 19810 that could have a direct and material effect on each of the 

County Office's state programs identified below for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. 

 

Management's Responsibility for State Compliance 

 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 

applicable to its state programs. 

 

Auditor's Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each applicable program as identified in the State's 

audit guide, 2020-21 Guide for Annual Audits of K- 12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting 

prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, Section 19810. We conducted our audit of compliance in 

accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable 

to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United 

States; and the State's audit guide, 2020-21 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State 

Compliance Reporting, prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, Section 19810. Those standards and 

audit guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 

on the state programs noted below occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 

County Office's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 

necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit 

does not provide a legal determination of the County Office's compliance with those requirements. 

 

 

 
8 5 8 . 5 6 5 . 2 7 0 0  
w w w . c w d l . c o m  



 

 
 59 

In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to determine the 

County Office's compliance with the state laws and regulations applicable to the following item: 

 

PROGRAM NAME

PROCEDURES 

PERFORMED

Attendance Yes

Teacher Certification and Misassignments Yes

Kindergarten Continuance Yes

Instructional Time Yes

Instructional Materials Yes

Ratios of Administrative Employees to Teachers Not applicable

Classroom Teacher Salaries Not applicable

Early Retirement Incentive Not applicable

Gann Limit Calculation Yes

School Accountability Report Card Yes

K-3 Grade Span Adjustment Not applicable

Transportation Maintenance of Effort Not applicable

Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction Not applicable

Comprehensive School Safety Plan Yes

District of Choice Not applicable

California Clean Energy Jobs Act Not applicable

After/Before School Education and Safety Program Not applicable

Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes

Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Not applicable

Charter Schools:

Independent Study-Course Based Not applicable

Attendance Not applicable

Mode of Instruction Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Charter School Facility Grant Program Not applicable

Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study

Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction

Annual Instructional Minutes - Classroom Based

 
 

The term "Not Applicable" is used above to mean either the County Office did not offer the program during the 

current fiscal year or the program applies to a different type of local education agency. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
8 5 8 . 5 6 5 . 2 7 0 0  
w w w . c w d l . c o m  

 



 

 
 60 

Opinion on State Compliance 

 

In our opinion, the Sierra County Office of Education complied, in all material respects, with the compliance 

requirements referred to above that are applicable to the statutory requirements listed in the schedule above for 

the year ended June 30, 2021. 

 

Purpose of This Report 

 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that 

testing, and not to provide an opinion of the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance outside 

of the items tested as noted above. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with the 

2020-21 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting prescribed in 

Title 5, California Code of Regulations, Section 19810 in considering the entity's compliance. Accordingly, this 

communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

 

 

 

San Diego, California 

February 25, 2022 

 
8 5 8 . 5 6 5 . 2 7 0 0  
w w w . c w d l . c o m  

 



 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 61 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None Noted

Non-compliance material to financial statements noted? No

STATE AWARDS

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for state programs: Unmodified  



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 62 

FIVE DIGIT CODE AB3627 FINDING TYPES

20000 Inventory of Equipment

30000 Internal Control

60000 Miscellaneous  
 

There were no financial statements findings for the year ended June 30, 2021. 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 63 

FIVE DIGIT CODE AB3627 FINDING TYPES

10000 Attendance

40000 State Compliance

42000 Charter School Facilities Program

60000 Miscellaneous

61000 Classroom Teacher Salaries

70000 Instructional Materials

71000 Teacher Missassignments

72000 School Accountability Report Card  
 

There were no state award findings or questioned costs identified for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

 

 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 

 64 

There were no findings or questioned costs identified for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

 



Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2021/22Balances through February

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 307,843.00 376,051.00 125,733.68 193,803.41 56,513.91 Teachers Salaries

1115 1,000.00 1,000.00 430.00 570.00 Certificated Extra Duty

1120 7,500.00 8,250.00 2,770.00 5,480.00 Certificated Substitutes

1200 56,444.00 58,857.00 10,703.32 22,762.64 25,391.04 Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 197,315.00 202,315.00 66,122.40 135,982.00 210.60 Certificated Supervisor Admini

1310 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 Teacher in Charge

Total for Object 1000 580,102.00 656,473.00 202,559.40 355,748.05 98,165.55 

2100 154,607.00 154,606.00 57,076.01 70,542.27 26,987.72 Instructional Aides' Salaries

2115 1,000.00 1,000.00 477.17 522.83 Classified Extra Duty

2120 5,000.00 5,234.00 4,476.66 757.34 Classified Substitutes

2200 39,910.00 42,410.00 27,045.81 48,111.40 32,747.21-Classified Support Salaries

2215 1,000.00 2,271.00 2,271.00 Classified Support Extra Duty

2220 750.00 111.08 638.92 Classified Substitute Salaries

2300 207,800.00 203,737.00 43,776.40 87,426.00 72,534.60 Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 150,609.00 146,534.00 65,914.24 111,323.83 30,704.07-Clerical Technical Office Staf

2900 19,752.00 19,752.00 2,069.00 17,683.00 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 579,678.00 576,294.00 193,812.46 324,537.41 57,944.13 

3101 160,406.00 173,201.00 34,273.04 59,353.90 79,574.06 STRS Certificated Positions

3102 84.60 84.60-STRS Classified Positions

3201 148.92 148.92-PERS Certificated Positions

3202 122,318.00 121,025.00 42,314.44 74,185.94 4,524.62 PERS Classified Positions

3301 48.98 48.98-OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 35,661.00 35,311.00 11,796.36 20,104.78 3,409.86 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 9,207.00 10,304.00 2,834.48 5,236.52 2,233.00 Medicare Certificated Position

3312 8,346.00 8,264.00 2,760.86 4,813.21 689.93 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 110,570.00 117,496.00 39,829.48 65,203.25 12,463.27 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 70,148.00 123,688.00 49,811.00 82,616.97 8,739.97-Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3501 6,748.00 6,987.00 1,012.80 1,870.16 4,104.04 SUI Certificated

3502 7,129.00 7,002.00 968.77 1,650.79 4,382.44 SUI Classified

3601 24,094.00 26,753.00 6,985.60 12,342.58 7,424.82 Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 21,837.00 21,605.00 6,804.29 11,659.93 3,140.78 Workers' Compensation Classifi

3901 15,689.00 15,689.00 15,688.50 .50 Golden Handshake

Total for Object 3000 592,153.00 667,325.00 199,391.12 355,009.03 112,924.85 

4100 1,001.00 4,773.00 4,773.00 Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4300 54,248.00 65,612.00 3,249.22 22,105.15 40,257.63 Materials and Supplies

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2022, Period = 8, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Mar  2 2022  9:32AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1115
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2115
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2215
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2220
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3201
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3901
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2021/22Balances through February

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

4320 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Custodial Grounds Supplies

4330 1,750.00 1,750.00 207.74 1,542.26 Office Supplies

4350 3,500.00 3,500.00 791.27 1,366.98 1,341.75 Vehicle Upkeep

4399 4,293.00 5,173.00 5,173.00 Mat & Sup Undesignated Bal

4400 9,414.00 25,990.00 7,164.74 18,825.26 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 75,206.00 107,798.00 11,205.23 23,679.87 72,912.90 

5100 40,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 Subagreements for Services

5200 14,500.00 66,903.00 1,315.54 8,523.21 57,064.25 Travel and Conference

5300 16,941.00 19,004.00 606.32 17,915.64 482.04 Dues and Membership

5400 15,000.00 15,000.00 17,361.50 2,361.50-Insurance

5500 14,500.00 14,500.00 533.37 3,466.63 10,500.00 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 2,500.00 2,500.00 459.94 326.95 1,713.11 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5801 18,500.00 25,370.00 4,914.50 85.50 20,370.00 Legal Services

5805 500.00 1,000.00 86.00 64.00 850.00 Personnel Expense

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,007.69 492.31 .00 Other Services & Fees

5810 385,979.00 460,746.00 303,103.19 133,039.66 24,603.15 Contracted Services

5899 3,319.87 32,227.07 35,546.94-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 10,500.00 14,000.00 3,092.32 9,755.86 1,151.82 Communications

Total for Object 5000 520,420.00 660,523.00 318,438.74 223,258.33 118,825.93 

6400 20,000.00 20,000.00 5,797.60 24,036.81 9,834.41-Equipment

6500 15,000.00 15,000.00 2,801.50 12,198.50 Equipment Replacement

Total for Object 6000 35,000.00 35,000.00 8,599.10 24,036.81 2,364.09 

7110 25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 County Tuition Inter Dist Agre

7141 24,428.00 24,428.00 24,428.00 Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 49,428.00 49,428.00 .00 .00 49,428.00 

512,565.45 2,431,987.00 2,752,841.00 934,006.05 1,306,269.50 Total for Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Fund 11 - ADULT ED   

1100 7,500.00 17,075.67 9,575.67-Teachers Salaries

1300 101,715.00 101,715.00 34,586.36 69,172.72 2,044.08-Certificated Supervisor Admini

Total for Object 1000 101,715.00 109,215.00 34,586.36 86,248.39 11,619.75-

2100 5,684.00 5,684.00 Instructional Aides' Salaries

2200 3,143.00 10,243.00 10,243.00 Classified Support Salaries

2400 25,000.00 8,615.20 15,534.58 850.22 Clerical Technical Office Staf

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2022, Period = 8, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Mar  2 2022  9:32AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4399
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7110
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=2400


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2021/22Balances through February

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 11 - ADULT ED    (continued)

Total for Object 2000 3,143.00 40,927.00 8,615.20 15,534.58 16,777.22 

3101 22,410.00 23,679.00 5,852.00 12,549.52 5,277.48 STRS Certificated Positions

3202 720.00 9,377.00 1,973.75 3,558.96 3,844.29 PERS Classified Positions

3301 748.88 748.88-OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 195.00 2,537.00 534.16 963.16 1,039.68 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 1,475.00 1,584.00 501.52 1,250.64 168.16-Medicare Certificated Position

3312 46.00 594.00 124.92 225.26 243.82 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 12,767.00 12,767.00 4,339.60 8,553.20 125.80-Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3501 1,251.00 1,289.00 172.92 431.23 684.85 SUI Certificated

3502 39.00 228.00 43.08 77.70 107.22 SUI Classified

3601 3,859.00 4,127.00 1,235.96 3,082.12 191.08-Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 119.00 1,470.00 307.88 555.14 606.98 Workers' Compensation Classifi

Total for Object 3000 42,881.00 57,652.00 15,085.79 31,995.81 10,570.40 

4100 6,500.00 6,500.00 2,796.47 3,703.53 Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4300 6,000.00 28,813.00 4,965.34 7,248.18 16,599.48 Materials and Supplies

4320 2,000.00 2,000.00 258.97 1,741.03 Custodial Grounds Supplies

4330 3,000.00 3,000.00 578.79 1,390.18 1,031.03 Office Supplies

4350 5,000.00 5,000.00 1,584.22 38.00 3,377.78 Vehicle Upkeep

4399 42,898.00 42,898.00 Mat & Sup Undesignated Bal

4400 5,200.00 20,000.00 9,490.50 10,509.50 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 27,700.00 108,211.00 7,128.35 21,222.30 79,860.35 

5200 6,500.00 6,500.00 447.88 1,390.99 4,661.13 Travel and Conference

5203 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 MILEAGE

5300 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,183.40 316.60 Dues and Membership

5500 4,200.00 4,200.00 1,417.60 1,982.40 800.00 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 2,500.00 2,500.00 600.44 1,722.28 177.28 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5801 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Legal Services

5805 100.00 100.00 1.00 49.00 50.00 Personnel Expense

5808 1,000.00 489.60 75.06 435.34 Other Services & Fees

5810 17,000.00 25,000.00 540.00 20,347.66 4,112.34 Contracted Services

5900 5,000.00 5,000.00 410.51 789.49 3,800.00 Communications

Total for Object 5000 38,800.00 47,800.00 3,907.03 27,540.28 16,352.69 

6200 6,380.00 6,500.00 6,500.00 .00 Building and Improvement of Bu

6400 6,610.00 6,610.00 6,610.00 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 12,990.00 13,110.00 .00 6,500.00 6,610.00 

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2022, Period = 8, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 3 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Mar  2 2022  9:32AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4399
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5203
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=6400


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2021/22Balances through February

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 11 - ADULT ED    (continued)

7619 6,971.00 10,697.00 10,697.00 Other Authorized Interfund Tra

129,247.91 234,200.00 387,612.00 69,322.73 189,041.36 Total for Fund 11 and Expense accounts

Fund 16 - FOREST RES   

7211 80,000.00 262,000.00 262,000.00 Transfers of Pass-through Rev

7619 13,360.00 46,000.00 46,000.00 Other Authorized Interfund Tra

308,000.00 93,360.00 308,000.00 .00 .00 Total for Fund 16, Expense accounts and Object 7000

949,813.36 2,759,547.00 3,448,453.00 1,003,328.78 1,495,310.86 Total for Org 001 - Sierra County Office of Education

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2022, Period = 8, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 4 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Mar  2 2022  9:32AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=7619
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7211
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=130317&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7619


 
Page 1 of 3 

SCOE Minutes – February 08, 2022 

MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

February 08, 2022 

6:00pm Regular Session  

Downieville: Downieville School, 130 School St, Downieville CA 95936 

Zoom videoconferencing was also available for the public. 

In accordance with AB 361, effective October 1, 2021, pertaining to the convening of public meetings in response 

to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Sierra County Board of Education suspended the Brown Act teleconferencing 

posting requirements for any Board members that chose to participate via Zoom videoconferencing. 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

Vice President CHRISTINA POTTER called the meeting to order at 6:02pm. 

B. ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Christina Potter, Vice President (via Zoom) 

Patty Hall, Clerk 

  Allen Wright, Member 

Mike Moore, Member 

  Nicole Stannard, Member 

ABSENT: None 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

STANNARD/HALL 

5/0 

D. FLAG SALUTE 

E. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

1. Superintendent’s Report 

a. Supplement to Annual Update for 2021-2022 Local Control Accountability 

Plan (LCAP) 

BERARDI: Informational only. New supplemental mid-year report for LCAP. 

b. Assignment of Kimberly Askew, Workability Coordinator, .125 FTE (5 hours 

weekly), effective January 14, 2022 

c. Nurse update 

BERARDI: We have been seeking out a fully credentialed registered nurse for 

over two years now. Three applicants during that time – one pulled out their 

application, one did not qualify, one new recent application that is currently 

under review. 

2. Business Report 

a. Account Object Summary-Balance from 07/01/2021 to 01/31/2022 

3. Staff Reports 

SELPA—BETHKE: Excited to have Kim Askew join us as Workability 

Coordinator and Lauren Jones as Behavior Analyst. 

ADULT ED—JACKSON: Not present. 

4. Board Member Reports 

None 

 



 
Page 2 of 3 

SCOE Minutes – February 08, 2022 

 

 

5. Public Comment 

MULTIPLE SPEAKERS AGAINST EXISTING MASK MANDATES AND ANY 

POTENTIAL FUTURE VACCINE MANDATES 

MEGAN MESCHERY: Sierra Schools Foundation awarded nearly $40K in grants 

for the winter grant cycle for programs at the Downieville and Loyalton schools 

plus grants to Musica Sierra for music programs at the schools. 

F. CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Approval of minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held January 11, 2022 

2. Approval of Board Report-Checks Dated 01/01/2022 through 01/31/2022 

3. Authorization to submit 2021-2022 Consolidated Application 

MOORE/HALL 

5/0 

G. ACTION ITEMS 

1. New Business  

a. Approval of the 2020-2021 Sierra County Office of Education Special 

Education School Accountability Report Card 

WRIGHT/HALL 

5/0 

b. Approval of utilizing AB 361 for meetings conducted through March 08, 2022 

**This suspends the Brown Act teleconferencing posting requirements for 

any Board members that choose to participate via Zoom videoconferencing 

**AB 361 expires January 01, 2024 

**Zoom will be available for the public with or without utilizing AB 361 

STANNARD/HALL 

5/0 

BOARD POLICIES, ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS, EXHIBITS, BOARD BYLAWS 

  MOORE motioned to table the approval of policies to the next meeting in March.  

Second by HALL. 

  5/0 

c. 4217.3—Layoff/Rehire 

1. Administrative Regulation, revisions 

d. 6112—School Day 

1. Board Policy, revisions 

2. Administrative Regulation, revisions 

e. 6158—Independent Study 

1. Board Policy, revisions 

2. Administrative Regulation, revisions 

f. 6170.1—Transitional Kindergarten 

1. Board Policy, revisions 

g. 9320—Meetings and Notices 

1. Board Bylaw, revisions 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Page 3 of 3 

SCOE Minutes – February 08, 2022 

 

H. ADVANCED PLANNING 

1. Next Regular Board Meetings will be held on March 08, 2022, at Sierra County Office of 

Education, Room 4, 109 Beckwith Rd, Loyalton CA 96118, beginning with Closed Session 

as needed at 5:00pm and the Regular Board Meetings at 6:00pm. Masks are required for in-

person attendance. Zoom videoconferencing will be available for the public. 

2. Suggested Agenda Items 

None 

I. ADJOURN at 6:46pm 

STANNARD/HALL 

5/0 

 

 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

Patty Hall, Clerk     James Berardi, Superintendent 

       Secretary to the County Board of Education 



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 02/01/2022 through 02/28/2022

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00016146 02/11/2022 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 01-4300 INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES 22.45 

LAPTOP BACKPACK 16.82 

01-4330 OFFICE SUPPLIES 27.86 67.13 

00016147 02/11/2022 CIT 01-5900 PHONE SYSTEM/MAINTENANCE 773.08 

00016148 02/11/2022 HEIDI BETHKE 01-4300 FACE SHIELD 21.64 

00016149 02/11/2022 CADENCE TEAM, INC 01-5810 NETWORK SUPPORT 10,125.00 

01-5899 NETWORK SUPPORT 1,125.00 11,250.00 

00016150 02/11/2022 MICAH COHEN, MOT, OTR/L 01-5810 OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY SERVICES 1,935.00 

00016151 02/11/2022 FEATHER RIVER PHYSICAL THERAPY 01-5810 PHYSICAL THERAPY SERVICES 467.12 

00016152 02/11/2022 KELLI GROCK 01-5810 COUNSELING SERVICES 3,511.20 

00016153 02/11/2022 HARBOR FREIGHT TOOLS 01-4300 SHOP CLASS SUPPLIES 295.02 

00016154 02/11/2022 INTERMOUNTAIN DISPOSAL, INC. 11-5500 GARBAGE SERVICE 30.11 

00016155 02/11/2022 DONITA KING 01-5810 COUNSELING SERVICES 1,504.80 

00016156 02/11/2022 LIBERTY UTILITIES CPEC 01-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 1,634.54 

11-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 541.05 2,175.59 

00016157 02/11/2022 MOUNTAIN MESSENGER 11-4300 ADS 290.52 

00016158 02/11/2022 PLUMAS-SIERRA TELECOMMUNICATIONS 11-5600 BROADBAND SERVICE 109.00 

00016159 02/11/2022 PRESENCELEARNING, INC. 01-5810 PRESENCE LEARNING 7,637.00 

00016160 02/11/2022 RAY MORGAN COMPANY 11-5600 COPIER/MAINTENANCE 31.52 

00016161 02/11/2022 CAROLYN  REES 01-5810 COVID TESTING SERVICES 750.00 

00016162 02/11/2022 REMSA CENTER FOR INTEGRATED HEALTH CARE & 

COMMUNITY EDU

11-4300 CPR CARDS 6.00 

00016163 02/11/2022 SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-4300 SHOP SUPPLIES 165.47 

00016164 02/11/2022 STUNTMASTERS INC. 01-5810 TUPE ASSEMBLY 2,295.00 

00016165 02/11/2022 THE MASTER TEACHER 11-4300 ONLINE TRAINING 552.00 

00016166 02/11/2022 TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INSURANCE GROUP 01-9535 HEALTH INSURANCE 2,874.00 

76-9576 HEALTH INSURANCE 28,198.50 31,072.50 

00016167 02/11/2022 U.S. BANK VOYAGER 01-4350 FUEL EXPENSE 133.70 

01-5200 FUEL EXPENSE 107.21 

01-5899 FUEL EXPENSE 33.66 274.57 

00016168 02/28/2022 ALHAMBRA 11-4330 WATER SERVICE 27.92 

00016169 02/28/2022 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 01-4300 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES 39.76 

11-4300 OFFICE SUPPLIES 58.65 98.41 

00016170 02/28/2022 JENNA ARTAZ 01-5810 COUNSELING SERVICES 1,839.20 

00016171 02/28/2022 AT&T 11-5900 PHONE 86.98 

00016172 02/28/2022 CCSESA 01-5200 REGISTRATION 50.00 

00016173 02/28/2022 RAY MORGAN COMPANY 01-5600 COPIER MAINT. 17.21 

00016174 02/28/2022 SCHOOL SERV OF CALIFORNIA INC. 01-5200 WORKSHOP REGISTRATIONS 65.00 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Mar  2 2022  9:33AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 02/01/2022 through 02/28/2022

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00016174 02/28/2022 SCHOOL SERV OF CALIFORNIA INC. 01-5899 WORKSHOP REGISTRATIONS 195.00 260.00 

00016175 02/28/2022 SIERRA BOOSTER 11-5810 ADVERTISEMENT 24.75 

00016176 02/28/2022 U.S. BANK 01-5200 CCSESA/ACSA MEETINGS 468.98 

01-5899 CCSESA/ACSA MEETINGS 768.98 1,237.96 

Total Number of Checks 31 68,856.70 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

County School Service Fund 22 38,899.70 01

ADULT EDUCATION 11 1,758.50 11

Payroll Clearing 1 28,198.50 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 31 68,856.70 

.00 

68,856.70 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Mar  2 2022  9:33AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



  Prepared & Presented by: Nona Griesert, Chief Business Official  

 
 
 

Sierra County Office of Education 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Second Interim Budget 
2021/22 

 
 
 
 
 

March 8, 2022 
James Berardi/Superintendent 

 



    

SCOE 2021-2022 2nd Interim Budget Narrative 
Page 2 of 6 

Sierra County Office of Education 
2021-2022 Second Interim  

Actuals as of January 31, 2022 

Presented March 8, 2022 

 

 

The Second Interim budget report is a snapshot in time of the revenue and expenditure 

projection for the current fiscal year as well as the two subsequent fiscal years. It is a time to 

adjust the budget based upon the enacted State Budget and subsequent trailer bills, the 

closing of the prior fiscal year, and other factors that impact revenue and expenditures. The 

Second Interim report covers the period of time from July 1 through January 31 each fiscal 

year. Keep in mind that a budget and multi-year projection are just that - projections, not 

forecasts.  Projections are expected to change as various factors change, they are not 

predictions.  Projections are the mathematical result of today’s decisions based on a given 

set of assumptions.  Forecasts, on the other hand, are predictions of the future; there is a 

higher implied reliability factor than for projections.  Projections will change anytime the 

underlying factors change. 

 

 

The Big Picture 

 

The January release of the Governor’s 2021/22 state budget proposal provides funding for a cost of living adjustment (COLA) 

to address expenditure growth. It also addresses the immediate need to keep schools open safely. The COLA of 5.07% is to be 

applied in 2021/22.  

 

The national economy continues to grow, but inflation, labor 

constraints, and supply and demand imbalances post threats. The 

Consumer Price Index has increased by over 7%, we are 

experiencing a historic rise in inflation not seen in 30 years. The 

Federal Reserve signaled it will begin raising interest rates in an 

effort to curb inflation. 

 

The proposed State Budget affects the multiyear projection factors. Currently projected COLAs for 2021/22 and 2022/23 have 

increased to 5.07% and 5.33% respectively. COVID-19 funding has assisted LEAs however is not projected to continue 

beyond 2021/22. CalSTRS and CalPERS will increase in 2022/23 to 19.10% and 26.10% respectively. 

 

Despite the progress and opportunities available as a result of coming out of the pandemic situation, recommendations are 

cautious of future economic disruptions. High housing costs, a decline in population, a statewide minimum wage increase and 

key upcoming labor contract negotiations occurring in 2022 open the door to an uncertain extent and form of recovery that 

California will experience.  

 

 

   



    

SCOE 2021-2022 2nd Interim Budget Narrative 
Page 3 of 6 

GENERAL FUND 
 

REVENUE 

Below are the changes in revenue projections since the budget adoption. 

 

 

 

Local Control Funding Formula 

LCFF State Revenue did not have a change since budget adoption. 

 

 

 

Federal Revenue 

Federal Revenue has been reduced by ($11,986) for the following reason: 

       Favorable         

Funding Description            (Unfavorable) 

 Special Education   ($   2,089) 

 McKinney-Vento Homeless  ($ 12,000) 

 SRSA Grant      $  2,103 

Net Change   ($ 11,986) 

 

 

 
State Revenue 

State Revenues increased by $159,114 since the budget adoption for the following reasons: 

       Favorable         

Funding Description            (Unfavorable) 

 Mandated/Other - Unrestricted   $   2,633 

 State Lottery – Unrestricted   $      266 

 State Lottery - Restricted   $      299 

 Educator Effectiveness    $ 10,340 

 Special Education    $ 40,094 

 Foster Youth (RS7366)   ($      154) 

 Foster Youth (RS7368) Direct Svcs   $ 77,935 

 ELO (RS7425)    ($ 53,145) 

 ELO – Para (RS7426)   ($      157) 

 County Safe Schools    $ 60,000 

 CalOES SCIGP     $  21,003 

Net Change    $159,114 

 

 

 

Local Revenue 

Local Revenue increased $2,000 since the budget adoption for local tree sales.  

 

 



    

SCOE 2021-2022 2nd Interim Budget Narrative 
Page 4 of 6 

 

 
 

Description 2018-2019  

Actuals  

2019-2020 

Actuals 

2020-2021 

Actuals 

2021-2022 

Adopted 

Budget 

2021-2022 

Second 

Interim 

LCFF 

Resources $   851,039 $1,004,442 $1,360,567 $1,166,917 $1,166,917 

Federal  

          

158,912 153,833 164,529 171,828 159,842 

Other State 634,134 789,338 906,883 911,413 1,070,527 

Other Local 486,100 451,949 445,915 407,500 409,500 

Total $2,130,185 $2,399,562 $2,877,894 $2,657,658 $2,806,786 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LCFF Sources; 
$1,166,917; 41%

Federal ; $159,842; 
6%

Other State; 
$1,070,527; 37%

Other Local; 
$409,500; 14%

Fund 16 - Transfer In; $58,276; 
2%

Total Resources $2,865,062



    

SCOE 2021-2022 2nd Interim Budget Narrative 
Page 5 of 6 

EXPENDITURES 

 

General Fund Expenditures 
Below are the changes in expenditure projections since the budget adoption. 

 

 

 
 

 

 
Expenditures Comparison  

Description 2018-2019  

Actuals 

 

2019-2020 

Actuals 

2020-2021 

Actuals 

2021-2022 

Adopted 

Budget 

2021-2022 

Second 

Interim 

Certificated $  675,798 $  563,831 $  591,047 $  580,102 $  670,846 

Classified 401,509 400,060 416,033 579,678 605,781 

Benefits 553,278 511,330 556,890 592,153 693,300 

Books & Supplies 35,460 33,156 24,326 75,206 119,900 

Services & Operating 519,917 462,156 466,163 520,420 753,033 

Capital Outlay 291,968 83,784 49,733 35,000 41,000 

Other Outgo 47,204 19,958 -0-     49,428 49,428 

Total $2,525,134 2,074,275 2,104,192 2,431,987 2,933,288 

 
 

 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Certificated; 
$670,846; 23%

Classified; 
$605,781; 21%Benefits; $693,300; 

23%

Books & Supplies; 
$119,900; 4%

Services & 
Operating; 

$753,033; 26%

Capital Outlay; 
$41,000; 1%

Outgo to District; 
$49,428; 2%

Total Expenses  $2,933,288

Fiscal Year Amount 

2017-18 actuals 115,142 

2018-19 actuals (336,375) 

2019-20 actuals 386,644 

2020-21 actuals 829,630 

2021-22 projected (68,226) 



    

SCOE 2021-2022 2nd Interim Budget Narrative 
Page 6 of 6 

Projected Ending Fund Balance 

2017-18 $2,846,059 actuals 

2018-19 $2,509,684 actuals 

2019-20 $2,896,329 actuals 

2020-21 $3,725,959 actuals 

2021-22 $3,585,507 projected 

 

Personnel  FTE 

Certificated    6.50 

Superintendent      .16 

Administrative    2.60  23.56 FTE 

Classified  11.30 

Confidential    3.00 

 

Direct Services Contracted to provide special education services  

Speech 

Occupational Therapy 

Adapted P.E. 

Public Nurse 

 

Comments 

 

1. COLA for 2021/22 is 5.07% 

2. Certificated health and welfare (H/W) soft cap selected plan employee 

range (14,398.50 to 19,534.50);   Certificated employees hired effective 

2017/18 hard capped at $17,536; all other employees H/W is capped at 

$17,536. H/W cost is $237,461. 

3. PERS rate increase from 20.7% to 22.91% for a projected annual cost of 

$116,649. 

4. STRS rate decrease from 16.15% to 16.92% for a projected annual cost of 

$93,712. 

5. Salaries and Benefits are approximately 71% of Revenue. 

6. Reimburse Sierra-Plumas Joint USD to provide foster youth, business, 

curriculum, and technology services. 

7. Forest Reserve Revenue budget is $46,000. 

8. Positive Certification 

9. Projected ending cash balance: $3,585,507 

 

 



Reviewed By:

Year: 21/22 21/22 Pos (Neg) % 21/22 21/22 Pos (Neg) % 21/22 21/22 Pos (Neg) %

Period:

Adopted 

Budget

Second 

Interim Difference Change

Adopted 

Budget

Second 

Interim Difference Change

Adopted 

Budget

Second 

Interim Difference Change

Revenues

LCFF Revenues 8010-8099 1,166,917     1,166,917     -                  0.00% -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 1,166,917     1,166,917     -                  0.00%

Federal Revenues 8100-8299 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 171,828       159,842       (11,986)        -6.98% 171,828       159,842       (11,986)        -6.98%

State Revenues 8300-8599 4,131           7,030           2,899          70.18% 907,282       1,063,497     156,215       17.22% 6 911,413       1,070,527     159,114        17.46%

Local Revenues 8600-8799 403,000       405,000       2,000          0.50% 4,500           4,500           -                  0.00% 407,500       409,500       2,000          0.49%

Total Revenues 1,574,048     1,578,947     4,899           0.31% 1,083,610     1,227,839     144,229       13.31% 2,657,658     2,806,786     149,128       5.61%

Expenditures

Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 249,766       276,209       26,443         10.59% 1 330,336       394,637       64,301         19.47% 7 580,102       670,846       90,744         15.64%

Classified Salaries 2000-2999 328,762       353,878       25,116         7.64% 250,916       251,903       987             0.39% 579,678       605,781       26,103         4.50%

Benefits & Taxes 3000-3999 299,753       363,057       63,304         21.12% 2 292,400       330,243       37,843         12.94% 8 592,153       693,300       101,147        17.08%

Materials & Supplies 4000-4999 29,652         44,875         15,223         51.34% 3 45,554         75,025         29,471         64.69% 9 75,206         119,900       44,694         59.43%

Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 300,232       396,285       96,053         31.99% 220,188       356,748       136,560       62.02% 10 520,420       753,033       232,613       44.70%

Capital Outlay 6000-6599 35,000         35,000         -                  0.00% -                  6,000           6,000          #DIV/0! 35,000         41,000         6,000          17.14%

Other Outgo 7xxx's 24,428         24,428         -                  0.00% 25,000         25,000         -                  0.00% 49,428         49,428         -                  0.00%

Other Outgo 7300-7399 (27,978)        (31,724)        (3,746)         13.39% 4 27,978         31,724         3,746          13.39% 4 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Total Expenditures 1,239,615     1,462,008     222,393       17.94% 1,192,372     1,471,280     278,908       23.39% 2,431,987     2,933,288     501,301       20.61%

Rev less Exp 334,433       116,939       (217,494)      -65.03% (108,762)      (243,441)      (134,679)      123.83% 225,671       (126,502)      (352,173)      -156.06%

Other Sources/Uses

Transfers In 8910-8979 20,331         58,276         37,945         186.64% 5 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 20,331         58,276         37,945         186.64%

Contributions 8980-8999 (108,762)      (180,225)      (71,463)        65.71% 11 108,762       180,225       71,463         65.71% 11 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Transfers Out 7610-7699 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Total Other Sources (88,431)        (121,949)      (33,518)        37.90% 108,762       180,225       71,463         65.71% 20,331         58,276         37,945         186.64%

Change in Fund Bal 246,002       (5,010)         (251,012)      -102.04% -                 (63,216)        (63,216)        #DIV/0! 246,002       (68,226)       (314,228)      -127.73%

Beg Fund Bal 2,619,597     3,590,517     970,920       37.06% -                  63,216         63,216         #DIV/0! 2,619,597     3,653,733     1,034,136     39.48%

Adjustments -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  #DIV/0!

Adj Beg Fund Bal 2,619,597     3,590,517     970,920       37.06% -                  63,216         63,216         #DIV/0! 2,619,597     3,653,733     1,034,136     39.48%

End Fund Bal 2,865,599     3,585,507     719,908       25.12% -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 2,865,599     3,585,507    719,908       25.12%

Non Spendable 500              500              -                  -                  500              500              -                  

Restricted  -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Comitted -                  #DIV/0! -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

OPEB 92,485         92,485         -                  -                  92,485         92,485         -                  

Assigned -                  #DIV/0! -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Deferred Maintenance -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

REU 328,000       395,000       67,000         -                  328,000       395,000       67,000         

Unassigned 2,444,614    3,097,522    652,908       26.71% -                 -                 -                 #DIV/0! 2,444,614    3,097,522    652,908       26.71%

REU is: 13.5% 13.5%

Tickmark Legend

Unrestricted Restricted Total

2021/22 Second Interim Budget

Sierra County Office of Education

Gen Fund Budget Comparison Worksheet



1 Unrestricted certificated salaries increased by approx $26k for COLA increases and COVID adjustments.

2 Unrestricted statutory and health benefits increased approx $14k for STRS costs and approx $49k for H&W changes.

3 Unrestricted M&S increased approx $15k due to Prior Year Carryover in Unrestricted Lottery funding.

4 Unrestricted/Restricted Indirect Cost rate increases in budgeted expenditures.

5 Unrestricted funding transferred in increase approx $38k for Forest Reserve funding.

6 Restricted State revenue increased approx $10k for Educator Effectiveness, SpEd increased approx $40k, Foster Youth Direct Services increased approx $78k, 

ELO funding reduced approx ($53k) for PY C/O, County Safe Schools funding increase approx $60k, CalOES increase approx $21k for PY C/O. 

7 Restricted certificated salary changes increased approx $82k for SpEd, reduced approx ($7k) for TUPE, reduced approx ($44k) for IPI/ELO, increased approx $33k for Safe Schools program

8 Restricted benefits increased approx $30k for H&W changes and approx $8k for statutory benefits changes.

9 Restricted M&S increase for Small Rural Schools increased approx $2k, restricted lottery increase approx $4k, TUPE increased approx $9k, IPI/ELO increased approx $3k,

CalOES increase approx $11k.

10 Restricted Operating expenditures increased approx $10k for Educator Effectiveness, SpEd increased approx $41k, McKinney Vento reduced approx ($8k), Foster Youth Direct Svcs

 increased approx $76k, CalOES increase approx $10k, Safe Schools increased approx $6k, ELO increased approx $1k.

11 Unrestricted contributions to the Restricted sources increased approx $71k for SpEd services.

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Sierra County Office of Education

2021/22 Second Interim Budget



Sierra County Office of Education

2021/22 Second Interim Budget

Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined

A B C D E F G H I

Revenues

LCFF Revenues 8010-8099 1,166,917     -               1,166,917       1,229,114    -             1,229,114    1,273,485    -              1,273,485     

Federal Revenues 8100-8299 -               159,842        159,842         -              161,151     161,151       -              161,151       161,151        

State Revenues 8300-8599 7,030            1,063,497     1,070,527       7,030           848,861     855,891       7,030           848,861       855,891        

Local Revenues 8600-8799 405,000        4,500           409,500         405,000       4,500         409,500       405,000       4,500           409,500        

Transfers In 8910-8979 58,276          -               58,276           58,276         -             58,276         58,276         -              58,276          

Contributions 8980-8999 (180,225)       180,225        -                 (429,201)      429,201     -              (450,781)      450,781       -               

Total Revenues 1,456,998    1,408,064    2,865,062      1,270,219    1,443,713  2,713,932    1,293,010    1,465,293    2,758,303    

Expenditures

Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 276,209        394,637        670,846         295,179       422,881     718,060       300,461       430,729       731,190        

Classified Salaries 2000-2999 353,878        251,903        605,781         381,550       271,087     652,637       391,100       277,590       668,690        

Benefits & Taxes 3000-3999 363,057        330,243        693,300         395,000       360,584     755,584       403,948       367,813       771,761        

Materials & Supplies 4000-4999 44,875          75,025         119,900         44,875         62,852       107,727       44,875         62,852         107,727        

Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 396,285        356,748        753,033         266,285       263,585     529,870       266,285       263,585       529,870        

Capital Outlay 6000-6599 35,000          6,000           41,000           20,000         6,000         26,000         20,000         6,000           26,000          

Other Outgo 7xxx's 24,428          25,000         49,428           24,428         25,000       49,428         24,428         25,000         49,428          

Other Outgo 7300-7399 (31,724)        31,724         -                 (31,724)        31,724       -              (31,724)        31,724         -               

Transfers Out 7600-7629 -               -               -                 -              -             -              -              -              -               

Total Expenditures 1,462,008    1,471,280     2,933,288      1,395,593    1,443,713  2,839,306    1,419,373    1,465,293    2,884,666    

Rev less Exp (5,010)          (63,216)        (68,226)          (125,374)      -             (125,374)      (126,363)      -              (126,363)       

Change in Fund Bal (5,010)          (63,216)        (68,226)         (125,374)     -            (125,374)      (126,363)      -              (126,363)      

Beg Fund Bal 3,590,517     63,216         3,653,733       3,585,507    -             3,585,507    3,460,133    -              3,460,133     

Adjustments -               -               -                 -             -              -              -               

Adj Beg Fund Bal 3,590,517     63,216         3,653,733       3,585,507    -             3,585,507    3,460,133    -              3,460,133     

End Fund Bal 3,585,507    -              3,585,507      3,460,133    -            3,460,133    3,333,770    -              3,333,770    

Non Spendable 500              -               500                500              -             500              500              -              500              

Restricted  -               -               -                 -             -              -              -               

Comitted

OPEB 92,485          -               92,485           92,485         -             92,485         92,485         -              92,485          

Assigned

REU 395,000        -               395,000         395,000       -             395,000       395,000       -              395,000        

Unassigned 3,097,522    -              3,097,522      2,972,148    -            3,064,633    2,845,785    -              2,938,270    

Budget MYP MYP

Multi Year Projection

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

G G = enera Ledaer D ata· S = Suoo emental Data 

Form Description 
011 General Fund/Countv School Service Fund 
081 Student Activity Special Revenue Fund 
091 Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 
10I Special Education Pass-Through Fund 
111 Adult Education Fund 
121 Child Develooment Fund 
131 Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund 
141 Deferred Maintenance Fund 
151 Pupil Transportation Eouipment Fund 
161 Forest Reserve Fund 

Second Interim 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

2021-22 
Original 
BudQet 

GS 

G 

G 
171 Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Proiects 
181 School Bus Emissions Reduction Fund 
191 Foundation Special Revenue Fund 
201 Special Reserve Fund for Postemoloyment Benefits 
211 Buildlno Fund 
251 Capital Facilities Fund 
301 State School Buildina Lease-Purchase Fund 
351 County Scho0I Facilities Fund 
40I Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects 
531 Tax Override Fund 
561 Debt Service Fund 
571 Foundation Permanent Fund 
611 Cafeteria Enterprise Fund 
621 Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 
631 Other Enterorise Fund 
661 Warehouse RevoJvinQ Fund 
671 Self-Insurance Fund 
711 Retiree Benefit Fund 
731 Foundation Private-Puroose Trust Fund 
761 Warrant/Pass-Throuah Fund 
951 Student Body Fund 
Al Averaae Dailv Attendance 
CASH Cashflow Worksheet 
CHG Chanae Order Form 
Cl Interim Certification 
ESMOE Everv Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort 
ICR Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet 
MYPI Multivear Proiections - General Fund 
SIAI Summary of lnterfund Activities - Projected Year Totals 
01CSI Criteria and Standards Review 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: tci (Rev 03/18/2020) 

s 

Page 1 of 1 

Data Supplied For: 

2021-22 
Board 

Approved 2021-22 
Operating Actuals to 

BudQet Date 

GS GS 

G G 

G 

s 

46 10462 0000000 
Form TCI 

2021-22 
Projected 

Totals 

GS 

G 

G 

s 

s 

s 

GS 
s 

GS 
G 
s 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :35 AM 
1 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Desorlpllon 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other State Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

51 TOT.Al REVENUES 

B. EXPENDITURES 

1) Certificated Salaries 

2) Classified Salaries 

3) Employee Benefits 

4) Books and Supplies 

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6) Capital Outlay 

7) Other Oulgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 
Costs) 

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 

91 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES /A6 • B9l 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) lnterfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

Resource Codes 

41 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/2012021) 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) 
Revenues, &,cpenditures, and Changes in Fllnd Balance 

Object 
Codes 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 

3000-3999 

Original Budget 
(Al 

,_ __..1,166,91..?_.00 

_ _MQ 

1--
4 131.00 

_ 403,000.00 

1,574 048.00 

_ 249,766,00 

328,762.00 
-

299,753,00 

Board Approved 
Operating Budget Actuals To Date 

(Bl ICl 

-
1,.166 91 ?,QQ_ 1 0�379.37 

0,00 0.00 
-- -- --

4 131.00 �0.22 

f--- 403,000.0Q_
t-

_24,782.32 

1 574 048.00 1 096 151. 91 

-- 249 766.0Q_ __ 145,966,02 

__ 328,762.00 >--- _189, 795.:.11_ 

__ ;!99 753.00 - 196 293J1. 

Projected Year 
Totals 

(Ol 

_ 1 166,917.00 

0,00 
-

7 030.00 

405 000.00 
-

1 578,947.00 

_ 210 209.ClO_ 

_ 353,878.00 

�.057.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01I 

Difference 
(Col B & D) 

IEI 

--
__Q.OQ_ 

0.00 

2,899.00 

2 000.00 

- _(�.4� 

-
(25 116-:QQ! 

_(63 3q4.QQl 

% Dlff 
(EIB) 
(Fl 

� Q,Q_% 
0.0% 

70.2% 

0.5% 

--=1..0,6� 

-7.6% 
- --·-

·21.1% 
-·--

4000-4999 29,652.00 29,652,00 ___ 4,7§1.9Q__ -- 44,875.00 _(�3.QQl - -.sq�

5000-5999 -- 3QQ,f��QQ_ 
6000-6999 35,000.00 

7100-7299 
7400-7499 __ 24,428.00 -
7300-7399 (�7,978.00) 

1 239 615.00 

334 433.00 

8900-8929 20,331.00 

7600-7629 0.00 
- --

8930-8979 f-- 0.00 

7630-7699 ____ 0.00 

8980-8999 -- 108 76� 

188,431.00' 

Page 1 

>----�00,232.00 _ :!.!.Q,059.� _ --±-�,285.00 {96 053.00) -32.0% 

--35000.00 _l4LQ36��i 

24,428.0_Q_ _ 0.00 

- - (_2]$!!,00) - - (889.70) 

1 !139,615.00 661 042.94 

334 4'33.00 435 108.97 

20,331.0Q_ - ___ 0.09 

-- __Q,Q_O - - 0,00 

0.00 0.00 --�-- -- --

--
__ a.co 0.,QQ_ 

_(108 762.00) o.&Q_ 

188 431.001 0.00 

� _35,000.00 - --
0.00 

--
24,428.QQ_ � 0.00 

(31,724.0Q) ---�7'!.� 
1462008.00 

116,939.00 

__ _§MJ.�Q0 37 945� 

0.00 -�--Q.00 

--- ___Q,QQ - --0.QQ 

--
__Q,Q0 ____ 0_.0_Q_ 

180,225.00l 171,463.001 
-

(121 949.00\ 

0.0% 

_0.0% 

--=!.3,4% 

�6% 

-�

0.0% 

_ 0.0% 

� 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 

2 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

OescrlPtlon 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE re + 041 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 • Audited (F1a + F1b) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1 e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 
a) Nonspendable 

Revolvlhg Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 
Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments 

OPEB 

OPEB 

OPEB 
d) Assigned 

Other Assignments 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassloned/Una22roorlated Amount 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting SoftWare - 2021.2.0 
FIie: fundl-a (Rev 04/20/2021) 

Rosource Codes 

0000 

0000 

0000 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balance 

Board Approved 
Object Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date 
Cod.OS C�l /Bl (Cl 

246 002.00 248 002.00 435 108,97 

9791 
--

0.00 Q,QQ_ 
9793 

- - _Q,Q,Q_ __ 0.00 

0.00 _ _Q,00 
----

9795 OJ1Q_ - ___Q,QQ_ 

- --
0.0Q_ 

- ___Q,QQ_ 

-
246 O_Q�Q.Q._ -- -�46,002.00 

9711 
--

500.00 500.0_9 

9712 0,00 0.00 

9713 0.00 9-:QQ._ 
9719 0,00 ___Q,QQ_ 
9740 0.00 O.QQ_ 

9750 ____ 0.00 0.00 

9760 92 485.00 f----92,4_8�.QQ_ 

9760 /!2,485.00 
---- -

9760 92,48_§.00 
-

9760 
---- -- -

9780 
-�

0.00 ____Q,QQ__ 

9789 f-- ___ 0.00 0.0.Q. 

9790 153 017.00 153 017.00 

Page 2 

Projected Year 
Totals 

(0) 

/6 01 0.00' 

3 590 517,00_ 

0.00 
--

_M�0.§.17.00 

- --
0.00 _ 

�l'Q 517,QQ_ 

3;585 507 .00 

� �,Q,QQ 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 
-

0.00 

92,485.00 
-

--

92,48?.00 

-
O.QO 

--
395,000.00 

3 097 522.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 011 

Olfferenco % Olff 
(ColB&O) (EIB) 

(El IF) 

3 590,517.00 New 

__ OJJ.Q. __ O.Q% 

--

f---------- 0.00 0,O'l:o 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 

                                                                 3 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Desorlotlon 

LCFF SOURCES 

Principal Apportionment 
State Aid - Current Year 

Resource Codes 

Education Protection Account Stale Aid - Current Year 

State Aid - Prior Years 

Tax Relief Subventions 
Homeowners' Exemptions 

Timber Yield Tax 

Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 

County & District Taxes 
Secured Roll Taxes 

Unsecured Roll Taxes 

Prior Years' Taxes 

Supplemental Taxes 

Education Revenue Augmentation 
Fund (ERAF) 

Community Redevelopment Funds 
(SB 617/699/1992) 

Penalties and Interest from 
Delinquent Taxes 

Receipt from Co, Board of Sups. 

Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604) 
Royalties and Bonuses 

Other In-Lieu Taxes 

Less: Non-LCFF 
(50%) Adjustment 

�§ub.lotal LCF:F sou.-==rc::.es=---
LCFF Transfers 

Unrestricted LCFF 
Transfers - Current Year 

All Other LCFF 
Transfers - Current Year 

0000 

All Other 

Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 

Property Taxes Transfers 

LC FF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 

J_DTA,1,,_, �C,FF SOUR� 

FEDERAL REVENUE 

Maintenance and Operations 

Special Education Entitlement 

Special Education Discretionary Grants 

Child Nutrition Programs 

Donated Food Commodities 

Flood Control Funds 

Wildlife Reserve Funds 

FEMA 

lnteragency Contracts Between LEAs 

Pass-Through Revenues from Federal Sources 

Title I, Part A, Basic 

Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent 
Programs 

Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective 
Instruction __ 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) 

3010 

3025 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01I 

Object 
Codes 

8011 

8012 

8019 

8021 

8022 

8029 

8041 

8042 

8043 

8044 

8045 

8047 

8048 

8070 

8081 

8082 

8089 

8091 

8091 

8096 

8097 

8099 

Original Budget 
IAI 

-- 915,333._90 

__ 183.496.QQ 

0.00 - -----

60·1.oo 

0 ,00 

Board Approved 
Operating Budget 

IBI 

- 915 333.00_ 

_ _  183,496.00 

- - _.<!:QQ. 

601.00 - -

0.00 

Actuals To Date 
(C) 

Projected Year 
Totals 

COi 

__ 9J __ q,404.QO __ 915,333.00 

�,421 .00 � 
_ __ q_p..Q_ � 

0.00 ---

�,496.00 

0,00 --

601.00 

Difference 
(Col B & 0) 

/El 

0.00 ---

_ _  0j)_Q__ 
___J1QO 

0.00 

0.00 

% Dlff 
(EIB) 

/Fl 

0.0"/4 

�C>.0% 

_O.Oo/.<>_ 

0.0% 

--- --- Q.00 0.0% 
--

0 .00 0.00 0,00 0.0% - - _Q,.Q_0 - -- OJ?.Q. 
t------

__ 63,998.00 63,�8.00 - 40,4.QG.57 _G�,99_!1J?.Q. --- 0.00 0.0% 

-- �,�09.00 - --�9.0Q -- 2,147.80 2180�0:Q. _ __ O.QQ_ � 0,0% 

--- 50.00 --- __2Q.QO - 0.00 -- -�•O_Q_ ___ 0.00 _ 0.0% 

, ___
5:30.00 --- -�Q,00 - -- 0.00 - - 630.00 -- 0.QQ. � 0.0% 

- - _0 .00 -- 0.00 - - --- ____Q,_QQ -- <l:QQ.� 0,Q'>& 

�--
O.OQ. ��- o,oo 0.00 0.00 0.00 ___QJJ•& 

- - __Q,_00 -- ___ 0,0() -- --- _Q,QQ_ --- OJ?.Q. 0.0% 

- -- ___Q,Q9 --- ___Q,QO - -- 0.00 - - 0.00 ,__ --- Q.QQ_ .__ 0.0o/� 

__ o;oo ____ o.Qo ___ _Q,QQ_ 0.00 

_Q,QQ_ 

�.91 ?J?.Q. � 

0.00 

__ O_.OQ_ .____Q.0% 

o.QQ. ,_ ___ o :c;•c::o=-o+-___ __,o.oo .___O,Q!o 

1,166,917.00 ......__ 0.00 0.0� 

--- 0 ,00 _ - -- o.O:Q. ______ o.oo=--
1

f------=o"'.oo"' ___ 0.1)% 

>-

0.00 
-- --

--- Q,QQ_ --
--- 0.00 - --

0.00 

QQQ. 
0.0Q__ 

0..,QQ_� 
0.00 

0.00 

__ 0.09..� 

O.QQ__ 

_ _  o_.oo � 0.0% 

- __Q,_QQ__ __ o.q_�

___ O.OQ_ __ ____Q,QQ._ ___QJ)% 

__ 'O.QQ__ ____ OJ)Q__ __ 0.00 ____Q,_QQ __ <l:QQ_ 
______ 1, 1ss.s11.oo _ 1 ,166,917.oo __ 1,,ose,379.3L-1.J.66,�17.oo '- __ __ ,o.oo 

0.0% 

0.0% 

8110 

8181 

8182 

8220 

8221 

8270 

8280 

8281 

8285 

8287 

8290 

8290 

_Q,Q!l_ ___ _Q,Q!l_ _____ 0:,.:.0::::0-1--
----�o.�oo f----- __Q,Qp 

0.00
'-+--

----_0.00 0.00 ___ O.OQ_ 

o.oo , _____ o.oq_ 1---�-_o_.oo_ ____ o.oo 

,__ ____ g,QQ.. ___ 0.00 0.00 

___QJJO -- ___Q,QP 

_____ Q,oo_,_ _____ o_.oo _ _  _ 
1------ O.QQ_ ____ 0-.!!Q. �_ Q,QQ 

,__ ____ o�.o�o-+-____ o.oo �___Q,QO 

0.00 0.00 
-r--

,___ ___ Q,,Q.9 ______ o_.oo 

Page 3 

_Q,_OQ 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

Q,QQ_ 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

o.� 

--- -- -

� 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 �0-� 

--- - -

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 

                                                                 4 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Oescrlutlon 

Tille Ill, Part A, Immigrant Student 
Program 

Title Ill, Part A, English Learner 
Program 

Public Charter Schools Grant 
Program (PCSGP) 

Other NCLB / Every Student Succeeds Act 

Career and Technical Education 

All Other Federal Revenue 

Resource Codes 

4201 

4203 

4610 

3040, 3045, 3060, 
3061, 3110, 3150, 
3155, 3180, 3182, 
3183, 4037, 4123, 
4124, 4126, 4127, 
4128,4204,5630 

3500-3599 

All Other 

_TOTA FEDERALREVENUL_ ----- ----

OTHER STATE REVENUE 

Other State Apportionments 

ROC/P Entitlement 
Prior Years 6360 

Special Education Master Plan 
Current Year 6500 

Prior Years 6500 

All Other State Apportionments• Current Year All Other 

All Other State Apportionments• Prior Years All Other 

Child Nutrition Programs 

Mandated Costs Reimbursements 

Lottery • Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 

Tax Relief Subventions 
Restricted Levies • Other 

Homeowners' Exemptions 

Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 

Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 

After School Education and Safety (ASES) 

Charter School Facility Grant 

Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 
Program 

Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 

California Clean Energy Jobs Act 

Specialized Secondary 

American Indian Early Childhood Education 

All Other Slate Revenue 

TOTAL. OTHER STATE REVENUE 

California Dept cif Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
Fite: fLl!ldl·!! (Rev 04/20/2021) 

6010 

6030 

6387 

6650, 6680, 6685, 
6690,6695 

6230 

7370 

7210 

All Other 

----

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) 
Revenues, Expenditures, anti Changes In Fund Balance 

Board Approved 
Object Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date 
Codes --� - _(B)_ c-- - -<�L- - ----

8290 

8290 

8290 

8290 

8290 

8290 

-

8319 

8311 

8319 

8311 

8319 

8520 

t---- __Q,QQ_ 
0.00 -·--

- ---

___ O.OQ__ 

0,00 

o:oo 

- -

-- - - -

o_oo __ 0,.00 

0.00 0,00 

I• 

- -

0.00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

Projected Year 
Totals 

(t>t -

-

o_oo 
-- -

0,00 

-

o_oo 

0.00 

0.00 ---- -- -
.JLllO 

�-- --

8550 1�?.,QQ_ 1 067.00 3 294,00 3,500.00 

8560 3,064.00 3 054,00 1j98.22 3 330_00 

8575 
-

O.OQ_ -- _Q.00_ --
O.OQ__ -- _O.Q.Q_ 

8576 -·-- _Q,OQ. - _o.oo -- __ O.Q_O _ � _ _Q,QO

8587 --- __ O.QQ__ __ Q.QQ_ _Q.00 � 0.00 
,- --

8590 

8590 

8590 

8590 

8590 

8590 

8590 
--

8590 0.00 0.00 198.00 � 

4,13!,QQ_ __ ___4,131-00 4,990,22 7 030.00 

Page 4 

46 1 0462 0000000 
Form 01I 

Difference ¾Dlff 
(Col B& D) (E/B) 

-- (E)_ - F)_ 

o_oo __ 0.0� 

0.00 0.0% 

�---- -

0 00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

·-

2 433,00 228� 

266,00 8.7% 

0,00 0.0% 

200,00 New 

2,899.00 70,2% 

Printed: 312/2022 11 :36 AM 

                                                                 5 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Oescrl0tlon Resource Codes 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

Other Local Revenue 
County and District Taxes 

Other Restricted Levies 
Secured Roll 

Unsecured Roll 

Prior Years' Taxes 

Supplemental Taxes 

Non- Ad Valorem Taxes 
Parcel Taxes 

Other 

Community Redevelopment Funds 
No\ Subject to LCFF Deduction 

Penalties and Interest from Delinquent Non-LCFF 
Taxes 

Sales 
Sale of Equipment/ Supplies 

Sale of Publications 

Food Service Sales 

All Other Sales 

Leases and Rentals 

Interest 

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 

Fees and Contracts 
Adult Education Fees 

Non-Resident Students 

Transportation Fees From Individuals 

lnteragency Services 

Mitigation/Developer Fees 

All Other Fees and Contracts 

Other Local Revenue 

Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%) Adjustment 

Pass-Through Revenues From Local Sources 

All Other Local Revenue 

Tuition 

All Other Transfers In 

Transfers Of Apportionments 
Special Education SELPA Transfers 

From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 

From County Offices 6500 

From JPAs 6500 

ROC/P Transfers 
From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 

From County Offices 6360 

From JPAs 6360 

Other Transfers of Apportionments 

From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 

From County Offices All Other 

From JPAs All Other 

All Other Transfers In from All Others 

TOTAL_,_Q}:HfRLOCALREVENUE -----

lQIA!c, REVENUES 

California Dept or Education 
SACS Flnanciat Reporting Software - 2021 2.0 
File: fundl-a (Rev 0412012021) 

�- --

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted ( Resources 0000-1999) 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board Approved 
Object Original Budget Operating Budgot Actuals To Date 
Codes IAl IBI fCl 

8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8616 
I- --- 0.00 -- _0.00 

L--
0.00 � 

8617 0.00 0,00 0.00 

8618 ,_ O.@ i-----'-'- 0.QQ. 
'- --- 0.QQ. 

8621 - - __ Q,QQ. �--- � ___ ___Q,QQ 
8622 � __ 0.,QQ._ -- 0,00 _Q,_QQ --

8625 0.00 0.00 0.0!!., 

8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8631 (!.Q0_ -- __0.;QQ. ,__ -- 0.00 

8632 O_,_QQ_ -- 0.00 0.00 

8634 
l--

0.00 -- _0.00 0.QQ. 

8639 - __ O_,_QQ_ I-
0.00 - ___Q,_00 

8650 
--

0.00 
,____ 

___ 0.0Q_ , _  O.,QQ_ --

8660 -- 30,000.00 ____ 30 ,000.00 19,266.15 

8662 -- -0.00 � -- 0.00 0.00 

8671 --- 0.00_ I- ___ Q_,_QQ_ --- _0.00_ 

Projected Year 
Totals 

IDl 

0.00 

-

O.OQ. 

0.00 

0.00 

- - __ 0,9Q. 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00_ 
0.00 ---

1-- -- 0i!Q__ 

_____ 90_90 

� -- 0.00 

__ _¥),000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form01I 

Difference ¾Dlff 
(Col B& D) (E/B) 

(El (Fl 

ll 

___ 0.00 >-- 0,0o/o 

0.00 0.0o/o 
-

--- ---

0.0Q __ 0.0% 

0.00_ - �

,_ __ _Q,QQ__ - _Q,9�

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 __ 0.0� --

0.00 0.0% 

_____Q,_QQ_ 0.0% ----� 

0.00 -- 0.0% 

8672 _____ 0,0Q_ 
e-- __ 0.QQ. - -- 0.00 -- __Q,QQ_ ___ __Q,_09 _0.0o/o 

8675 

8677 

8681 

8689 

8691 

8697 

8699 

8710 

8781 -8783 

8791 

8792 

8793 

8791 

8792 

8793 

8791 

8792 

8793 

8799 

0.00 -- _0.00 -�--0.0� - -- 0,QQ_ - -- 0.00 0.0% 

368 000.00 368 000.00 0,00 368,000,00 0.00 0.0% 

- __ O.;QQ. - -- O.Q9 -- __QJ)Q O . _QO 0.00 O.Oo/o

--- _0.00 0.00 -- --- Q,QQ_ 1-----
Q,QQ. _Q,00 __ O}!')'� ---

0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

_ _ ___ Q,QQ. >-----· _Q,09_ --- ___QJl_O -- __Q,_O:Q 0.00 0.0o/o 

5,000.00 -- _5,000.00 5.�]�.L � 
__ 7,000.00 2 000.00 40.0% 

�-- 0,0� 
�--- -- 0,00 -- ___Q,QO --- 0.00 0� 

0.00 __Q_,QQ_ 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

,__ _ _____ --,-

0,00 __ 0.00 -- 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

--- ___Q_,_QQ_ ____ Q.00 0.00 0.00 - - 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0_Q. '--------
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

______ 0.00 - - Q,QQ_L -- _Q,_QQ_ ._ 
0.00 0.00 __Q,_(!_"(9 

4_03,000.00 ---

1 ,57 4 ,04.!!cQQ_ � 

Page 5 

403 000.00 

1,574 048Jl0 

'--
24 782.31.� 405,000.00 21QQ.Q,QQ_ 0.5% 

1 096,151.91 ----1&Il!,�4 7 .Q.Q 4,899.00 0.3% 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 

                                                                 6 of 94



2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) 
Revenues, Ex:penditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01I 

Ooscrl !Ion 

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 

Resource Codes 

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 

Other Certificated Salaries 

Object 
Codas 

1100 

1200 

1300 

1900 

Board Approved 
Orlglnal Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date 

A B C 

Projected Year 
Totals 

Difference 
(Col B& D) 

E 

61,365.07 __ 123J8Q,OO 

145,Q70.00 -- 145,Q70,00 

0.00 0.00 

.....!d?G.OO _ __ 2,000.00 ___ (2,ooo.oo) _ Ne 

__ 83244.95 

0.00 

150,929.00 5,�59.00 __ -4.0% 

_ ___Q,QQ_ ___ 0.00 __ O.Q•1 
TOTAL CERTIFICATED SALAR_I_ES ______________ __,_, _ _  249 7§.6,00 --�� 766.00 ___115,966.02 _p6,209.00_ -- 26,443,QID -10.6% 

CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

Classified Instructional Salaries 

Classified Support Salaries 

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 

Other Classified Salaries 

2100 

2200 

2300 

2400 

2900 

TOTAL, CLAS_SIF ED SALAR.�l=E�S ________ --�----+ 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

STRS 

PERS 

OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 

Health and Welfare Benefits 

Unemployment Insurance 

Workers' Compensation 

OPES, Allocated 

OPES, Active Employees 

Other Employee Benefits 

TOT l\b. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 

Books and Other Reference Materials 

Materials and Supplies 

Noncapita/ized Equipment 

Food 

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES ___ _ 

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 

Subagreements for Services 

Travel and Conferences 

Dues and Memberships 

Insurance 

Operations and Housekeeping Services 

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 

Transfers of Direct Costs 

Transfers of Direct Costs - lnterfund 

Professional/Consulting Services and 
Operating Expenditures 

Communications 

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER 
OPERAT�� EXPE=N-"D'-'1"-'TU""R-'-'E"-'S"------�---

California Dept of Education 
SACS Flhancial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: fundl-a (Rell 04/20/2021) 

3101-3102 

3201-3202 

3301-3302 

3401-3402 

3501-3502 

3601-3602 

3701-3702 

3751-3752 

3901-3902 

4100 

4200 

4300 

4400 

4700 

-- -

5100 

5200 

5300 

5400-5450 

5500 

5600 

5710 

5750 

5800 

5900 

_)b,�39,00 

----1§,664.00 

_ 14.Qi.400,QQ_ 

_ 14_M59.0Q_ 
0.00 

---

__ 3�,762.00 

'!.t?.61.QQ_ 

__ 75723.00 

2���-0Q.. 
108,180.00 

_ _  7,307.00 

21,944.00 

0.00 

0,00 

15,689.00 

__ 299,753.00 

O.OQ 

__ 0,00 

...§.4�� 

3 214.00 

_ _Q_,.QQ_ 
29 652.00 

--

0.00 

7 000.00. 

14,937.00 

0.00 

7,000.00 

___ _1_,QQM.O 

0.00 

____ Q,_()O 

__ ?§M�5.00 

-- ____!.0,000.00 

300 232.00 

Page 6 

12,839.0_Q_ 

-
fB,664,00 

_140,1!)0.00 

'1!8,859.po _ 

--
_0.00 

_ 328,762.00 

42.261.00 

75�_3.00 

-· 28,649.00 

_1!)8,1� 

__ 7L307,00 

21 9 ,00 
--

--- --
O,QQ_ 

0.00 
--

16 689,00 
--

- - �99,753,00 

0.00 
----

0.00 

-- 26,4�8.00 

3 214.00 
--

0.00 

--

29,652.pO 

0.00 

-�7,000.00

--

�37.00 

0,00 
----

_7,000.00 

_1,000.00 

__ 0,0,Q_ 

____ 0.00 

-- ?60,295.00 

10 000000 

�0,232.00 

_4�,?9 

__ 10,582.03 

_q_9,994.6(! 

--
jS,449.79 

- _Q_.OQ 

_ __1!10,795.41 

_24,321.21 

_46,128.92 

_16,329.46 

-�_9580.67

1 690.12 

11 551,24 

_____ 0.00 

____ 0,00 

15 688.50 

__ 1J6,?9,�J2 

0.00 

0.00 

__ 4,781.90 

__ 0.00 

0.00 

4 781 ,90 

0,00 

--

1 !)81.87 

__ 1__M_:!..!i!-B6 

0.00 ----

-- __ 0.00 

____ 104.12 

-- -- 0.00 

0.00 
---

__ 8_7,188.08 

!!,Jt,�45 

_.1.10,05_9.38 

___ _:1_9,1351,00 

31 207.00 

_ _Jl1,2� 

180 794.00 

0.00 

-�3,878.00 

-- .....fl.�Cll_QQ 

86,712.00 

- - 30,85�0 

157 167.00 

3,227.00 

21 )905.00 

0.00 

0.00 

-1!?,1?8� 

363,057.00 

0.00 

0.00 

�s.�a_e.oo 

9,287.00 

_0.00 

44 875,00 

__ 00:Q_ 

5,455.00 

17,035.00 

0.00 
--

__ 7,000.00 

1,000.Q,O 

0.00 
---

0.00 

355 71)�.oo 

10.000.00 

396 285.00 

2,188,00 

4.�3.00)_

9,174.00 

(�1.935.00 

0.00 

25 116.QQ) 

5,241.00 

10,969.QQI 

__ 40080.00 

-

39.00 

0.00 

O.OQ_ 

__ o.oo 

(63,304.00 

0,00 

0.00 

(��J!Ql 

J§,073.00) 

0.00 

(15 22.3.QQl 

0.00 

1 545.00 

�931a.oo 

__ O.QQ_ 

9.00 

0.00 

-- 0,00 

0,00 

(!l�,500.00) 

0.00 

17.0� 

__:1L_Q'.'/4 

6.5% 

-21.50/4 

�1 

-7.6% 

...:1l,4% 

-=-�-§% 

55.8% 

__ 0.2% 

____Q,Q% 

- ____Q,!Jo/! 

0.0% 

-21.1% 

____QJ)� 

0.0% 

-34,6%

...::1!!9,,00� 

___Q,_9% 

-51.3% 

0.0� 

22.1% 

_.::11,0% 

____Q,Q% 

__Q,Q% 

0.0% 

__ op� 

0.0% 

-36.7% 

_ 0,0% 

96 053.00) _ _  -32.0% 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 

                                                                 7 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

DosorlDtlon 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Land 

Land Improvements 

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 

Books and Media for New School Libraries 
or Major Expansion of School Libraries 

Equipment 

Equipment Replacement 

Lease Assets 

Resourco Codos 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) 
Revenues, E.xp.endltures, and Changes In Fund Balance 

46 10462 0000000 
Form01I 

Object 
Codes 

6100 

6170 

6200 

6300 

Board Approved 
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date 

IAI {81 {Cl 

Projected Year 
Totals 

IOI 

Difference 
(ColB&D) 

IEI 

¾Olff 
(EIB) 

{fl 

____ o.oo ,__ ____ o�.oo �.o¾

0.00 _0.QQ_ _ _ __Q,90 __ __ o _oo 0.Q_Q __ o_.O!i! 

-·
__ 0.QQ _____ 0.0Q_ ___ Q,QQ_ _ ----'o=,·�oo

=--+-
____ ,o,..c.ccoo=--- ___ o_.Q..� 

___ o.o�oc.
1 
______ 0=.09_,__ _ 

6400 __ ____l_0,000. 0Q_ --�•000.00 _ 24 Q_36.J!!_ __ _1Q,OO0.()_Q_ ---�0.00 0.0% 

6500 _ _1_s.ooo.QO_ __ 15 Q.QO.0Q 1-----·___Q,QQ_ 1s,o_oo.oo o.oo
__,_

_�o�.o�'¾
.c.i• 

6600 ____ _;0=.00 _____ 0.00 -----"0"'.0Q__
f---

___Q,Q9 ___ _Q,.QQ__ 0.0% 

J.QTAL C�PITAL OUTl:.AY ___ ____ ____ ___ _ _ 35 000. 00 _ �4,036.81
-+-

-- 35 000.00 --- 0.00 t-----0=-:"-0%
'--'-j 

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

Tuition 
Tuition for Instruction Under lnterdistrict 

Attendance Agreements 

State Special Schools 

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/ or Deficit Payments 
Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 

Payments to County Offices 

Payments to JPAs 

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues 
To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Offices 

To JPAs 

Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments 
To Districts or Charter Sehools 6500 

To County Offices 

To JPAs 

ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments 
To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Offices 

To JPAs 

Other Transfers of Apportionments 

All Other Transfers 

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 

Debt Service 
Debt Service -Interest 

Other Debi Service -Principal 

6500 

6500 

6360 

6360 

6360 

All Other 

TOTAL, OTHER OUT§O (�cludhJQ Tra. sfers of ndlrect C� _ 

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 

Transfers of Indirect Costs 

Transfers of Indirect Costs -lnterfund 

7110 

7130 

7141 

7142 

7143 

7211 

7212 

7213 

7221 

7222 

7223 

7221 

7222 

7223 

7221-7223 

7281-7283 

7299 

7438 

7439 

Q.<J0 
- 0__,90 - _0,(JO_ 

_0.<JQ__ - QJ).Q ---
0. 00_ 

_2� -- ___M,��,0()_ 
- --- 0.00 

0.0 0 _Q_,QQ__ __ 0.00 
-

� __Q,00 0.00 
- - - -

-
0.00 _ __JJ.00 0.00 

- _0.00 -- -- _Q,_00 
- -- -0.QQ 

0.00 0.00 0.0 0 

---

_0.00 - - __JJ.� 1--- 0.00 
,___ 

___ Qc!!Q.. 0.00 0,QQ_ - ---

f- ---
0.00 - -0.0Q_ 

-
0.00 

1---- _ _ O . .QQ_ _ _ _Q,__00 _ _ _0.QQ_ 

- _Q,QQ_ - - Q,_00 �-0� 

--
0.00 _____ o_.oo __0.0% 

_24,428,0 0 --- _0,0 0 0. 0% 

- _ __Q,!)O f- 0.00 __ 0.0% 
-·-

- _(). 00_ 
I- ___ 0 .,QQ_ 0.0% ��

0.00 0.00 0. 0% 

_QJ)0 0.0 0 0.0% 

0.00 0,00 0. 0% 

0.0Q , __Q,QQ_ 0. 0% 

0 .00 0.00 0. 0% 
-- -----

0.00 0. 00 0.0% 
---

_ 0.QQ_� ___ q,QQ_ __ 0.0% 

__ Qcl>.Q >-- _ 0.00 _ __JJ.0� 

131 o ___ (27 97BJ!Ql __ 21 ,978 . .Q9) ____ "'11s=e9.70) _ _@_1, 724.&Q.'<+----3'"', 7�46=.oo-=-=---,1---·�13�·4-'--''¾..,
• 

7350 1--------=-o.oo o.oo >-- o.og ____ __ o�.o�o
'--+

---- o.oo _ � 

JOTAL, O.!_HER OUTGO-TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS ______ 1 __ �(_27 � ___ (�978,Q91� __ (889.70_l _ (31 72� 

JQTAL, EXPENDITUR.�E=S�------------------�-1 239,615.00 __ _ 1,?39 615�-�oo�--�6�6�1 ,0_4li4 _ 1,462..QQ!!.0Q_ _ 1222,!3 93.0Q),_ __ :1-7,9� 

California Dept or Education 
SACS Fl�anclal Reporting Software -2021.2.0 
Ffle; fundl-a /Rev 04/2012021) Page 7 Printed: 3 /212022 11 :36 AM 

                                                                 8 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Ooscrh1tlon 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

From: Special Reserve Fund 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers In 

Resource Codes 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Object 
Codes 

6912 

8919 

Board Approved 
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date 

IAI (Bl !Cl 

0.00 0.00 _Q.00 ---

-- -�-'�1.00 ___ 20,331.00 - _().QQ_ 

20,331.00 

Projected Year 
Totals 

IDl 

0.00 -

- _fill,�7.!!,Q_Q_ 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 011 

Difference 
(Col B& D) 

{El 

0.00 

___E_.� 

% Dlff 
(E/B) 

!Fl 

_0.Q_o/E_ 

~ 186.6% 

IJ&IOTAL. INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN --- ---- -- __ 20,331.,_QQ__ -- _Q.QQ_ - 58,276.0Q_ _ �I,9� 186.6� 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

To: Child Development Fund 

To: Special Reserve Fund 

To: State School Building Fund/ 
County School Facilities Fund 

To: Cafeteria Fund 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers Out 

_jb) TQffi.L, INTERFU.�Jl..IfYINS ERS OUT 

OTHER SOURCES/USES 

SOURCES 

State Apportionments 
Emergency Apportionments 

Proceeds 

Proceeds from Disposal of 
Capital Assets 

Other Sources 
County School Bldg Aid 

Transfers from Funds of 
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 

Long-Term Debt Proceeds 
Proceeds from Certificates 
of Participation 

Proceeds from Leases 

Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 

All Other Financing Sources 

- - -

7611 

7612 

7613 

7616 

7619 

--

8931 

8953 

8961 

8965 

8971 

8972 

8973 

8979 

- - - 0,00 ____ 0.00 - - 0.00 0.00 0.00 f---0.0% 

- - - 0.00 -- _Q.00 .__ -- 0.00 -- 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

--- 0,00 __ .Q_.QQ - -- 0.00 -0.00 -- 0,QQ_ >---- _Q,_Q!o 

__Q,QQ 
-

0.00 _ _  - 0.00 -- __Q,_()O - -- 0.00 0.0% 

-- - 0.00 __ Q.QO - __ 0.00 -- 0,00 - - _Q,Q_0_ _0.0% 

0.00 -- _ _  o_.oo -- _MQ..c- 0.00 -- 0.00 0 0� 

____ 0.0_Q_ ____ 0.00 __Q.Q9 _____ O.OQ. _ 0.0% 

-
0.OQ__ O.,_QQ_ -- __Qi)O - - 0.00 

-
- 0.QQ_ - �

-- __ 0.QQ_ 
- - 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

_____ o.oo_ 
----

o.qq_ 0.00 -- __Q,QO -- __ o.oo_ - 01J% 

___Q,QQ __ O.O_Q_ _ 

_Q,QQ_ -- _o.oo_ ____ o._qg_ ----�o-�00"-+-__ o_.0_%

- - 0.00 --- 0.00 --- _Q,Q_D 0,00 __ 2:QQ_ f- _Q,Q;'! -

0,90 � -- 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 (c) TOTAL, SOUR�C_E_S _________________ _,_ ___ _ 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ���

USES 

Transfers of Funds from 
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 

All Other Financing Uses 

(5!) TOTAL, USES ___ _ 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

----- - - --- -

7651 

7699 

- -

0.00 ____ 0.0-0_ 

0.00 _Q,QQ_ 

0.0()_ 
- - - 0.00 

0.00 QRQ. - -- 0.00 __Q,0% 

-- __ 0.OQ_ -- __ o.� ��-0.0Q. - 0.0% 

---- 0.00 - - __0.00 � __ 9.09_ >-- 0.0% 

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 

_Je) TOTAL. CONTRIBUTIOII!§_ 

8980 _ __t!08,762�09J
f---

(108,762.00)� ___ 0.00 _(180,225.00) _ _  (71,463.0Q)_ 65.7% 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 
{a - b + C - d + e} 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Flnaneial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
FIie: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) 

8990 c---- __Q,_QQ_ -- 0.00 0.00 ___ f-o�.o�o'--+ ___ o.oo ___Q,Q.%

------ --
(1Q8,762·.00) __ (108,762.00)

,_ 
0.00 _ ..J1fil),22�) 

{88,4J1.00) (88,431.00) 0.00 (121,949.00l 

Page 8 

133 518.00) 37.9% 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 

                                                                 9 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Oescrl� Resource Codes 

A.REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other State Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

5 TOTAL REVENUES 

B. EXPENDITURES 

1) Cer1ificated Salaries 

2) Classified Salaries 

3) Employee Benefits 

4) Books and Supplies 

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6) Capital Outlay 

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 
Costs) 

8) Other Outgo• Transfers of Indirect Costs 

9 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES ANO USES A5-89 

0. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) lnterfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

4 TOTAL. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/lJSES 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software. 2021.2.0 
File: fund I-a (Rev 04/20/2021) 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) 
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board Approved 
Object Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date 
Codes � !\! C 

8010-8099 0,00 0.00 ___ 0,.QQ_ 
8100-8299 _.ill,!!_�8.00 ___J]j_,628,00 4 000.00 

8300-8599 907,282.00 �282-00 32s�i�5 

6600-8799 �..QO.Q_0 - 4 500.00 ___ 0.00 

1,083,610.00 1 083,610.00 330,653.65 

1000-1999 3�9,�6.00 33,Q,;l�S,00 
-- 1§J�9.§�0f!1 

2000-2999 -- 250,916.00 250 916.00 _j1_�171.38 

3000-3999 29219q.oo 292490.00 

4000-4999 -- 45,554.QQ_ 45,554J!Q_ _ --1!!,175.2,5_ 

5000-5999 220 111!!,00 -1£(!, 188,00 ____TI,_ 794 .39 

6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7100-7299 

7400-7499 _ _  25,000.00 --25,000.00 0.00 

7300-7399 ___17,97!!.00 _ _  2_7,!!?8,0Q_ 889.70 

1 192 372.00 1 192 372.00 460 885.52 

108 762.00 108 762.00 130 231.81 

8900-8929 0.00 .0.00 0.00 

7600-7629 0.00 0.00 _O,QO 

8930-8979 0.00 Q.@ 0.00 

7630-7699 __ O._QQ_ 
-

___ 0.00 __ 0.00 

8980-8999 __ 108,762.00 108 762.0Q_ _ _o_.oo 

108 762.00 108:762.00 0,00 

Page 1 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 011 

Projected Year Difference % Dlff 
Totals (Col B& 0) (E/B) 

0) E F 

0.00 ___ o_.oo 0.0% 

159 642.00 -�ey_�,QQ) -7.0% 

1 063 .497.00 156,215.00 __ 17.2% 

4 600.00 0.00 0.0% 

1 227,839.00 

394,637.00 64L�1.0Q) ·19.!!% 

151,903.,()9 (987.00 -0.4% 

{�7.843.00) -12.9% 

-64.7% 

356 748.00 (136,560.00) -62.0% 

-�.Q00.00 6,000,00) New 

_25,Q_QQ.,_QQ. 0.00 0.0% 

31,724.00 -13.4% 

1 471 280.00 

243 441.00 

0.00 _Q,QO _ _  o_.0% 

__ ___Mg _!).00 �% 

__ o_.oo _Q,QQ_ __ 0.0% 

__Q,00 0.00 O.O'(o 

__ 180,225,00 71.463.00 65.7% 

180,225.00 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 

                                                                 10 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE IC + 041 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beglnnln� Fund Balance 
a) As of July 1 • Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 • Audited (F1e + F1b) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1 e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 
a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 
Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments 
d) Assigned 

Other Assignments 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

UnasslanedlUnam;1roorlaled Amount 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Flrianolal Reporting Software• 2021.2.0 
FIie: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) 

Resource Codes 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Restri"cled (Resources 2000-9999) 
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes rn Fund Balance 

Board Approved 
Object Original Budget Operating Budget 
Codes (Al 181 

0.00 0.00 

9791 0.00 
--

__Q.OQ_

9793 --- 0.00 OJ10 

--- _Q.QO_ - ____ om_

9795 ---- _Q.,_00 - - 0.00 --

�-- ....Q....00 - -- __ O,QQ_ 

_Q:!)0_ - ___ OJ!Q. 

9711 0.00 0.00 

9712 _Q.,_00 
- - Q.OQ.._ 

--

9713 - _Q._QQ_ - - __Q.00 

9719 0.00 --- _J)i)O 
,-

9740 0.00 0.00 

9750 --- _O.OQ_ --- 0,0Q.. 

9760 �----0·�- -

0.00 

9780 _o.� - - 0.00 

9789 0.09 �--
0.00 

9790 0.00 0.00 

Page 2 

Projected Year 
Actuals To Date Totals 

ICl IOI 

(130 231.87) {63 218.00J 

� 63 216.00 

- - _Q,_00 

63 216.00 _ 

0.00 

63 216.00 

0.00 

0,00 

--- 0� 

-
___ O.QQ_ 

- __ ___Q,@

___ __Q,Q.Q.. 

-� 

0.09, 
0.00 

___ _Q,90 

____ o.oo 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 011 

Olfferenco %Dlff 
(Col B& D) (E/B) 

IEl IFI 

63 216.00 __ New 

-- _QJJO 0.0% 

- - --

Q.,QQ_ - 0.0% 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 

                                                                 11 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Descrlollon 

LCFF SOURCES 

Principal Apportionment 
State Aid - Current Year 

Resource Codes 

Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 

State Aid - Prior Years 

Tax Relief Subventions 
Homeowners' Exemptions 

Timber Yield Tax 

Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 

County & District Taxes 
Secured Roll Taxes 

Unsecured Roll Taxes 

Prior Years' Taxes 

Supplemental Taxes 

Education Revenue Augmentation 
Fund (ERAF) 

Community Redevelopment Funds 
(SB 617/699/1992) 

Penalties and Interest from 
Delinquent Taxes 

Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 

Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604) 
Royalties and Bonuses 

Other In-Lieu Taxes 

Less: Non-LCFF 
(50%) Adjustment 

Subtotal,_ LCFF Sources ___ -- - -
LCFF Transfers 

Unrestricted LCFF 
Transfers - Current Year 0000 

All Other LCF F 
Transfers - Current Year All Other 

Transfers to Charier Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 

Property Taxes Transfers 

LC FF/ Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 

FEDERAL REVENUE 

Maintenance and Operations 

Special Education Entitlement 

Special Education Discretionary Grants 

Child Nutrition Programs 

Donated Food Commodities 

Flood Control Funds 

Wildlife Reserve Funds 

FEMA 

lnteragency Contracts Between LEAs 

Pass-Through Revenues from Federal Sources 

Title I, Part A, Basic 

Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent 

Programs 
Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective 
ln��t!Q_n ________ 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/2012021) 

- -----

3010 

3025 

4035 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Restricted ( Resources 2000-9999) 
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Object 
Codes 

8011 

8012 

8019 

8021 

8022 

8029 

8041 

8042 

8043 

8044 

8045 

8047 

8048 

8070 

8081 

8082 

8089 

8091 

8091 

8096 

8097 

8099 

- --

8110 

8181 

8182 

8220 

8221 

8270 

8280 

8281 

8285 

8287 

8290 

8290 

8�0 

Original Budget 
IAI 

,_ 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

--

Board Approved 
Operating Budget 

[81 

-

- -

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 _ 
0.00 

Projected Year 
Actuals To Date Totals 

(C) (D) 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 o,oo 

0.00 000' 

0,00 0.00 

--
O.OQ r-- - _o,oo

0.00 
--

_0.0Q 

t-- -- 0.00.� -- 0.00 �-0,(!0 __ _Q,00 

1--- --
0,00 __ 0.00 -- __Q,QQ - --

0.OQ. 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 

--- 0.00 - - 0.00 
-- Q,09 _g.gq-�

-- Q,QQ. -- �-OQ_ ,_ _ _  0.00 --- 0,QQ_ 

0,00 0,00 0.00 0.00 

0,00 0.00 0.00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

oo·o 0.00 0.00 000 

t-------- - --- - - --- --

b.oo

()_,QQ_ 

----- 0 . .QQ_ 

o.oo__ 

--- __Q,Q_0 

_ ____Q,_00 

114 012.00 

� - _ _  2_5,816.QQ_ 

- ___ 0.Q.Q._ 

0.00 -�--

-- ___ p.l)_Q_ 
0.0_Q_ 

0,00 

,__ ___ 0.0Q_ 

_ _  o_.oo 

-- ogg 

0.,QQ_ 

0.00 

Page 3 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

-
0.00 __Q,QQ__ 0,00 

� 0.00 
--- � - -- Q.Q0 

0.00 0.00 0.00 � 
--- �- - -- 0.00 0.00 

0.00 

_ _  1_14,012.00 

25 816.00 
- --

� ---o.oo__ 

0.00 - -----

� __ Q.00 

- __ o.oo 

___ 0. 00 

C-- __Q_.Q9 

---

,__ 

-

_ _  0.00 

0,00 --- -

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 111,950.00 

--- 0.00 25�9.00 

-- _Q,QQ__ - -- 0.00 

0.00 0.90 
r-

-
-

--- O,QQ_ 
--

0.00 

0.00 0.00 --- --
c--

0,00 _ __ Jt00_ --

--- Q,00 - 0.00 

- -- 0.00 ___Q,_00 

-- 0.00 0.Q.Q_ 

__Q,QQ ---- 0.00 -

0.00 0.00 

46 1 0462 0000000 
Form01I 

Difference %Dlff 
(ColB&D) (E/B) 

(El fFI 

----

0.00 0.0% 

- -

0.00 _0.0% 

___ __Q_,90 0.0% 

_Qc!1Q_ _ 0.0% 

0.00 � 
r2.oai.QQ) -1.8% --�---· 

27.00) �1% 

0.00 ___ 0.l/o/! 
0.00 0.0% 

-- ---
0.00 0.Oo/� 

0.00 � 
0.00 0.0% 

.___. _ __Q,QQ_ __ o_.�

0.0!)_ __ o,p� 

_Q,QQ_ �� 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 

                                                                 12 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Oescrtotlon 

Title Ill, Part A, Immigrant Student 
Program 

Title Ill, Part A, English Learner 
Program 

Public Charter Schools Grant 
Program (PCSGP) 

Other NCLB / Every Student Succeeds Act 

Career and Technical Education 

All Other Federal Revenue 

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENU§__ 

OTHER STATE REVENUE 

Other State Apportionments 

ROC/P Entitlement 
Prior Years 

Special Education Master Plan 
Curren! Year 

Prior Years 

All Other State Apportionments - Current Year 

All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years 

Child Nutrition Programs 

Mandated Costs Reimbursements 

Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materi1 

Tax Relief Subventions 
Restricted Levies - Other 

Homeowners' Exemptions 

Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 

Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 

After School Education and Safety (ASES) 

Charter School Facility Grant 

Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 
Program 

Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 

California Clean Energy Jobs Act 

Specialized Secondary 

American Indian Early Childhood Education 

All Other State Revenue 

JQJAL...QTHER STAIE REVENUE 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software• 2021.2.0 
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) 

Resource Codes 

4201 

4203 

4610 

3040, 3045, 3060, 
3061, 3110, 3150, 
3155, 3180, 3182, 
3183, 4037, 4123, 
4124, 4126, 4127, 
4128,4204,5630 

3500-3599 

All Other 

6360 

6500 

6500 

All Other 

All Other 

6010 

6030 

6387 

6650, 6680, 6685, 
6690, 6695 

6230 

7370 

7210 

All Other 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) 
46 10462 0000000 

Form 011 
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Dlff 
Object Orlglnal Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (Col B& D) (EIB) 
Codes (A) (8) !Cl (D) IE! IF! 

8290 0.00 0.00 - - 0.00 0,QQ__ 0.00 ___!h�--- -- ---

8290 _ 0,00 
- - - __Q,QQ_ _0.90 

-
__ 0.00 0,00 __Q,_O� 

8290 0,00 � 0.00 -- O,QQ_._ 
0.00 __ o.� -- -- -r-

8290 ____ g..99_0.o_Q_ ____ gooQ:<lQ_ _ 0.00 -- � --- (12,000.0_Q). _:10�

8290 0.00 
- -- 0,00 

�--
0,00 0.00 O,OQ 1--- 0.0� -- -

8290 �1Q,_QQQ_,OO r-- 20,000.00 4,000.00 22,103.00 2 103,00 10.5% 

---,_ __ 171.828.00 __ 171.828.0Q. 4 000.00 159 842.00 (11,986.001 -7.0� 

8319 0.00 -- 0.00 -- __ Q,QQ_ ,- - -- Q,00 0.00 0.0% 

8311 _5�()5��Q_ -- 520,595.00 -- 0.0.Q_ � 520,606.00 11.00 0.0% 

8319 -- 0.00 - 0.QQ_ 0.0.Q_ � 0,00 0.JIQ. �_Q,9% 

8311 Q,_0.Q_ -- 0.00 9.00 Q.00 0.00 0.0% 

8319 0 QQ. 0.00 O.OC) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.0% 

8550 0,00 _o.oo 0.00 .-· 0.00 ---

8560 1,QQ1,QQ, --- 1 00 ,00 
i----

344.67 
t--

1 300.00' 299.00 29.9% ---

8575 ____ 0,QQ_ - 0.QQ_ - _MQ, --- __,Q,_OQ 0,00 0.0% 

8576 ,_ __ S),.QQ. ..... --- .Qi�Q -- 0,00 --- ___Q,QO_ -- __ 0.00 0.0% 

8587 -- _0.0Q_ -- -- 0.0.Q_ - -- 0.00 0.00 __ _Q,Q() __ 0.0� 

8590 
�--

0.00 -- __ O.(JQ_ -- ___ 0.,_QQ_ - O.QQ__ - - 0.00 __ O.Q� 

8590 0,00 -- ___QJ)O - - __ p.q_� __ 0JQ_ I- 0.00 0.0% 

8590 ____ _Q,_00 -- ___ 0,00 0,QQ_ 0,00 ___Q_,QQ_ __ 0_.0!! 

8590 -- 75,000,0Q_ _7J,QOO.OO 15;!.160.67 -- 75 000.00 
-

0.00 0.0% 

8590 0.00 0.00 _Q,_QQ - - �00 ___ _o.o_� ,_ 0.0% -�-- -----
8590 0.00 0.09 0,QQ_ ---- 0.00 

--- 0,00 O.Q� 

8590 -- 0.00 0.00 __ ___Q,_00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

8590 310 886_,QQ_ _ �� __ 1.7�1 148,31 ___ 4�6,591,Q_Q_ _155,905,00 50.2% 

907,282.00 907 282.00 �.653,65 __ 1,06� __ 1�1?,215.0Q __ 17.2% 

Page 4 Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 

                                                                 13 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Ooscrlptlon 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

Other Local Revenue 
County and District Taxes 

Other Restricted Levies 
Secured Roll 

Unsecured Roll 

Prior Years' Taxes 

Supplemental Taxes 

Non-Ad Valorem Taxes 
Parcel Taxes 

Other 

Community Redevelopment Funds 
Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 

Resource Codes 

Penalties and Interest from Delinquent Non-LCFF 
Taxes 

Sales 
Sale of EquipmenUSupplies 

Sale of Publications 

Food Service Sales 

Alf Other Sales 

Leases and Rentals 

Interest 

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 

Fees and Contracts 
Adult Education Fees 

Non-Resident Students 

Transportation Fees From Individuals 

lnteragency Services 

Mitigation/Developer Fees 

Alf Other Fees and Contracts 

Other Local Revenue 

Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%) AdjustmE 

Pass-Through Revenues From Local Sources 

Alf Other Local Revenue 

Tuition 

Alf Other Transfers In 

Transfers Of Apportionments 
Special Education SELPA Transfers 

From Districts or Charter Schools 

From County Offices 

From JPAs 

ROC/P Transfers 
From Districts or Charter Schools 

From County Offices 

From JPAs 

Other Transfers of Apportionments 
From Districts or Charter Schools 

From County Offices 

From JPAs 

Alf Other Transfers In from Alf Others 

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

!QIAf., REVENUES 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) 

6500 

6500 

6500 

6360 

6360 

6360 

Alf Other 

Alf Other 

Alf Other 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) 
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board Approved 
Object Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date 
Codes (A) (Bl (C) 

8615 o,o_q_ 
I- - 0,00 0,00 

8616 
� _Q,QQ_ ___ 0.00 0.00 

8617 0.00 __Q,QQ__ 0.00 

8618 >----- __ o_.oo __ 0.00 --- 0.00 

8621 - 0.00 _ _  0c!)Q__ o.oo 

8622 
f-----

0.00 0.00 - - 0.00

8625 0.0..Q_ --- 0.00 0.00 

8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 
t-- -- -

8632 9.0..Q_ --- 0.00 0.00 

8634 0.00 0.00 - -- O.QO 

8639 0.00 0.00 0,00 

8650 -- _()_,_QQ_ _____Q,QQ_ 0.00 

8660 
- -- o.� q,_q_o - 0.00 

8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 
--- ---

8675 
-

0.00 __ Q.00 0.00 

8677 0.00 0.00 0.00 - - -- --- ---

8681 0,Q0 0.00 0.00 

8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 
-

8691 0.00 i).00 0.00 

8697 0.00 0.00 0,00 

8699 
--

4,500.00 4 500.00 O._QQ 

8710 
-

__ 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8781-8783 - -- 0.00 - -- O,QQ_ - 0.00 

8791 
-

0.00 0.00 q.oo

8792 o.oo 0.00 0.00 

8793 - ___ o_.oo ___ Q.Q0 0.00 

8791 0.00 0.00 _Q_QQ_ 

8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8793 _Q,_QQ_ -- ___Q_.0_Q _0.00 

8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 
r-

8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8793 0.00 0.00 0,00 
---

8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 

__ 4.�Qlt® ___ 4,�Q.00 0.00 

1083 610.00 1 083,!i10.00 33D 65�.§_§ 

Page 5 

Projected Year 
Totals 

ID) 

0.00 

0.00 - -

0.0Q. 

0.00 

46 1 0462 0000000 
Form 01I 

Difference % Dlff 
(Col B& D) (E/B) 

IEl IFI 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% --

_ __ 0.00 0.0% 

0.0% 
I-

0.00 

0,00 0.00 0.0% 

0._Q0_ O.OQ_ 0.0% 
-..... � .

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00_ 0,00 0.0% 

0:00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 Q.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 Q.0% 

_ ___Q,Q() 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 

� 0.00 ---

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

- -- Q,00 
- 0.QQ__ 0.0%

I---- -�___..;, 

0,00 0.00 0,0% 

O.Q9._ .. 0.00 __ o_.0% 

0.00 ---

>--- 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

4 500.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00_ f-----
0,00 0.0% 

0,00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 
� 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 ,____..Q,Q'¼& 

- _____Q,Q(!__ 0,00 0.0% 

o_._oo 0.00 ___Q,Qo/� 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

4,500.00 0.00 ____QR!o 

1 227 839.00_ 144l�,o.9 13.3% 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 

                                                                 14 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Descrlotlon 

CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 

Resource Codes 

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 

Other Certificated Salaries 

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED S&A�R�IE=S _______ _ 

CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

Classified Instructional Salaries 

Classified Support Salaries 

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 

Other Classified Salaries 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Restrtcled (Resources 2000-9999) 
46 10462 0000000 

Form 01I 
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Object 
Codes 

1100 

1200 

1300 

Board Approved 
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date 

IA\ 181 (Cl 

Projected Year 
Totals 

ID) 

Difference 
(Col B& 0) 

IEI 

% Olff 
(E/B) 

IFI 

21·1 �7.00 1031021.ss ___ =2e�o�12�2�.o�o-+--__ (69 01s.o�o-'-f-_-�32_.6_% 

---56.444.00 -- �444.<:!Q__ ___ 182.?.Q,_�1 

62,245.00 ____ 62 2 5.00 36 206.45 

50,489.00 ___ 5 95�0�
1- 1.9-�• 

__ (]3,426;00 11 181.001 -1.9% 

1900 >- ___ _QJ)O _ 0.00 __o.p_q_ _ o.oo o.""oo
=-+-

_�O-=O�¾: 

---

2100 147 768 .00 
� --

2200 
� 

_14_,21§.00 

2300 � __ 6?J400.00 -
2400 ___ 1,750,00 

--

2900 __ 1_�,752.00 -

147 768.00 

__11,?_46.00_ 

67 400.Q!) 

1 7!?0.,_(l9_ 

19�752.QQ_ 

__157 964.8_!_ _ �4,§37.0Q. __ (6�4-�,30��1-=00=ll+--·1�9�.5�o/c--'lo 

__ 30,638.03 _5!!_,097.00 _(44,651.,QQ, ,_....::314.8% 

-- 6,51 '!., _2Q_ ___ 2!?,000.00 __ 42,400.00 _ 62.9% 
-- 229.40 _ -- !>00.0Q _ 1,260.00 e----?1.4% 

___ , �7�84_.oo 1'9,!52.00 ___ _Q,_oo >-- 0.0% 

_JOT-°JL, CLASSIFIED SALARIEL 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

----
__ -2§.0L916.00 -- 250 91�,99.. __ 97,171:38 251,903.00. -- 987.0.Q) -0.4% 

STRS 

PERS 

OAS DI/Medicare/Alternative 

Health and Welfare Benefits 

Unemployment Insurance 

Workers' Compensation 

OPEB, Allocated 

OPEB, Active Employees 

Other Employee Benefits 

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS __ 

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 

Books and Other Reference Materials 

Materials and Supplies 

Noncapitalized Equipment 

Food 

3101-3102 1 __ __,1""16"')'!§.00 ___ 118,145.00 __ 26�p'!__ 131,754.00 

3201-3202 _ 46 595.DD __ 4_6,595'-".00-"-t
---�17,607.60 __ 45.080� _ 1,�15.00 3.3% 

3301-3302 -- 24,56�.QQ_- __ 24.565.00 -- 9 ?89.45 24,698.QQ _ 131,QQJ _ -0.5% 

3401-3402 _ ___L2,538.00 44,829.43 102 004,00 __ (29,466.00) ·40,6¾ 

3501-3502 ___ 6,._57c_o_.oo�,_- 3 81� ___ 2,757,00 ___!2.0% 

3601-3602 - - 23,967 ,QQ_ -- 23,987,� ____ 9,C>QLQ� __ __:22=,6cc:9=.,6.00 1 091.00 4.5% 

3701-3702 

3751-3752 ,_ 

3901-3902 

_ 0.00 ___ -- __Q,QQ_ -- O.OQ_ 

____ o=.oo 1----
__g.oo _ 

.Q;QQ_ -- ___ 0.QQ_
f-

0.00 -- _0.00 _ 

__ __ o.o� 1------0.0�0
-t-

_�o.=0"'"% 

-- 0.00 -- __ Q.OQ_ _ .....QR."& 
o cc·=o�o -1----�o,oQ.. _ o.o¾ 

2�2,400.QQ_ __ 108,889.9!_) __ -- 330 24� 37 843.0.QJ __:12.9% 

4100 ___ 1,001_,QD__ ___ 1.001-.&Q._ o.oo ___ 4c.i!'�-"'oo
=-+-

__ __,l,:3�,__77-'-'2"'-.o=o) -376.8% 

4200 ,__ ___ o.oo o.oo ___ o.oo 1------'o"'.o:.,io-t------=o-'-'.o=o-1 __ _.,o=.0""'%-"l 

4300 38 353.(!0__
_ 

-- ���()_Q ___ �.175,25 53 585.00 ill.P.� �?% 

4400 __ 6,200.qo_ __ 6,200.00 _ __ C!cQQ_ __ 16,66I,O0 110 467,QQJ ---=1§!3.8� 

4700 _ _ _ o.oo __Q,oo f- __ o.oo ,_ __ __ o.go o.oo o.oo/o 
TOTAL,J!_QOKSAt:J-�D�S�U=P-'-P�L=IE=S _______________ ___1?2_�4.00 45 554.00 __ 18,175,?5 75,Q�,QQ_ __ l29,471.00) -64.7% 

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 

Subagreements for Services 

Travel and Conferences 

Dues and Memberships 

Insurance 

Operations and Housekeeping Services 

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitallzed Improvements 

Transfers of Direct Costs 

Transfers of Direct Costs • lnterfund 

Professional/Consulting Services and 
Operating Expenditures 

Communications 

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER 
_ OPERATING EXPENDITU.B_� ____ _ 

Califorriia Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
FIie: fundi-a. (Rev D4120/2021) 

5100 

5200 

5300 

5400-5450 

5500 

5600 

5710 

5750 

5800 

5900 

-
40,000.00 

- - __ 7,500.00 

_1,__00'1_,QQ_ 

__JJ;,000...,QQ 

7 500.D_Q_ 

�O.Q.R_ 

0,00 

0.00 

t----�4=0<=000.00

l----�7=500.00 

o.-=.coo
c.+

--�"0=000.00 

6 800.15 

--�2=·�004.0Q_� ___ 1,244.20 -- 2,023.qQ_ ___ (� ____:9.§1� 
----'1=5,0_

0

0.0,00 17,361.50 __ 16,000�_ 0.00 __ 0.Oo/o 
7Boo.oo _ 1 ey32.09 -- 7,500.00 --- ..Q;D_Q_ ___Q,_0% 

__ 1.�0!tOO e--- __ 205:62 

___Q,.QQ__ -- 0,00 ---�0-=0-=-0 t-----�0-=0�0
+-

-�0=.0�'¾=•, 
0.00 --- _0.00 __ 

__ 46,533.50 _ 

0.00 0.0"0�-1--�0=.0�'¾
--'l
o 

231,622...,QQ_ 85,63!Ul.Ql �?-6% 

4 000._QQ_ ,-. 3 500.00) -700.0� 

_ -- -- 220188.00, __ 220.188,00 � 77 794.39 356,748.09 _ 

Page 6 Printed: 3/212022 11 :36 AM 

                                                                 15 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Land 

Land Improvements 

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 

Books and Media for New School Libraries 
or Major Expansion of School Libraries 

Equipment 

Equipment Replacement 

Lease Assets 

JQ.T�J,,_, QAPIT.:AL OUTLAY 

Resource Codas 

-- -

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

Tuition 
Tuition for Instruction Under lnterdistrict 
Attendance Agreements 

State Special Schools 

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments 
Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 

Payments to County Offices 

Payments to JPAs 

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues 
To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Offices 

To JPAs 

Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments 
To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 

To County Offices 6500 

To JPAs 6500 

ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments 
To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 

To County Offices 6360 

To JPAs 6360 

Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 

All Other Transfers 

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 

Debt Service 
Debt Service • Interest 

Other Debt Service • Principal 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) 
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board Approved 
Object Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date 
Codes !Al (Bl (Cl 

6100 -- 0,00 0.,QQ_ __ 0.00 

6170 - - __ o.oo_ Q;_QQ_ -- ____Q,.QO 
6200 0.00 -- _O.QQ. 

- _.Q,QQ_ 

6300 -- ___ O.QQ. �-- 0.00 
>---

0.00 

6400 -- 0.0_Q_ -- _O,QO_ f-- _ __Q,QQ_ 
6500 O,O_Q_ �-- 0.00 - - - 0.00_ 

6600 ,-- -- __ Q,._
OQ. --- 0 .. 00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

7110 - 25,000.00 - 25,000,00 --- ___ 0,00_ 

7130 -- _MO - -- 0.00 - - _Q,00 

7141 --- 0.00 -- 0.00 -- __ 0.00 

7142 _Q,90 
- - O.OQ. ____ 0.9.Q_ 

7143 --- 0,00 
1--

O,QQ_ __ __Q,00 

7211 - 0.00 -- 0.00 --- _Q,Q0 

7212 -- 0.00 
-- -0.00_ 

,- --
0.00 

7213 --- ___ q,QQ. - ___ Q,QO O,QQ__ 

7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 ------

7222 ___ __Q,Q0 0,00 -- __Q,_OQ 

7223 - _Q,Q_O O.OQ. ---- 0.00 

7221 0,00 -- O.O_Q_ -- __Q,Q(l 

7222 0.00 0,00 0.00 --- ---- - --

7223 0,00 0.00 0 .00 ---- - -

7221-7223 0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01I 

Projected Year Difference 
Totals (Col B& D) 

(Dl (El 

-
0,00 Q.OQ. 

0.00 0.00 
,-

I- __ 0.00 __Q-!)O 

-- __ !).QQ. I--- _Q,QQ_ 
6 000.00 

_____ Qj)O 

____Q,.QQ 

6.000.00 

- 25,00Q,QQ_ 

�.000.00) 

0.00 --

_ ____ 0.00 

-- 6,000.0Q) 

- - ___Q,QO_ 

--- O.OQ __ -- 0.00 

0.00 ___Q,Q9 ---

-�--_Q.,QQ_ -- 0.00 

0.00 0.00 - - --

0.00 0.00 -- -

-- __ O,QQ__ 
-

0.00 

---- _Q,._00 - _ _  Q,,QQ_ 

� 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

-- 0.00 ,.Q,QQ. 

o.� 
---

0.00 

____ o.oo_ 1--- 0.00 

-- ___ 0.00 I- ___ Q,QQ_ 
a.co 0.00 

% Dlff 
(E/B) 
(Fl 

_ O.Oo/� 

0.0% 

0.0% - ---

_ _  0.0� 

__ New 

__Q,0% 

0.0% 

New 

-�

0.0% 

� 
0.0% 

0.0% 

1---0,0% 

__ o .. � 

_o.,_� 

_ __Q,Q¾ 

0.0% 

_0.0% 

__ o.o� 

__ O._Q% 

__ 0.0% 

-_Mf• 

0.0% - -- O.,_QQ_ --- __ 0.00 -----

7281-7283 O.,_QQ. - - _QJ)Q. - 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0"/4 

7299 -- __Q.00 -- 0.0()_ -- 0.00 0.00 O.OQ. 0.0% 

7438 ---- 0.00 __ Q.00 __ __Q,00 
<--- - 0.00 0.00 _ _  !)� 

7439 -- --- O.,QQ_ --- _0.00_ 
- -- Q;__O.Q_ ____ 0.09 f-- 0.00 _Q,O� 

TQI/\L, OTHEfl OUTGO �lud!!}g Transfers QU.rldlreEg;os!;) ___ -- - 2iooo.QQ_ 25,000.00 - - - - O. QQ..r-
__ 25.000.00 - _0.90 - _Q,_Q% 

OTHER OUTGO • TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 

Transfers of Indirect Costs 

Transfers of Indirect Costs • lnterfund 

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO· TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 

TOTAL, EXPENOITURES 

California Dept or Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software• 2021.2.0 
File: fund I-a (Rev 04/20/2021) 

7310 

7350 

--�78.00 27,978.00 
--

0.00 0.00 

f----
E,e1s.oo 27.978.00 

� 1 I 192,372.00 1 1�2.1?k�-

Page 7 

889.70 -- -

0.00 

889,70 

- __ 31,724.00 

0.00 

31,724.00 

460885�- 1,471,280.00 

__ (�;746.00) ·13.4% 

0.00 __Q,Q% 

-- (3,7460QQ) -13.4% 

_(�8 908,00)��.4% 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 

                                                                 16 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

INTER FU NO TRANSFERS 

INTERFUNO TRANSFERS IN 

From: Special Reserve Fund 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers In 

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

INTERFUN0 TRANSFERS OUT 

To: Child Development Fund 

To: Special Reserve Fund 

To: State School Building Fund/ 
County School Facilities Fund 

To: Cafeteria Fund 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers Out 

Resource Codes 

{l,)_JOTAL, INTERFUND TRA_l'JSFERSc.cO"--'Uc.cT __ _ 
OTHER SOURCES/USES 

SOURCES 

State Apportionments 
Emergency Apportionments 

Proceeds 

Proceeds from Disposal of 
Capital Assets 

Other Sources 
County School Bldg Aid 

Transfers from Funds of 
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 

Long-Term Debt Proceeds 
Proceeds from Certificates 
of Participation 

Proceeds from Leases 

Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 

All Other Financing Sources 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) 
46 1 0462 0000000 

Form01I 
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balance 

Object 
Codes 

8912 

8919 

7611 

7612 

7613 

7616 

7619 

8931 

8953 

8961 

8965 

8971 

8972 

8973 

8979 

Board Approved 
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date 

{Al !Bl !Cl

__Q.00 -

_QJ)9, ___ _ 

0.QQ_ __ 
0,00 

_Q,QQ_ 

Projected Year 
Totals 

IOI 

Difference 
(Col B & 0) 

IEJ 

% Olff 
(E/B) 
!Fl 

_0,00 0,00 _Q,QQ_ _Q_Q9 -

_0.00_ 

__ 0.()_Q__ 

---�O.OQ ____ o"'.o'-'0
--1-

--- o.oo _Q . .Q� 

__ Q,QQ__ _____ o=·-=-oo .  _____ o.oo o.oo 0.0% 

_o.oo _ __o.o_o ___ _ _0.00 

----�0,Q0 1---�--□.00 0.00 � __ Q.C!Q_ __ _ __ 0.QQ_ _ 0.0% 

~ -- ___Q,,00 --- l ).00_ ·t------ o.oo -- __ 0.0Q_ 0.0% 

---

---

O,OQ ___ ___Q,QQ -i------ Q;QQ_ e--- --- 0 .00 ____ ...coc c.0=0·-+---0.0% 

,Q,QQ _____ 0.00 1--- o.ooc.=.;------,---

0.00 _Q.00 _ _  o.oo_ 0.00 _o.o�

0.00 __ 0.00 ____ 0 .. ""0�0+-----�0.�0�0-+-__ 0�.,00=% 

0.00 � _ 0.00 ,_ ___ .Q,OQ_ ---- 0,00 0.00 0.0% 
t------

0,00 -- __Q,00 - 0.00 
-

0 .00 0.0 0 0.0% ---

0.00 -- __Q,_00 -- O.!)g_ - �--0.:2Q_ --- __QJ)O _o,� 

0 .0 0 
----

0,00 _____ o_.oo 0,QQ_ - 0.00 � 

0,00 .Jill"OT&,'=,J;QURCES ____________________ ----� �---- 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 ___QR�, 
USES 

Transfers or Funds from 
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 

All Other Financing Uses 

7651 

7699 

0 .00 ______ 0.0Q_ ______ 0.:29_ ______ 0,QQ_ ___ 0.00 __ 0.,_(l_� 
0.00 --- _Q_Q9 -- __ 0.0!)_ -- ____ 9 . .QQ.._ 0.00 __ Q,Q_% 

_@_TOTAL, US!:§_ -- ----------------- --- -- 0.00 0,QQ_ _ _  __Q_,90 i-. 0.00 __ 0.QQ_ _ 0.0% 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 

(I!) TQT!'I-L, CONTRIBUTION.§__ 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 
la - b + C - d + e\ 

California Dept or Education 
SACS Flnenclal Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) 

8980 

8990 

_ _j.Q8,762.00 __ 108,762.00 ____ Q�Q__- ___!fill 225 . .QQ._ 71 463,00 _Ji§Jo/o 

_____ 0_.00 __ _ __ 0,QQ_ t--- ___ 0.00 __ 0.00 , _____ O�.(!O 0.0% 
__.lQ.8,762.00 -- 108 762.00 ---- _Q,QQ__- __1fil).J25.00 71 463.00 ___ 65.7% 

108,762.00 108 762.00 0.00 18 0 225.00 171 463.00l 65.7% 

Page 8 Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 

                                                                 17 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other State Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

5) TOTAL. REVENUES 

B. EXPENDITURES 

1) Certificated Salaries 

2) Classified Salaries 

3) Employee Benefits 

4) Books and Supplies 

5) Services and Other Operating Expendilures 

6) Capital Outlay 

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 
Costs) 

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 

9l TOT Al E.XPENDITURES 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - 89) 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) lnterfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

Resource Codes 

4l TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

California Dept of Education 
SACS F nancial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/2012021) 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Summary - Unrestricled/Restricled 
Revenues, Expenditutes, and Changes In Fund Balance 

Object 
Codes 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6999 

7100-7299 
7400-7499 

7300-7399 

8900-8929 

7600-7629 

8930-8979 

7630-7699 

8980-8999 

Board Approved 
Original Budget Operating Budget 

(Al (Bl 

__.1, 16�.!ill,_00 � 1,!�9J7.C!Q_ 

171 828.00 
-

171,828.00 

-- 911,413�00_ >-__w,�:i,.QQ
___ 407 500.00 -- _40? 2')0.C!Q_ 

2 657 658.00 2 657,658.00 

___§�Q, t�,Q.0 5_8Q,lli00 

579,678J!Q_ _ 579,678.00 

_@;!,15�QQ. 592,163.00 

� 
75206� __ 75,208.00 

I--
520�Q;_()Q._� __w)

L
420.00 

-- 35,000.0..Q_� _35,000.00 

49,428.00 

0.00 
� -- - --

2 431,987.00 

225 671.00 

--
20.331,00 

_Q.00 

- - __ opo

0.00 

0,00 

20 331.00 

Page 1 

_ 49,428.00 

�--
0.00 

2 431 987.00 

225 671.00 

- _1Q_�31.00 

_ _0.00 

Q.Q0 

0.00 

--
_ _  o_.o_o 

20 331.00 

Actuals To Date 
(CJ 

� 1 066 379.37 

4,000.00 

331,643.87 

I- �l��

1 426,805.56 

303,�J0.83 

�2.IZ,966,79 

__ 305183.11 

__ 22.95I
J
.5 

_ _  j_g�53.77 
--�4 03�.81_ 

-- __ 0.00 

0.00 --

1 121 928.46 

304 B77.10 

- - - O,QQ_ 

-- __ 0.0Q__ 

0.00 

0.00 

o.oo 

0.00 

Projected Year 
Totals 

fDI 

1 168 917,00 

159 842.00 

1 070,527.00 

409 500.00 
-

2 806,786.00 

- fil0,8i�,QQ.. 

_ 605,781.00 

-- §�f)0,QQ. 

119 900,00 

__ 7�3,033.00 

41,000.00 - -

-- �28.00 _ 

-- ____Q,00 

2 933 288.00 

(128 502.001 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 011 

Difference % Dlff 
(ColB&D) {E/B) 

IE) IFl 

_Q,QQ_ __ Q,0% 

(11 986.QQ} � -7.0% 

159,114.00 17,5% 

2 000.00 0.5% 

� 
_(l!Q,144,QQ) _-15.8% 

26 103.00) -4.5% 
-

.___(101 lli,00) -17.1% 

(44 694.00) -59.4% 

__ 232,61;3.00} , _ _  ::14.7% 

__ (6.000.00) ,__.:.17 .1� 

-
0.0Q__ 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 
-----�-

� _!1� 1
2?fi,OO _ __E,94� 1B6.8% 

� 
0.0Q_ 

- - OJ!Q_ _ _J) . .Q%

____ g,QQ_ ---
0,00 _QJ)_°/� 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

____ o_.oo 0.00 0.0% 

58,276.00 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 

                                                                 18 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE IC + 041 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 · Audited (F1a + F1b)

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 
a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 
Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments 

OPEB 

OPEB 

OPEB 
d) Asslg·ned 

Other Assignments 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

UnasslgnedlUnapproprlaled Amount 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/2012021) 

Resource Codes 

0000 

0000 

0000 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted 
Revenues, Expenditures . end Changes In Fund Balance 

Board Approved 
Object Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date 
Codes IA! 

246 002,00 

97 91 - �o

979 3 0.00_ 

-- ----9009-. 

9795 0.00 ---

0.00 
---

-
�.(!,Q02.00 

9711 500.0 0 ---

9712 --- _Q.00 

9713 0.00 

971 9 

9740 0.00 � -

9750 0.00 

9760 _9ti.B�Q_Q__ 

9760 B4Bs.oo -

9760 
-

97 60 � ---

9780 -- _ _  o_.oo 

978 9 - __ 0.00 

9790 15 3 017.00 

Page 2 

181

248002.00 

--- -�g

0,00 
� 

- _Q.Q0_ 

--- 9.:QQ_ 

9.:QQ_ 

246 002.00 

--- 5()0.00 

0.00 ---

- __Q_.00 

---

0.00 ---

0.00 --

�.485,00 

- - - -

�J.485.00 __ 

- ---

-- __ o.o_p 

0.00 
>-·--- -

15 3017.00 

(Cl 

304 877.10 

Projected Vear 
Totals 

IOI 

(6 8 22 6.00) 

,- _____l,§?3.7� 
--

__ 3,653,733.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01I 

Difference % Dlff 
(Col B&D) (E/B) 

IEl IF! 

3,653,733.00 - New 

--
0.00 __Q,9% 

-- -- - -

� --- !!:QQ__� 0.00 0,0% 

3,653. 733.QQ__ 

3,585 507.00 

500,00 
----

O.Q_Q_ 

0,00 
- --

0.00 ---

0.00 

--

o.�

- 92.4!!�-99-

--

- ---

�,qo ___ 

0.00 

_ �5.000,QQ_ 

30 97 522.00 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 

                                                                 19 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

OescrlDtlon 

LCFF SOURCES 

Principal Apportionment 
State Aid - Current Year 

Resource Codes 

Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 

State Aid - Prior Years 

Tax Relief Subventions 
Homeowners' Exemptions 

Timber Yield Tax 

Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 

County & District Taxes 
Secured Roll Taxes 

Unsecured Roll Taxes 

Prior Years' Taxes 

Supplemental Taxes 

Education Revenue Augmentation 
Fund (ERAF) 

Community Redevelopment Funds 
(SB 617/699/1992) 

Penalties and Interest from 
Delinquent Taxes 

Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 

Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604) 
Royalties and Bonuses 

Other In-Lieu Taxes 

Less: Non-LCFF 
(50%) Adjustment 

Subtotal, LCFF Sources - - - -- --- ---

LCFF Transfers 

Unrestricted LCFF 
Transfers - Current Year 0000 

All Other LCFF 
Transfers - Current Year All Other 

Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 

Property Taxes Transfers 

LC FF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 

I�LCFFSOURCE§__ --

FEDERAL REVENUE 

Maintenance and Operations 

Special Education Entitlement 

Special Education Discretionary Grants 

Child Nutrition Programs 

Donated Food Commodities 

Flood Control Funds 

Wildlife Reserve Funds 

FEMA 

lnteragency Contracts Between LEAs 

Pass-Through Revenues from Federal Sources 

Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 

Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent 
Programs 3025 

Tille II, Part A, Supporting Effective 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board Approved 
Object Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date 
Codes IAl IBl (Cl 

8011 915,33�.oo 915,�IJ.,OO _ 910,404.00 

8012 - -183,496.00 �.496.QQ_ ----- 11l_.421,00 

8019 0.00 0.00 

Projected Year 
Totals 

IOI 

915,333.00 - -----

183.496.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01I 

Difference % Dlff 
(Col B & 0) (E/B) 

IEl IFI 

0.00 __ 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% --- __ 0.00 - -- -------- -- 0,0Q__ 
f-- --

8021 -- 601.00 __ 601.00 0.00 
--

601 00 0,00 0.0•1 

8022 �--- -- 0.00 
f-

0.00 
- --

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

8029 
- --

0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 __Q,_Q� 

8041 63,99_!_00 _ _  63,99�Q 
f---

40,406.57 ___ 63,998.00 ___MO 0.0% 

8042 -- 2,8Q9.0Q __ 2,809,QQ_ 
f---

l_,147.80 _ _  2.809.,QQ_ 
f---

_ _  0_.Q_0_ 0.0% 

8043 -- 50.0_Q 50.0Q._ _ 0.00 -- 50.00 0.00 0.0% 

8044 630,00 630.0_Q_ __Q_,_QQ_ 630.00 0.00 0.0% 
>----- -- -

8045 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

8047 
f- - --0.00 _____Q.QQ_ 0.00 0.00 0.00 - - 0.0% 

8048 � __ 0.00 - __Q_,_QQ_ ___ 0.00 0,00 ___MO ___Q,Q% 

8070 
.,_____ 

O.OQ -- 0,QQ_ - 0.00 - - 0.00_ - __Q.OQ 0.0% 

8081 - - --- 0.00 --- __Q,.QQ_ 0.00 0.00 _ _o_.oo 0.0% 

8082 _____Q.QQ_ - - 0_,QQ_ - 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.0% 
-

8089 
--

0,00 0� - _Q,QQ_ 0.00 0,00 0.0% 

--- _1,166,917_,QQ_ - 1.166,917.00 -- __ 1i066�7�.37 _ 1,166,917.00 --- 0�QQ_ 0.0% 

8091 0,QQ__ 
-

___ o_.oo - -- 0.00 0.QQ 0,00 - 0.0% 

8091 0_,QQ_ -·--- 0.00 __Q,QQ__ - 0.00 0.00 0,0% 

8096 O.OQ 0,00 0.00 0.00 --- 0.00 0.0% 

8097 0.00 ---- ___Q_,_00 --- 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.0% 

8099 ______ 0.00 0.00 _ __ 0.00 - 0.00 _ __ 0.00 _____Q,9% 

___ 1,,.166,917.00 1 166 917� _ 1,066,379.37 1,166,917.00 0,00 � 

8110 - - Q.00 ____Q,QQ 0.00 0,00 0.00 O.Q% 

8181 
f---

114 012.00 t14,012.00 0.00 -- 111 950.00 (2062.0,Q) __:!,!!_% 

8182 
-

25 816.00 --- 2!>_,816.00 t--- 0.00 25,789.00 (27.00) _____:Q,_1% --

8220 -- 0.00_ __Q,.QQ_ 0.00 --� ___Q,9Q__ 0.00 0.0% -- f---- -----

8221 
---

__ 0.00 
f-

0,00 0.00 --- 0.00 0.00 __Q,_Q% 

8270 _ ___QJ)0 0.00 __ o_.oo --- 0.0Q_ -- 0,00 0.0% 

8280 __Q,QQ 0.00 0.00 0 00  0.00 0.0% 

8281 __QJ1Q_ 0.00 __ o_.oo 0.QQ_ - 0.00 0,0% 
---

8285 
- --

0.00 O.OQ__ - -- __Q_,QQ_ - 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

8287 0.00 0.00 0.QQ_ -- __Q,QQ 0.00 0.0% 

8290 O..,_QQ_ 
f-----

___ o_.oo 0.00 ___Q,QQ__ 0.00 __Q,Q_� 

8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.QQ_ 
>----

0.00 o.� 

�ctlon _ _  4035 __ 6290 0.00 -- 0.00 � 0.00 0.00 0,00 � 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 3 Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 

                                                                 20 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

DoscrlDtlon 

TIiie. \ii, Part A, tmm\gra�t Student 
Program 

Tille 111, Part A, English Learner 
Program 

Public Charter Schools Grant 
Program (PCSGP) 

Olher NCLB / Every Student Succeeds Act 

Career and Technical Educal\on 

All Other Federal Revanue 

�TAL, fEDERAL REVENIJE _ __

OTHER STATE REVENUE 

Other State Apportionments 

ROC/P EnllllemeAt 
Prior Years 

Special Education Master Plan 
Currant Year 

Prior Years 

All Olher State Apportionments - Currant Year 

All Olher Stale Apportionmenls - Prior Year;; 

Child Nu\ri!lon Programs 

Mandated Costs Relmbursemerits 

Lol\ery - Unre.strlcted and lnstrucllonal Materh 

Tax Rel1ef Subvenl\c;ms 
Restricted Levies - Other 

Homeowners' Exemptions 

Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 

Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 

After School Education and Safety (ASES) 

Charter School Facility Grant 

Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 
Program 

Drug/Alcot1ol{Tobacco Funds 

Californ a Clean Energy Jobs Act 

Specialized Secondary. 

American Indian Early Childhood Education 

All Other State Revenue 

TOT�, OTHE_fl ST,!ITE REVENUE 

California Dept or Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: fundl-a (Rev 04/20/2021) 

Resource Codes 

4201 

4203 

4610 

3040, 3045, 3060, 
3061, 3110, 3150, 
3155, 3180, 3182, 
31 83, 4037, 4123, 
4124, 4126, 4121, 
4128,4204,5630 

3500-3599 

All Other 

6360 

6500 

6500 

All Olher 

All Other 

6010 

6030 

6387 
6650, 6680, 6685, 

6690, 6695 

6230 

131'0 

7210 

All Other 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board Approved 
Object Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date 
Codes IAl (B) ICI 

8290 --- o_oo 
--

0.0(,l 
>---

0.00 

8290 0.00 o_oo 0,00 -- --

8290 o.oo_ -- 0.00 o_oo 

8.290 12,000.oo_ 1?_,_0QQ,00 0.0Q. 

8290 
-

0,00 ___Q,Q._O 
- _ _o.po

8290 - - 20,000 _QQ_ - 20,000.00 4,000.00 

-- 171,82� ----171,828.00 4,000.00 

8319 
- _Q,QQ_ 0.00 0.00 

8311 
-

5_2__Q,595.00 
r-

520,595.00 0.00 

8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8311 0,00 0.00 0.00 

8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8520 
-

_Q,_00 0 00 0.00 

8550 
-

1,067.00 1,067.00 3,294.0(!__ 

8560 
-

4,065.00 4,065.00 1,842,89 

8575 0.00 0,00 0.00 

8576 -- 0.00 
- -- 0.00 

8587 O.OQ_ 
t-----

0.00 0.00 

8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 - -- - - -

8590 _0.00 0,00 - -- 0.00 

8590 0,00 0.00 0,00 ---

8590 75;9Q<J.,00 --- 75,000.00 153 160.67 

8590 0.00 0 .. 00 0.00 

8590 0.00 0 00 0.00 

8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8590 -- �10,686-00 310 686,00 173 346,31 

911,413.00 911,413,00 3310643.87 

Page 4 

Projected Year 
Totals 

IOI 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

22 103,00 

159,842.00 

0.00 

520,606.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

3,500.00 
� 

4,630,00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 
1----

0.00 

- -- _Q,00 

0,00 

75,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

466,791.00 

1,070,527.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01I 

Difference ¾Dlff 
(Col B& D) (E/B) 

(El (F) 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

(12,000.00) -100.0% 

0,00 0,0% 

2 103.00 10.5% 

(11,986.00) -7.0% 

o_oo 0_ 0% 

11.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0,00 0 .0% 

0,00 0.0% 

2 433.00 228.0% 

565,00 13.9% 

0,90 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

o_oo 0.0% 

0.00 ___Q,Qo/o 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0,0% 
f----

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 O.0''!J 

156 105,00 50.2% 

159 114.00 17.5% 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 

                                                                 21 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Oescrh:itlon Resource Codes 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

Other Local Revenue 
County and District Taxes 

Other Restricted Levies 
Secured Roll 

Unsecured Roll 

Prior Years' Taxes 

Supplemental Taxes 

Non-Ad Valorem Taxes 
Parcel Taxes 

Other 

Community Redevelopment Funds 
Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 

Penalties and Interest from Delinquent Non-LCFF 
Taxes 

Sales 
Sale of EquipmenVSupplies 

Sale of Publications 

Food Service Sales 

All Other Sales 

Leases and Rentals 

Interest 

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 

Fees and Contracts 
Adult Education Fees 

Non-Resident Students 

Transportation Fees From Individuals 

lnteragency Services 

Mitigation/Developer Fees 

All Other Fees and Contracts 

Other Local Revenue 

Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%) Adjustment 

Pass-Through Revenues From Local Sources 

All Other Local Revenue 

Tuition 

All Other Transfers In 

Transfers Of Apportionments 
Special Education SELPA Transfers 

From Districts or Charter Schools 

From County Offices 

From JPAs 

ROC/P Transfers 
From Districts or Charter Schools 

From County Offices 

From JPAs 

Other Transfers of Apportionments 
From Districts or Charter Schools 

From County Offices 

From JPAs 

All Other Transfers In from All Others 

TOTAb, QTHE� LOCAL REVEl'4UE 

JQIAL,REVENUES ______ _ 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Finanofal Report/rig Software. 2021.2.0 

File: fundl-a (Rev 04120/2021) 

6500 

6500 

6500 

6360 

6360 

6360 

All Other 

All Other 

All Other 

-- -

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted 
Revenues, Expandjtures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01I 

Object 
Codes 

8615 

8616 

8617 

8618 

8621 

8622 

8625 

8629 

8631 

8632 

8634 

8639 

8650 

8660 

8662 

8671 

8672 

8675 

8677 

8681 

8689 

8691 

8697 

8699 

8710 

8781-8783 

8791 

8792 

8793 

8791 

8792 

8793 

8791 

8792 

8793 

8799 

Board Approved 
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date 

Projected Year 
Totals 

Difference 

(Col B & 0) 
IEl 

% Olff 
(E/B) 

IFI IAl IBl ICl 101 

_O,.!)O 

f----- 0.0__Q_ 

O.QQ_ 

J),00 __ 

_ _  0. 00 --

0 ,00 

0,0() 

__ o __ .o�o'-i----- o.oo 0.0% 
0.00 __ _ O._D.Q_ ,__ _Q,Q� 

0,00 ,__ __ 0,QQ_ _ 

____ 0.00 _ 

_0.Q0c..f-----

0,00 0.00 -� 

0.00 ___ __QJ)0 ,__ __ _ Q,QQ_ ----�o=.o=o ,_ 
___ 1--0=.00=1---�o=.0% 

o 09 , ______ o_.o __ o _____ o�.o�o-+- ____ _  o_.o_o_,_ ____ o.�oo--+-_�o�.o-% 

0.00 _QJ)O - 0.00 

0.00 - - ___Q,_QQ_,_ ____ 0.00 0.0% 

_____ 0.00_ 

_Q.00 

___Q_,_00 

0. 00 __ --�o ... o_o_... _____ o�.oo�,____ OJ!Cl. _o.o� 

_Q,09 _ ___ O..QQ___ __,o"'.o'""'o
+-

------=o�.o"'"o __ 0.0% 

0.00 -- -- -I- 0.00 0.0% 

_ O.0__Q_ _ __ 0.00 _0 .0Q___ ___ 0..QQ__ __ 1--o�.o .. o'-' __ Q,Q� 
___ 3(),o.Q0.00 __ 30,000.00 _19 ?6�

._ 
__ 30 ,000.00 __ __0.qQ_ _ 0.0% 

-----'O°'".0=--'0
'-+--

0.00 _____ Q.00 ____ O..,QQ,_ _ 0.00 __ 0� 

_0.0Q__
1--

0,00 

_ o'-oo _ __ o"'.o'""'o
'-+--

--- __Q,QQ_ --- ___Q,00 __ 0.0% 

__ o=,·ce-oo
=--+

--- ___,o�.o=-co __ �o.� _Q.,.!l_Q -- ___Q,Q9 
_o�·�oo�,_ _____ o,�o�o +--____ �o�.o�o .. ,_ ----�o-=oo~--�o._o-% 

,___ 368,000.0 0 --�j,_11,000.0Q. 1---- 0.00 368,000.00 __ ___Q,_0Q__
>--

0.0% 

_____ __,o;..c.oc..co-t--_ o.oo __ 0.00 1-------- 0.00 0.00 �lo 

1------� _______Q,90 1--------□�-�oo
-"---t-

----�□�.o �o-____ o=.oo __ o.o¾ 

____ 0 _,0Q___1- __ 0.00 __ _Q,Qp ______ 0,()0 0,00 0.0% 

__ __ o.QQ___ __ � __ ___ o.oo o._o _o
+-

____ o __ .�oo ,__�0 ... 0�% .. 

__§,516:!l_ __ 11500.0()__ ___ 2000.00 __11.1% 

__ 0.00 _ - - _Q_,QQ_ ____ o=-·�oo ,-- ___ o_.OQ__ __ _  o.oo 0.0•1 

____ o.,QQ_ __ ______Q,QQ_ ----�o._QQ__ _____ o�.□�o-+--____ o�·�oo __ o_.0°-! 

0.00 i--

0,00 ,_ 

0.00 0.00 
_ ___,_ __ _ 

_QQQ___ --- ___ o .. oo=-j
f------"0-".0'--'o/c-'-l

o 

0.00 

0.00 
----□=.l)Q ____ O.� ___ Oc9_()_ �� 

_______Q,90 ,_ ____ ci.00 . ..c..,,__-�o�.0�%-'-' 

__ ___ 0.OQ__
>-----

--- 0.00 ___ ____Q,QQ_ __ __ 0.QQ..
,-------

------'-0-".0�0
-+--

-�0-".0,°40 

0.00 �-- --- ---

____ 0.00 

1-----�0.QQ__� --

� 

0.00 
-- --·-

-- 0.00 - - 0.0% _ _  o_.oo _ 

!).00 ___Q,QQ_ --� _ _  o_.o _o _____ o_.9=-0 +-------'o�.o�o/c�•• 

�o�.o _o _,.. _____ o�.o_o_,_ _____ o �.oo______, _____ o _.o_o-+ 

-�o�.o �o ....... _____ o.oo_,__
____ Q,.QQ_� 0.00 

-----�o�.o_o 1------ o.oo - � ___ -----'o""'_=-oo=+-----o=--'.-=-oo,,_. _ _  0 .0% 

___ _Q.00� ____ 0000 _ ---�0=.0�0
+-

____ 0=-·�00 

-- __ji)?,500,00 __ 407,500.00 _ 

1 426805.56 _ 2,806,786.00 __ 149,128.00 __ 5,6% 

Page 5 Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 

                                                                 22 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Descrl !Ion 

CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 

Rosource Codes 

Certificated Supervisors' and Adminislrators' Salaries 

Other Certificated Salaries 

JO'rAL, CERTIFICATED SALARJES 

CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

Classified Instructional Salaries 

Classified Support Salaries 

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 

Other Classified Salaries 

J:Q1ALc....CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

STRS 

PERS 

OAS DI/Medicare/Alternative 

Health and Welfare Benefits 

Unemployment Insurance 

Workers' Compensation 

OPEB, Allocaled 

OPEB, Active Employees 

Olher Employee Benefits 

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 

Books and Other Reference Materials 

Materials and Supplies 

Noncapitalized Equipment 

Food 

TOTAi,, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 

Subagreements for Services 

Travel and Conferences 

Dues and Memberships 

Insurance 

Operations and Housekeeping Services 

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 

Transfers of Direct Costs 

Transfers of Direct Costs - lnterfund 

Professional/Consulting Services and 
Operating Expenditures 

Communications 

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER 
_QPERATING EXPlc:N_DITU_RE� _______ 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Object 
Codes 

1100 

1200 

1300 

1900 

2100 

2200 

2300 

j Board Approved 
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date 

A B C 

__ 3_16,343.,QQ__ 316,343.00 164 3�.62 

�.444.00 ?§,444.00 ___ 20,086.81 

_ . ---- 207,315.00 ___ 207,315.00 1't9 451,'!.Q 

0.00 0.00 - -- __ 0.00 

_580,102.00 _ 5!!Q,!O.!.00 - - 303,930.83 

_1§9607.00 1_6.Q&_0UJQ _ __ 62 774.54 

_ _  40 ,910.00 40.910.00 41.J?_Q,()6_ 

__ 207,800.00 ___1Ql,l?�-0O ------ 7_M09.00 _ 

Projected Year 
Totals 

404 002.00 

52,489.00 

214,355.00 ---

0,00 

____§ZQ.,M_6.0_0 

158.205.00 

90 304.00 -

___ 1�6,226,00 

2400 150 609.00 150,609.00 __ 95,679.1�_ -- _ 181,294.00_ 

2900 19.752.00 __ 1,784.00_ ------- 19 752pq 
579,

i
?H!l 

3101-3102 160.406.00 160.406.00 50.846.55 179.256.00 

3201-3202 122,318.00 122,318.00 63,736.52 131 792.00 

3301-3302 ___ 53,214.00 53,214.00 - - 25,918.91 55,551.00 

3401-3402 �.718.00 18_0..1?.1�QQ --- 125,-t,1 Q_.1_Q_ 25�.171,00 

3501-3502 13.877.00 13,8TT.0O __ 3,022_.23 

3601-3602 ��931,00 -- 45,931 00 20 555.30 ___ 44,801.00 

3701-3702 __ 0.00 0.00 __ 0.00 0.00 

3751-3752 0.0\) 0,00 � 0.00 

3901-3902 15,689.00 15,689.00 15,688.50 15_,_689.00 

59?_, 1 53.00 - -�.9?,153.0Q_ 
--

305,183,11 693,300.00 

4100 --- 1.001.00 -- .. 1,001.00_ 0.00 4 773,QO 

4200 
----

0.00 0
_.

Q_Q 0.00 0.00 

4300 �7.J!l,<J0 64,791.00 22,957J_ 5_ ___ 89, 173.00 

4400 9 414.00 ___ 9,414.00 0.00 25 954.00 

4700 0.(!9 0,00 0.00 0.00 

75 206.00 75 206.00 22 957.15 119 900.00 

5100 40 000.00 40,000.00 0.00 40,000. 00 

5200 14 500.00 -- ·- 14,500.00 ___ 7,882.02 60 358.00 

5300 �41.00 16,941_.oo 17 764.06 19,058.00 

5400-5450 16 000.00 _ 1 �.000.00 _ ____1ZJ61 . 50 __ _  15,000.00 

5500 M,500.00 14,500.00 �09 14,500 00 

5600 2,500.00 ___ 2,500.00 309.74 2 500.00 

5710 ocoo ocoo 0.00 0.00 

5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

5800 406 479.00 406,479.00 133 721.58 587 617.00 

5900 10,500.00 __ 1_0,500.00 8,982.78 14 000.00 

520,420 .00 520,1_20.00 187,853.77 753,033.00 

Page 6 

46 1 0462 0000000 

Form 01I 

Difference 

(Col B & D) 
E 

(87,659.00 

__ 3,�55.00 

_(I.040.00) 

-- ___Q,QQ__ 

__ (!l.Q,?44.0Q) 

___ 2,402.00 

(4�L394.00) 

_ __ 51,574,00 

30,685.00 

0.00 

(26103.0Q) 

�.00 

_Q,QQ_ 

___ _Q;Q9 

0.00 

-- __ l101,147·.00) 

(�772.00 

0.00 

24.382.00) 

(16,540.00) 

0,00 

0.00 

_(45 B5�.,_QQ) 
(2,117.00) 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

_ _  (1!!_1, 1�.00 

3,500_00 

232,613.00 

-27.7% 

7.0% 

�·� 

0.0% 

-15,6% 

1.5% 

-120 ,7% 

24.8% 

-20,4% 

__o_.0% 

-4.5% 

49.3% 

__ 2.5% 

____Qi>% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

-17.1% 

-376.8%

0.0% 

-37.6%

__:1l§.J% 

__Q,9% 

-59.4% 

0.0% 

-316.3% 

-12.5°& 

____Qi>% 

_____QJ1_% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

-44.6% 

__ -33.3% 

-44.7% 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 
                                                                 23 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

4 6 10462 0000000 
Form 011 

Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Dlff 
Object Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (Col B & D) (E/B) 

1-=Dc::e-=-sc'°'r"'lo=1t'-'lo"'n'--------------'-R.:.:o;.;;s-=.ou::::rc=c-=-e..:C:.::o-=-d-=-os"-_C"-o"'d::.:e:.::s'---l-----"(.A01,l __ �----"CIB::ll;,,...___--1 _ __ ,l.:::•CL-l--1-----'(-=10"-11 __ -+-__ _.(=-E)---+---'(B_ 
CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Land 

Land Improvements 

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 

Books and Media for New School Libraries 
or Major Expansion of School Libraries 

Equipment 

Equipment Replacement 

Lease Assets 

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY ____ _ 

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

Tuition 
Tuition for Instruction Under lnterdistrict 
Attendance Agreements 

State Special Schools 

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments 
Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 

Payments to County Offices 

Payments to JPAs 

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues 
To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Offices 

To JPAs 

Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments 
To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 

To County Offices 

To JPAs 

ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments 
To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Offices 

To JPAs 

Other Transfers of Apportionments 

All Other Transfers 

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 

Debt Service 
Debt Service - Interest 

Other Debt Service - Principal 

6500 

6500 

6360 

6360 

6360 

All Other 

..l_OTAL.,_OTHER ourgo (excludlf!g Transfers of Indirect Costs 

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 

Transfers of Indirect Costs 

Transfers or Indirect Costs - lnterfund 

6100 

6170 

6200 

6300 

6 400 

6500 

6600 

7110 

7130 

7141 

71 42 

71 43 

7211 

7212 

7213 

7221 

7222 

7223 

7221 

7222 

7223 

0.00 - -- O.OQ__ ---- O_},)Q _ --- 0.0_Q__ 
,- _____ O.OQ_ _ �

-

� 

>---

-

-

--

_ _  0.QQ__ 

__ o.�_ 

_ _  O.OQ__ _ 

20,000.00 

-- o.oq_ 
--

__ o_.oo O.OQ._ � 0.00 0 ,0"& 

__ _  Q.00 0.00 0.00 � 0.00 0.0•1 

0.00 e----__ 0.00 ____Q,QQ_ ___ _ '1cQQ__ 0 .0% 

20,000.00 --- 2°'4"-',0=3-=-6=.8�1
-t-

--�2§.000.00 _ 

16 000.00 ----�o=.o=o
-; - ___ 15,000.00 

6 QOO..,,qQ) _ -30.0% 

___ 0.00_ � 0.0% 

_ _  o.oo_ _ _ _ _  o_.oo � ____Q,QQ__ -- _Q_,_QQ__ 0 .00 0.0% 

25,000.00 

0.00 
--

�, 4 28 ,QQ_ -

- 0.QQ__ 

---� 

35_,000,00 ___ 24�,0�36�.8_1
-+-

___ 41.0� _ _ 6 000.00)
>---

·17,1% 

25,000.00_ __ ___Q,@ -- 25,000.00 O . .QQ_ � 0.0% 

-- 0.00 -- __Q,,Q0 
-- __Q,Q9 --- O.,QQ.. r-- 0.1)% 

24_,428.00_ - -- 0,00 �4428,9Q 
-

_Q,QQ_ 0.0% 

---0,00 - - ___ 0.00_ - - ___Qj)O -- � _Q,_0% 

---
O.QQ__ 
- -- 0.00 - __Q,,Q0 - -- _Q,QQ_ _ _Q,_0% 

0 .00 1----- -0 .00 o.oo 1-----------' - -- __Q,Q_O 0.00 0.0% 

1------0.00
+-

____ o,99 _ __ O,.QQ__ 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

__ o,oo _____ o.oo _ 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.0% 
-- -

0.00 0.00 0.00 �-- Q,QQ__ 
-- _Q,QQ_ _0.,2% 

-·

---

0 ,00 

0.00 

'-+------o .. -"o-=-o+-----� 
C.-j-,--- -�0 .00 _ � 

O,QO 
f----- _Q,QQ 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 

__ 0.00 -- ___Q,QO i- --� 

__QRO 

_Q,QQ__ ___ 0�- _ __ 0.00 ___Q.0� 

__ 0.00 --

_Q,00 

o:.::.o-=-o-+-----=o.Qo 1---�o �.o'--'0;.-'l. 

__ 0,0Q_ ---- __Q,QQ_
f-

--- 0.QQ.� ___ 0.00 __ o.o� 

7221-7223 ___ � ___ 0.00 �-- O.QQ__
f-

___ O.OQ >---- __ O,Qg _ ___Qj)% 

7281-7283 _ Q;_QQ__ --- � _ --- 0.00_.,_ ___ 0.00 >- 0.00 ___Q,Q% 

7299 ____ 0.0(? ___ __Q_,Q_O ___ ___Q,_Q_O 0.00 0,00 _ 0� 

7438 

7 4 39 

7310 

7350 

--- ____Q,_QO _____Q&O __Q,_QQ_ ... __ _ o�>--
-- 0.00+---=0.:.:.0c,'¼-=,• 

- -- Q,QQ_ O.RQ. _ _ __ 0.00 f-----�0=.00 0.00 

1 ____ --'o"'•.00=--i- __ o,.,_,.o'-"o-+----�o .oo f-----�o=.oo 1-----'----1 
1------0".o=o

c+-
__ __ _,o.oo o.oo _____ o�·�oo

-'-+ 
_____ o�·�o�o+-_..Q.� 

TQ..!f'..!,_ OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COS=-T'--'S�--- --1------0.00 0.00 ,---- �00 0.00 0.00 O.O"t! 

.IQTAL, EXPEf:!Qffl,f�R_ES _____________ _ 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: fundl-a (Rev 04/20/2021) 

--�-�2.A31 8�7.00 ,1-1,.431 987.00 

Page 7 

1121,928:§.__ 2 933 28_§.0Q. __ 501,301.0Q) -20.6% 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 

                                                                 24 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

From: Special Reserve Fund 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers In 

Resource Codos 

@l TOTAL, INTERFUND. TRANSFERS IN _________ -- -

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

To: Child Development Fund 

To: Special Reserve Fund 

To: State School Building Fund/ 
County School Facilities Fund 

To: Cafeteria Fund 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers Out 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balance 

Board Approved 
Object Original Budget Operating Budget 
Codes {Al (Bl 

8912 --- _Q.OQ_ 
�

0.00 

8919 __ 20,J�.oo -- 20,331.00 

2Q,331.00 -- 20,331.00 

7611 ___ 0.00 ____ Cl.CO 

7612 �--__Q,00 - 0.00 

7613 -- _o.oo - -- O.QQ__ 
7616 -- _Q.QO 

f- __ o,OQ_ 

7619 -- ____Q,_Q_O � - 0.00 

0.00 

Projected Year 
Actuals To Date Totals 

(Cl IOI 

- -0.00 - -- o,_QQ_ 

-- ____JU)O ---58 276.00

--- ____Q,QQ__ ---�ill!tQQ

0,00 Q,_QQ_ 

- --O.OQ.. 
--- 9.00 

- - 0,00 _ -- 0.00 

- __ O.QQ__ 
f-

0:!1Q__ 

--- __ 0.(19 0,00 

0.00 b TOTAL.J!'!fE_RFLiND Tf¥1NSFERS OUT ----- _____ O.QO_ ,_ __ 0.0(!_ 
f---- -

OTHER SOURCES/USES 

SOURCES 
State Apportionments 
Emergency Apportionments 8931 __ 0.09 _ ___ Q})O O.O_Q._ 0.00 -- ,__ __ 

Proceeds 

Proceeds from Disposal of 
Capital Assels 8953 --- �.QO ____ 0.00 --- __ 0.00 -- __ 0.00 

Other Sources 
County School Bldg Aid 8961 -- _Q,90 0.00_ 

>----
__ o_.oo -- 0.00 

Transfers from Funds of 
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 -- 0.00 -- 0.00 0.00 ___Q,_00 

Long-Term Debt Proceeds 
Proceeds from Certificates 
of Participation 8971 --- _fil!O 0.00 ___ __Q,_00 0.00 

Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 --- _0 • .Q9 --- 0.00 -- 0.00 

Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 ,___ 0.00 -- ___Q,QQ_ 0.00 0.00 

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

_('e}_TOT t',1,,,..J�OURCES O,QQ.__ o.oo O.OQ_ 
- - --0.00 - - ----

USES 

Transfers of Funds from 
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

All Other Financing Uses 7699 -- 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form01I 

Difference % Dlff 
(ColB&D) (E/B) 

!El IFI 

- ___ o_.oo 0.0% 

-- 37,945.00 186.6% ·-

--
37 945.00 186.6% 

--- Q.QQ. �0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

--� - 0.0% 

--· -- Cl.OQ. __ Q�

0.00 0.0% --

f--
__ o_.oo --O.Q.� 

0.00 0.0% --

0.00 __Q.,Q� 

0,00 0.0% 

-- __Q,QQ... __Q,_Qo/o 

0.00 �-0� 

0.00 ___Q,Q% 

..Q,Q9_ ,_ 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 __ 0.0% .. �.-

o.oo 0.0% 

- -- � � 0.0% 

(d)_TOTAI,,. USES 0.00 
-�

_____Q;.QO 0.00 --- J1,.Q9_ ,.._ ___ o.oo 0.0% 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 

�) ]JlTAL, QQN_!�IBUJl\)NS 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 
ta· b + c • d + el 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software -2021.2.0 
File: fundl-a (Rev 04/20/2021) 

8980 

8990 

-- -

-- __ 0._1)0 

0.00 
-----

-- _Q.00 -

20,331.00 

Page 8 

o.oo· 

O,O.Q. 

-- 0.00_ 

20 331.00 

0.00 - -

�--0,Q_Q 

_____ 0.00 

0.00 

r-
O.QO 

i---
__ 0.00 

0.00 0.00 I ....___Q,Q__o/o

58 276.00 137,945.00) 186.6% 

Printed: 3 /212022 11 :36 AM 

                                                                 25 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Resource 

Total, Restricted Balance 

California Dept of Education 

Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail 

Descri tion 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/24/2012) Page 1 

2021-22 

Pro·ected Year Totals 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 011 

0.00 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 
                                                                 26 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

DoSorii,Uon 

A,, REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other Slale Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

51 TOTAL REVENUES 

B. EXPENDITURES 

1) Certilicaled Salaries 

2) Classified Salaries 

3) Employee Benefils 

4) Books and Supplies 

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6) Capital Oullay 

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 
Costs) 

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 

91 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES IAS • 89) 

0, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) lnterfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

41 TOTAi. OTHER FlNANCINC:: ""' 1Rr.E$/USES 

Calirornla Dept or Education 
SACS Financial Repor1ing Software - 2021 2 O 
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/19/2021) 

2021-22 Second Interim 
Adult Education Fund 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Resource Codes Obiect Codes 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8800-8799 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6999 

7100-7299, 
7400-7499 

7300-7399 

8900-8929 

7600-7629 

8930-8979 

7630-7899 

8980-8999 

Original Budget 
!Al 

0 .00 

0.00 

234 200.00 

0.00 

234200,00 

tot 715.oo 

3 143,00 

42 881,00 

27 700.00 

38 800.00 

12 990 00 

0.00 

0 00 

227 229 00 

6 971 00 

0 00 

6 971.00 

0.00 

0 00 

0 00 

16 971 OOl 

Page 1 

Board Approved 
Operating Budget 

!Bl 

0 00 

0 00  

234.200.00 

0.00 

234 200,00 

101 715 00 

3,143.00 

42 881,00 

27 700.00 

38 800.00 

12.990.00 

0,00 

0.00 

227 229.00 

6 971.00 

0 00 

6 971.00 

0.00 

0.00 

000 

(6 971 00) 

Actuals To Date 

!Cl 

0.00 

0.00 

63 488.00 

2 402.00 

6.5 890 00 

74 924.84 

13 010.71 

27 782,37 

14 236 96 

22 029 34 

6 500.00 

0.00 

0.00 

158 48422 

192 594 22 

0 00 

0 00 

0.00 

0.00 

0 00 

0 00 

Projected Year 
Totals 

!DI 

0 00 

31.025.00 

288 039.00 

2 700.00 

319 764 00 

177 514..DO 

30 843.00 

88.197.00 

63 357.00 

40 900.00 

49 064,00 

0.00 

0.00 

429 875.00 

1110 111 00 

0 00 

12 276_00 

0.00 

0 .00 

0.00 

(12 276.00\ 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 111 

%Dlff 
Difference Column 
(Col 8 & D) B&D 

!El IFl 

0,00 0 0% 

31025.00 New 

51 839.00 22.1% 

2.700.00 New 

(75 799.00\ •H.5% 

127 700.00\ -881.3% 

(25 316.001 -59.0% 

(35 657 00} -12a1% 

(2 100.00) -SA% 

(36 074,00 -277.7% 

0.00 0.0% 

o_oo 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

(5 305 00\ -76_1%, 

0,00 0.0% 

0 00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Prinled: 3/2/2022 11 :36 Afl, 

                                                                 27 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

DescrlnUon 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE IC+ D41 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 
a) As of July 1 • Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 • Audited (F1a + F1b) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 
a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Ca.sh 

Siores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 
c) Cammi.tied 

Stabilizallon Arrangements 

Other Commitments 
d) Assigned 

Other Assignments 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unnssinnod/Urmnnmnrlaled Amaunl 

Calltonu• Oepl of 6"01,catK>n 
�ACS Fln:andar Re�ung Softw.ne. 2021.2 O 
Flht fUMlrb j�cY 03'lC'2�ll 

2021-22 Second Interim 
Adult Education Fund 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board Approved 
Origin�! Budge! Operating Budget ActuoJ1 To Date 

R.osourco Codo!. Oblnct Codo IA\ IBI (Cl 

0.00 000 192.594.221 

9791 0,00 0.00 

9793 0.00 0.0.0 

0.00 0,00 

9795 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

9711 0.00· 0.00 

9712 0.00 0.00 

9713 0.00 0 .00 

9719 0.00 0,00 

9740 0.00 0.00 

9750 0,00 0.00 

9780 0.00 0,00 

9780 0,00 0.00 

9789 0,00 0.00 

9790· 0. 00 0,00 

P■ge2 

Projected Year 
Totali 

ID) 

!122.387 ,001 

122.367.00 

0.00 

122 387.00 

0.00 

122 387.00 

0.00 

o:oo 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 111 

o/o Dlff 

Difference Column 
(ColB.&D) B&D 

(El 11'1 

122387.00 New 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11:38 AM 

                                                                 28 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Oescrlotlon 

LCFF SOURCES 

LCFF Transfers 

LCFF Transfers - Current Year 

LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 

TOTAL LCFF SOURCES 

FEDERAL REVENUE 

lnleragency Contracts Between LEAs 

Pass-Through Revenues From Federal Sources 

Career and Technical Education 

All Other Federal Revenue 

TOTAL FEDERAL REVENUE 

OTHER STATE REVENUE 

Other Slate Apportionmenls 

All Other Stale Apportionments• Current Year 

All Olher Stale Apportionments - Prior Years 

Pass-Through Revenues from Stale Sources 

Adult Education ProQram 

All Other Stale Revenue 

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

Sales 

Sala of EquipmanVSupplias 

Leases and Rentals 

Interest 

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 

Fees and Contracts 

Adult Educalion Fees 

lnteragency Services 

Other Local Revenue 

All Other Local Revenue 

Tuition 

TOTAL OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

TOTAL REVENUES 

California Depl ol Educalion 
SACS Financial Reporting Software• 2021.2.0 
FIie: rundl·b {Rev 03/1912021) 

2021-22 Second Interim 
Adult Education Fund 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board Approved 
Original Budget Operating Budget 

Resource Codes Oblact CDdes IAI !Bl 

8091 0.00 0.00 

8099 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

8285 0 00 0 00 

8287 0.00 0,00 

3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 

All Other 8290 0,00 0.00 

0 00 0.00 

8311 0,00 0.00 

8319 0.00 0.00 

8587 0.00 0.00 

8391 8590 229,000,00 229 000.00 

All Other 8590 5 200.00 5 200,00 

234 200.00 234 200.00 

8631 0 .00 0.00 

8650 0 00 o_oo 

8660 0 00 0 00 

8662 0.00 0 00 

8671 0.00 0.00 

8677 0.00 0.00 

8699 0.00 0.00 

8710 0.00 0 .00 

0.00 0 .00 

234 200.00 234 200.00 

Page 3 

Projected Year 
Actuals To Date Totals 

ICI IOI 

0 00 0.00 

0 .00 0 00 

0.00 0 00 

0.00 0.00 

0,00 0 00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 31 025.00 

0 .00 31 025.00 

0 .00 0.00 

0,00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

63 488.00 280 839.00 

0 00 5 200.00 

63 488.00 286 039 00 

0.00 0 00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0,00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0,00 

2 402.00 2 700.00 

0.00 0,00 

2 402.00 2.700.00 

65 890.00 319 764.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 111 

%Dirt 
Difference Column 
(Col B & D) B&D 

IE.I IFI 

0.00 0.0% 

0,00 0.0% 

0,00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0 0% 

0.00 0.0% 

31 025,00 Nev. 

31 025.00 New 

0.00 0 0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0 0% 

51 839.00 22 8% 

0.00 0.0% 

51 839.00 22.1% 

0 00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0 .00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0 00 0.0% 

0 00 0.0% 

2 700.00 New 

0 00 0.0% 

2 700,00 New 

Printed: 312f.l022 11:36 AM 

                                                                 29 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Oo11crlotlon 

CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

Certificaled Teachers' Salaries 

Certificaled Pupil Support Salaries 

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 

Other Certificated Salaries 

TOTAL CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

Classlfied lnslruclional Salaries 

Classified Support Salaries 

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 

Clerical. Technical and Office Salaries 

Other Classified Salaries 

TOTAi. CLASSIFIED SAU.RIES 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

STRS 

PERS 

OAS DI/Medicare/Alternative 

Heallh and Welfare Benefits 

Unemployment Insurance 

Workers' Compensation 

OPES, Allocated 

OPEB, Aclive Employees 

Olher Employee Benefits 

TOTAi EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 

Books and Other Reference Materials 

Materials and Supplies 

Noncapitalized Equipment 

TOTAL. BOOKSANO SUPPUES 

Calilornia Depl ol Education 
SACS Financial f�09f.li'lli1g Software - 2021 2 0 
File: 1undi-b (Rev Olt1Df2i)21) 

2021-22 Second Interim 
Adult Education Fund 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board Approved 
Original Budget Oporotlng Budget Actuals To Date 

RHource Codes Obloct Codas !Al 181 ICl 

1100 0.00 0.00 14 398.71 

1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1300 101 ·11s.oo· 101115.00 l?,0626.13 

1 900 0.00 0.00 0.00 

101716.00 101 715.00 74 92Hl4 

2100 0.00 0.00 o _oo 

2200 3143.00 3143 00 0 00  

2300 0.00 0 00 0.00 

2400 0.00 0.00 13.010.71 

2900 0.00 0,00 0.00 

3143.00 3,143.00 13010,71 

3101-3102 22 410,00 22 410.00 11 066.52 

3201-3202 720.1)0 720.00 2 980.74 

3301-3302 1 716.00 1 716.00 2,664.69 

3401-3402 12767.00 12 757.00 7 468.30 

3501-3502 1290.00 1 290.00 439.70 

3601-3602 3978.00 a91aoo 3142.42 

3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 

3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 

3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 

42,881.00 42.881.00 27 782.37 

4100 8,500.00 8500.00 2 700.47 

4200 0.00 0.00 0,00 

4300 16.000.00 18,000.00 1 949.99 

4400 5:!00.00 5 200.00 9 490.50 

27 700.00 27 700,00 14 236.96 

Page4 

Projected Year 
Totals 

IOI 

73.755,00 

0.00 

105 759,00 

0.00 

ITT 514.00 

2 842.00 

1326.00 

0.00 

26675,00 

0.00 

30 843.00 

34 575.00 

7 066.00 

5,175.00 

12 893.00 

1 042.00 

7.446.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

68 197.00 

6,500.00 

0.00 

38136.00 

18 721.00 

63 357.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 111 

%Dlff 
Difference Column 
(Col 8 & D) B&D 

IEI rFI 

f73 755.00I New 

0,00 0.0% 

12-044,001 -2.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

(75 799.001 -74.5'11, 

12,842,00• New 

1.817,00 57.8% 

0.00 0.0% 

1213,675,00\ New 

0.00 0.0% 

127 700.00 -001.3% 

112 166001 -54.3% 

/8 346.00 -1181.4% 

[3 459.00) ·201.6% 

1126.001 -1.0% 

248.00 19.2% 

13468.0'0) -87,2% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

125 316.001 -59.0% 

0.00 0,0'1!, 

0.00 0.0% 

122 138.001 -136.4% 

113 52.1.001 -260,0% 

135 657.00' -128.791, 

Printed: 3/212022 11:36AM 

                                                                 30 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

2021-22 Second Interim 
Adult Education Fund 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board Approved 
Original Budget Operating Budget 

Ooscr1ouon Resource Codes Oblact Codes IAI IBI 

SERVICES ANO OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 

Subogro-ements for Services 

T,-avel nnd Conforonoos 

Duos and Momt>ersl11P• 

Insurance 

Operations and Housekeeping Services 

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitelized Improvements 

Transfers of Direct Costs 

Transfers of Direct Costs - lnterfund 

Professional/Consulting Services end 
Operating Expenditures 

Communications 

TOTAL SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Land 

Land Improvements 

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 

Equipment 

Equipment Replacement 

Lease Assets 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers or Indirect Costs) 

Tuition 

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Paymenls 
Payments lo Districts or Charter Schools 

Payments to County ONices 

Payments Lo JPAs 

Other Transfers Out 

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues 
To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Offices 

To JPAs 

Debl Service 

Debt Service - Interest 

Other Debi Service - Principal 

TOTAL. OTHER OUTGO !excludina Transfers of Indirect Coslsl 

OTHER OUTGO • TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 

Transfers or Indirect Casis - lnterfund 

TOTAL OTHER OUTGO· TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 

TOTAi EXPENDITURES 

California Oepl or Education 
SACS Finanm.l Rit;W.1t1ino Sortware - 2021 2 O 
File: fundl-b lRIPW'G::Y19/'2021) 

5100 0.00 0 .00 

5200 7 500 00 7 500 00 

5300 1 500.00 1 500 00 

5400-5450 0 00 0.00 

5500 4 200 00 4.200_00 

5600 2,500.00 2 500.00 

5710 0.00 000 

5750 0 00 0.00 

5800 18 100.00 18 100 00 

5900 5,000.00 5 000.00 

3B 800 00 38.800.00 

6100 0,00 0.00 

6170 0 00 0.00 

6200 6 380 00 6 380 00 

6400 6 610.00 6 610 00 

6500 0.00 0.00 

6600 0.00 0 00 

12..990.00 12 990 00 

7141 0.00 0 00 

7142 0.00 0.00 

7143 0.00 0 00 

7211 0,00 0,00 

7212 0 .00 0.00 

7213 0,00 0.00 

7438 0 00 0.00 

7439 0,00 0 .00 

0,00 0.00 

7350 0.00 0 .00 

0.00 D.00 

227 229 00 227 229,00 

Page 5 

Actuals To Date 
ICI 

0. 00 

925.93 

1.183.40 

0 00 

f577.52l 

840.80 

o_oo 

0.00 

19 451 71 

205 02 

22 029.34 

o.oo 

0 00 

6 500 00 

0 .00 

0 00 

o_oo 

6 500_00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

000 

0.00 

0 00 

0.00 

0 00 

0,00 

0 .00 

158 484.22 

Projected Year 
Totals 

101 

0.00 

7 500.00 

1 500.00 

o.oo 

4200 00 

2 600 00 

0.00 

0.00 

23 800 00 

1 500.00 

40 900 .00 

0 00 

0.00 

6 50000 

42,564.00 

0.00 

0.00 

49,064 00 

0 00 

0.00 

0 00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.0.0 

0 00 

0.00 

0 00 

0 00 

429 875.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 111 

%Dlff 
Dif ference Column 
(Col B & D) B&D 

IE\ IF\ 

0 00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 QC% 

0,00 0.0% 

0.00 0,0% 

(100.001 -4.0% 

000 0 .0% 

0.00 0 0% 

15 500 001 -30 4% 

3 500.00 70 0% 

(2100.00l -54% 

0.00 0.0% 

0 00 0 0% 

1120.00 -1.9% 

(35 954.00 -543.9% 

0 00 0 .0% 

o.oo 0 .0% 

(36 074 00 -'2J7.7% 

0.00 0.0% 

o.oo 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

o.oo 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0,00 0.0% 

0.00 0,0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0,0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 3/2/2022 t 1:36 AM 

                                                                 31 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Dascrintlon 

INTERFUNO TRANSFERS 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers In 

/el TOTAL INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

To: Stale School Building Fund/ 
County School Facilities Fund 

Other Aulhorized lnlerfund Transfers Oul 

!bl TOTAL INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

OTHER SOURCES/USES 

SOURCES 

Long-Term Debt Proceeds 

Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 

Proceeds from Leases 

All Other Financing Sources 

{cl IOTAL, SOURCES 

USES 

All Other Financing Uses 

{di TOTAL, USES 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 

fe1TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 
(a - b + c · d + e) 

Callrorola Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Repo,rtihg Software - 2021 2 0 
File: fundi-b (Rev 0311(1)']021) 

2021-22 Second Interim 
Adult Education Fund 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Board Approved 
Original Budget Oporntlng Budget 

Rasoumo Codes Oblect Codo• (Al IBI 

8919 o.oo 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

7613 0,00 0.00 

7619 6 971.00 6871.00 

6 971.00 6971.00 

8971 0,00 0,00 

8972 0.00 0.00 

8979 000 0,00 

0.00 0.00 

7699 0,00 0,00 

0.00 ·o.oo

8980 0,00 0.00 

8990 0.00 0,00 

0,00 0.00 

(6,971,00) (6,971 00) 

Pege6 

Projected Year 
Actuals To Date Totals 

IC! IOI 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

a.ob 12.276,00 

0.00 12.276.00 

0,00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0,00 

0.00 (12,278,00) 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 111 

%Dirt 
Difference Column 
(Col B & D) B&D 

IEl !Fl 

0.00 0.""' 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

IS 305.001 -761% 

15 305,001 -76.1% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 Q_Q'll, 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0,00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0,0% 

o _oo o.oix.

Printed: 3/212022 11:36 AM 

                                                                 32 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Resource Descri tion 

Total, Restricted Balance 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: fundl-b (Rev 04/30/2012) 

Second Interim 
Adult Education Fund 

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail 

Page 1 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 111 

2021/22 

Pro·ected Year Totals 

0.00 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 
                                                                 33 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Doscription 

A.REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other Slate Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

5l TOTAL REVEN I tia<> 

B. EXPENDITURES 

1) Certiricaled Salaries 

2) Classified Salaries 

3) Employee Beneflls 

4) Books and Supplies 

5) Services and Olher Operating Expenditures 

6) Capital Outlay 

7) Other Oulgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 
Costs) 

8) Other Oulgo • Transfers of Indirect Costs 

91 TOTAL. l"XPENDITURES 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES IA5 - B9l 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) lnterfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Conlributions 

41 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOUR.CES/USES 

Californla Dept or Education 
SACS Financial A.oportlng Software - 2021.2.0 
File: fundi-b (Rev 03110/2021) 

2021-22 Second Interim 
Forest Reserve Fund 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Resource Codes Oblect Codas 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6999 

7100-7299, 
7400-7499 

7300-7399 

8900-8929 

7600-7629 

8930-8979 

7630-7699 

8980-8999 

Original Budget 
(Al 

0.00 

93 360.00 

0,00 

0,00 

93 360.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

80 000.00 

0 .00 

80 000.00 

13 360 00 

0.00 

13 360.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

<13 360.001_ 

Page 1 

Board Approved 
Operating Budget Actuals To Date 

!Bl !Cl 

0.00 0,00 

93,360.00 0.00 

0.00 0 00 

0.00 0 00 

gs s50_00 0.00 

0 00 0.00 

0 00 0.00 

0 00 0 00 

O DD 0 00  

0.00 0 00 

0.00 0.00 

80 000.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

80 000.00 □.□□ 

13 360 00 0.00 

0 00 0.00 

13 360.00 0.00 

0 00 0 00 

0.00 0.00 

ODO 0.00 

'13 360.001 0 .00 

Projected Year 
Totals 

!DI 

0 .00 

308 000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

308 000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0..00 

0.00 

262 000 00 

000 

262 000.00 

46 000.00 

0.00 

46 ODO.OD 

0,00 

0..00 

ODO 

146 000.001 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 161 

%Dlff 
Difference Column 
(Col B & D) B&D 

IEI !Fl 

0.00 0.0% 

214 640 00 229..9% 

0 00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0,0% 

000 00% 

0.00 0.0% 

000 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

1182 000.00 -227 5% 

0 00 0.0% 

0,00 0.0% 

132.640.00 -244.3% 

0 00 O.O'lo 

0,00 0.0% 

0.00 0 .0% 

Printed: 312'2022 11:36AM 

                                                                 34 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Oo110rlntloi1 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE IC + 041 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 
a) As cif July 1 - Unaudiled 

b) Audit Adjuslments 

c) As of July 1 • Audited (F1a + F1b) 

d) Olher Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 
a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

States 

Prepaid Items 

All Olhers 

b) Restrtcted 
c) Committed 

Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitmenls 
d) Assigned 

Olher Assignments 

·e) Unassigned/Unappropnated 

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unas:sianedJUnaooronnalen Amount 

Californla Oept of Educallon 
SACS Fln1nclal Repor11ng Software - 2021.2 0 
FIie: fUndi,.b (R� 03/1912021) 

2021-22 Second Interim 
Forest Reserve Fund 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balance 

eonld Approved 
Original Budget OporaUnQ Budgot 

Ra•ourc.e. Codes Oblect CodBB fAI fBI 

0 00 0.00 

9791 0.0 0 0 00 

9793 0.00 000 

D.00 0.00 

9795 0,0 0 000 

000 0.00 

000 o.oo

9711 0.00 000 

9712 0,00 0.00 

9713 0,00 0.00 

9719 0.00 0.00 

9740 0.00 O.QO 

9750 o.oo o.oo

9760 0, 00 0.00 

9760 0,00 0,00 

976 9 0 00 0.00 

9790 0.00 0.00 

Projected Year 
Actuals To Data Total• 

fCl (01 

0.00 0.00 

0 00 

0 00 

0.00 

0.0 0  

0.00 

0.00 

0.00• 

0.00 

0..00 

0,00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

0,0 0  

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 161 

%Dlff 
Differonca Column 
(ColB&D) B&D 

fEl (Fl 

000 0.0% 

0 .0 0  00% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 3f.2/2022 11:36 NA 

                                                                 35 of 94



2021-22 Second Interim 
Forest Reserve Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Do5crlotlon Resource Codes 

FEDERAL REVENUE 

Foresl Reserve Funds 

Pass-Through Revenues From Federal Sources 

TOTAL FEDERAL REVENUE 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

Interest 

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 

TOTAL OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

TOTAL REVENUES 

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

Other Transfers Out 

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues 

To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Offices 

To JPAs 

All Other Transfers 

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 

TOTAL OTHER OUTGO (excludlno Transfers ol lodimct Costs) 

ITOTAL EXPENDITI '"ES 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

Other Authorized lnlerfund Transfers In 

/al T01'Al INTERl'UND TRANSFERS IN 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers Out 

Cbl 1'0TAL INTERFUNO TRANSFERS OUT 

Calirornla Dept or Education 
SACS Financial Repo11'ing Sortware • 2021 2,0 
File: fundi-b (Rev 0�11.012021) 

Oblect Codes 

8260 

8267 

8660 

8662 

7211 

7212 

7213 

7281-7283 

7299 

8919 

7619 

Original Budget 
(Al 

13 360.00 

80 000 00 

93 360,00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

93 360 00 

80 000 00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

0 00 

80 000.00 

80 000.00 

0.00 

0,00 

13 360.00 

13,360~00 

Page 3 

Board Approved 
Operating Budget 

(Bl 

13 360,00 

60 000.00 

93360.00 

0 00 

0 00 

0 00 

93 360 00 

80 000,00 

0.00 

0..00 

0.00 

0.00 

80 000.00 

80 000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

13 360.00 

13 360.00 

Actuals To Date 
(Cl 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0 00 

0.00 

0 00 

0,00 

0.00 

0 00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

0 00 

0.00 

0.00 

0 00 

Projected Year 
Totals 

(DI 

48 000.00 

262 000 00 

308 000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

308 000,00 

262.000 00 

0 .00 

0.00 

o.oo 

0.00 

262 000.00 

262 000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 000,00 

46 000.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 161 

%DIii 
Difference Column 
(Col B & DI B&D 

(El IFl 

32 640 00 244.3% 

182 000,00 2275% 

21484M0 229.9% 

0.00 0 0% 

0.00 00% 

0 .00 0.0% 

(182 000.00 -227.5% 

0.00 0,0% 

0,00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

o.oo 0 0% 

1182 000,001 -227,5% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

f32 640.00) -244.3% 

132 840.00) -244.3% 

Printed: 3/212022 11:36 AM 

                                                                 36 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Resource Descri tion 

Total, Restricted Balance 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: fundi-b (Rev 04/30/2012) 

Second Interim 
Forest Reserve Fund 

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail 

Page 1 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 161 

2021/22 

Pro·ected Year Totals 

0.00 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :36 AM 
                                                                 37 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

A. DISTRICT 
1. Total District Regular ADA 

Includes Opportunity Classes, Home & 
Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation
Education, Special Education NPS/LCI
and Extended Year, and Community Day
School (includes Necessary Small School 
ADA)

2. Total Basic Aid Choice/Court Ordered
Voluntary Pupil Transfer Regular ADA 
Includes Opportunity Classes, Home & 
Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation
Education, Special Education NPS/LCI
and Extended Year, and Community Day
School (ADA not included in Line A1 above)

3. Total Basic Aid Open Enrollment Regular ADA 
Includes Opportunity Classes, Home & 
Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation 
Education, Special Education NPS/LCI
and Exlended Year, and Community Day
School (ADA not Included in Line A 1 above)

4. Total, District Regular ADA
(Sum of Lines A1 through A3)

5. District Funded County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools

b. Special Education-Special Day Class

c. Special Education-NPS/LCI
d. Special Education Extended Year
e. Other County Operated Programs:

Opportunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools

f. County School Tuition Fund
(Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380]

g. Total, District Funded County Program ADA 
(Sum of Lines A5a through A5f) 

6. TOTAL DISTRICT ADA 
(Sum of Line A4 and Line A5g) 

7. Adults In Correctional Faclllties 
8. Charter School ADA

(Enter Charter School ADA using
Tab C. Charter School ADAl

California Dept of Edllcation 
SACS Flnanclal Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
Flle: adai (Rev 02/05/2018) 

2021-22 Second Interim 
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 

ESTIMATED 
FUNDED ADA ESTIMATED 

ESTIMATED Board P-2 REPORT 
FUNDED ADA Approved ADA 

Original Operating Projected Year 
Budget Budget Totals 

IAl IBl ICl 

409.30 409.30 409.30 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

409.30 409.30 409.30 

4.64 4.64 4.64 

0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.43 0.43 0.43 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

15.36 15.36 15.36 

20.43 20.43 20.43 

429.73 429.73 429,73 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 1 of 1 

ESTIMATED 
FUNDED ADA 

Projected 
Year Totals 

IDI 

409.30 

0.00 

0.00 

409.30 

4.64 

0.00 
0.43 
0.00 

0.00 

15.36 

20.43 

429,73 
0.00 

11 :,

DIFFERENCE 
(Col. D- B) 

IEl 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form Al 

PERCENTAGE 
DIFFERENCE 

(Col. E / B) 
!Fl

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 
0% 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :51 AM                                                                  38 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Descriotion 

B. COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
1. County Program Alternative Education

Grant ADA
a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps
c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,

Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)]
d. Total, County Program Alternative Education

ADA (Sum of Lines 81a through 81c)
2. District Funded County Program ADA 

a. County Community Schools
b. Special Education-Special Day Class
C. Special Education-NPS/LCI 
d. Special Education Extended Year
e. Other County Operated Programs:

Opportunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools

f. County School Tuition Fund
(Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380)

g. Total, District Funded County Program ADA
(Sum of Lines B2a through B2f)

3. TOTAL COUNTY OFFICE ADA 
(Sum of Lines 81 d and 82g) 

4. Adults in Correctional Facilities
5. County Operations Grant ADA
6. Charter School ADA 

(Enter Charter School ADA using
Tab C. Charter School ADA)

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: adai (Rev 03/15/2021) 

2021-22 Second Interim 
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 

ESTIMATED 
FUNDED ADA ESTIMATED 

ESTIMATED Board P-2 REPORT 
FUNDED ADA Approved ADA 

Original Operating Projected Year 
Budget Budget Totals 

(Al (Bl (Cl 

0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 
4.64 4,64 4.64 
0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.43 o.43 0.43 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

15.36 15.36 15.36 

20.43 20.43 20.43 

20.43 20.43 20.43 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

16.26 16.26 16.26 

Page 1 of 1 

ESTIMATED 
FUNDED ADA 

Projected 
Year Totals 

IOI 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
4.64 
0.00 
0.43 

0.00 

15.36 

20.43 

20.43 
0.00 

16.26 

DIFFERENCE 
(Col. D - B) 

(El 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form Al 

PERCENTAGE 
DIFFERENCE 

(Col. E / B) 
(Fl 

0% 
0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 
0% 
0% 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :51 AM 
                                                                 39 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Descriotion 
C. CHARTER SCHOOL ADA

2021-22 Second Interim 
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 

ESTIMATED 
FUNDED ADA ESTIMATED 

ESTIMATED Board P-2 REPORT
FUNDED ADA Approved ADA

Orlglnal Operating Projected Year 
Budget Budget Totals 

IAl IBI IC) 

ESTIMATED 
FUNDED ADA 

Projected DIFFERENCE 
Year Totals (Col. D-B) 

(DI /El 

46 10462 0000000 
Form Al 

PERCENTAGE 
DIFFERENCE 

(Col.E/B) 
IFI 

Authorizing LEAs reporting charter school SACS financial data in their Fund 01, 09, or 62 use this worksheet to report ADA for those charter schools.
Charter schools reoortlno SACS flnanclal data seoaratelv from lhelr aulhorlzlna LEAs in Fund 01 or Fund 62 use this worksheet to renort their ADA. 

FUND 01: Charter School ADA corresoondim:t to SACS financial data reported In Fund 01. 

1. Total Charter School Regular ADA 0.00 0.00 0.00 
2. Charter School County Program Alternative

Education ADA
a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 0.00 0.00 0.00 
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps 0.00 0.00 0,00 
c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,

Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)] 0.00 0.00 0.00 
d. Total, Charter School County Program

Alternatlve Education ADA
(Sum of Lines C2a through C2c) 0.00 0.00 0,00 

3. Charter School Funded County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 
b. Special Education-Special Day Class 0.00 0.00 0.00 
c. Special Education-NPS/LCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 
d. Special Education Extended Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 
e. Other County Operated Programs:

Opportunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 

f. Total, Charter School Funded County
Program ADA
(Sum of Lines C3a through C3e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA 
/Sum of Llnos C1 C2d. and C3fl 0.00 0,00 0.00 

FUND 09 or 62: Charter School ADA corresoondinc to SACS financial data reported In Fund 09 or Fund 62. 

5. Total Charter School Regular ADA 
6. Charter School County Program Alternative

Education ADA
a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps
c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,

Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)l
d. Total, Charter School County Program

Alternative Education ADA
(Sum of Lines C6a through C6c)

7. Charter School Funded County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools 
b. Special Education-Special Day Class 
c. Special Education-NPS/LCI 
d. Special Education Extended Year
e. Other County Operated Programs:

Opportunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools 

f. Total, Charter School Funded County
Program ADA
(Sum of Lines C7a through C7e)

8. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
!Sum of Lines CS C6d and C7fl 

9. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
Reported in Fund 01, 09, or 62
/Sum of Lines C4 and C8l

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: adai (Rev 03/27/2018) 

0,00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0,00 0.00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 1 of 1 

0.00 0.00 0% 

0.00 0.00 0% 
0.00 0.00 0% 

0.00 0.00 0% 

0,00 0.00 0% 

0.00 0.00 0% 
0.00 0,00 0% 
0.00 0,00 0% 
0.00 0.00 0% 

0.00 0.00 0% 

0.00 0.00 0% 

0.00 0.00 0% 

0.00 0.00 0% 

0.00 0.00 0% 
0.00 0.00 0% 

0.00 0.00 0% 

0.00 0.00 0% 

0.00 0.00 0% 
0.00 0.00 0% 
0.00 0.00 0% 
0.00 0.00 0% 

0.00 0.00 0% 

0,00 0.00 0% 

0.00 0.00 0% 

0.00 0.00 0% 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :51 AM                                                                  40 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

ACTUALS THROUGH THE MONTH OF 
/Enter-Month Namel: 

A. BEGINNING CASH 

B. RECEIPTS 

LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 

Principal Apportionment 

Property Taxes 

Miscellaneous Funds 

Federal Revenue 

Other State Revenue 

Other Local Revenue 

lnterfund Transfers In 

All Other Financing Sources 

TOTAL RECEIPTS 

C. DISBURSEMENTS 
Certificated Salaries 

Classified Salaries 

Employee Benefits 

Books and Supplies 

Services 

Capital Outlay 

Other Outgo 

lnterfund Transfers Out 

All Other Financing Uses 

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 
D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 

8s-sets and Deferred Outfl� 
Cash Not In Treasury 

Accounts Receivable 

Due From Other Funds 

Stores 

Prepaid Expenditures 

Other Current Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

SUBTOTAL 

Liabilities anQ Oeferr� lnflo,y§ 

Accounts Payable 

Due To Other Funds 

Current Loans 

Unearned Revenues 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

SUBTOTAL 

Nonoperatino 
Suspense Clearing 

TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 

Obiect 

9110 

8010-8019 
8020-8079 
8080-8099 
8100-8299 
8300-8599 
8600-8799 
8910-8929 
8930--8979 

1000--1999 
2000-2999 
3000-3999 
4000-4999 
5000-5999 
6000-6599 
7000-7499 
7600-7629 
7630-7699 

9111-9199 
9200-9299 

9310 
9320 
9330 
9340 
9490 

9500-9599 
9610 
9640 
9650 
9690 

9910 

E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + Dl 

F. ENDING CASH IA+ El 

G. ENDING CASH. PLUS CASH 
ACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: cashi (Rev 06/17/2014) 

::::::fnbhi�:;; 
_;;dRik�·�-�

...... -.----------· ---- Julv 

2 959 492.61 

-·., 
6636.84 

, 
6 636.64 

22,633.20 
25.408.84 
39 092.72 

-

16 107.53 

-

103 242.29 

1600.00) 
(928 104.21) 1,643.88 

1928,704,21) 1,543.88 

(51,209.54) 18,525.84 

(111,027.13) 
0.00 

(162,236.67) 18 525.84 

1766467.54) (16.981.96) 
(113 587.61) 
2 845 905.0.0 -

Second Interim 
2021-22 INTERIM REPORT 

Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1) 

Auaust Seatember 

-

2.845,905.00 3.121 827.19 

399.724.00 184,381.00 

98,959.00 
2,335.85 6,880.35 

402 059.85 290.220.35 

20,125.50 48.402.14 
25.502.57 43.165.57 
22.594.79 46 127.01 

462.98 809.96 
60 343.12 16.897.46 

129 028.96 155 402.14 

5:ooo.oo 1,200.00 

5,000,00 1,200.00 

2,108.70 (1,243.99) 

0.00 0.00 
2.108.70 (1.243.99) 

2"891.30 2443.99 
275 922.19 137 262.20 

3.121 827,19 3,259 089.39 

Page 1 of 2 

October November 

3 25.9.089.39 3 202.279.24 

127,670.00 0.00 

14,758.79 60 000,00 
5 853..23 2.769.67 

148 282.02 62.789,67 

50,129.98 ·49,153.64 
37.641.23 41,253.36 
45,274.47 45,896.90 

4.292.70 6,397.00 
33,578.63 4,535.68 

170 917.01 147,236.58 

9.378.28 20 806.00 

9.37826 20,806.00 

43 553.42 6,771.75 

0.00 0.00 
43,553.42 6.771.75 

(34 175,16) 14 034.25 
(56 8rn.f51 r70 432.661 

3 202 279.24 3 131 846.58 

December 

3 131.846.58 

184 380.00 
42,554.37 

3,294.00 
0.00 
0,00 

230 228.37 

61 991.01 
60,415.29 
56 658.82 

9,944.11 
46 646.98 
24,036.81 

259 693.02 

0,00 

0.00 

7,374.00 

7,374.00 

17.374.001 
i36 838.651 

3 095.007.93 

Januarv 

3 095 007.93 

127,670.00 

4,000.00 
154,632.08 

306,58 

286.608.66 

51,495.36 
44 579.93 
49,538.40 

1 050-40 
9,744.37 

0.00 
0.00 

156 408.46 

15.528.00 

15 528.00 

6,269.75 

6.269.75 

9 258.25 
139,458.45 

3 234.466.38 

46 10462 0000000 
Form CASH 

Februarv 

3 234 466.38 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

920.00 

920.00 

51,817.22 
46,570.62 
49,825.92 

722.72 
35.404.56 

0.00 

184.341.04 

15:104.35 

15,104.35 

708.00 

708.00 

14.396.35 
(169,024.69) 
3,065 441.69 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :51 AM                                                                  41 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

ACTUALS THROUGH THE MONTH OF 
(Enter Month Name): 

A. BEGINNING CASH 

B. RECEIPTS 

LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 

Principal Apportionment 

Property Taxes 

Miscellaneous Funds 

Federal Revenue 

Other State Revenue 
Other Local Revenue 
lnterfund Transfers In 

All Other Financing Sources 

TOTAL RECEIPTS 

C. DISBURSEMENTS 

Certificated Salaries 

Classified Salaries 

Employee Benefits 

Books and Supplies 

Services 

Capital Outlay 

Other Outgo 
lnterfund Transfers Out 
All Other Financing Uses 
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 

0. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 

Assets l![ld Ogferred OutflQwS 
Cash Not In Treasury 
Accounts Receivable 
Due From Other Funds 

Stores 
Prepaid Expenditures 

Other Current Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

SUBTOTAL 

liabilities aod Deferred Inflows 

Accounts Payable 
Due To Other Funds 
Current Loans 

Unearned Revenues 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

SUBTOTAL 
NQR0perating 

Suspense Clearing 
TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 

Oblect 

9110 

8010-8019 
8020-8079 

B080-8099 

8100-8299 
8300-8599 

8600-8799 
8910-8929 
8930-8979 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 
3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6599 

7000-7499 
7600-7629 
7630-7699 

9111-9199 

9200-9299 
9310 

9320 

9330 

9340 

9490 

9500-9599 
9610 
9640 
9650 

9690 

9910 

E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + Dl 

F. ENDING CASH IA+ El 

G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH 
ACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software • 2021.2.0 
File: cashi (Rev 06/17/2014) 

I 

March 

3,065 441_69 

0.00 

25 600_00 

37,580,00 

83,0QQ_OQ 

146,160.00 

78.750_00 
69,750.00 

85,250_00 

42,200.00 

32 650_00 

7.500_00 

316300.00 

365.750.00 

365,750_00 

(21 251.75) 

(21,251.75) 

387 001.75 
216 881.75 

3 282 323.44 

Second Interim 
2021-22 INTERIM REPORT 

Cashfiow Worksheet - Bud_g_et Yea_r__{1_) 

Aorll Mav June 

3 282 323.44 I 3 233 507.51 3_627.285.22 

0,00 75,004.00 

0.00 25;533.63 

69,500.00 56,000_00 4,742.00 
49 319_00 260 217_21 391,766_92 
96,750_00 145,000_00 59.047_68 
43,500_00 0.00 14,776,00 

259 069_00 561 754.84 470 332.60 

77 500,00 86,750_00 72,097_95 
68,200.00 67.800_00 75.493.59 

85,550.00 87 500.00 79,990_97 

35,950_00 11,175.77 6,894_36 

114,750_00 120,700.00 239,417_58 
2 463.19 7,000,00 

19,960_00 29 468.00 

401 910.00 376 388.96 510362-4°5 

600_00 
94 025_07 196,805.65 202.963_00 

94 025.07 196 805.65 203,563.00 

(11.606_18) 

111,027.13 

o_oo (11,606_18) 111.027_13 

94.025.07 208 411-83 92,535_87 

/48.815.93) 393 777,71 52.506.02 
3 233 507.51 3,627,285.22 3 679 791.24 

Page 2 of 2 

Accruals Adiustments TOTAL 

1.098 829._00 
6B,088_00 

Q_OQ 

159,842.00 
1,070,527.00 

409,500_00 

58,276.00 
o_oo 

o_oo o_oo 2.665 062-00 

670, 846_00 
605,781.00 

693,300.00 

119,900.00 

22,057.09 753 033_00 

41,000_00 
49,428.00 

0.00 
o_oo 

22,057.09 o_oo 2233 288.00 

600.00 
928,104.21 

o_oo 

0.00 

o_oo 

0,00 
o_oo 

0_00 0.00 928.704.21 

51,209-54 
o_oo 

0.00 

111,027_13 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 162,236.67 

o_oo 

0_00 0.00 766 467.54 

(22,057,09\ 0.00 698.241.54 

3 657.734.15 

46 10462 0000000 
Form CASH 

BUDGET 
. 

1,098,829_00 

68,088.00 
o_oo 

159,842.00 
1,070,527_00 

409,500_00 

511.276.00 
o_oo 

2,865 062.00 

670,846.00 
605,781.00 

693,300.00 

119,900.00 

753,033_00 
41,000.00 
49,428_00 

o_oo 

0.00 
2.933 288_00 

-

/68 226.00\ 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11:51 AM 
                                                                 42 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County_ 

ACTUALS THROUGH THE MONTH OF 
/Enter Month Namel: 

A BEGINNING CASH 
B. RECEIPTS 

LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 
Principal Apportionment 
Property Taxes 
Miscellaneous Funds 

Federal Revenue 
Other State Revenue 
Other Local Revenue 
lnterfund Transfers In 
All Other Financing Sources 
TOTAL RECEIPTS 

C, DISBURSEMENTS 
Certificated Salaries 
Classified Salaries 
Employee Benefits 
Books and Supplies 
Services 
Capital Outlay 
Other Outgo 
lnterfund Transfers Out 
All Other Financing Uses 
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 

D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 

Assets and Def!filed Outfl� 
Cash Not In Treasury 
Accounts Receivable 
Due From Other Funds 
Stores 
Prepaid Expenditures 
Other Current Assets 
Deferred Outflows of Resources 
SUBTOTAL 

Lia!;lll1ties and Deferred Inflows 
Accounts Payable 
Due To Other Funds 
Current Loans 
Unearned Revenues 
Deferred Inflows of Rescurces 
SUBTOTAL 

Nonoperating 
Suspense Clearing 
TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 

Obiect 

9110 
-

8010-8019 
8020-8079 
8080-8099 
8100-8299 
8300-8599 
8600-8799 
8910-8929 
8930-8979 

1000-1999 
2000-2999 
3000-3999 
4000-4999 
5000-5999 
6000-6599 
7000-7499 
7600-7629 
7630-7699 

9111-9199 
9200-9299 

9310 
9320 
9330 
9340 
9490 

9500-9599 
9610 
9640 
9650 
9690 

9910 

E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE 1B - C + Dl 
F. ENDING CASH /A+ El I 
G, ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH 
ACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Sottware - 2021.2.0 
File: cashi (Rev 03/05/2021) 

----:-a-!@.�----=--=-=-:sii --- _:;_:

·====��=�:

� 

' 

. 

-

. 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Julv 

3 679. 791.24 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0 00 

3 679 791.24 

Second Interim 
2021-22 INTERIM REPORT 

Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (2) 

Auaust Seotember 

3 679.791.24 3 679,791.24 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

3,679 791.24 I 3 679 791.24 

Page 1 of 2 

October 

3 679.791.24 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

3 679 791 24 

-

November December 

3 679,791.24 3 679,791.24 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 
3 679. 791.24 3 679 791.24 

Januarv 

3 679.791.24 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

3,679 791.24 

46 10462 0000000 
Form CASH 

Februarv 

3 679 791.24 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

3 679 791.24 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11:51 AM                                                                  43 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra Count}' 

ACTUALS THROUGH THE MONTH OF 
/Enter Month Namel: 

A BEGINNING CASH 
B. RECEIPTS 

LC FF/Revenue Limit Sources 
Principal Apportionment 
Property Taxes 
Miscellaneous Funds 

Federal Revenue 
Other State Revenue 
Other Local Revenue 
lnterfund Transfers In 
All Other Financing Sources 
TOTAL RECEIPTS 

C. DISBURSEMENTS 
Certificated Salaries 
Classified Salaries 
Employee Benefits 
Books and Supplies 
Services 
Capital Outlay 
Other Outgo 
lnterfund Transfers Out 
All Other Financing Uses 
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 

D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 
Assets and Defe� O�ows 

Cash Not In Treasury 
A=unts Receivable 
Due From Other Funds 
Stores 
Prepaid Expenditures 
Other Current Assets 
Deferred Outflows of Resources 
SUBTOTAL 

Liabilllies and Defi:rred lnfl�s 
Accounts Payable 
Due To Other Funds 
Current Loans 
Unearned Revenues 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 
SUBTOTAL 

Nonoperaling 
Suspense Clearing 
TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 

Obfect 

9110 

8010-8019 

8020-8079 

8080-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

8910-8929 

8930-8979 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6599 

7000-7499 

7600-7629 

7630-7699 

9111-9199 

9200-9299 

9310 

9320 

9330 

9340 

9490 

9500-9599 

9610 

9640 

9650 

9690 

9910 

E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (8 - C + 01 
F. ENDING CASH (A+ El
G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH 
ACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
FTie: cashi (Rev 03/05/2021) 

March 

3.679 791 .24 

0,00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

3.679, 791.24 

Second Interim 
2021-22 INTERIM REPORT 

Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Y�ar (21 

Aoril Mav June 

3.679 791.24, 3 679 791.2.4 3 679 791.24 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 OJJO 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

3.679 791 .24 3.679 791.24 3 679 791.24 

Page 2 of 2 

Accruals 

-

Adiustments 

:, 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

TOTAL 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

a.ca

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

3 679 791.24 

46 1 0462 0000000 
Form CASH 

BUDGET 

0.00 

0.00 
-

0.00 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :51 AM                                                                  44 of 94



Second Interim 
Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT 
For the Fiscal Year 2021-22 

46 10462 0000000 
Form Cl 

NOTICE OF CRITERIA AND STANDARDS REVIEW. This interim report was based upon and reviewed using the 
state-adopted Criteria and Standards pursuant to Education Code sections 33129 and 42130. 

Signed: _______________ _ Date: ____________ _ 
County Superintendent or Designee 

NOTICE OF INTERIM REVIEW. All action shall be taken on this report during a regular or authorized special 
meeting of the County Board of Education. 

To the State Superintendent of Public Instruction: 
This interim report and certification of financial condition are hereby filed by the County Board 
of Education pursuant to Education Code sections 1240 and 33127. 

Meeting Date: March 08, 2022 

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL CONDITION 

Signed: ____________ _ 

X POSITIVE CERTIFICATION 

County Superintendent of Schools 

As County Superintendent of Schools, I certify that based upon current projections this county office will 
meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year and subsequent two fiscal years. 

QUALIFIED CERTIFICATION 
As County Superintendent of Schools, I certify that based upon current projections this county office may 
not meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years. 

NEGATIVE CERTIFICATION 
As County Superintendent of Schools, I certify that based upon current projections this county office will 
not meet its financial obligations for the remainder of the current fiscal year or for the subsequent fiscal year. 

Contact person for additional information on the interim report: 

Name: Nona Griesert Telephone: (530) 993-1660, x-120 

Title: Director of Business Services/CBC E-mail: ngriesert@spjusd.org

Criteria and Standards Review Summary 

The following summary is automatically completed based on data provided in the Criteria and Standards Review 
form (Form 01CSI). Criteria and standards that are "Not Met," and supplemental information and additional fiscal 
indicators that are "Y�s." may indicate areas of potential concern, which could affect the interim report certification, 
and should be carefully reviewed. 

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS Met 

1 Average Daily Attendance Projected ADA for County Operations Grant or county operated 
programs has not changed for any of the current or two subsequent 
fiscal years by more than two percent since first interim. 

California Dept of Education 

Not 

Met 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: ci-c (Rev 04/03/2017) Page 1 of 3 Printed: 3/2/2022 11:51 AM 

                                                                 45 of 94



Second Interim 
Sierra County Office of Education COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT 
Sierra County For the Fiscal Year 2021-22 

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS (continued) 
2 Local Control Funding Projected LCFF revenue for any of the current or two subsequent 

Formula (LCFF) Revenue fiscal years has not changed by more than two percent since first 
interim. 

3 Salaries and Benefits Projected total salaries and benefits for any of the current or two 
subsequent fiscal years has not changed by more than five percent 
since first interim. 

4a Other Revenues Projected operating revenues (federal, other state, other local) for the 
current and two subsequent fiscal years have not changed by more 
than five percent since first Interim. 

4b Other Expenditures Projected operating expenditures (books and supplies, services and 
other expenditures) for the current and two subsequent fiscal years 
have not changed by more than five percent since first interim. 

5 Ongoing and Major If applicable, changes occurring since first interim meet the required 
Maintenance Account contribution to the ongoing and major maintenance account (i.e., 

restricted maintenance account). 

6 Deficit Spending Unrestricted deficit spending, if any, has not exceeded the standard 
in any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years. 

7a Fund Balance Projected county school service fund balance will pe positive at the 
end of the current and two subsequent fiscal years. 

7b Cash Balance Projected county school service fund cash balance will be positive at 
the end of the current fiscal year. 

8 Reserves Available reserves (e.g., reserve for economic uncertainties, 
unassigned/unappropriated amounts) meet minimum requirements 
for the current and two subsequent fiscal years. 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
S1 Contingent Liabilities Have any known or contingent liabilities (e.g., financial or program 

audits, litigation, state compliance reviews) occurred since first 
interim that may impact the budget? 

S2 Using One-time Revenues Are there ongoing county school service fund expenditures funded 
to Fund Ongoing with one-time revenues that have changed since first interim by more 
Expenditures than five percent? 

S3 Temporary lnterfund Are there projected temporary borrowings between funds? 
Borrowings 

S4 Contingent Revenues Are any projected revenues for any of the current or two subsequent 
fiscal years contingent on reauthorization by the local government, 
special fegislatioh, or other definitive act (e.g., parcel taxes, forest 
reserves)? 

S5 Contributions Have contributions from unrestricted to restricted resources, or 
transfers to or from the county school service fund to cover operating 
deficits, changed since first interim by more than $20,000 and more 
than 5% for any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years? 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: cl-c (Rev 04/03/2017) Page 2 of 3 

Met 

X 

n/a 

X 

X 

X 

X 

No 

X 

X 

X 

X 

46 10462 0000000 
Form Cl 

Not 
Met 

X 

X 

X 

Yes 

X 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11:51 AM 

                                                                 46 of 94



Second Interim 
Sierra County Office of Education COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT 
Sierra County For the Fiscal Year 2021-22 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 
S6 Long-term Commitments Does the county office have long-term (multiyear) commitments or 

debt agreements? 
. If yes, have annual payments for the current or two subsequent 

fiscal years increased over prior year's (2020-21) annual 
payment? 

. If yes, will funding sources used to pay long-term commitments 
decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, or 
are they one-time sources? 

S7a Postemployment Benefits Does the county office provide postemployment benefits other than 
Other than Pensions pensions (OPEB)? 

. If yes, have there been changes since first interim in OPEB 
liabilities? 

S7b Other Self-insurance Does the county office operate any self-insurance programs (e.g., 
Benefits workers' compensation)? 

. If yes, have there been changes since first interim in self-
insurance liabilities? 

S8 Status of Labor Agreements As of second interim projections, are salary and benefit negotiations 
still unsettled for: 
. Certificated? (Section S8A, Line 1 b) 
. Classified? (Section S8B, Line 1 b) 
. Management/supervisor/confidential? (Section S8C, Line 1 b) 

S9 Status of Other Funds Are any funds other than the county school service fund projected to 
have a negative fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year? 

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS 
A1 Negative Cash Flow Do cash flow projections show that the county office will end the 

current fiscal year with a negative cash balance in the county school 
service fund? 

A2 Independent Position Is personnel position control independent from the payroll system? 
Control 

A3 County Operations Grant Is County Operations Grant ADA decreasing in both the prior and 
ADA current fiscal year? 

A4 New Charter Schools Are any new charter sehools operating in county office boundaries 
Impacting County Office that are impacting the county office's ADA, either in the prior or 
ADA current fiscal years? 

AS Salary Increases Exceed Has the county office entered into a bargaining agreement where any 
COLA of the current or subsequent fiscal years of the agreement would 

result in salary increases that are expected to exceed the projected 
state funded cost-of-living adjustment? 

A6 Uncapped Health Benefits Does the county office provide uncapped (100% employer paid) 
health benefits for current or retired employees? 

A7 Fiscal Distress Reports Does the county office have any reports that indicate fiscal distress? 
If yes, provide copies to the COE. 

A8 Change of CBO or Have there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief 
Superintendent business official (CBO) positions within the last 12 months? 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: ci-c (Rev 04/03/2017) Page 3 of 3 

No 

X 

X 

n/a 

X 

X 

X 

X 

No 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

46 10462 0000000 
Form Cl 

Yes 

X 

X 

X 

X 

Yes 

X 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :51 AM 
                                                                 47 of 94



Second Interim 
Sierra County Office of Education 2021-22 Projected Year Totals 
Sierra County Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures 

Section I - Expenditures 

A. Total state, federal, and local expenditures (all resources)

B. Less all federal expenditures not allowed for MOE

(Resources 3000-5999, except 3385)

C. Less state and local expenditures not allowed for MOE:

(All resources, except federal as identified in Line B)

1. Community Services

2. Capital Outlay

3. Debt Service

4. Other Transfers Out

5. lnterfund Transfers Out

6. All Other Financing Uses

7. Nonagency

8. Tuition (Revenue, in lieu of expenditures, to approximate
costs of services for which tuition is received)

9. Supplemental expenditures made as a result of a
Presidentially declared disaster

10. Total state and local expenditures not < 

allowed for MOE calculation

(Sum lines C1 through C9) II 

D. Plus additional MOE expenditures:
1. Expenditures to cover deficits for food services

(Funds 13 and 61) (If negative, then zero)

2. Expenditures to cover deficits for student body activities

E. Total expenditures subject to MOE

(Line A minus lines B and C10, plus lines D1 and D2)

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page 1 

Funds 01, 09 and 62 

Goals Functions Obiects 

All All 1000-7999 

All All 1000-7999 

All 5000-5999 1000-7999 

All except All except 
7100-7199 5000-5999 6000-6999 

5400-5450, 
5800, 7430-

All 9100 7439 

All 9200 7200-7299 

All 9300 7600-7629 

9100 7699 

All 9200 7651 

All except 
5000-5999, 

7100-7199 9000-9999 1000-7999 

All All 8710 

Manually entered. Must not include 
expenditures in lines B, C1-C8, D1, or 

D2, 

1000-7143, 

7300-7439 

minus 
All All 8000-8699 

Manually entered. Must not include 
exoenditures in lines A or D1. 

46 10462 0000000 
Form ESMOE 

2021-22 
Expenditures 

2 933,288.00 

338 529.00 

0.00 

41 000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

233 631.00 

0.00 

274 631.00 

0.00 

2,320,128.00 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :51 AM 
                                                                 48 of 94



Second Interim 
Sierra County Office of Education 2021-22 Projected Year Totals 
Sierra County Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures 

Section II - Expenditures Per ADA 

A. Average Daily Attendance
(Form Al, Column D, sum of lines 81d and C9)*

B. Expenditures per ADA (Line I.E divided by Line II.A)

Section Ill - MOE Calculation (For data collection only. Final 
determination will be done by COE) Total 

A. Base expenditures (Preloaded expenditures extracted from prior year
Unaudited Actuals MOE calculation). (Note: If the prior year MOE was not
met, in its final determination, COE will adjust the prior year base to 90
percent of the preceding prior year amount rather than the actual prior year
expenditure amount.) 1,507,332.43 
1. Adjustment to base expenditure and expenditure per ADA amounts for

LEAs failing prior year MOE calculation (From Section IV) 0.00 

2. Total adjusted base expenditure amounts (Line A plus Line A.1) 1,507 332.43 

B. Required effort (Line A.2 times 90%) 1 356,599.19 

C. Current year expenditures (Line I.E and Line 11.B) 2,320,128.00 

D. MOE deficiency amount, if any (Line B minus Line C)
(If negative, then zero) 0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form ESMOE 

2021-22 

Annual ADA/ 
Exps. Per ADA 

0.00 

0.00 

Per ADA 

150,733,243.00 

0.00 

150,733,243.00 

135,659 918.70 

0.00 

135,659,918.70 

E. MOE determination MOE Calculation Incomplete 

(If one or both of the amounts in line D are zero, the MOE requirement
is met; if both amounts are positive, the MOE requirement is not met. If
either column in Line A.2 or Line C equals zero, the MOE calculation is
incomplete.)

F. MOE deficiency percentage, if MOE not met; otherwise, zero
(Line D divided by Line B)
(Funding under ESSA covered programs in FY 2023-24 may
be reduced bv the lower of the two oercentaaes) 0.00% 

.. Interim Periods - Annual ADA not available from Form Al. For your convenience, Projected Year Totals Estimated 
Funded ADA has been preloaded. Manual adjustment may be required to reflect estimated Annual ADA. 

California Dept of Education 

100.00% 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page 2 Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :51 AM 

                                                                 49 of 94



Second Interim 
Sierra County Office of Education 2021-22 Projected Year Totals 
Sierra County Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures 

SECTION IV - Detail of Adjustments to Base Expenditures (used in Section Ill, Line A.1) 

Total 
Description of Adjustments Expenditures 

Total adiustl'nents to base expenditures 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: esm,oe (Rev 03/01/2018) 

0.00 

Page 3 

46 10462 0000000 
Form ESMOE 

Expenditures 
Per ADA 

0.00 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :51 AM 
                                                                 50 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Second Interim 
2021-22 Projected Year Totals 
Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet 

46 10462 0000000 
Form ICR 

Part I • General Administrative Share of Plant Services Costs 

California's Indirect cost plan allows that the general administrative costs in the indirect cost pool may include that portion of plant services 
costs (maintenance and operations costs and facilities rents and leases costs) attributable to the general administrative offices. The 
calculatlon of the plant services costs attributed to general administration and included in the pool is standardized and automated 
using the percentage of salaries and benefits relating to general administration as proxy for the percentage of square footage 
occupied by general administration. 

A. Salaries and Benefits • Other General Administration and Centralized Data Processing

1. Salaries and benefits paid through payroll (Funds 01, 09, and 62, objects 1000-3999 except 3701-3702)

(Functions 7200-7700, goals 0000 and 9000) 186,086.00 

2. Contracted general administrative positions not paid through payroll

a. Enter the costs, if any, of general administrative positions performing services ON SITE but paid through a

contract, rather than through payroll, In functions 7200-7700, goals 0000 and 9000, Object 5800.
b. If an amount Is entered on Line A2a, provide the title, duties, and approximate FTE of each geheral

administrative position paid through a contract. Retain supporting documentation in case of audit.

B. Salaries and Benefits - All Other Activities

1. Salaries and benefits paid through payroll (Funds 01, 09, and 62, objects 1000-3999 except 3701-3702)
(Functions 1000-6999, 7100-7180, & 8100-8400; Functions 7200-7700, all goals except 0000 & 9000) 1 783,841.00 

C. Percentage of Plant Services Costs Attributable to General Administration

(Line A 1 plus Line A2a, divided by Line 81; zero if negative) (See Part Ill, Lines AS and A6) 10.43% 

Part II - Adjustments for Employment Separation Costs 

When an employee separates from service, the local educational agency (LEA) may incur costs associated with the separation in addition 
to the employee's regular salary and benefits for the final pay period. These additional costs can be categorized as "normal" or "abnormal 
or mass" separation costs. 

Normal separation costs Include items such as pay for accumulated unused leave or routine severance pay authorized by governing board 
policy. Normal separation costs are not allowable as direct costs to federal programs, but are allowable as indirect costs. State programs 
may have similar restrictions. Where federal or state program guidelines required that the LEA charge an employee's normal separation 
costs to an unrestricted resource rather than to the restricted program in which the employee worked, the LEA may Identify and enter 
these costs on Lfne A for Inclusion in the indirect cost pool. 

Abnormal or mass separation costs are those costs resulting from actions taken by an LEA to influence employees to terminate their 
employment earlier than they normally would have. Abnormal or mass separation costs Include retirement incentives such as a Golden 
Handshake or severance packages negotiated to effect termination. Abnormal or mass separation costs may not be charged to federal 
programs as either direct costs or indirect costs. Where an LEA paid abnormal or mass separation costs on behalf of positions in general 
administrative functions included in the indirect cost pool, the LEA must identify and enter these costs on Line B for exclusion from the pool. 

A. Normal Separation Costs (optional)

Enter any normal separation costs paid on behalf of employees of restricted state or federal programs that
were charged to an unrestricted resource (0000-1999) in funds 01, 09, and 62 with functions 1000-6999 or 8100-8400
rather than to the restricted program. These costs will be moved in Part Ill from base costs to the indirect cost pool.
Retain supporting documentation.

B. Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (required)

Enter any abnormal or mass separation costs paid on behalf of general administrative positions charged to
unrestricted resources (0000-1999) in funds 01, 09, and 62 with functions 7200-7700. These costs will be
moved in Part Ill from the indirect cost pool to base costs. If none, enter zero.

California Dept of Education 

0.00 

0.00 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
Fite: icr (Rev 06/02l2020) Page 1 of 3 Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :52 AM 

                                                                 51 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Second Interim 
2021-22 Projected Year Totals 
Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet 

Part Ill - Indirect Cost Rate Calculation (Funds 01, 09, and 62, unless indicated otherwise) 

A. Indirect Costs

1. Other General Administration, less portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals

(Functions 7200-7600, objects 1000-5999, minus Line B9)

2. Centralized Data Processing, less portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals

(Function 7700, objects 1000-5999, minus Line B 10)
3. External Financial Audit - Single Audit (Function 7190, resources 0000-1999,

goals 0000 and 9000, objects 5000-5999)

4. Staff Relations and Negotiations (Function 7120, resources 0000-1999,
goals 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999)

5. Plant Maintenance and Operations (portion relating to general administrative offices only)

(Functions 8100-8400, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, times Part I, Line C)
6. Facilities Rents and Leases (portion relating to general administrative offices only)

(Function 8700, resources 0000-1999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, times Part I, Line C) 
7. Adjustment for Employment Separation Costs

a. Plus: Normal Separation Costs (Part II, Line A)

b. Less: Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (Part II, Line B)
8. Total Indirect Costs (Lines A1 through A7a, minus Line A7b)
9. Carry-Forward Adjustment (Part IV, Line F) 

10. Total Adjusted Indirect Costs (Line AB plus Line A9) 

8. Base Costs

1. Instruction (Functions 1000-1999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100)

2. Instruction-Related Services (Functions 2000-2999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100)

3. Pupil Services (Functions 3000-3999, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 and 5100)

4. Ancillary Services (Functions 4000-4999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100)

5. Community Services (Functions 5000-5999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100)

6. Enterprise (Function 6000, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 and 5100)
7. Board and Superintendent (Functions 7100-7180, objects 1000-5999,

minL!S Part 111, line A4)

8. External Financial Audit - Single Audit and Other (Functions 7190-7191,
objects 5000-5999, minus Part 111, Line A3)

9. Other General Administration (portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals only)

(Functions 7200-7600, resources 2000-9999, objects 1000-5999; Functions 7200-7600,
resources 0000-1999, all goals except 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999)

10. Centralized Data Processing (portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals only)

(Function 7700, resources 2000-9999, objects 1000-5999; Function 7700, resources 0000-1999, all goals
except 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999)

11. Plant Maintenance and Operations (all except portion relating to general administrative offices)

(Functions 8100-8400, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, minus Part 111, Line A5)

12. Facilities Rents and Leases (all except portion relating to general administrative offices)

(Function 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, minus Part Ill, Line A6)
13. Adjustment for Employment Separation Costs

46 10462 0000000 
Form ICR 

68 170.00 

130,564.00 

0.00 

0.00 

5,689.88 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
204,423.88 

68,512.40 
272,936.28 

1 057,977.00 

376,194.00 

316,365.00 

25,444.00 

0.00 

0.00 

74,709.00 

15,995.00 

541 141.00 

141,748.00 

48,863.12 

0.00 

a. Less: Normal Separation Costs (Part II, Line A) 0.00 

b. Plus: Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (Part II, Line B) 0.00 

14. Student Activity (Fund 08, functions 4000-5999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00 

15. Adult Education (Fund 11, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400, and 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 380,811.00 

16. Child Development (Fund 12, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400 & 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 & 5100) ______ 0_.0�0_

17. Cafeteria (Funds 13 & 61, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400 & 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 & 5100) 0.00 

18. Foundation (Funds 19 & 57, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400 & 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 & 5100) 0.00 

19. Total Base Costs (Lines B1 through B12 and Lines 813b through B18, minus Line 813a) 2,979,247.12 

C. Straight Indirect Cost Percentage Before Carry-Forward Adjustment

(For information only - not for use when claiming/recovering indirect costs)

(Line A8 divided by Line B19}

D. Preliminary Proposed Indirect Cost Rate

(For final approved fixed-with-carry-forward rate for use In 2023-24 see www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/ic)

(Line A10 divided by Line B19)

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: icr (Rev 06/02/2020) Page 2 of 3 

6.86% 

9.16% 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :52 AM 
                                                                 52 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Part IV - Carry-forward Adjustment 

Second Interim 
2021-22 Projected Year Totals 
Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet 

46 10462 0000000 
Form ICR 

The carry-forward adjustment is an after-the-fact adjustment for the difference between indirect costs recoverable using the indirect 
cost rate approved for use in a given year, and the actual indirect costs incurred in that year. The carry-forward adjustment eliminates 
the need for LEAs to file amended federal reports when their actual indirect costs vary from the estimated indirect costs on which the 
approved rate was based. 

Where the ratio of indirect costs incurred in the current year is less than the estimated ratio of indirect costs on which the approved rate for 
use in the current year was based, the carry-forward adjustment is limited by using either the approved rate times current year base costs, 
or the highest rate actually used to recover costs from any program times current year base costs, if the highest rate used was less than 
the approved rate. Rates used to recover costs from programs are displayed in Exhibit A. 

A. Indirect costs incurred in the current year (Part Ill, Line AS)

B. Carry-forward adjustment from prior year(s)

1. Carry-forward adjustment from the second prior year

2. Carry-forward adjustment amount deferred from prior year(s), if any 

C. Carry-forward adjustment for under- or over-recovery in the current year

1. Under-recovery: Part Ill, Line A8, plus carry-forward adjustment from prior years, minus (approved indirect
cost rate (3.14%) times Part Ill, Line 819); zero if negative

2. Over-recovery: Part 111, Line A8, plus carry-forward adjustment from prior years, minus the lesser of
(approved indirect cost rate (3.14%) times Part Ill, Line 819) or (the highest rate used to
recover costs from any program (3.14%) times Part 111, Line 819); zero if positive

D. Preliminary carry-forward adjustment (Line C1 or C2)

E. Optional allocation of negative carry-forward adjustment over more than one year

204,423.88 

(22,636.58) 

(19,726.54) 

68,512.40 

0.00 

68,512.40 

Where a negative carry-forward adjustment causes the proposed approved rate to fall below zero or would reduce the rate at which
the LEA could recover indirect costs to such an extent that it would cause the LEA significant fiscal harm, the LEA may request that
the carry-forward adjustment be allocated over more than one year. Where allocation of a negative carry-forward adjustment over more
than one year does not resolve a negative rate, the CDE will work with the LEA on a case-by-case basis to establish an approved rate.

Option 1. Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part Ill, Line D) if entire negative carry-forward
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation: 

Option 2. Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part 111, Line D) if one-half of negative carry-forward 
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation and the remainder 
is deferred to one or more future years: 

Option 3. Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part Ill, Line D) if one-third of negative carry-forward 
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation and the remainder 
is deferred to one or more future years: 

LEA request for Option 1, Option 2, or Option 3 

F. Carry-forward adjustment used in Part Ill, Line A9 (Line D minus amount deferred if

Option 2 or Option 3 Is selected)

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: icr (Rev 06/02/2020) Page 3 of 3 

not applicable 

not applicable 

not applicable 

68,512.40 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :52 AM 
                                                                 53 of 94



Second Interim 
Sierra County Office of Education 2021-22 Projected Year Totals 
Sierra County Exhibit A: Indirect Cost Rates Charged to Programs 

46 10462 0000000 
Form ICR 

Eligible Expenditures 
(Objects 1000-5999 

Fund Resource exce t 4700 & 5100 

01 3310 

01 3315 

01 3327 

01 3345 

01 6500 

01 6520 

01 6536 

01 6537 

01 6546 

01 6680 

01 6685 

01 7366 

01 7368 

01 7422 

01 7428 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: icr (Rev 02/10/2020) 

245,013.00 

61,785.00 

4,466.00 

970.00 

501,744.00 

19,392.00 

6,870.00 

30,904.00 

22,345.00 

30,894.00 

36,359.00 

86,085.00 

75,563.00 

34,022.00 

58,175.00 

Page 1 of 1 

Approved indirect cost rate: 

Highest rate used in any program: 

Indirect Costs Charged 
Ob"ects 7310 and 7350 

3,408.00 

614.00 

140.00 

30.00 

14,969.00 

608.00 

215.00 

970.00 

697.00 

964.00 

1,141.00 

2,703.00 

2,372.00 

1,068.00 

1,825.00 

3.14% 

3.14% 

Rate 
Used 

1.39% 

0.99% 

3.13% 

3.09% 

2.98% 

3.14% 

3.13% 

3.14% 

3.12% 

3.12% 

3.14% 

3.14% 

3.14% 

3.14% 

3.14% 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :52 AM 
                                                                 54 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

DcS<t1·iu11011 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Multiyear Projections 
Unrestricted 

P1ojected Yem' 
Totals 

Object (Fonn 0 11) 
Codes (A\ 

Collnty Operations Omni ADA (Enlcr projections for subsequent years I und 2 in 
Columns C nnd E· �um111t venr • Column A - is cxlrnoted from Fann Al Li11c B5l 

(Enter projections for subsequent years I and 2 in Columns C and E; 
currenl yerir - Column A - is exll acted) 

A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
I. LCFF/Revenue Li111it Sources 
2. Fede1al Revenues 
3. Other State Revenues 
4. Other Local Revenues 
5. Othe1 Financing Sources 

a Trnnsfers ln 

b. Other Sou,·ces 
c, Contributions 

6. Total /Su111 lines Al thru A5c\ 

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 
I Ce,tificated Salaries 

a_ Base Salaries 

b, Step & Column Adjustment 
C Cost-of-Living Adjustment 
d. Other Adjustments 
e Total Ce,tificated Salaries (Sum lines BI a thru BI d) 

2. Classified Salaries 
a. Base Salaries 

b. Step & Column Adjustment 
C Cost-of-Living Adjust111ent 
d Other Adjust111ents 
e. Total Classified Salaries (Su111 lines B2a thru B2d) 

3, Employee Benefits 
4 Books and Supplies 
5. Services and Othe,· Operating Expenditures 
6. Capital Outlay 
7 Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 
8. Othe,• Outgo - T,·ansfers of Indirect Costs 
9. Otltt'll' Financing Uses 

a Trnnsfers Out 
b Other Uses 

IO. Other Adjustments (Explain in Section F below) 
11. Tomi /Sum lines HI Ihm BI 01 
C:. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE
IL111e A6 minus line 3 I I) 

D. FUND BALANCE 
I, Net Beginning Fund Balance (Fonn 0 I I, line FI e) 
2. Ending Fund Bnlance (Sum lines C and DI)

3. Components of Ending Fund Balance (Fann 0 11) 
a. Nonspendable 

b Rest, icted 
c Committed 

I. StJbilization Arrangements 

2 Other Commitments 

d Assigned 
e Unassigned/Unapproprialed 

I. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

2. Unassigned/Unapptopriated 
f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance 

(Lino O3f,nusl nureo w,th lino D2) 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015) 

8010-8099 
8100-8299 
8300-8599 
8600-8799 

8900-8929 
8930-8979 
8980-8999 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 
3000-3999 
4000-4999 
5000-5999 
6000-6999 

7100-7299, 7400-74!>1 
7300-7399 

7600-7629 
7630-7699 

9710-9719 
9740 

9750 
9760 
9780 

9789 
9790 

16,26 

1.166,917.00 
0,00 

7 030.00 
405 000.00 

58,276.00 
0 00 

(180,225.00) 
I 456 998.00 

276,209.00 

353 878.00 
363,057.00 

44,875.00 
396.285.00 
35,000.00 
24.428.00 

(31,724 00 

0,00 
0.00 

l 462 008.00 

(5,010.00' 

3,590.517,00 
3,585,507.00 

500.00 

0,00 
92,485.00 

0 00 

395,000.00 
3 097 522.00 

3.585 507,00 

Page 1 

% 
Change 2022-23 

(Cols. C-A/A) Projection 
(8\ IC\ 

0,00% 16 26 

5 33% 1,229, I 14.00 
0.00% 0,00 
0.00% 7,030.00 
0.00% 405 000,00 

0 00% 58,276.00 
0 00% 0,00 

138 15% (429,201.00) 
-12,82% 1270219.00 

276,209.00 
4 927,00 

14,043.00 
0.00 

6,87% 295,179.00 

353 878.00 
8,850.00 

18,822.00 
0 00 

7.82% 381,550.00 
8.80% 395,000.00 
0 00% 44,875 00 

-32.80% 266,285.00 
-42.86% 20.000.00 

0.00% 24.428.00 
0.00% (3 I ,724.00 

0.00% 0.00 
0,00% 0.00 

-4.54% l 395 593.00 

( 125374.00) 

3.585.507 00 
3,460.133_00 

500.00 

92,485 00 
0.00 

395 000 00 
2,972 148.00 

3.460 I 33.00 

% 
Change 

(Cols E-C/C) 
(D\ 

0,00% 

3.61% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

0 00% 
0.00% 
5.03% 
1.79% 

1,79% 

2.50% 
2,27% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0 00¾ 
0.00% 

0.00% 
0.00% 

1.70% 

46 10462 0000000 
Form MYPI 

2023-24 
Projection 

(El 

16 26 

1,273,485.00 
0,00 

7 030.00 
405,000.00 

58,276.00 
0.00 

(450 781.00 
I 293 0L0.00 

295,179 00 
5,282.00 

0.00 
0.00 

300,46 I ,00 

381,550.00 
9,550.00 

0 00 
0.00 

39 I, 100.00 
403,948.00 
44,875.00 

266,285.00 
20,000.00 
24,428.00 

(31,724.00) 

0.00 
0.00 

I 419,373 00 

( 126 363.00) 

3,460,133.00 
3,333,770 00 

500.00 

92,485.00 
0,00 

395,000.00 
2 845,785.00 

3 333 770.00 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :52 AM 

                                                                 55 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Multiyear Projections 
Unrestricted 

Projected Year 
Totals 

% 

Change 
Object (Fonn 011) (Cols. C-A/A) 

Dcscriutic111 Code$ CA) ffil 

E. AV Al LAB LE RESERVES 
1. County School Service Fund 

a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 
b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 395 000.00 
c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 3,097 522.00 

(Enter otlfer reserve projoctlon_s in Columns C nnd E for subsequent 
years I and 2; c11n'On1 ye,U' - Column A - is c.'(lracted) 
2. Special Res�•vc Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17) 

a. Stabilizatio11 Arrnns�ments 9750 0.00 
b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 
c Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0,00 

3. Totnl A1,nilnblc Rescn•os (Sum line$ Elu 1hru E2c) 3 492 522.00 
F. ASSUMPTIONS 
Please provide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to detennine the projections for the first end 
scco11d subsequent fiscal years, Further, please include an explanation for any significant expenditu� adjustments 
project•d in lines Bid, 82d, and 810, For additional infonnation, please refer to the Budget Assumptions section of the 
SACS Financial Reporting Software User Guide, 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 2 

2022-23 
rrojcction 

(Cl 

0.00 
395.000.00 

2,972,148.00 

3.367 i'IM.,00 

% 

Change 
(Cols. E-C/C) 

(D) 

46 10462 0000000 
Form MYPI 

2023-24 
Pn,jccH011 

(El 

0.00 
395 000.00 

2 845,785.00 

3 240 785.00 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :52 AM 

                                                                 56 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

.Des·orioi1nu 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Multiyear Projections 
Restricted 

Pr�jectecl Yem· 
Totals 

Object (Fonn O 11) 
Codes CAI 

County Opcm1kms (,rnnl ADA (Ein1er projcc1ions for subsequcut years I nnd 2 in 
Colunuu C ar,d E· current vear- CQlumn A• 1s exlm11led rrom Fom1 Al. Lino 85\ 

(En1er p1 ojcctions for subsequent years I and 2 in Columns C and E; 
current yenr • Column A - is extracted) 

A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
I. LCFf/Rcvenue Limit Sources 
2, Fedel'al Revenues 

3. Other State Revenues 
4, Other Local Revenues 
5. Other Fi1,a11cing Sources 

a T1-a11st'ers ln
b, Other Sources 
c, Contributions 

6. Total CS1u11 line� A I thm A511l 

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

I. Ce,•tificated Sala, ies 
a. Base Salal'ies 

b, Step & Columr, Adjustment 

C Cost-ol�Living Adjustment 
cL Othe, Adjustments 
e. Tola! Certificated Salaries (Sum lines BI a thru BI d) 

2. Classified Salaries 
a. Bnsc Snl�ries 

b. S1ep & Column Adjustment 
c. Cost�of•Living Adjustment 

d. Other Adjustments 
e To1al Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru 82d) 

3. Employee Benefits 
4, Books and Supplies 
5. Se1 vices and Othet 01>ernting Expenditures 

6. Capital Outlay 

7, Othe, Outgo (excluding Transfel's of Indirect Costs) 

8. Other Outgo - Tiansfers of lndi,ect Costs 
9. Other Fi1rnncing Uses 

a. Tiansfors Out 

b Othe, Uses 
10 Othe1 Adjustments (Explain in Section F below) 

11. Tomi /Sum lines BI thru .BlOI 

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE 
/Linc 1\6 n1111us line BI I) 

D, FUND BALANCE 

I. Net Beginning Fund Balance (Fonn O 11, line Fie) 
2. Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and DJ) 
3, Comp011en1S of Ending Fund Balance (Fonn 011) 

a. Nonspendable 
b, Restricted 
c. Committed 

I. Stnbilization Arrangements 

2 Other Commitments 

d, Assigned 
e, Unassigned/Unappropriated 

I. Rescl've fo1 Economic Uncertainties 

2. Unassigned/Unappropl'iated 
f Total Components of Ending Fund Balance 

(Linc D3t'must nu,·ec with line D2) 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015) 

8010-8099 
8100-8299 
8300-8599 
8600-8799 

8900-8929 
8930-8979 
8980-8999 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 
3000-3999 

4000-4999 
5000-5999 
6000-6999 

7100-7299, 7�00-749' 

7300-7399 

7600-7629 
7630-7699 

9710-9719 
9740 

9750 
9760 

9780 

9789 
9790 

0.00 
159,842.00 

I ,063 •197,00 

4 soo.oo

0.00 

0.00 
180,225.00 

I <108 OM.00 

3911 637.00 

251,903.00 
330.243.00 

75,02S.OO 

356,748,00 
6,000.00 

25 000,00 

31.724,00 

0.00 

0.00 

I <171 280.00 

(63.216,00l 

63
0
216.00 

0,00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0 00 

Page 1 

% 
Change 2022-23 

(Cols C-NA) Projection 

(Bl (Cl 

0_00% 0.00 
0.82% 161,151.00 

-20.18% 848,861.00 
0.00% 4.500,00 

0.00% 0.00 
0.00% 0.00 

138.15% 429 201,00 

2.53% 1,443. 713_00 
' 

394,637.00 

7,380.00 
20.864,00 

0.00 

7.16% 422,881.00 

I 251.903.00 
6,023.00 

13,161,00 
0,00 

7.62% 271 087.00 

9_19% 360.584,00 

-16_23% 62 852.00 
-26.11% 263,585,00 

0.00% 6 000,00 
0.00% 25 000,00 

0,00% 31,724,00 

0.00% 0,00 

0.00% 0,00 

-1.87% 1,443.713,00 

0.00 

0 00 

0.00 

I 

0,00 

0.00 

I 

% 
Change 

(Cols. E-C/C) 
(D) 

0,00% 
0 00% 
0_00% 
0,00% 

0.00% 
0,00% 
5,03% 
1.49% 

1.86% 

2.40% 

2 00% 
0_00% 
0,00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

0,00% 

0,00% 

1.49% 

46 10462 0000000 
Form MYPI 

2023-24 
PJ'ojection 

(El 

0,00 
161 151,00 
848 861.00 

4,500_00 

0.00 
0.00 

450,781.00 

1.465 293_00 

422,881.00 
7.848 00 

0.00 
0.00 

430,729.00 

271 087,00 
6 503.00 

0,00 
0.00 

277,590,00 
367 813.00 
62,852,00 

263 585.00 

6 000,00 
25,000,00 

31,724.00 

0,00 
0 00 

I 465 2.93.00 

0.00 

0,00 
0.00 

II 

0.00 

0.00 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :52 AM 

                                                                 57 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Descrm11011 

E. AVAILABLE RESERVES 

1. County School Service Fund 
a. Stabilization Arrangements 

b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

(fimercunenr year reserve projections in Column A, and other reserve 
projections in Columns C and E for subsequent years I and 2) 

2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund J 7) 

a. Stabilization Arrangements 

b Rese1 ve for Economic Unce11ainties 

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

3. Totnl i\vnilnbk J'\o.scrvcs /Sum hne� E 1 a thru E2ol 
F, ASSUMl1T1ONS 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Multiyear Projections 
Restricted 

Projected Year 
Totals 

Object (Fonn Oil) 
Codes {Al 

9750 

9789 

9790 

II 
9750 I• 

9789 

9790 

l'leosc provide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to detennine the projections for the first and 
second subsequent fiscal years. Further, please include an explanation for any significant expenditure adjustments 

% 
Change 

(Cols. C-NA) 

(Bl 

projected iu lines BI d, B2d, and BI 0. For additional infonnation, please refer to the Budget Assumptions section of the 
SACS Financial Reporting Software User Guide. 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 2 

2022-23 
Projection 

<Cl 

,, 

1, 

11 

% 
Change 

(Cols. E-C/C) 
ID\ 

46 10462 0000000 
Form MYPI 

2023-24 
Projection 

<El 

I 

I 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :52 AM 

                                                                 58 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Dcsciio11011 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Multiyear Projections 
Unreslricted/Restricted 

Projected Yea,· 
Totals 

Object (Form Oil) 
Codes (Al 

Coumy Operntions G, ant ADA (Emel' p,•ojections for subsequent years I and 2 in 
Colu11111s C and E c111T�nt vcnr - Coh111111 A - is elltrac1cd from Fom, Al Linc 85) 

(E111cr proje<:Jior,s for subsequent years I and 2 in Columns C nnd E; 
current ye.11· - Column A - is extracted) 

A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
I. LCfF/Revenue Limit Sources 
2, Feder�! Revenues 

3. Other State Revenues 

4. Othe1· Luca I Re\.enues 
5, Othet financing Sou1ces 

a. Tl'a11sfo1s 111 
b. Other So111ces 
C1 Conti ibutions 

6. Totnl (Sum lines Al thru A5c\ 

13. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 
I Ce1titicated Sala1ies 

a. BHse Sri!.:,ries 

I>. Step & Column Adjustment 
c. Cost-of-Living Adjustment 

d Othc1 Adjustments 

e. To1al Cc,1iticated Salaries (Sum lines Bia ihru Bid) 
2. Classified Sala.-ies 

a. Base Salm ies 

b, Step & Column Adjustment 
c. Cost-of-Living Adjustment 

d. Other Adjustments 
e. To1al Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thn, B2d) 

3. Employee Benefits 
4. Books and Supplies 
5, Se,·vices ,rnd Othe1 Operating Expenditmes 

6 Capital Oullay 
7. Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 
8. Othc,· Outgu - T1a11sfe1·s of Indirect Costs 
9. Othe1 Financing Uses 

a. Tiansfers Out 

b. Othe,· Uses 
I 0, Other Adjustments 
11. Totnl £Su111 Ihle& ll I lhru 8 I 0\ 
C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE 
fl inc A6 minus line BI 1l 
D. FUND BALANCE 

I. Net Beginning Fund Balance (Fo11n 01 I, line Fie) 
2. Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and DI) 
3. Components of Ending Fund Balance (Fonn O ll) 

a Nonspendable 
b. Restricted 
c. Committed 

I. Stabilization A1Ta11gements 

2 .. Other Commitments 

d Assigned 
e .. Unassigned/Unappl'Opriated 

I Reser \'e for Economic U11ce11ainties 

2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 
I'. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance 

(Lmto D3f must auree with line D2\ 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2 O 
File: mypi (Rev 03/09/2016) 

8010-8099 
8100-8299 
8300-8599 
8600-8799 

8900-8929 
8930-8979 
8980-8999 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 
3000-3999 
4000-4999 
5000-5999 
6000-6999 

7100-7299, 7400-74�) 
7300-7399 

7600-7629 
7630-7699 

9710-9719 
9740 

9750 
9760 
9780 

9789 
9790 

16.26 

1,166,917.00 
159,842.00 

1.070,527,00 
409,500.00 

58.276 00 
0,00 
0 00 

2 865.062_00 

II 
I 

670 846.00 

605,781.00 
693.300 00 
119,900 00 
753,033.00 
41,000.00 
49.428.00 

0,00 

0.00 
0.00 

2 933 288.00 

(68,226.00' 

3,653,733.00 
3,585,507.00 

500.00 
0,00 

0.00 
92.485.00 

0.00 

395.000.00 
3,097.522.00 

3 585 507.00 

Page 1 

% 
Change 2022-23 

(Cols. C-A/A) Projection 
(8) (Cl 

0.00% 16.26 

5.33�� 1.229.114.00 
0,82% 161.151.00 

-20,05% 855,891.00 
0.00% 409,500.00 

0.00% 58,276.00 
0.00% 0.00 
0 00% 0,00 

-5 27% 2.713 932 00 

670,846.00 
12,307.00 
34,907.00 

0.00 
7.04% 7 I 8,060.00 

605,781.00 
14,873.00 
31,983.00 

0.00 
7.73% 652.637.00 
8,98% 755,584.00 

-10.15% I 07.727.00 
-29,64% 529,870.00 
-36,59% 26.000.00 

0.00% 49.428.00 
0.00% 0,00 

0.00% 0.00 
0,00% 0.00 

0.00 
-3.20% 2,839 306.00 

( J 25 374.00) 

3 585.507 00 
3 460,133 00 

500.00 
0.00 

0.00 
92.485.00 

0,00 

395,000.00 
2,972, 148.00 

,. 3.460.133.00 

% 
Change 

(Cols, E-C/C) 
(D) 

0.00% 

3.61% 
0.00% 
0,00% 
0.00% 

0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
1.63% 

1.83% 

2.46% 
2.14% 
0.00%, 

0.00% 
0,00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

0.00% 
0.00% 

1..60% 

46 10462 0000000 
Form MYPI 

2023-24 
P1ojectio11 

(E) 

16.26 

I 273,485.00 
161.151.00 
855.891 00 
409.500 00 

58.276.00 
0.00 
0.00 

2 758.303.00 

718,060.00 
13. 130.00 

0.00 
0,00 

731.190.00 

652.637.00 
16,053.00 

0,00 
0.00 

668 690,00 
771 761,00 
107,727.00 
529,870.00 

26,000.00 
49,428.00 

0.00 

0,00 
0.00 
0.00 

2 884 666.00 

( 126 363.00) 

3,460 I 33.00 
3,333,770.00 

500.00 
0.00 

0.00 
92,485.00 

0.00 

395,000,00 
2,845,785.00 

3 333 770.00 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :52 AM 

                                                                 59 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

D�S01intio11 

E AVAILABLE RESERVES (Unrestricted except as noted) 

t. County School Service Fund 
a. Stobilizotion Arrnngements 

b. Reserve for Eco1101i1ic Uncertainties 

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

d, Negative Restricted Ending Balances 

(Negative resources 2000-9999) 

2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17) 
a. Stobilizati<in Anilngements 

b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 
3. Total Availoble Reserves - by Amount (Sum lines E l  thru E2c) 

4. T<>tnl J\1•Mlnblc Resc,·vcs-l)v Pcr�c11t /Ll11c E3 divid�d bv Line F.lc\ 

F. RECOMMENDED RESERVES 

t. Special Education Pass-through Exclusions 

For counties that serve as the administrative unit (AU) of a 

special education local plan area (SELPA): 

a. Do you choose to exclude from the reserve calculation 

the pass-through funds distributed to SELPA members? 

b. If you a,e the SELPA AU and are excluding special 

education pass-through funds: 
I. Enter the name(s) of the SELPA(s): 

2. Specie) education pass-through funds 

(Column A: Fund 10, resources 3300-3499, 6500-6540 and 6546, 

objects 72 J 1-7213 and 7221-7223; enter projections for 
subsequent years I and 2 in Columns C and E) 

2. County Otlice's Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

Used to detennine the reserve standard percentage level on line F3d

(Line B 11, plus line F l b2 ifline F l a  is No)

3. Calculating the Reserves 
a. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses {Line B 11) 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

Multiyear Projections 
Unrestricted/Restricted 

Projected Year 
Totals 

Object (Fonn Oil) 
Codes IA\ 

9750 0,00 

9789 395,000.00 

9790 3,097 ,522.li0 

979Z 

9750 0.00 

9789 0.00 

9790 0.00 
J,1t 92,522.00 

119,07% 

11 

Yes 

0.00 

2 933,288.00 

2 933,288.00 

b. Plus: Special Education Pass-through Funds (Line F lb2, if Line F l a  is No) 0.00 

c. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 
(Line F3a plus line F3b) 

d. Reserve Standard Percentage Level 

(Refer to Fonn 0ICSI, Criterion 8 for calculation details) 

e. Reserve Standard - By Percent (Line F3c times F3d) 

f. Reserve Standard - By Amount 

(Reter to Fonn 0 ICSI, Criterion 8 for calculation details) 

g. Reserve Standard (Greater of Line F3e or F3f) 

h. Av.,ilnblo Rescn,cs·(Linc El'l Meet Rcscr-ve St1111dnr<l !Linc f'J�) 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
FIie: mypi (Rev 03/0912016) 

2,933,288.00 

5% 

146,664.40 

71.000.00 

146 664.40 

YES 

Page 2 

% 
Change 2022-23 

(Cols. C-A/A) Projection 
/8\ (("\ 

0.00 

395 000.00 

2,972 148.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
J J67,Jil8,00 

118.59% 

2,839 306.00 

2,839,306.00 

0,00 

2,839,306.00 

5% 

141,965.30 

71,000.00 

141.965.30 

YES 

% 
Change 

(Cols. E-C/C) 
(Dl 

46 10462 0000000 
Form MYPI 

2023-24 
Projection 

tE\ 

0.00 

39S,000,00 

2,845 18S.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

3,240 785.00 

112.35% 

2,884,666.00 

2,884,666.00 

0,00 

2.884,666,00 

5% 

144,233.30 

7],000,00 

144,233.30 

YES 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :52 AM 

                                                                 60 of 94



Sierra County Office or Education 
Sierra County 

Descriotlon 

011 COUNTY SCHOOL SERVICE FUND 
Expondllu<e Octn! 
Otho< Source51U••• Colo I 
Fund Roc<inclilollon 

081 STUDENT AC1WITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
E1'.peridllure Dctnll 
OlherSaurco.!!ilU!!itti'ii Detail 
Fund Reconcllia11011 

091 CHARTER SCHOOLS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Expondituro Dolatl 
Other Soufl:e>IU..,, Deloit 
Fund Reco,.;illnilao 

101 SP!:CIAL EDUCATION PASS-THROUGH FUND 
Expt,ndiluro Oe{tid 
Other Sooro�• .. Oolott 
Fund ReQom:iA,latfon 

1'11 ADULT EDUCMION FUND 
EKpendlture Detail 
Oihe, S<>urco,IUS<!a Detail 
Fund Recono1linu0n 

121 CHILD.DEl1ELOPMENTFUNO 
ExpondliLIIO Ootaa 
Ott,or SouroolU•Bll Delnil 
Fund Reoonolllollon 

131 CAFET�RIA Sl'�CIAL REVENUE FUND 
Expondjlu"' Dela,I 
Other Sou/cos/Use• Doi•� 
FYnd Rec:oncflialion 

141 DEFERRED MAINTENANCE FUND 
Expona,tu,o Oelotl 
Olher Souroos/Us .. 001011 
Fund Roconclnoilon 

151 PUPIL TRANSPORTATION EOUll>MENT FUND 
l:xpendilure Oe1::1il 
Other Sourco,1u,.,. Dela� 
Fund Reaoncihahon 

161 FOREST RESERVE FUN(') 
Expenditure Dol�lt 
Olhor Sourcus/Uses Deklll 
Fund REtconc.llloHan 

171 SPECl.'l..ffESEr\',IE fl/NCI FQff OlHW THAN CAPITAi. OUTIAy 
Expendllu(0 0.toll 
Olher SourceslUs.e!i Dtililll 
Fund Reconc,l/111ion 

181 SCHOOL BUS EMISSIONS REDUCTION FUND 
Expenditure Dotoll 
01 her SoUroes/Use!i D"elllll 
Fund R&.e0nc.dmlion 

191 FOUNDATION SPECIAL REVE.NUE FUND 
Exp<1ndilure Ooioll 
O1nor SourcoS!Use• Ooiell 
Fund �eooncfll a lion 

�I 5PE�AL RE.SERVE FUND FOR POSJEMPLO'tMEN1' OW.E.FfTS-

fapondiluro Detoll 
Other Sources/Use• Dotall 
FUJ\d Reconcillall0<1 

211 BUILDING FUND 
Expendilu<e Oeloil 
Other Sooro .. /Usos Delo! 
Fund Rnc:c.mcflioHon 

251 CA?ll',O.L FACILITIES FUND 
Expendi1ure Oo1oil 
Other S<>uic!l$1Usos Ootool 
fund Roconcillntlan 

JOI �TATE sc·1100L OUILO!NG LEASEIPURCriASEFUND 
Expondilure 001�11 
Oihor Sooroes1Uses Oolall 
F1.1nd Reccncf1Ult1on 

J.51 COI.IITTY SCHOOL FACILITIES FUND 
EXpandliu'r• Detnil 
Olhor S<>urcos/Usn, Detail 
Fllnel Reco-nci muon 

<IOI SPE,ctAl �ES(ffVE fUlID FOR CAPIT/\l,OUTlAV PROJ'SCf$ 

Expenditure Dtllall 
Olhor S01..1tcoSIUse5 Delnll 
Fund Reconcl1i0tlon 

531 TAX OVERRIOl;:PUND 
E,pondltu,e Deloll 
Other Sou,coslU••• Dalal! 
Fund Ro0onoilit1t1on 

561 DEBT SERVICE FUND 
Expe�dlture bota1I 
Other Saorca,fU.ses Oebill 

fund Reconcillotlon 
571 FOUNDATION P RMANENT FUND 

Ex:pendJlure Detail 
Ollw, Sourceo/1.)ses Ootool 
F'uod Recoodllnhon 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: siai (Rev 04/13/2020) 

Direct Costs • lnterfund 

Second Interim 
2021·22 Projected Year Totals 

SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES 
FOR ALL FUNDS 

Indirect Costs • lnterfund 
Transrc-rs In Transfers Out Transfers In Transfers Out 

5750 5750 7350 7350 

0 00 0.00 0.00 o_oo 

0.00 0 00 0.00 0,00 

o.oo 0.00 0,00 0.00 

0.00 0 00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0 00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 

0 .00 0 00 

0.00 0 00 

II 
1, 

0.0.0 0 00 

0.00 0.00 0 00 0.00 

1, 

0.00 0 00 

0.00 0.0.0 

0.00 0 00 

0.00 o.oo 

0.00 0.00 
I•! 

; 

0,00 o.oo 0.00 0,00 

Page 1 of 2 

lnterfund lnterfund 
Transfers In Transfers Out 
8900-8929 7600-7629 

58 276,00 0.00 

0 00 0,00 

0,00 0.00 

0 .00 12 276.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0 .00 0.00 

0.00 0 00 

0 00 46 000.00 

0 00 0 00 

0 00 0.00 

0,00 

0.00 0.00 

0..00 0 00 

0.00 0 00 

0 00 0.00 

0 .00 0.00 

0 .00 0.00 

0 00 0 .00 

0,00 0.00 

o.ao 

Due From 
Other Funds 

9310 

Ii 

' 

I• 

II 

46 10462 0000000 
Form SIAI 

Due To 
Other Funds 

9610 

P<inted: 3/2/2022 11 :52 AM 

                                                                 61 of 94



Sierra County Office or Educallon 
Sierra Counly 

OoscrloUon 
611 CAFETERIA ENTERPRISE: PUND 

Expenditure Detail 
Other Sources/Uses Delell 
Fund Reconcilielion 

621 CHARTER SCHOOLS ENTERPRISE: FUND 
Expendllllre Deleil 
Olher Sources/Uses Detell 
Fund Reconciliation 

631 OTHER ENTERPRISE FUND 
Expendilure Delail 
Other Sources/Uses Detall 
Fund Reconcllialion 

661 WAREHOUSE REVOLVING FUND 
Expendilure Detail 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 
Fund Reconciliation 

671 SELF-INSURANCE FUND 
Expenditure Oelail 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 
Fund Reconciliation 

711 RETIREE BENEFIT FUND 
Expenditure Detail 
Other SOurces/Uses Detail 
Fund Reconciliation 

731 FOUNDATION PRIVATE•PURPOSE TRUST FUND 
Expenditure De.tail 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 
Fund Reconc\\iation 

781 WARRANT/PASS-THROUGH FUND 
Expenditure Detail 
01.her Sources/Uses Detail 
Fund Reconcilialion 

951 STUDENT BODY FUND 
Expenditure Deleil 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 
Fund. ReconcTDtlon 

TOTA s 

Celifomla Dept of Educalion 
SACS Financial Repot1lng Sonware - 2021.2.0 
File: slei (Rev 04113/7.020) 

1: 

II 

Dlreot Coste - lnterfund 

Second lnlerim 
2021-22 Projocled Year Totals 

SUMMARY OF INT!,RFUND ACTIVITIES 
FOR ALL FUNDS 

Indirect Co,te - lnterfund 
Tr■1nsrers In Transfers Out Transfers In Transfers Out 

5750 5750 7350 7350 

0.00 0 00 0.00 0 .00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0 . 00 

0.00 0 00 

0.0.0 0.00 

o.oo 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0 .00 0,00 0.00 0,00 

Pago 2 or 2 

lnterfund lnterfund 
Tranafers In Tran1fer1 Out 

8900-8929 7600-7629 

0.00 0 00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0 00 

0 00 0 .00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

'· 

0 .00 

11 

58 276.00 58 276.00 

Due From 

otlter Fund• 
9310 

•! 

48 10462 0000000 
Form SIAI 

Due To 
Other Fund• 

9610 

Prlnted: 3/2/2022 11 :52 AM 

                                                                 62 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

Provide methodology and assumptions used to estimate ADA, enrollment, revenues, expenditures, reserves and fund balance, and multiyear 
commitments (including cost-of-living adjustments). 

Deviations from the standards must be explained and may affect the interim certification. 

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS 

1. CRITERION: Average Daily Attendance

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CSI 

STANDARD: Projected County Operations Grant averege daily attendance (ADA) has not changed for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years by more than 
two percent since first Interim projections. Projected ADA ror county operated programs has not changed for any or lhe current fiscal year or two ·subsequent fiscal years by more 
than two percent since first Interim projections. 

County Office ADA Standard Percentage Range: .... I ___ -
.c:
i!

:.-=
.0

'""
%

'-
t
==
o

'--
•
--=
2
:.:.
.0

:...
'¾
c=c
•----' 

1A. Calculating the County Office's ADA Variances 

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise enter data into the first column for all fiscal years. If Form MYPI exists, County Operations Grant ADA will be 
extracted for the two subsequent years; otherwise enter this data. Second Interim Projected Year Totals data for Current Year are extracted; enter data for the remaining two subsequent 
years into the second column. 

Estimated Funded ADA 

Program I Fiscal Year 

County and Charter School 
Alternative Education Grant ADA 
(Form Al, Lines B1d and C2d) 

Current Year (2021-22) 

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 

District Funded County Program ADA 
(Form Al, Line 82g) 

Current Year (2021-22) 
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 

County Operations Grant ADA 
(Form Al, Line B6) 

Current Year (2021-22) 
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 

Charter School ADA and Charter School 
Funded County Program ADA 
(Form Al, Lines C1 and C3f) 

Current Year (2021-22) 
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 

First Interim 

Projected Year Totals 

(Form 01CSI, Item 1A) 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

20.43 
20.43 
20.43 

16.26 
16.26 
16.26 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

18. Comparison of County Office ADA to the Standard 

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met. 

Second Interim 

Projected Year Totals 

(Form Al) (Form MYPI) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

20.43 
20.43 
20.43 

16.26 
16.26 
16.26 

0 00 
0 00 
0,00 

Percent Change Status 

0.0% Met 

0.0% Met 

0.0% Met 

0.0% Met 
0.0% Met 
0.0% Met 

0.0% Met 
0.0% Met 
0.0% Met 

0.0% Mel 
0.0% Met 
0.0% Met 

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected ADA for County Operations Grant and county operated programs has not changed since first interim projections by more than two percent in any of 
the current year or two subsequent fiscal years. 

Explanation: 
(required if NOT met) 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 1 of 24 Printed: 312/2022 11 :53 AM 

                                                                 63 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

2. CRITERION: LCFF Revenue

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 
46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CSI 

STANDARD: Projected LCFF revenue, for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years, has not changed by more than two percent 
since first interim projections. 

County Office LCFF Revenue Standard Percentage Range: I -2.0% to +2.0¾ 
'-----==��=�---' 

2A. Calculating the County Office's Projected Change in LCFF Revenue 

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. In the Second Interim column, Current Year data are extracted; enter data for the 
two subsequent years. 

LCFF Revenue 
(Fund 01, Objects 8011, 8012, 8020-8089) 

Fiscal Year 
Current Year (2021-22) 
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 

First Interim 
Form 01CSI. Item 2A 

1, 166.917.00 
1 195.856.00 
1.233,047,00 

2B. Comparison of County Office LCFF Revenue to the Standard 

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met. 

Second Interim 
Pro·ected Year Totals 

1,166.917.00 
1,229 1 '14.00 
1,276,485,00 

Percent Chan e Status 
0.0% Met 
2.8% Not Met 
3,5% Not Met 

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected LCFF revenue has changed since first interim projections by more than two percent ln any of the current year or two subsequent fiscal years. 
Provide reasons why the change(s) exceed the standard and a description of the methods and assumptions used in projecting LCFF revenue. 

Explanation: 
(required if NOT met) 

California Dept of Education 

The second interim revenue projection for the second and third out years have been adjusted to reflect the projected l�crease In COLA for LCFF 
revenues. The 2022/23 fiscal year reflects a COLA increase of 5.33% and the second out year includes a projected COLA increase of 3.61%. The 
rates used were those presented by the Department of Finance. 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: csi-c (Rev 02/2612021) Page 2 of 24 Printed: 3/212022 11 :53 AM 

                                                                 64 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

3. CRITERION: Salaries and Benefits

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 
46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CSI 

STANDARD: Projected total salaries and benefits for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years has not changed by more than five
percent since first interim projections.

County Office Salaries and Benefits Standard Percentage Range: LI __ --'-5
:..c
·
-=-
0'

-'-'
1/,

'-'
t
-=-
o_-t

..:
6
"'
.0

""
'J.
-=-
'---' 

3A. Calculating the County Office's Projected Change i.n Salaries and Benefits 

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. In the Second Interim column, Current Year data are extracted. If Form MYPI exists, 
Projected Year Totals data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; otherwise, enter this data. 

Salaries and Benefits 

Fiscal Year 

Current Year (2021-22) 

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 

First Interim 
(Form 011, Objects 1000-3999) 

Form 01CSl. llem 3A 

1,900,092.00 

1 981,343.00 

2,052,400.00 

3B. Comparison of County Office Salaries and Benefits to the Standard 

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met. 

Second Interim 

Projected Year Totals 

(Form 011, Objects 1000-3999) 
Form MYPI Lines 81-B3 

1,969,927.00 

2,126,281.00 

2 171,641.00 

Percem Chan e Status 

3.7% Met 
7.3% Not Met 

5.8% Not Met 

1 a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected salary and benefit costs have changed since first [nterim by more than the standard in any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal 
years. Provide reasons why the change(s) exceed the standard and a description of the methods and assumptions used in projecting salaries and benetits. 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met) 

California Dept of Education 

The second interim salaries and benefits proJecUons are reflecting the projected COLA increases as pt1bllshed by the Department of Flnance plus 
anticipated step and column adjustments for staff. The first out year of 2022/23 includes step and column plus a 5.33% COLA increase to the salary 
schedule. The second out year includes only the increases for step and column, no additional COLA has been added to the projection. These 
projections also include anticipated increases to statutory benefits, i.e. STRS, PERS, etc. 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2,0 
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 3 of 24 Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :53 AM 

                                                                 65 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 
46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CSI 

4. CRITERION: Other Revenues and Expenditures

STANDARD: Projected operating revenues (including federal, other state, and other local) or expenditures (including books and supplies, and services 
and other operating) for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years have not changed by more than five percent since first interim 
projections. 

Changes that exceed five percent in any major object category must be explained. 

County Offic e 's Oth e r Re venu e s and Exp e nditure s Stan dard Percentage Range : 1-------6=·=0•"'"'¼,�t=o_+-=6-'-'.0�•1,�, ----1 

County Offic e 's Oth e r R e ve nue s a n d Expe nditure s Explanation P e rc e ntag e Ra n ge: ,__ ____ ·6�-�0=o/o�t=o _+-=5=.o�•;.�• ---� 

4A. Calculating the County Office's Change by Major Object Category and Comparison to the Explanation Percentage Range 

DATA ENTRY: First lnlerim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. Second Interim data for Current Year are extracted. If Second Interim Form MYPI 
exists, data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years into the second column. 

Explanations must be entered for each category if the percent change for any year exceeds the county office's explanation percentage range. 

Object Range I Flscal Year 

First Interim 
Projected Year Totals 

(Form 01CSI, Item 4A) 

Second interim 
Projected Year Totals 
(Fund 01/Form MYPI) Percent Change 

Federal Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 810
�
0_-8_2_9_9�>�<M_Y_P_l�Ll_n_e_A2�:> __ �---------�------------

Current Year (2021-22) 173 931.00 I 159,842.00 I 
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 173,931.00 I 
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 173,931.00 I 

161151_00 I 
161,151.00 I 

-8.1% 
-7,3% 
-7.3% 

Change Is Outside 
Explanation Range 

I Yes 

I Yes 

I Yes 

Explanation: 
(required if Yes) 

The revenues have been revised to renect currenlaward amounts for the various specific programs and resources. The McKinney-Vento program did 
not provide an award for the 2021122 fiscal year and has been removed from the revenues. This was an approximate ($12,000) reduction. Other 
smaller miscellaneous adjustments were also made to awards. 

I 

I 

Other State Reve nue (Fun d 01, Objects.--8�3�0""0-'-8�5=9-'-9'-"-f""o---'rm""""Mc..Y'-'P---'I'-, L""l"'n""e-'rA'-'3.,_ ________ ......, _____________ .-----------, 
Current Year (2021-22) 1,067,883.00 
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) no 842,00 
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 920,842.00 

1 070 527.00 
865.891.00 
856 891.00 

0.2% No 
-7.1% Yes 
-7 1% Yes 

Explanation: 
(required if Yes) 

Revenues for the current year have been removed from both the first and second out years as they are not anticipated to continue. These are one 
time awards in the current fiscal year. 

Other Local Reve nue (Fund 01, Objecte_B6'-0_0_·8'-7_9_9�F---'o---'rm_M_Y_P_l�Ll_n_o..,.A---'4�----------------------�---------� 
Current Year (2021-22) 407,50.0.00 
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 407 500.00 
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 407,500.00 

Expla n atio n : 
(required if Yes) 

409,500.00 
409,500.00 
409 500.00 

0,5% No 
0.5% No 
0.5% No 

Books and Supplie s (Fund 01, Objects
'°'
4""0"'"00,_•---'4'-99'-9�_Fo�r�m�M'"'Y"'"P�l,-=L=in'""e

'-=i-
B4-"-----------.----------------.-----------, 

Current Year (2021-22) 107,798.00 
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 97.211.00 
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 97 211.00 

119,900.00 
107 727.00 
107,727.00 

11.2% Yes 

10,8% Yes 
10.8% Yes 

Explanation: 
(required if Yes) 

Expenditures In the first and seoond out years have been removed for programs lhat are not anticipated to continue beyond the current fiscal year. 
These are expenditures that are from one time sources In the current fiscal year. 

Services and Other Operating Expendl
;,
t u

:..:•.:::es::..i.:F_:u:..:n:.=d_:0:.;1:.i....:O;.::b:.i..:ec=ts:...;:;6 0:..:0:.::0_:·6e;9:.::9c::9L.l.!.F..:o:.:crm"-'-'M::.:.Y-'-'P"-'I"-, =:cl::.:.lnc:cll.:B,.,6"---------------�---------� 
Current Year (2021-22) 660,523.00 753,033.00 
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 

639 683,00 
639.683.00 

529.870.00 
529 870.00 

14.0% Yes 
-17.2% Yes 
-17.2% Yes 

Explanation: 
(required if Yes) 

Expenditures in tt,e first and second out years have been removed for programs that are not anticipated to continue beyond the current fiscal year, 
These are expenditures that are from one time sources in the current fiscal year. 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: csi-c (Rev 02/2612021) Page 4 of 24 Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :53 AM 

                                                                 66 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

4B. Calculatjn9 the County Offfce·s Change in Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures 

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated. 

Ob!ect Range I Fiscal Year 
First Interim 

Projected Year Totals 
Second Interim 

Projected Year Totals Percent Change 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CSI 

Status 

Total Federal, Other State, and Other L;=
o..::c.=al'-'R�o;:.va..:e:..:n.:.:U:..:O:::Sc.=S..::e-=-cti=-·o"'n�4A:...:,.�-----------,---------------,-------------, 

Current Year (2021-22) 1.649.314.00 
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 1,502,273.00 
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 1,502,273,00 

1,639,869.00 
1.426,542.00 
1 426,542.00 

-0.6% Met 
-5.0% Met 
-5.0% Met 

Total Books and Supplie s, and ServlceFa�a�n�d_O�th�e�r�O=e�ra�U�n=-'-'E __ x=en�d,i-"tu"'r�e�s�S�e""c�t __ lo"'1�1 4�A-"'-----,---------,-------.,------:-c---:-.,------, 
Current Year (2021-22) 768,321.00 87 933.00 13.6% Not Met 
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 736,894.00 637 597.00 -13.5% Not Met 
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 736,894.00 637 597,00 -13.5% Not Met 

4C. Comparison of County Office Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures to the Standard Percentage Range 

DATA ENTRY: Explanations are linked from Section 4A if the status in Section 4B is not met; no entry is allowed below. 

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected total operating revenues have not changed since first interim projections by more than the standard for the current and two subsequent fiscal years. 

Explanation: 
Federal Revenue 
(linked from 4A 

if NOT met) 

Explanation: 
Other State Revenue 

(linked from 4A 
if NOT met) 

Explanation: 
Other Local Revenue 

(linked from 4A 
if NOT met) 

1 b. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected 101111 operating expenditures have changed since firsl Interim projections by more than the standard in one or more of the current or two 
subsequent fiscal years. Reasons for the projected change, descrlpllc;ms of the methods and assumptions used In the projections, and what changes. If any, will be made to bring 
the projected operating expenditures within the standard must be entered in Section 4A above and will also display in the explanation box below. 

Explanation: 
Books and Supplies 

(linked from 4A 
if NOT met) 

Explanation: 
Services and Other Exps 

(linked from 4A 
if NOT met) 

California Dept of Education 

Expenditures in the first and second out years have been removed for programs that are not anticipated lo continue beyond lhe current fiscal year. 
These are expenditures that are from one time sources in the current fiscal year 

Expend1tures in the first and second out years have been removed for programs that are not anllclpated to continue beyond the current fiscal year. 
These are expenditures that are from one time sources in the current fiscal year. 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: csl-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 5 of 24 Printed: 31212022 11 :53 AM 

                                                                 67 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

5. CRITERION: Facilities Maintenance

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 
46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CSI 

STANDARD: Identify changes that have occurred since first interim projections in the projected contributions for facilities maintenance funding as 
required pursuant to Education Code Section 17070. 75, or in how the county office is providing adequately to preserve the functionality of its facilities 
for their normal life in accordance with Education Code sections 52066(d)(1) and 17002(d)(1). 

Determining the County Office's Compliance with the Contribution Requirement for EC Section 17070.75 - Ongoing and Major 
Maintenance/Restricted Maintenance Account (OMMA/RMA) 

NOTE: EC Section 17070.75 requires the county office to deposit into the account a minimum amount equal to or greater than three percent of the total unrestricted general fund 
expenditures ao� oilier financing uses for that fiscal year. 

DATA ENTRY: Enter the Required Minimum Contribution if First Interim data does not exist. First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter First Interim data into lines 1, if 
applicable, and 2. All other data are extracted. 

1. OMMNRMA Contribution 

2, First Interim Contribution (information only) 
(Form 0lCSI, First Interim, Criterion 5, Line 1) 

Required Minimum 
Contribution 

Second Interim Contribution 
Projected Year Totals 

(Fund 01, Resource 8150, 
Ob'ects 8900-8999 

0.00 

o.oo 1

If status is not met, enter an X in the box that best describes why the minimum required contribution was not made: 

Status 

Not Met 

c::::-c:=J Not applicable (county office does not participate in the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998) 

c=:=J Other (explanation must be provided) 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met 

and Other is marked) 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 6 of 24 Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :53 AM 

                                                                 68 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

6. CRITERION: Deficit Spending

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 
46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CSI 

STANDARD: Unrestricted deficit spending (total unrestricte·d expenditures and other financing uses is greater than total unrestricted revenues and 
other financing sources) as a percentage of total unrestricted expenditures and other financing uses, has not exceeded one-third of the county office's 
available reserves' as a percentage of total expenditures and other financing uses' in any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years. 

' Available reserves are the unrestricted amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reserve for Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the County 
Scl1ool Service Fund and the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital OuUay Proiects. Available teserves will be reduced by any negative ending balances in restricted 
resources in the County School Service Fund. 

2 A county omce of education that is the Administrative Unit (AU) of a Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) may exclude from its expenditures the distribution of funds to its 
participating members. 

GA. Calculatlng lhe County Office's Deficit Spending Standard Percentage Levels 

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated. 

Current Year 
2021-22 

County Office's Available Reserves Percentage 
(Criterion 8B, Line 9) 119.1% 

1st Subsequent Year 
2022-23 

118.6% 

2nd Subsequent Year 
2023-24 

112.4% 

County Office's DoOclt Standard Percentage Levels I (one-third of available reserves percentage}:
..__ ------'3

'-'
9
""
.7'-'0A-'-o ____ .,_ ____ ---'3�9"'

.5
ac

0A-'-o _____ ..._ ___ --=3-'-7=.5-'-
%

'------' 

68. Calculating the County Office's Special Education Pass-through Exclusions (only for county offices that serve as the AU of a SELPA) 

DATA ENTRY: For SELPA AUs, if Form MYPI exists, all data will be extracted including the YeS/No button selection. If not, click the appropriate Yes or No button for item 1 and, if Yes, 
enter data for item 2a and for the two subsequent years in item 2b; Current Year data are extracted. 

For county offices that serve as the AU of a SELPA (Form MYPI, Lines F1a, F1b1, and F1b2): 
1. Do you choose to exclude pass-through funds distributed to SELPA members from the 

calculations for deficit spending and reserves? 
2. If you are the SELPA AU and are excluding special education pass-through funds: 

a. Enter the name(s) of the SELPA(s): 

Current Year 
Projected Year Totals 

(2021-22) 

o.oo I

b. Special Education Pass-through Funds 
(Fund 1 o, resources 3300-3499, 6500-6540 and 6546, 
objects 7211-7213 and 7221-7223) 

SC. Calculatlng the County Office's Deficit Spending Percentages 

Yes-

1st Subsequent Year 
(2022-23) 

2nd Subsequent Year 
(2023-24) 

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If Form MYPI exists, data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years into the first and 
second columns. 

Fiscal Year 
Current Year (2021-22) 
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 

Projected Year Totals 
Net Change in Total Unreslricted Expenditures 

Unrestricted Fund Balance and Ottier Financing Uses 
(Form 011, Section E) (Form 011, Objects 1000-7999) 

Form MYPI Line C ·Form MYPI Line B11 

5,010.00 1.462 008,00 
125 374.00 1,395,593.00 
126,363.00 1,419,373.00 

SD. Comparison of County Office Deficit Spending to the Standard 

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met. 

Deficit Spending Level 
(If Net Change in Unrestricted Fund 

Balance is ne alive else N/A 
0.3% 
9.0% 
8.9% 

Status 
Met 
Met 
Met 

1a. STANDARD MET• Unrestricted deficit spending, if any, has not exceeded the standard percentage level in any of the current year or two subsequent fiscal years. 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met) 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software• 2021.2 o 
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 7 of 24 Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :53 AM 

                                                                 69 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

7. CRITERION: Fund and Cash Balances 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 
46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CSI 

A. FUND BALANCE STANDARD: Projected county school service fund balances will be positive at the end of the current fiscal year and two subsequent
fiscal years. 

7 A-1. Determining if the County Office's County School Service Fund Ending Balance is Positive 

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If Form MYPI exists, data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years. 

Fiscal Year 

Current Year (2021-22) 

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 

Ending Fund Balance 

County School Service Fund 

Projected Year Totals 

(Form 011 Line F2 )/(Form MYPI, Line D2) 

3 sss,so1 .oo I 
3 460 133,00 I 
3.333. 110.00 I 

7A-2. Comparison or the County Office's Ending Fund Balance to the Standard 

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met. 

Status 

Met I 
Met 

Met I 

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected county school service fund ending balance is positive for the current fiscal year and two subsequent fiscal years. 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met) 

B. CASH BALANCE STANDARD: Projected county school service fund cash balance will be positive at the end of the current fiscal year. 

7B-1. Determining If the County Office's Ending Cash Balance is Positive 

DATA ENTRY: If Form CASH exists, data will be extracted; if not, data must be entered below. 

Flsc_al Year 
Current Year (2021-22) 

Ending Cash Balance 
County School Service Fund 

Form CASH, Line F June Column 
3 679,791.24 

78-2. Comparison of the County Office's Ending Cash Balance to the Standard 

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met. 

Statu_s 
Met 

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected county school service fund cash balance will be positive at the end of the current fiscal year. 

Explanation: 
(required if NOT met} 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 8 of 24 Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :53 AM 

                                                                 70 of 94



2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 
46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CSI 

8. CRITERION: Reserves

STANDARD: Available reserves' for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years are not less than the following percentages or 
amounts as applied to total expenditures and other financing uses•: 

County Office's Expenditures and Other Financing 
Uses (Criterion BA1), plus.SELPA Pass-through 

Percentage Level' 

5% or $71,000 (greater of) 
4% or $316,000 (greater of) 
3% or $632,000 (greater of) 
2% or $2,132,000 (greater of) 

County Office Total Expenditures 
and Other Financing Uses• 

0 to 

$6,318,000 

$15,795,000 

$71,Q78,001 

to 

to 

and 

$6,317,999 

$15,794,999 

$71,078,000 

over 

' Available reserves are the unrestricted amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reserve for 
Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the County School Service Fund 
and the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects. Available reserves will be reduced 
by any negative ending balances in restricted resources in the County School Service Fund. 

2 A county office of education that is the Administrative Unit (AU) of a Special Education Local Plan Area 
(SELPA) may exclude from its expenditures the distribution of funds to its participating members. 

' Dollar amounts to be adjusted annually by the prior year statutory cost-of-living adjustment, as 
referenced in EC Section 2574, rounded to the nearest thousand. 

Current Year 
2021-22 

1st Subsequent Year 
2022-23 

2nd Subsequent Year 
2023-24 

(Criterion 6B2b) if Criterion 6B, Line 1 is No: c_ _ _  --=2::..:,9:..:3c.::
3

:..:,2:..:B.::.8 ___ ---'------=2
::..:,8:..:3c.::9:..:,3c.::

0
.::.
6 _____ c_ __ ...,:a2

.:;8.::.84
.:.,,::_

66
""
6
'--__ __, 

County Office's Reserve Standard Percentage Level: �I _____ s�•�y•----�------6�%�•------�---�6�%�• ----� 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 9 of 24 Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :53 AM 

                                                                 71 of 94



2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

BA. Calculating the County Office's Reserve Standard 

DATA ENTRY: If Form MYPI exists, all data are extracted or calculated. If not, enter data for line 1 for the two subsequent years; Current Year data are extracted. 

1. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

(Form 011, objects 1000-7999) (Form MYPI, Line 811) 

2. Plus: Special Education Pass-through 

(Criterion 68, Line 2b if Criterion 68, Line 1 is No) 

3. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

(Line A 1 plus Line A2) 

4. Reserve Standard Percentage Level 

5. Reserve Standard - by Percent 

(Line A3 times Line A4) 

6. Reserve Standard - by Amount 

(From percentage level chart above) 
7. County Office's Reserve Standard 

(Greater of Line A6 or Line A6) 

BB. Calculating the County Office's Available Reserve Amount 

Current Year 

Projected Year Totals 

12021-22) 

2,933,288.00 

2,933,288.00 

5% 

146,664.40 

71 000,00 

146 664.40 

1st Subsequent Year 
(2022-23) 

2,639,306.00 

2,839 306.00 

5% 

141 965.30 

71,000.00 

141,966.30 

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted from fund data and Form MYPI. If Form MYPI does not exist, enter data for the two subsequent years. 

Reserve Amounts 

(Unrestricted resources 0000-1999 except line 4) 

1. County School Service Fund - Stabilization Arrangements 

(Fund 01, Object 9750) (Form MYPI, Line E1a) 
2. County School Service Fund - Reserve for Economic 

3. 

4. 

Uncertainties (Fund 01, Object 97B9) (Form MYPI, Line E1b) 

County School Service Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

(Fund 01, Object 9790) (Forrn MYPI, Line E1c) 

5. 

6. 

7. 

B. 

9, 

County School Service Fund - Negative Ending 8al9nces in 
Restricted Resou(ces (Fund 01, Object 979Z, If negative, 
lor eacl1 or resources 2000-9999) (Form MYPI, Line E1d) 

Special Reserve Fund - Stabilization Arrangements 

(Fund 17, Object 9750) (Form MYPI, Line E2a) 
Special Reserve fund - Reserve for Economlt Uncertainties 
(Fund 17, Object 9769) (Form MYPI, Line E2b) 

Special Reserve Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

(Fund 17, Object 9790) (Form MYPI, Line E2c) 

County Office's Available Reserve Amount 

(Lines 81 thru 87) 
County Office's Available Reserile Percentage (Information only) 
(Une 8 divided by Section BA, Line 3) 

County Office's Reserve Standard 

(Section 8A, Line 7) 

Status 

BC. Comparison of County Office Reserve Amount to the Standard 

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met. 

: 

: 

Current Year 

Projected Year Totals 

(2021-22) 

0.00 

395,000.00 

3 097 522.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

3,492,522.00 

119.07% 

146,664.40 

Met 

1a. STANDARD MET - Available reserves have met the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years. 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met) 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: csi-c (Rev 02/20/2021) Page 10 of 24 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2022-23) 

395,000.00 

2 972.148,00 

0.00 

3,367, 14B.00 

116.59% 

141 966.30 

Met 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CSI 

2nd Subsequent Year 

!2023-241 

2,884 666.00 

2 B64 ,666.00 

5% 

144,233.30 

71,000.00 

144,233.30 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2023-241 

395,000.00 

2,645,765.00 

0,00 

3,240,785.00 

112,35% 

144 233.30 

Met 

Printed: 3/212022 11 :53 AM 

                                                                 72 of 94



2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for items S1 through S4. Enter an explanation for each Yes answer. 

S1. Contingent liabilities 

1a. Does your county office have any known or contingent liabilities (e.g .• financial or program audits, litlgaUon, 
state compliance reviews) t�at have occurred since first interim projections that may impact the budget? 

1b. If Yes, identify the liabilities and how they may impact the budget: 

S2. Use of One-time Revenues for Ongoing Expenditures 

1a. Does your county office have ongoing county school service fund expenditures funded with one-time 
revenues that have changed since first interim projections by more than five percent? 

No 

No 

1b. If Yes, identify the expenditures and explain how the one-time resources will be replaced to continue funding the ongoing expenditures in the following fiscal years: 

S3. Temporary lnterfund Borrowings 

1a. Does your county office have projected temporary borrowings between funds? 

(Refer to Education Code Section 42603) 

1b. If Yes, identify the interfund borrowings: 

S4. Contingent Revenues 

1 a. Does your county office have projected revenues for the current fiscal year or either of the two subsequent 
fiscal years contingent on reauthorization by the local government, special legislation, or other definitive act 
(e.g., parcel taxes, forest reserves)? 

No 

No 

1b. If Yes, identify any of these revenues that are dedicated for ongoing expenses and explain how the revenues will be replaced or expenditures reduced: 

California Dept of Education 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CSI 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: csi-c (Rev 02126/2021) Page 11 of 24 Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :53 AM 

                                                                 73 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

$5. Contributions 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of EducaUon Criteria and Standards Review 
46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CSI 

ldanlify proIected contributions lrom unrestricted resour,;es in the county school service fund to restricted resources in the county school service fund for the current fiscal year and 
two subsequent fiscal years. Provide an e·xplanation if contributions have changed by more than $20,000 and more than five percent since first interim projections. 

Identify pro1ected transfers to ·or from the county school service fund to cover operating deficits in either the county school service fund or any other fund for the current fiscal year 
and two subsequent fiscal years. Provide an explanation if transfers have changed by more than $20,000 and more than five percent since first interim projections. 

Identify capital project cost overruns that have occurred since first interim projections that may impact the county school service fund budget. 

-5.0% to +5.0% 
County Office's Contributions and Transfers Standard: �--o� r_-�$_2�0._0�0 �0�to"--+

.,_$�20=0-'-00"--_� 

SSA. Identification of lhe County Office's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects that may Impact the County School Service Fund 

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted: otherwise, enter data into the first column. For Contributions, the Second lnterim's Current Year data will be extracted. Enter 
Second Interim Contribullons for the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. For Transfers in and Transfers Out, the Second lnterim's Current Year data will be extracted. If Form MYPI exists, the 
data will be extracted into the Second Interim column for the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. If Form MYPI does not exist, enter data for 1st and 2nd Subs.equent Years. Click on the 
appropriate button for Item 1d; all other data will be calculated. 

Description / Fiscal Year 
First Interim 

(Form 01CSI, Item SSA) 

1a. Contributions, Unrestricted County School Service Fund 

Second Interim 
Projected Year Totals 

Percent 
Change Amount Of Change Status 

(Fund 01, Resources 0000-1999, Object
,..

8�9�8 �0�--------,-----------�----r----------,-- ----------, 
Current Year (2021-22) 65.7% 
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 

108,762.00 
219,040.00 
242,95B.00 

180,225.00 
429,201.00 
450,781.00 

71,463.00 Not Met 
95.9% 210,161.00 Not Met 
85.5% 207,823.00 Not Met 

1b. Transfers In, County School Service Fu
r
n_d�•---------�--------------�---------�----------� 

Current Year (2021-22) 
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 

56,697.00 
56,697.00 
56,697.00 

58,276.00 2.8% 
58 276.00 2.8% 

58,276.00 2.8% 

1,579.00 Met 
1.579 00 Met 
1 579.00 Met 

1c. Transfers Out, County School Service ... Fu�n"'-d=-·------- -�-----------�--�- ---------�---------� 
Current Year (2021-22) 
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 

1d. Capital Project Cost Overruns 

0.00 
0,00 
0.00 

Have capital project cost overruns occurred since first interim projections that may impact 
the county school service fund operational budget? 

• Include transfers used to cover operating deficits in either the county school service fund or any other fund, 

S5B. Status of the County Office's Projected Contributions, Transfers. and Capital Projects 

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if Not Met for items 1a-1c or if Yes for item 1d. 

0.00 0.0% 0.00 Met 
0.00 0.0% 0.00 Met 
0.00 0.0% 0.00 Met 

No 

1a. NOT MET - The projected contributions from the unrestricted county school service fund to restricted county school service fund programs have changed since first interim 
pr0Jocl1ons by more than the standard for any of the current year or subsequent two fiscal years. Identify restricted programs and contribution amount for each program and 
whether contributions are ongoing or one-time in nature. Explain the county office's plan, with timeframes, for reducing or eliminating the contribution. 

Explanation: 
(required if NOT met) 

The one time awards received for COVID relief from federal and state sources have helped the county pay for costs that would have otherwise been 
included in program sources. The movement of these expenditures from program to COVID relief sources allowed for the reduction in contributions 
from the general unrestricted fund to the restricted resources. The COVID relief funding is not anticipated to continue into the out years and have 
been removed from those years, lncrea�ing 

__ the 
_
anticipat�d contribution. _The first and second out ye�,rs have, had an increase in contributions to the 

1b. MET - Projected transfers In have not changed since first interim projections by more than the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years. 

Explanation: 
(required if NOT met) 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: csi-c (Rev 02/2612021) Page 12 of 24 Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :53 AM 

                                                                 74 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

1c. MET - Projected transfers out have not changed since first interim projections by more than the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years. 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met) 

1d. NO - There have been no capital project cost overruns occurring since first interim projections that may Impact the county school service fund operational budget. 

Project Information: 

(required If YES) 

California Dept of Education 

NIA 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CSI 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 13 of 24 Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :53 AM 

                                                                 75 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

S6. Long-term Commitments 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

Identify all existing and new multiyear commitments' and their annual required payment for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years. 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CSI 

Explain how any increase in annual payments will be funded. Also, explain how any decrease to funding sources used to pay long-term commitments will be replaced. 

'Include multiyear commitments, multiyear debt agreements, and new programs or contracts that result in long-term obligations. 

SSA. Identification of the County Office's Long-term Commitments 

DATA ENTRY: If First Interim (Form 01 CSI, Item S6A) data exist, long-term commitment data will be extracted and it will only be necessary to click the appropriate button for Item 1 b. 
Extracted data may be overwritten to update long-term commitment data in item 2, as applicable. If no First Interim data exist, click the appropriate buttons for items 1a and 1b, and enter 
all other data, as applicable. 

1. a. Does your county office have long-term (multiyear) commitments? 
(If No, skip items 1 b and 2 and sections S6B and S6C) 

b. If Yes to Item 1a, have new long-term (multiyear) commitments been incurred 
since first interim projections? 

Yes 

No 

2. If Yes to Item 1a, list (or update) all new and existing multiyear commitments and required annual debt service amounts. Do not include long-term commitments for postemployment 
benefits other than pensions (OPEB); OPEB is disclosed in Item S7 A. 

# of Years SACS Fund and Object Codes Used For: 
Tvoe of Commitment Remalnino Fundino Sources /Revenues) Debt Service (Expenditures) 

Leases 
Certificates of Participation 
General Obligation Bonds 
Supp Early Retirement Program 
State School Building Loans 
Compensated Absences 1 General Fund, Unrestricted 

Other Long-term Commitments (do not include OPEB}: 

TOTAL: 

Tvoe of Commitment /ccnlinuedl, 
Leases 
Certificates of Participation 
General Obligation Bonds 
Supp Early Retirement Program 
State School Building Loans 
Compensated Absences 

Olher Long-term Commitments (continued)· 

Total Annual Payments: 

Prior Year 
(2020-21) 

Annual Payment 
IP& II 

16.910 

16.910 
Has total annual payment Increased over prior year (2020-21)? 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) 

Current Year 
(2021-22) 

Annual Payment 
(P& l) 

Yes 

Page 14 of 24 

21 346 

21 346 

1st Subsequent Year 
(2022-23) 

Annual Payment 
(P &I) 

No 

0 

0 

Principal Balance 
as of Julv 1, 2021 

21,346 

21 346 

2nd Subsequent Year 
(2023-24) 

Annual Payment 
IP & ll 

No 

0 

0 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :53 AM 

                                                                 76 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

S6B. Comparison of the County Office's Annual Payments to Prior Year Annual Payment 

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if Yes. 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CSI 

1 a. Yes - Annual payments for long-term commitments have increased in one or more of the current or two subsequent fiscal years. Explain how the increase in annual payments will 
be funded. 

Explanation: 

(required if Yes to 
increase in total 

annual payments) 

The increase in compensated absences is due to staff not taking paid time off during tne fiscal year. Addltlonat staff have also been hired to assist 
with COVID related duties, which has increased the calculated compensated absences. 

SSC. ldenllflcalion of Decreases lo Funding Sources Used to Pay Long-term Commitments 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button in Item 1; if Yes, an explanation is required in Item 2. 

1. Will funding sources used to pay long-term commitments decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, or are they one-time sources? 

Yes 

2. Yes - Funding sources will decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, or one-time funding sources are being used for long-term commitment annual payments. 
Provide an explanation for how those funds will be replaced to continue annual debt service commitments. 

Explanation: 
(Required if Yes) 

California Depl of Education 

Some sources of funding are being uiilized to cover those staff that are being paid with one time COVID sources. When these funds expire the source 
of funding to pay any continuing compensated absences will be moved Into other resources, restricted or unrestricted, as needed and designated for 
the ongoing program and staffing needs. 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 15 of 24 Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :53 AM 

                                                                 77 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

S7. Unfunded Liabilities 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 
46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CSI 

Identify any changes in estimates for unfunded liabilities since first interim projections, and indicate whether the changes are the result of a new actuarial valuation. 

S7 A. Identification or the County Office's Estimated Unfunded Llablllty for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button(s) for items 1a-1c, as applicable. First Interim data that exist (Form 01CSI, Item S7A) will be extracted; otherwise, enter First Interim and 
Second Interim data in items 2-4. 

1, a. Does your county office provide postemployment benefits 
other than pensions (OPEB)? (If No, skip items 1 b-4) 

b If Yes to Item 1a, have there been changes since 
first interim in OPEB liabilities? 

c If Yes lo Item 1 a, have there been changes since 
first interim in OPEB contributions? 

2. OPES Liabilities 
a. Total OPES liability 
b, OPES plan(s) fiduciary net position (if applicable) 
c. TotaVNet OPES liability (Line 2a minus Line 2b) 
d. Is total OPEB liability based on the county office's 

estimate or an actuarial valuation? 
e. If based on an actuarial valuation, indicate the measurement 

date of the OPEB valuation 

3. OPEB Contributions 
a OPES actuarially determined contribution (ADC) if available, 

per actuarial valuation or Alternative Measurement Method 
Current Year (2021-22) 
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 

Yes 

No 

No 

First Interim 
{Form 01CSI, Item S7Al 

103,374.00 
0,00 

103 374,00 

Actuarial 

Jun 30, 2018 

First Interim 
Form 01CSI. Item S7A 

13.703,00 
13,703.00 
13,703.00 

b OPEB amount contributed (for this purpose, include premiums paid to a self-insurance fund) 
(Funds 01-70, objects 3701-3752) 

Current Year (2021-22) 
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 

c. Cost of OPEB benefits (equivalent of "pay-as-you-go" amount) 
Current Year (2021-22) 
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 

d. Number of retirees receiving OPEB benefits 
Current Year (2021-22) 
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 

4. Comments: 

California Dept of Education 

NIA 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) 

0.00

1 
0,00 
0.00 

70,144.00 
52,608.00 
35 072.00 

Page 16 of 24 

Second Interim 
103,374.00 

0,00 
103,374,00 

Actuarial 

Jun 30 2018 

Second Interim 
13,703.00 
13,703.00 
13,703.00 

0.00 
I 0.00 

0.00 

70.144.00 
52,608,00 
35,072.00 

Printed: 3/212022 11 :53 AM 
                                                                 78 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

S7B. ldentlfication of the County Office's Unfunded Liabili!Y for Self-insurance Programs 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CSI 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button(s) for items 1a-1c, as applicable. First Interim data that exist (Form 01CSI, Item S7B) will be extracted; otherwise, enter First Interim and 
Second Interim data in items 2-4. 

1. a. Does·your county office operate any sclf-im,urance programs 
such as workers' compensation, employee health and 
welfare, or property and llablllty? (Do not Include OPES, 
which is covered In Section S7 A) (If No, skip items 1 l>-4) 

b. If Yes to item 1a, have there been changes since 
first interim in self-insurance llabllities? 

c. If Yes to item 1a, have there been changes since 
first interim in self-Insurance contributions? 

2. Self-Insurance Liabilities 

a. Accrued liability for self-insurance programs 
b. Unfunded liability for self-insurance programs 

3. Self-Insurance Contributions 
a, Required contribution (funding) for self-insurance programs 

Current Year (2021-22) 
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 

b. Amount contributed (funded) for self-insurance programs 
Current Year (2021-22) 
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 

4. Comments: 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) 

No 

n/a 

First Interim 

Form 01CSI, Item S7B 

First Interim 
Form 01CSI, Item S7B 

Page 17 of 24 

Second Interim 

Second Interim 

Printed: 3/212022 11 :53 AM 

                                                                 79 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 
46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CSI 

S8. Status of Labor Agreements 

Analyze lhe status of all employee labor agreements Identify new labor agreements that have been ratified since first Interim projections, as weU-as new commitments provided as 
part or previously ratified multlyear agreements: and include all contracts, Including all administrator contracts (and Including all compensation). For new agreements, indicate the 
date oI tl1e required board meeting. Compare the increase In new commitments to the projected increase In ongoing revenues, and explain how these commitments will be funded 
in future fiscal years. 
If salary and benefit negotiations are not finalized, upon settlement with certificated or classified staff: 

The county office of education must determine the cost of the settlement, including salaries, benefits, and any other agreements that change costs, and provide the California 
Department of Educallon (ODE) with an analysis of the cost of the settlement and its impact on the operating budget. 

The CDE shall review the analysis relative to the criteria and standards, and may provide written comments to the president of the governing board and the county superintendent 
of schools. 

SBA. Cost Analysis of County Office's Labor Agreements - Certificated (Non-management) Employees 

DATA ENTRY: Click lhe appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of Certificated Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period." There are no extractions in this section. 

Status of Certificated Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period 
Were all certificated labor negotiations settled as of first interim projections? 

If Yes, complete number of FTEs, then skip to section SSB. 
If No, continue with section SSA. 

Certificated (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations 

Prior Year (2nd Interim) 
(2020..21) 

Current Year 
(2021-22) 

Numpef of certificated (non-management) full
time-equlvalent (FTE) positions 

1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since first interim projections? 
If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents 
have not been filed with the COE, complete questions 2-4. 

If No, complete questions 5 and 6 

1 b. Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled? 
If Yes, complete questions 5 and 6. 

Negotletlons Settled since First Interim Protections 
2. Per Government Code Section 3547.5(a), date of public disclosure board meeting: 

3. Period covered by the agreement: Begin Date:I � __ J_u_l 0_1�, _2_02_1_� 

4. Salary settlement: 

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiyear 
projections (MYPs)? 

One Year Agreement 

Total cost of salary settlement 

Current Year 
(2021-22) 

Yes 

No 

Yes 

No 

Dec 13, 2021 

End Date: 

% change in salary schedule from prior year .__ __________ J 
or 

Multiyear Agreement 

Total cost of salary settlement 17 565 

1st Subsequent Year 
(2022-23) 

Jun 30, 2023 

1st Subsequent Year 
(2022-23) 

Yes 

9,064 

% change in salary schedule from prior year 
(may enter text, such es "Reopenet") 5.1% COLA adooted per Governor's budaet 

Identify the source of funding that will be used to support multiyear salary commitments: 

General Fund, unrestricted and restricted sources as per staff assignments. 

Negolletlolls Not Se� 
5. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits 

6. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases 

California Dept of Education 

Current Year 
(2021-22) 

1st Subsequent Year 
(2022-23) 

I 

2nd Subsequent Year 
(2023-24) 

2nd Subsequent Year 
(2023-24) 

Yes 

0.0% 

2nd Subsequent Year 
(2023-24) 

0 

I 

SACS Financial Reporting Software• 2021.2.0 
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 18 of 24 Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :53 AM 

                                                                 80 of 94



2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

Certificated (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits 

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the interim and MYPs? 

2. Total cost of H&W benefits 

3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer 

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year 

Certificated (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements Negotiated 
Since First Interim Projections 

Are any new costs negotiated since first interim projections for prior year 
settlements included in the interim? 

If Yes, amount of new costs included in the interim and MYPs 
If Yes, explain the nature of the new costs: 

Certificated (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments 

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MYPs? 

2. Cost of step & column adjustments 

3. Percent change in step & column over prior year 

Certificated (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) 

1. Are savings from attrition included In the interim and MYPs? 

2. Are additional H&W benefits for those laid-off or retired 
employees included in the interim and MYPs? 

Certificated (Non-management) - Other 

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 

(2021-22) (2022-23) 

Yes Yes 

122,561 

62.0% 62.0% 

0,0% 0.0% 

No 

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 

(2021-22) (2022-23) 

Yes Yes 

13,262 

4 0% 4.0% 

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 

(2021-22) (2022-23) 

Yes Yes 

Yes Yes 

122 561 

I 

13,751 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CSI 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2023-24) 

Yes 

122 561 

62.0% 

0.0% 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2023-24) 

Yes 

14 265 

4.0% 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2023-24) 

Yes 

Yes 

List other significant contract changes that have occurred since first interim projections and the cost impact of each change (i.e., class size, hours of employment, leave of absence, 
bonuses, etc ): 

N/A 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 19 of 24 Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :53 AM 

                                                                 81 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

S8B. Cost Analysis of County Office's Labor Agreements - Classified {Non-management) Employees 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CSI 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of Classified Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period." There are no extractions in this section. 

Status of Classified Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period 
Were all classified labor negotiations settled as of first interim projections? 

If Yes, complete number of FTEs, then skip to section sac.

If No, continue with section S8B. 

Classified (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations 

Prior Year (2nd Interim) 
2020-21 

Current Year 
2021-22 

Number of classified (non-management) FTE 
positions 9.7 

1 a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since first interim projections? 
If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents 

have not been filed with the CDE, complete questions 2-4. 

If No, complete questions 5 and 6. 

1 b. Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled? 
If Yes, complete questions 5 and 6. 

Negotjation� Settled Since First Interim Projections 
2. Per Government Code Section 3547.S(a), date of public disclosure board meeting: 

3. Period covered by the agreement: 

4, Salary setllement: 

Begin Date: Lj-�J�u�I 0_1�·�2�02_1 _ __, 

Current Year 
(2021-22) 

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiyear 
projections (MYPs)? 

One Year Agreement 

Total cost of salary settlement 

Yes 

No 

10.1 

Yes 

No 

Dec 13, 2021 

End Date: 

% change in salary schedule from prior year�-----------' 
or 

Multlyear Agreement 

Total cost of salary settlement 13,011 

1st Subsequent Year 
2022-23 

Jun 30, 2023 

1st Subsequent Year 
(2022-23) 

Yes 

10.1 

6,714 

% change in salarv schedule from prior year 
(may enter text, such as "Reopener") 5.1% COLA adopted per Governor's budce 

Identify the source of funding that will be used to support multiyear salary commitments: 

General F1.1nd. unrestrfcled and restricted sources as per staff assignments. 

Negotiations Not s_�t�ed 
5. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits 

6, Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021 2.0 
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) 

Current Year 
(2021-22) 

Page 20 of 24 

1st Subsequent Year 
(2022-23) 

2nd Subsequent Year 
2023-24 

10.1 

2nd Subsequent Year 
(2023-24) 

Yes 

0.0% 

2nd Subsequent Year 
(2023-24) 

0 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :53 AM 

                                                                 82 of 94



2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

Classified (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits 

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the interim and MYPs? 

2. Total cost of H&W benefits 

3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer 

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year 

Classified (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements Negotiated 
Since First Interim 

Are any new costs negotiated since first interim for prior year settlements 
included in the interim? 

If Yes. amount of new costs included in the Interim and MYPs 
If Yes. explain the nature of the new costs: 

Classified (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments 

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MYPs? 

2. Cost of step & column adjustments 

3. Percent change in step & column over prior year 

Classified (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) 

1. Are savings from attrition included in the interim and MYPs? 

2. Are additional H&W benefits for those laid-off or retired 
employees included in the interim and MYPs? 

Classified (Non-management) - Other 

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 

(2021-22) (2022-23) 

Yes Yes 

21,965 

95.0% 95,0% 

0.0% 0.0% 

No 

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 

(2021-22) (2022-23) 

Yes Yes 

21 293 

6,0% 4.0% 

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 

(2021-22) (2022-231 

Yes Yes 

Yes Yes 

21,965 

21 293 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CSI 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2023-24) 

Yes 

21 965 

95.0% 

0.0% 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2023-24) 

Yes 

21,293 

3.0% 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2023-24) 

Yes 

Yes 

List other significant contract changes that have occurred since first interim and the cost impact of each (i.e., hours of employment, leave of absence, bonuses, etc.): 

NIA 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2_0 
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 21 of 24 Printed: 3/212022 11 :53 AM 

                                                                 83 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

SBC. Cost A11alysls of County Office's Labor Agreements - Management/Supervisor/Confidential Employees 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CSI 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of ManagemenVSupervisor/Confidential Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period" There are no 
extractions in this section. 

Status of Management/Supervisor/Confidential Labor Agreements as of the Previous Roportlrn�g�P�o�r_lo�d�-----, 
Were all managerial/confidential labor negotiations settled as of first interim projections? I No 

If Yes or n/a, complete number of FTEs, then skip to S9. 
If No. continue with section sac. 

ManagemenVSuporvisor/Confidential Salary and Benefit Negotiations 

Prior Year (2nd Interim) 
(2020-21) 

Number of management, supervisor, and 
confidential FTE positions 

Current Year 
(2021-22) 

1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since first interim projections? 

If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents 
have not been filed with the COE, complete question 2. 

If No, complete questions 3 and 4. 

1b. Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled? 
If Yes, complete questions 3 and 4, 

Negotiation§ Seltled Smee First Interim Projections 
2. Salary settlement: 

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiyear 
proJections (MYPs)? 

Negotiations Not SetUed 

Total cost of salary settlement 

Change in salary schedule from prior year 
(may enter text, such as "Reopener") 

3. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits 

4. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases 

Management/Supervisor/Confidential 

Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits 

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the interim and MYPs? 
2. Total cost of H&W benefits 
3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer 
4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year 

Management/Supervisor/Confldentlal 
Step and Column Adjustments 

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interm and MYPs? 
2. Cost of step & column adjustments 
3. Percent change in step & column over prior year 

Management/Supervisor/Confidential 

Other Benefits (mileage, bonuses, etc.) 

1. Are costs of other benefits included in the interim and MYPs? 
2. Total cost of other benefits 
3. Percent change in cost of other benefits over prior year 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) 

Current Year 
{2021-22! 

Yes 

5.1% 

Current Year 
(2021-22) 

Current Year 
(2021-22) 

Yes 

91.0% 
0 0% 

Budget Year 
(2021-22) 

Yes 

6.0% 

Current Year 
(2021-22) 

No 

0.0% 

Page 22 of 24 

Yes 

No 

14,051 

87 680 

29 453 

0 

1st Subsequent Year 
(2022-23) 

1st Subsequent Year 
(2022-23! 

Yes 
7,251 

COLA adopted per Governor's budoet 

1st Subsequent Year 
(2022-23) 

1st Subsequent Year 
(2022-231 

Yes 

91.0% 
0.0% 

1st Subsequent Year 
(2022-23) 

Yes 

6.0% 

1st Subsequent Year 
(2022-23) 

No 

0.0% 

87,680 

32,218 

0 

2nd Subsequent Year 
(2023-24) 

2nd Subsequent Year 
(2023-241 

Yes 

0.0% 

2nd Subsequent Year 
(2023-24) 

2nd Subsequent Year 
(2023-24) 

Yes 

5.8 I 

87,680 
91.0% 
0.0% 

2nd Subsequent Year 
(2023-24) 

Yes 
19,251 

4.0% 

2nd Subsequent Year 
(2023-24) 

No 
0 

0.0% 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :53 AM 
                                                                 84 of 94



Sierra County Office or Education 
Sierra County 

S9. Status of Other Funds 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 
46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CSI 

Analyze the status of other funds that may have negative fund balances at the end of the current fiscal year. If any other fund has a projected negative fund balance, prepare an 
interim report and mulliyear projection for thal fund. Explain plans for how and when the negative fund balance will be addressed. 

S9A. Identification of Other Funds with Negative Ending Fund Balances 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button in Item 1. If Yes, enter data in Item 2 and provide the reports referenced in Item 1, 

Are :my funds olher than the county school service fund projected to have a 
negative: fund bulonce at the end of the current fiscal y·ear? No 

If Yes, prepare and submit to the reviewing agency a report of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance (e.g., an interim fund report) and a multiyear projection report 
for each fund. 

2. If Yes, identify each fund, by name and number, that is projected to have a negative ending fund balance for the current fiscal year. Provide reasons for the negative balance(s) 
and explain the plan for how and when the problem(s) will be corrected. 

California Dept or Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 23 of 24 Printed: 31212022 11 :53 AM 

                                                                 85 of 94



Sierra County Office ol Education 
Sierra County 

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS 

2021-22 Second Interim 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 
46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CSI 

The follow ng fiscal inclic:c1tors are designed to provide additional data for reviewing agencies. A "Yes" answer to any single indicator does not necessarily suggest a cause for concern, but 
may aletl lhe mv,ewing .:,gency to the need for additional review. 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for items A2 through AB; Item A 1 is automatically completed based on data from Criterion 7. 

A1. Do cash flow projections show that the county office will end the current fiscal year with a 
negative cash balance in the county school service fund? (Data from Criterion 78-1, Cash Balance, 
are used lo determine Yes or No) 

A2. Is the system of personnel position control independent from the payroll system? 

A3. Is the County Orem lions Grant ADA decreasing in both the prior and current fiscal years? 

A4. Are new cha, tcr schools operating in county office boundaries that impact the county office's 
ADA, either in the prior or current fiscal year? 

AS. Hc1s lt1c county ollice entered into a bargaining agreement where any of the current 
or subsequent fiscal years of the agreement would result in salary increases that 
are expected to exceed the projected state funded cost-of-living adjustment? 

AG. Does the county ollic:e rrovide uncapped (100% employer paid) health benefits for current or 
retired employees? 

A7. Docs the county office have any reports that indicate fiscal distress? 
(If Yes, provide copies to the COE.) 

AB. I t;ive there b""" I''" sonnel changes in the superintendent or chief business 
olf,cial positions within the last 12 months? 

When prov,t1i11,J commc111s Im mldilional fiscal indicators, please include the item number applicable to each comment. 

Comments, 
(optional) 

N/A 

End of County Office Second Interim Criteria and Standards Review 

California r1ept of Ed11c;i!ion 
SACS Fin811ci;,t l<cpotling Soltware - 2021.2.0 
File: csi-c (Rev 02/26/2021) Page 24 of 24 

No 

Yes 

No 

No 

No 

No 

No 

No 

Printed: 3/2/2022 11 :53 AM 

                                                                 86 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

OblectCode Ooscrl_11_tion 

l UNOUPUCA TEO PUPIL COUNT 

Special 
Education, 

Unspecified 
(Goal 5001) 

TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENDITURES {Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-9999) 

Second Interim 
Special Education Maintenance of Effort 

2021-22 Projected Expenditures vs. Actual Comparison Year 
2021-22 Projected Expenditures by LEA (LP-I) 

Regionalized 
Services 

(Goal 5050) 

Regionalized 
Program 

Specialist 
(Goal 5060) 

Special 
Education, Infants 

(GoaJ 5710) 

Special 
Education, 
Preschool 
Students 

{Goal 57301 

I 1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 46,989.00 0.00 Sll.926.00 0.00 I 40046.1 
2000-2999 Classified Salaries 10,752.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 I 9 138., �I 

Spec. Education, 
Ages 5-22 

(Goal 57601 

201,827.00 
148,475.00 

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 17,321.00 0.00 21,846.00 0.00 I 19 279.' _ Jo I 173.795.00 
4000-4999 Books and Supplies 31 915.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 I 0.1 
5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 82,264.00 0.00 556.00 I 0.00 I 139.470.' 

-�--6000-6999 Capltal Oullay (except Object 6600 & Object 6910) 6,000.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 I O.• 
7130 Stale Special Schools L _ o.go I _ o.oo I_ o.og I 0.00 I o., 

7430-7439 Debt Service 
I 

0.00 

I 
0.00 

I 
0.00 I 0.00 

I 
0. 

Total Direct Costs 195,241.00 0.00 82,328.00 I 0.00 207,935.1 

ml 
)0 I 
JO 
)0 
)0 
)0 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 17.459.00 0,00 0.00 o.oo I 644-.00 
7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0. 

Total Indirect Costs 17,459.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 644. �,
JO l TOTAL COSTS t 212,700.00 ___ 0.00 ______!g.328.00 0.0_0_ _  _1QS._57� 

STATE AND LOCAL PROJECTED EXPENDITURES (Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-2999, 3385, & 6000-9999) 
1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 46.989.00 I o.oo o.oo 0.00 o., 
2000-2999 Classified Salaries 10,752.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,569.· 

JO I 
)0 
)0 3000-3999 Employee Benefits 17,321 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1. 111.C 
JO 4000-4999 Books and Supplies 24 528.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 O.C 

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 82 264,00 0,00 0.00 0.00 138,500� · ,00 
)0 6000-6999 Caprtal Outlay ( except Object 6600 & Object 6910) 6 000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 O.C 

4,571.00 
8,370.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

537 038,00 

3,548.00 
0.00 

3,548.00 
540,586.00 

85.705.0.0 
145 182.00 
120 343,00 

4.571.00 
8.370.00 

0.00 

Adjustments• Total 

66 

21.651-00 

7130 State Special Schools 0.00 0.00 0 00 ' 0.00 o.oo I 0.00 0.00 
7 430-7 439 Debt Service 

7310 
7350 

Total Direct Costs 

Transfers of Indirect Costs 
Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 
Total Indirect Costs 
TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to Federal 
Resources (Resources 3310-3400. except 3385, all 
goals: resources 3000-3178 & 3410-5810. goals 
5000-5999) 

TOTAL COSTS 

California Dept of Education 

0.00 OdQO 0.00 
187,854.00 0.00 0.00 

17,459.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0 .0G 0.00 

17,459DO 0.00 0,00 
205

,_
3J3.00 0.00 0.00 

o.oo I 0.00 0.00 0 .00 
o.ooJ H_S,180.00 _ _  364� 171.00 0.00 697,205.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 17,459.00 
o.oo 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0 00 0.00 17,459.00 
0.00 145,180,00 364,171 00 0.00 714.664,00 

130,946.□0 
845,610.00 

46 10462 0000000 
ReportSEMAI 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: sernai (Rev 03/15/2021 J Page 1 of 2 Printed: 3/2/2022 12:06 PM                                                                  87 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Object Code Description 

Special 
Education, 
Unspecified 
(Goal 50011 

Second Interim 
Special Education Maintenance of Effort 

2021-22 Projected Expenditures vs. Actual Comparjson Year 
2021-22 Projected Expendll1.Jres by LEA (LP-I} 

Special 
Reglonalized Education, 

Regionallzed Program Special Preschool 
Services Specialist Education, Infants Students 

(Goal 50501 (Goal 50601 (Goal 57101 (Goal 57301 

LOCAL PROJECTED EXPENDITURES (Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-1999 & 8000-9999) 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 

3000-3999 Employee Benefrts 

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 

5000-5999 Services arid Other Operating Exper,ditures 

6000-6999 Capital Outlay (except Object 6600 & Object 6910) 

7130 s1a1e Special Schools 

7�7439 Debt Service 

Total Direct Costs 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 

7350 Transters of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 

Total Indirect Costs 

TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 

8980 ContribuUons from Unrestricted Revenues to Federal 
Resources (From State and Local Projected 
Expenditures section) 

8980" Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to Stale 
Resources (Resources 3385, 6500--6540, & 7240, all 
goals: resources 2000-2999 & so·10-1e10. except 
6500-6540, & 7240, goals 5000-5999) 

TOTAL COSTS 

• Attach an additional sheet with explanations of any amounts 

in the Adjustments column 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: semai (Rev 03/15/2021) 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 2 of 2 

Spec. Education, 
Ages 5-22 

(Goal 57601 Adiustments• 

0.00 

0.00 

15.994.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

15.994.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

15,994.00 0.00 

Total 

0.00 

0.00 

15.994.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

15,994.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

15,994.00 

130,946.00 

49 279.00 

196,219.00 

46 10462 0000000 
ReportSEMAI 

Printed: 3/2/2022 12:06 PM                                                                  88 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Obiect Code Descriotion 

. ,I UNDUPLICATED PUPIL COUNT 

Special 
Education, 

Unspecified 
/Goal 50011 

TOTAL ACTUAL EXPENDITURES (Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-9999) 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries I 31,660,76 

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 3 905.00 
3000-3999 Employee Benefits 16.966.40 

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 1 02125 

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 50 081.46 

6000-6999 Capital Outlay 0.00 

7130 State Special Schools 0.00 

7430-7439 Debt Service 0.00 

Total Direct Costs 103,634.87 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 8,708.76 

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 0.00 

PCRA Program Cost Report Allocations (non-add) 18J24,61 

Total Indirect Costs 8.708,76 

TOTAL COSTS 112.343.63 

Second Interim 
Special Education Maintenance of Effort 

2021-22 Projected Expenditures vs. Actual Comparison Year 
2020-21 Actual Expenditures by LEA (LA-I) 

Special 
Regionalized Education, 

Regionalized Program Special Preschool 
Services Specialist Education, Infants Students 

(Goal 50501 IGoal 5060) (Goal 5710) (Goal 5730\ 

0.00 56 556.60 0.00 35,393.40 

0.00 0.00 0.00 7,396.74 

0.00 29,556.01 0.00 18,620.44 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 532-44 0.00 979.53 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 86 645.05 0.00 62,390.11 

0.00 0.00 0.00 434.21 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0 00 0.00 0.00 434.21 

0.00 86,645.05 0.00 62,824.32 

FEDERAL ACTUAL EXPENDITURES (Funds 01, 09, and 62; resources 3000-5999, except 3385) 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6000-6999 Capital Outlay 

7130 State Special Schools 

7430-7439 Debt Service 

Total Direct Costs 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs • lnterfund 

Total Indirect Costs 

TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 

8980 Less: Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to 
Federal Resources (Resources 3310-3400, except 
3385, all goals; resources 3000-3178 & 3410-5810, 
goals 5000-5999) 

TOTAL COSTS 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021 2,0 
File: semai (Rev 03/15/2021) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

-

0.00 54,906.60 0,00 35.393.40 

0.00 0,00 0.00 3.458.96 

0.00 19.976.16 0.00 12,393.81 

0.00 0,00 0.00 0,00 

0.00 532.44 0.00 979.53 

0.00 0.00 0,00 o.oo

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 75,415.20 0.00 52,225.70 

0.00 0.00 0.00 434.21 

0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 

0,00 0.00 0,00 434.21 

0.00 75,415.20 0.00 52,659.91 

" 

Page 1 of 2 

Spec. Education, 
Ages 5-22 

(Goal 5760} Adiustments• 

187.811.08 

106 131.54 

157.422.44 

5 183.38 

87 015.14 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

543,563 58 0.00 

2 485.76 

0.00 

2 485.76 0,00 

546.049.34 0.00 

113.011.90 

4.8n.14 

52 ?Q7.19 

481.61 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

170 667.84 0.00 

2,485.76 

0 00 

2,485.76 0.00 

173,153 60 0.00 

.

I 

Total 

66 

311,421,84 

117.433.28 

222.56529 

6.204.63 

138.608.57 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

796,233.61 

11,628.73 

0.00 

18.124,61 

11 628.73 

807.862.34 

203,311.90 

8.336.10 

84 667.16 

481.61 

1,511.97 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

298.308.74 

2,919.97 

0.00 

2 919.97 

301 228.71 

109 115.08 

192.113.63 

46 10462 0000000 
ReportSEMAI 

Printed: 3/2/2022 12:07 PM                                                                  89 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Object Code Description 

Special 
Education, 
Unspecified 
(Goal 5001) 

Second Interim 
Special Education Maintenance of Effort 

2021-22 Projected Expenditures vs. Actual Comparison Year 
2020-21 Actual Expenditures by LEA (LA-I) 

Special 
Regionalized Education, 

Regionalized Program Special Preschool 
Services Specialist Education, Infants Students 

(Goal 50501 (Goal 5060) (Goal 5710) (Goal 5730) 

STATE AND LOCAL ACTUAL EXPENDITURES (Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-2999, 3385, & 6000-9999) 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 31.66 0.76 

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 3.905.00 

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 16,966.40 

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 1,021.25 

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 50,081.46 

6000-6999 Capital Outlay 0.00 

7130 State Special Schools 0.00 

7430-7439 Debt Service 0.00 

Total Direct Costs 103,634.87 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 8,708.76 

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 0.00 

PCRA Program Cost Report Allocations (non-add) 18,124.61 

Total Indirect Costs 8,708,76 

TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 112,343.63 

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to Federal 
Resources (From Federal Actual Expenditures 
section) 

TOTAL COSTS 

LOCAL ACTUAL EXPENDITURES (Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-1999 & 8000-9999) 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6000-6999 Capital Outlay 

7130 State Special Schools 

7430-7439 Debt Service 

Total Direct Costs 

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 

Total Indirect Costs 

TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to Federal 
Resources (From Federal Actual Expenditures 
section) 

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to State 
Resources (Resources 3385, 6500, 6510, & 7240, all 
goals; resources 2000-2999 & 6010-7810, except 
6500, 6510, & 7240, goals 5000-5999) 

TOTAL COSTS 

• Attach an additional sheet with explanations of any amounts 

in the Adjustments column. 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: semai (Rev 03/15/2021) 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

56-45 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

56.45 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

56.45 

0.00 1650.00 0,00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0;00 3,937.78 

0.00 9,579.85 QOO 6.226.63 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 11,229.85 0.00 10;164.41 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0 00 0 00 

0.00 0,00 0.00 0,00 

0.00 11.229.85 0.00 10,164.41 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0 00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0 00 o.oo

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

- -

,, 

' 

Page 2 of 2 

Spec. Education, 
Ages 5-22 

(Goal 5760) Adjustments• 

74,799.18 

101,254.40 

105,125.25 

4,701.77 

87.016.14 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

372,895.74 0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 0,00 

372,895.74 0.00 

0.00. 

0.00 

0.00 

0 00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0,00 

Total 

108.109.94 

109,097.18 

137,898.13 

5,723.02 

137,096.60 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

497,924.87 

8 708,76 

0,00 

18.124.61 

8,708.76 

506,633.63 

109,115.08 

615,748.71 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

56.45 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

56.45 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

56.45 

109,115.08 

o.oo

109,171.53 

46 1 0462 0000000 
ReportSEMAI 

Printed: 3/2/2022 12:07 PM                                                                  90 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

SELPA: Sierra County (AW) 

Second Interim 
Special Education Maintenance of Effort 

2021-22 Projected Expenditures vs. Actual Comparison Year 
LEA Maintenance of Effort Calculation (LMC-I) 

46 10462 0000000 
Report SEMAI 

This form is used to check maintenance of effort (MOE) for an LEA, whether the LEA is a member of a SELPA or is a single-LEA SELPA. 

Per the federal Subsequent Years Rule, In order to determine the required level of effort, the LEA must look back to the last fiscal year in which the 
LEA maintained effort using the same method by which il is currenUy establishing the compliance standard. To meet the requirement of the 
Subsequent Years Rule, the LMC-I worksheet has been revised to make cl1anges to sections 3.A.1, 3.A.2, 3.B.1, and 3.B.2. The revised sections 
allow the LEA to compare the 2021-22 projected expenditures to the most recent fiscal year the LEA met MOE using that method, which is the 
comparison year. 

There are four methods that the LEA can use to demonstrate the compliance standard. They are (1) combined state and local expenditures; (2) 
combined state and local expenditures on a per capita basis; (3) local expenditures only; and (4) local expenditures only on a per capita basis. 

The LEA is only required to pass one of the tests to meet the MOE requirement. However, the LEA is required to show results for all four methods. 

SECTION 1 Exempt Reduction Under 34 CFR Section 300.204 

If your LEA determines that a reduction in expenditures occurred as a result of one or more of the following conditions, you may 
calculate a reduction to the required MOE standard. Reductions may apply to combined state and local MOE standard, local only 
MOE standard, or both. 

1. Voluntary departure, by retirement or otherwise, or departure for just cause, of special education or
related services personnel.

2. A decrease in the enrollment of children with disabilities.

3. The termination of the obligation of the agency to provide a program of special education to a particular
child with a disability that is an exceptionally costly program, as determined by the SEA, because the child:

a. Has left the jurisdiction of the agency;
b. Has reached the age at which the obligation of the agency 

to provide free appropriate public education (FAPE) to 
the child has terminated; or 

c. No longer needs the program of special education.

4. The termination of costly expenditures for long-term purchases, such as the acquisition of
equipment or the construction of school facilities.

5. The assumption of cost by the high cost fund operated by the SEA under 34 CFR Sec. 300.704(c).

Provide the condition number, if any, to be used in the calculation below: 

Marlene Mongolo, SELPA Director. Retired in 16/17 - Salary & Benefits 

Total exempt reductions 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: semai (Rev 05/09/2019) Page 1 of 4 

State and Local 

85 515.26 

85,515.26 

Local Only 

0.00 

Printed: 3/2/2022 12:07 PM                                                                  91 of 94



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

SELPA: Sierra County (AW) 

Second Interim 
Special Education Maintenance of Effort 

2021-22 Projected Expenditures vs. Actual Comparison Year 
LEA Maintenance of Effort Calculation (LMC-I) 

SECTION 2 Reduction to MOE Requirement Under IDEA, Section 613 (a)(2)(C) (34 CFR Sec. 300.205) 

IMPORTANT NOTE: Only LEAs that have a "meets requirement" compliance determination and that are not found 
significantly disproportionate for the current year are eligible to use this option to reduce their MOE requirement. 

Up to 50% of the increase in I DEA Part B Section 611 funding in current year compared with prior year may be used 
to reduce the required level of state and local expenditures. This option is available only if the LEA used or will use 

46 10462 0000000 
Report SEMAI 

the freed up funds for activities authorized under the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) of 1965. Also, the 
amount of Part B funds used for early intervening services (34 CFR 300.226(a)) will count toward the maximum amount 
by which the LEA may reduce its MOE requirement under this exception [P.L. 108-446]. 

Current year funding (IDEA Section 611 Local 
Assistance Grant Award - Resource 3310 

Less: Prior year's funding (IDEA Section 611 Local 
Assistance Grant Award - Resource 3310) 

Increase in funding (if difference is positive) 

Maximum available for MOE reduction (50% of 
increase in funding) 

Current year funding (IDEA Section 619 - Resource 
3315) 

Maximum available for early intervening services 
(EIS) (15% of current year funding - Resources 
3310 and 3315) 

If (b) is greater than (a). 

Enter portion to set aside for EIS (cannot exceed 
line (b), Maximum available for EIS) 

Available for MOE reduction. 
(line (a) minus line (c), zero if negative) 

Enter portion used to reduce MOE requirement 
(cannot exceed line (d), Available for MOE reduction). 

If (b) is less than (a). 

Enter portion used to reduce MOE requirement 
(first column cannot exceed line (a), Maximum 
available for MOE reduction, second and third columns 
cannot exceed (e), Portion used to reduce MOE 
requirement). 

Available to set aside for EIS 
(line (b) minus line (e), zero if negative) 

0.00 

0.00 (a) 

0.00 (b) 

_______ (c) 

0.00 (d) 

State and Local 

_______ (e) --------

0.00 (f) 

Local Only 

Note: If your LEA exercises the authority under 34 CFR 300.205(a) to reduce the MOE requirement, the LEA must list 
the activities (which are authorized under the ESEA) paid with the freed up funds: 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: semai (Rev 05/09/2019) Page 2 of 4 Printed: 3/2/2022 12:07 PM                                                                  92 of 94



Second Interim 
Special Education Maintenance of Effort Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 2021-22 Projected Expenditures vs. Actual Comparison Year 
LEA Maintenance of Effort Calculation (LMC-I) 

SELPA: Sierra County (AW) 
SECTION 3 

A. COMBINED STATE AND LOCAL EXPENDITURES METHOD
1. Under "Comparison Year," enter the most recent year

in which MOE compliance was met using the actual vs.
actual method based on state and local expenditures.

a. Total special education expenditures

b. Less: Expenditures paid from federal sources

c. Expenditures paid from state and local sources
Add/Less: Adjustments and/or PCRA required for 
MOE calculation
Comparison year's expenditures, adjusted for MOE
calculation

Less: Exempt reduction(s) from SECTION 1 
Less: 50% reduction from SECTION 2 

Column A 

Projected Exps. 
(LP-I Worksheet) 

FY 2021-22 

1 044 193.00 

198,583.00 

845,610.00 

Net expenditures paid from state and local sources _____ 8_4 __ 5_6_10�.o_ o_ 

Column B 

Actual Expenditures 
Comparison Year 

FY 14/15 

469 747.00 

0.00 

469 747.00 

85,515.26 
0.00 

384 231.74 

46 10462 0000000 
Report SEMAI 

Column C 

Difference 
!A-8)

461,378.26 

If the difference in Column C for the Section 3.A.1 is positive or zero, the MOE eligibility requirement is met based on the 
combination of state and local expenditures. 

2. Under "Comparison Year," enter the most recent year
in which MOE compliance was met using the actual
vs. actual method based on the per capita local
expenditures.

a. Total special education expenditures

b. Less: Expenditures paid from federal sources

c. Expenditures paid from state and local sources
Add/Less: Adjustments and/or PCRA required for
MOE calculation
Comparison year's expenditures, adjusted for MOE
calculation

Less: Exempt reduction(s) from SECTION 1 
Less: 50% reduction from SECTION 2 

Projected Exps. 
FY 2021-22 

1,044,193.00 

198,583.00 

845,610.00 

Net expenditures paid from state and local sources ----=8
c..;.
4

""'
5'""6_10

'""
.o

;;..;
o
a... 

d. Special education unduplicated pupil count 66.00 

e. Per capita state and local expenditures (A2c/A2d) 12 812.27 

Comparison Year 
FY 14/15 

469 747.00 

0.00 

469 747.00 

85,515.26 
0.00 

384 231.74 

38.00 

10 111.36 

Difference 

2 700.91 

If the difference in Column C for the Section 3.A.2 is positive or zero, the MOE eligibility requirement is met based on the per capita 
state and local expenditures. 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: semai (Rev 05/09/2019) Page 3 of 4 Printed: 3/2/2022 12:07 PM                                                                  93 of 94



Second Interim 
Special Education Maintenance of Effort Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 2021-22 Projected Expenditures vs. Actual Comparison Year 
LEA Maintenance of Effort Calculation {LMC-I) 

SELPA: Sierra County (AW) 

B. LOCAL EXPENDITURES ONLY METHOD

1. Under "Comparison Year," enter the most recent year In
which MOE compliance was met using the actual vs.
actual method based on local expenditures only.

a. Expenditures paid from local sources
Add/Less: Adjustments required for
MOE calculation
Comparison year's expenditures, adjusted
for MOE calculation

Less: Exempt reduction(s) from SECTION 1 
Less: 50% reduction from SECTION 2 
Net expenditures paid from local sources 

Projected Exps. 

FY 2021-22 

196,219.00 

196 219.00 

Comparison Year 

FY 14/15 

45,088.00 

0.00 

45 088.00 

0.00 
0.00 

45 088.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Report SEMAI 

Difference 

151 131.00 

If the difference in Column C for the Section 3.B.1 is positive or zero, the MOE eligibility requirement is met based on the local 
expenditures. 

2. Under "Comparison Year," enter the most recent year 
in which MOE compliance was met using the actual
vs.actual method based on the per capita local
expenditures only.

a. Expenditures paid from local sources
Add/Less: Adjustments required for
MOE calculation
Comparison year's expenditures, adjusted
for MOE calculation

Less: Exempt reduction(s) from SECTION 1 
Less: 50% reduction from SECTION 2 
Net expenditures paid from local sources 

b. Special education unduplicated pupil count

c. Per capita local expenditures (82a/82b)

Projected Exps. 

FY 2021-22 

196,219.00 

196 219.00 

66 

2,973.02 

Comparison Year 

FY 14/15 

111 940.00 

0.00 

111 940.00 

0.00 
0.00 

111 940.00 

38 

2 945.79 

Difference 

27.23 

If the difference in Column C for the Section 3.8.2 is positive or zero, the MOE eligibility requirement is met based on the per capita 
local expenditures only. 

Nona Griesert 

Contact Name 

Director of Business Services/CBO 

Title 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0 
File: semai (Rev 05/09/2019) Page 4 of 4 

(530) 993-1660, x-120

Telephone Number

ngriesert@spjusd.org 

Email Address 

Printed: 3/2/2022 12:07 PM                                                                  94 of 94



  

 

Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Safe Schools Plan - 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
James Berardi 
Superintendent of Schools 
 
Board of Education Review and Approval: March 08, 2022 
  



SCOE and SPJUSD Safe Schools Plan | 2022 
 
 

 1  

Table of  Contents 

GENERAL INFORMATION .......................................................................................................................5 

Assessment of Crime ........................................................................................................................................ 5 

School Crisis and Safety Plan Summary ..................................................................................................... 7 

Action Plan Summary ....................................................................................................................................... 8 

Special Information for Parents ................................................................................................................... 9 

Section I - Introduction ....................................................................................................................... 12 

1. ....................................................................................................................................................... Introduction
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 13 

2. ............................................................................................................................................................... Planning
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 14 

3. ............................................................................................................................................... Communications
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 16 

4. ................................................................................................................................................ Responsibilities
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 18 

5. ................................................................................................................ General Crisis Management Plan
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 20 

6. .................................................................................................................................... Team Responsibilities
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 21 

Section II – Emergency Actions ........................................................................................................ 22 

1. ................................................................................................................................................... Leave Building
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 23 

2. ......................................................................................................................................... Stand-By Lockdown
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 24 

3. ................................................................................................................ Secure Building/Shelter in Place
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 25 

4. ....................................................................................................... Evacuation/Directed Transportation
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 26 

5. .............................................................................................................................. Duck, Cover, and Hold On
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 27 

6. ............................................................................................................................................Return to Building
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 27 

7. ................................................................................................................................................................ All Clear
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 28 

8. ................................................................................................................................................... Convert School
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 29 

 
 
 



SCOE and SPJUSD Safe Schools Plan | 2022 
 
 

 2  

Section III – Emergency Procedures ............................................................................................... 30 

1. ................................................................................................................................................................. Preface
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 31 

2. .........................................................................................................................................................................Fire
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 32 

3. ..................................................................................................................................................................... Flood
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 33 

4. ......................................................................................................................................................... Earthquake
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 34 

5. ................................................................................................. Loss of Utilities and/or Sewer Problems
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 35 

6. ................................................................................................................................................. Severe Weather
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 36 

7. .................................................................................................................................................. Weapons Fired
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 38 

8. ....................................................................................................................................... Hazardous Materials
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 39 

9. .......................................................................................................................................... Irrational Behavior
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 40 

10. .................................................................................................................................. Personal Emergencies
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 41 

11. ......................................................................................................... Rabid Animal/Animal Disturbance
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 42 

12. .................................................................................................................................................... Bomb Threat
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 43 

13. ..................................................................................................... Civil Disobedience/Student Disorder
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 46 

14. .............................................................................................................. Stranger or Intruder on Campus
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 47 

15. ................................................................................................................. Explosion/Threat of Explosion
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 49 

16. .............................................................................................. Threat Condition Red (Terrorist Attack)
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 50 

17. ........................................................................................................................ Health/Medical Emergency
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 51 

18. .................................................................................................................. Special Education Adaptations
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 52 

 
 
 
 



SCOE and SPJUSD Safe Schools Plan | 2022 
 
 

 3  

Section IV – Emergency Preparedness Week ............................................................................... 54 

1. .................................................................................Agenda for Emergency Preparedness (EP) Week
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 55 

2. ............................................................................................................................................................... EP Week
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 56 

3. ......................................................................................................... EP Week Team Discussion Checklist
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 57 

4. ................................................................................................................ General Emergency Instructions
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 58 

Monday .................................................................................................................................................................................................. 60 
Tuesday & Wednesday .............................................................................................................................................................. 61 
Thursday & Friday ........................................................................................................................................................................ 62 

Section V – Other Procedures and Information .......................................................................... 63 

1. ............................................................................................................ Child Abuse Reporting Procedures
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 64 

2. .......................................................................................................... Hate Motivated Behavior Reporting
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 67 

3. ................................................................................................................. Bus Driver Disaster Procedures
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 68 

4. ....................................................................................................................................... Emergency Numbers
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 69 

5. ............................................................................................................................................Evacuation Routes
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 70 

6. .................................................................................................................... Contents of Emergency Binder
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 71 

7. .............................................................................................................................................. Signals & Actions
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 72 

8. ........................................................................................................................ Emergency Action Summary
 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 73 

Section VI – Miscellaneous ................................................................................................................. 75 

Form A: Annual Emergency Plan Checklist ........................................................................................... 76 

Form B: Bomb Threat Report ..................................................................................................................... 77 

Form C: Classroom Hazard Checklist ....................................................................................................... 78 

Form D: Emergency Drills Form ................................................................................................................ 79 

Form E: Emergency Status Report ............................................................................................................ 80 

Form F: Evacuation Route Hazard Checklist ......................................................................................... 83 

Form G: Injury and Missing Persons Report ......................................................................................... 84 

Form H: Hate Motivated Behavior Reporting ....................................................................................... 85 

Form I: Special Staff Skills and Equipment ............................................................................................ 86 



SCOE and SPJUSD Safe Schools Plan | 2022 
 
 

 4  

Form J: Student Release Log ....................................................................................................................... 87 

Form K: Student Release-Permission Slip ............................................................................................. 88 

Section VII – Authorities and References ...................................................................................... 89  

Earthquake Emergency Procedure System  AR 3516.3 .................................................................... 89 

Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan   BP 3516 ................................................................ 93 

Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan   AR 3516 ................................................................ 95 

Fire Drills And Fires    AR 3516.1 .............................................................................................................. 99 

PROHIBITED STUDENT CONDUCT AND CONSEQUENCES ............................................................... 101 

California Administrative Code, Title V ................................................................................................ 104 

Penal Code § 627 ........................................................................................................................................... 108 

Section VIII – Standard Emergency Management System .....................................................109 
 



SCOE and SPJUSD Safe Schools Plan | 2022 
 
 

 5  

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
California Education Code §32281(d)(1)  
“Subdivision(b) shall not apply to a small school district, as defined in paragraph (2), if the 
small school district develops a districtwide comprehensive school safety plan that is 
applicable to each school site.” 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District is considered a small school district.   
 
Assessment of Crime 

 
Crime Reports 
 
In the school year of 2019-2020, zero crime reports were made. 
In the school year of 2020-2021, zero crime reports were made. 
 
Results from Healthy Kids Survey 2015-2016– 12th Grade 
 
Q:  I feel safe in my school 

Strongly disagree  ........  ........ 0 
Disagree  ........  ........ 0 
Neither disagree nor agree .  ........ 14 
Agree  ........  ........ 57 
Strongly agree  ........  ........ 29 

 
Q:  School staff takes parent concerns seriously 

Strongly disagree  ........  ........ 3 
Disagree  ........  ........ 3 
Neither disagree nor agree .  ........ 24 
Agree  ........  ........ 66 
Strongly agree  ........  ........ 3 
 

Perceived Safety at School 
Very safe  ........  ........ 39% 
Safe  ........  ........ 50% 
Neither safe nor unsafe ......  ........ 11% 
Unsafe  ........  ........ 0 
Very unsafe  ........  ........ 0 

 
Violence and Victimization on School Property, Past 12 Months 

How many times on school property have you: 
 
-been pushed, shoved, slapped, hit or kicked by someone who wasn’t just 
kidding around? 

 
0 times .................. 79% 
1 time ...................  7% 
2 to 3 times............   7% 



SCOE and SPJUSD Safe Schools Plan | 2022 
 
 

 6  

4 or more times ......  7% 
 
-been afraid of being beaten up? 
 

0 times .................. 97% 
1 time ...................  3% 
2 to 3 times............  0% 
4 or more times ......  0% 

 
-been offered, sold, or given an illegal drug? 
 

0 times .................. 97% 
1 time ...................  3% 
2 to 3 times............  0% 
4 or more times ......  0% 

 
Suspensions/Expulsions 
The district had an unduplicated total of 13 students suspended during the 2019-
2020 school year.  The district had an unduplicated total of 5 students suspended 
during the 2020-2021 school year.  No students were suspended for a total of 
fifteen days. 
 
In the 2019-20 school year, no students were expelled. 
In the 2020-21 school year, no students were expelled. 
 
Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Students  
 
Each school site in the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District has provided safe 
ingress and egress for students and staff, including drop off areas at the front of 
schools and specific arrival and departure procedures for bus students. At the 
beginning of each school year personnel discuss school rules and safety procedures 
with students.  
 
Under the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals who are deaf/hard of hearing, 
blind/partially sighted, mobility impaired and/or cognitively/emotionally impaired must be 
assisted. Trained staff assist individuals with disabilities. 
 
The Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District encourages walking, bicycling, or 
scootering to school. If children must be driven by car, carpooling is encouraged. 
Safety is emphasized, whatever the mode of transportation. It is everyone’s 
responsibility to know the traffic laws surrounding the school, including appropriate 
speed limits, and to obey them.  















Page 1 of 2 
 

CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET – March 08, 2022 
 

Note:  Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations, 
board bylaws, and/or exhibits. Editorial changes have also been made. Districts and county offices of education 
should review the sample materials and modify their own policies accordingly. 

 
Board Policy 0420.42 - Charter School Renewal 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 130, 2021) which extends the term by two years for all charter 
schools whose term expires on or between January 1, 2022 and June 30, 2025 and requires, for renewals and 
denials, that the most recent years for which state data is available preceding the renewal or denial decision 
be used in determining whether specified criteria are met if the two consecutive years preceding the renewal 
or denial include the 2019-20 or 2020-21 school year. Policy also updated for clarity and consistency with 
law.  

 
 
Board Policy 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 131, 2021) which renumbers the license-exempt California State 
Preschool Program code sections, ensure consistency with the California Department of Education's 2021-
22 federal program monitoring instrument, clarify that districts may not offer or facilitate an informal 
resolution process to resolve allegations that an employee sexually harassed a student, add Item #3 to the 
section regarding "Non-UCP Complaints" that any complaint alleging that a student, while in an education 
program or activity as specified, was subjected to sexual harassment as defined in 34 CFR 106.30 be 
addressed through federal Title IX complaint procedures, and clarify in Item #5 that complaints alleging a 
physical safety concern that interferes with a free appropriate public education is a non-UCP complaint. 
 

Administrative Regulation 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures 
Regulation updated to delete outdated and/or repealed U.S. Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights 
(OCR) references and where appropriate add current OCR material, ensure consistency with the California 
Department of Education's 2021-22 federal program monitoring instrument, clarify posting requirements for 
the annual notification, compliance officer contact information and information related to Title IX, add 
material regarding the requirement for an administrator who is not designated as a compliance officer who 
receives a complaint to notify the compliance officer, clarify that districts may not offer or facilitate an 
informal resolution process to resolve allegations that an employee sexually harassed a student, add 
descriptions to the OPTION headings for districts that do or do not allow complainants to appeal to the 
governing board, delete material regarding respondent being sent the investigation report at the same time it 
is provided to complainant as this simultaneous exchange is not required by law, amend language in regard 
to pursuing civil law remedies in the notice to complainants included in investigation reports for allegations 
of  unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and bullying based on state law, clarify when either 
party may request reconsideration of an appeal by the Superintendent of Public Instruction, and reflect NEW 
LAW (AB 131, 2021) which renumbers the license-exempt California State Preschool Program code 
sections.  

 
 
Administrative Regulation 3515.6 - Criminal Background Check for Contractors 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 130, 2021) which requires any entity, including a sole 
proprietor, that has a contract with a district to ensure that employees who interact with students outside of 
the immediate supervision and control of the student's parent/guardian or school staff have a valid criminal 
records summary and to immediately provide any subsequent arrest and conviction information received 
pursuant to the subsequent arrest service. Regulation also updated to delete the list of service providers as the 
services in Items #1-5 are no longer listed in law and the services in Item #6 regarding the construction, 
reconstruction, rehabilitation, or repair of a school facility are considered in another portion of the regulation, 
delete material regarding an exception for employees with limited contact with students as it is no longer 
provided for in law, generalize information regarding steps that may be taken to protect the safety of students 
who may come in contact with employees of contracting entities, and rearrange placement of material for 
clarity and context. 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Administrative Regulation 5125 - Student Records 
Regulation updated to enhance clarity by separating administrative guidance for requests involving changes 
to student records of current students and guidance related to requests for changes to gender or legal name of 
former students.  Regulation also updated to move materials related to former students to end of regulation 
in new section - “Updating Name and/or Gender of Former Students.”  

 
 
Administrative Regulation 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment 

Regulation updated to clarify how district employees should handle requests by or on behalf of transgender 
and gender-nonconforming students when changing gender and legal name on student records.  Regulation 
also updated to broaden the section on “Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming Students” to include 
support for intersex and nonbinary students and related definitions. 



Page 1 of 6 
**Revisions** 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
Policy 0420.42: Charter School Renewal 

 

Original Adopted Date: 04/14/2020 | Last Revised Date: 04/13/2021 | Last Reviewed Date: 04/13/2021  
 

Note:  When the term of a charter granted by the Governing Board pursuant to Education Code 47605 is due to expire, 
the charter school must submit a petition for renewal to the Board in accordance with Education Code 47607. 
 
For a charter that was granted by the State Board of Education (SBE) on appeal after being denied by the district 
pursuant to Education Code 47605, the renewal petition must first be submitted to the chartering authority designated by 
SBE in accordance with Education Code 47605. For charters granted by SBE on appeal pursuant to Education Code 
47605, as that section read on January 1, 2019, the charter school may continue operating until it is up for renewal, at 
which point it must submit a renewal petition to the board in the geographic boundaries where the charter school is 
located, pursuant to Education Code 47605.9. 
 
A petition for the renewal of a charter that was originally granted by the County Board of Education on appeal after 
being denied by the district must be submitted directly to the County Board as the chartering authority pursuant to 5 
CCR 11966.5. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 47607.4, as added by AB 130 (Ch. 44, Statutes of 2021), notwithstanding the renewal 
process established in Education Code 47605.9, 47607, 47607.2, or any other law, all charter schools whose term 
expires on or between January 1, 2022 and June 30, 2025 shall have their term extended by two years. 

 
The Governing Board believes that the ongoing operation of a charter school should be dependent on 
the school's effectiveness in achieving its mission and goals for student learning and other student 
outcomes. Whenever a charter school submits a petition for renewal of its charter, the Board shall 
review the petition thoroughly and in a timely manner, consistent with the timelines set out in the 
Education Code. The Board shall consider renewal petitions only of charters originally authorized by 
the Board itself or by the State Board of Education (SBE) on appeal after initial denial by the Board. 
(cf. 0420.4 - Charter School Authorization) 
(cf. 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight) 
(cf. 0420.43 - Charter School Revocation) 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
 
The Board shall deny the renewal petition of any charter school operated as or by a for-profit 
corporation, a for-profit educational management organization, or a for-profit charter management 
organization.   (Education Code 47604) 
 
When a charter school, concurrently with its renewal petition, proposes to expand operations to one or 
more additional sites or grade levels, the charter school shall request a material revision to its 
charter.  The material revision may be made only with the approval of the Board and in accordance 
with the standards and criteria in Education Code 47605 for material revisions.   (Education Code 
47607) 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district timelines for the submission of charter 
renewal petitions. Education Code 47605 requires that the Board grant or deny the renewal petition within 90 days of 
receiving the petition; see section entitled "Timelines for Board Action" below. However, it is recommended that charter 
schools submit their petition sufficiently early (e.g., as much as nine months before the term of the charter is due to 
expire) so that, in the event that the Board denies the renewal, the charter school may be able to appeal to the County 
Board and then to SBE and, if the school closes, to allow students of the charter school to transfer to another school. 

 
The Board recommends that a charter school submit its petition for renewal to the Board sufficiently 
early before the expiration of the term of the charter to allow the Board's deliberations and decision on  
 



Page 2 of 6 

the renewal petition to be completed with minimal disruption to the charter school's educational 
program in the renewal year. 
 
The petition for renewal shall include a reasonably comprehensive description of how the charter 
school has met all new charter school requirements enacted into law after the charter was originally 
granted or last renewed.   (Education Code 47607; 5 CCR 11966.4) 
 
Criteria for Granting or Denying Renewal 
 

Note:  Education Code 47607 and 47607.2 authorize different lengths of renewals for high-performing, middle-
performing, and low-performing charter schools. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 47607, charter renewals are subject to the same standards and criteria as initial charter 
authorizations as specified in Education Code 47605, except that the Board may not deny the renewal of an existing 
charter school based on a finding that (1) the district has a negative or qualified interim certification, or is under state 
receivership, and is not positioned to absorb the fiscal impact of the proposed charter school or (2) the charter school is 
demonstrably unlikely to serve the interests of the entire community in which the school will be located (i.e., the school 
would substantially undermine or duplicate existing district services or programs).  However, these two criteria may be 
used to deny a proposed expansion of an existing charter school constituting a material revision. See BP/AR 0420.4 - 
Charter School Authorization for more information regarding the standards and criteria for initial charter authorizations 
and renewals. 

 
Renewals shall be governed by the same standards and criteria that apply to new charter petitions as set 
forth in Education Code 47605.  However, a charter renewal shall not be denied based on the fiscal 
impact of the charter school on the district or a finding that the charter school is demonstrably unlikely 
to serve the interests of the entire community in which the school is located, as described in Education 
Code 47605.   (Education Code 47607) 
 
The signature requirement for charter authorization petitions is not applicable to petitions for 
renewal.   (Education Code 47607); 5 CCR 11966.4) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 47607.2, the review of the charter school's academic performance must be based on 
"verified data" from assessments and other indicators, including in certain instances measures of postsecondary 
outcomes, approved by SBE.  In November 2020, SBE approved a list of valid and reliable indicators of academic 
progress and postsecondary outcomes that may be used to demonstrate a charter school's academic performance. Such 
indicators are available on the California Department of Education's web site. 

 
In determining whether to grant a charter renewal, the Board shall review both schoolwide 
performance and the performance of numerically significant student subgroups on the state and local 
indicators included in the California School Dashboard, giving greater weight to performance on 
measurements of academic performance.  If the Dashboard indicators are not yet available for the most 
recently completed academic year before renewal, the Board shall consider verifiable data provided by 
the charter school related to the Dashboard indicators, such as data from the California Assessment of 
Student Performance and Progress, or any successor system, for the most recent academic year. The 
Board shall only consider data from sources adopted by SBE.  (Education Code 47607, 47607.2) 
 
Following the Board's review, a renewal of the charter petition may be granted in accordance with a 
three-tiered system based on school performance, as follows: 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 47607, as amended by AB 130, the criteria described in item #1 below may be 
achieved for two of the most recent years for which state data is available preceding the renewal decision, rather than for 
the two consecutive years immediately preceding the renewal, if the two consecutive years immediately preceding the 
renewal decision include the 2019-20 or 2020-21 school year. 

 



Page 3 of 6 

1. Renewal of Five to Seven Years 
 

a. A charter school that is not eligible for technical assistance pursuant to Education Code 
47607.3 shall be granted renewal for a period of five to seven years when, for two 
consecutive years immediately preceding the renewal, or for two of the most recent 
years for which state data is available preceding the renewal if the two consecutive 
years immediately preceding the renewal decision include the 2019-20 or 2020-21 
school year, the charter school achieved either of the following:   (Education Code 
47607) 
 
(1) Received the two highest performance levels schoolwide on all the state 

indicators included in the Dashboard for which the charter school receives 
performance levels, provided the charter school has schoolwide performance 
levels on at least two measurements of academic performance per year in each of 
the two years 

 
(2) For all measurements of academic performance, received performance levels 

schoolwide that are the same or higher than the state average and, for a majority 
of numerically significant student subgroups performing statewide below the 
state average in each respective year, received performance levels that are higher 
than the state average, provided that the charter school has performance levels 
on at least two measurements of academic performance for at least two 
subgroups 

 
b. If the charter school satisfies the above criteria, it shall only be required to update the 

renewal petition to include a reasonably comprehensive description of any new 
requirement of charter schools enacted into law after the charter was originally granted 
or last renewed and, as necessary, to reflect the current program offered by the charter 
school.  (Education Code 47607) 

 
2. Renewal of Five Years 
 

a. A renewal shall be granted for five years if clear and convincing evidence, demonstrated 
by verified data, shows either of the following:  (Education Code 47607.2) 

 
(1) Measurable increases in academic achievement, as defined by at least one year's 

progress for each year in school 
 

(2) Strong postsecondary outcomes, as defined by college enrollment, persistence, 
and completion rates equal to similar peers 

 
b. For any such charter school, the Board may deny the renewal petition only upon making 

written factual findings that the charter school failed to meet or make sufficient progress 
toward meeting standards that provide a benefit to students at the school, that the 
closure of the charter school is in the best interest of students, and that the Board's 
decision provided greater weight to performance on measurements of academic 
performance.  (Education Code 47607.2) 

 
Note:  Education Code 47607.2, as amended by AB 130, authorizes the Board to deny renewal of a charter if the criteria 
described in item #3 below apply in two of the most recent years for which state data is available preceding the renewal 
decision, rather than for two consecutive years immediately preceding the renewal decision, if the two consecutive years 
immediately preceding the renewal include the 2019-20 or 2020-21 school year. 



Page 4 of 6 

 
3. Denial/Two-Year Renewal 
 

a. a. The Board shall generally not renew a charter if, for two consecutive years 
immediately preceding the renewal decision, or for two of the most recent years for 
which state data is available immediately preceding the renewal if the two consecutive 
years immediately preceding the renewal decision include the 2019-20 or 2020-21 
school year, either of the following applies:   (Education Code 47607.2) 
 
(1) The charter school has received the two lowest performance levels schoolwide 

on all the state indicators included in the Dashboard for which it receives 
performance levels, provided the charter school has schoolwide performance 
levels on at least two measurements of academic performance per year in each of 
the two years 

 
(2) For all measurements of academic performance, the charter school has received 

performance levels schoolwide that are the same or lower than the state average 
and, for a majority of numerically significant student subgroups performing 
statewide below the state average in each respective year, received performance 
levels that are lower than the state average, provided that the charter school has 
performance levels on at least two measurements of academic performance for at 
least two subgroups 

 
b. However, the Board may grant a two-year renewal to any such charter school if the 

Board makes written factual findings, setting forth specific facts to support the findings, 
that:  (Education Code 47607.2) 
 
(1) The charter school is taking meaningful steps to address the underlying cause(s) 

of low performance, and those steps are reflected, or will be reflected, in a 
written plan adopted by the governing body of the charter school. 

 
(2) There is clear and convincing evidence, demonstrated by verified data, showing 

achievement of the criteria specified in item #2a above 
 
In addition to all the grounds stated above for denial of a charter renewal, the Board may deny renewal 
of a charter upon a finding that the school is demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the 
program set forth in the petition due to substantial fiscal or governance factors or a finding that the 
school is not serving all students who wish to attend. When denying a charter renewal for either of 
these reasons, the Board shall provide the charter school at least 30 days' notice of the alleged violation 
and a reasonable opportunity to cure the violation, including the submission of a proposed corrective 
action plan. The Board may deny the renewal for these reasons only upon a finding that either the 
corrective action proposed by the charter school has been unsuccessful or that the violations are 
sufficiently severe and pervasive as to render a corrective action plan unviable. Any finding that a 
school is not serving all students who wish to attend shall specifically identify the evidence supporting 
the finding.  (Education Code 47607) 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 6 

Note:  Charter schools that serve high-risk students may qualify for the state's Dashboard Alternative School Status 
(DASS) program, which uses modified methods of measurement for accountability indicators when appropriate. Charter 
schools that participate in the DASS are subject to the following criteria specified in Education Code 47607. 

 
A charter school that qualifies for the state's Dashboard Alternative School Status shall not be subject 
to any of the above criteria. Instead, in determining whether to grant a charter renewal for such a 
charter school, the Board shall consider, in addition to the charter school's performance on the state and 
local indicators included in the Dashboard, the charter school's performance on alternative metrics 
applicable to the charter school based on the student population served. The Board shall meet with the 
charter school during the first year of the charter school's term to mutually agree to discuss alternative 
metrics to be considered and shall notify the charter school of the alternative metrics to be used within 
30 days of this meeting. The Board may deny a charter renewal only upon making written findings, 
setting forth specific facts to support the findings, that the closure of the charter school is in the best 
interest of students.   (Education Code 47607) 
 
Timelines for Board Action 
 

Note:  State law does not expressly provide a timeline for a public hearing on the renewal petition or for the Board's 
final decision on the renewal. However, pursuant to Education Code 47607, renewals are generally subject to the same 
standards and criteria applicable to initial charter authorizations, as specified in Education Code 47605. The following 
section reflects the timelines established for initial charter authorizations. 

 
Within 60 days of receiving the renewal petition, the Board shall hold a public hearing to review 
documentation submitted by the charter school, determine the level of support for the petition, and 
obtain public input. A petition is deemed received on the day the petitioner submits a petition to the 
district office, along with a signed certification that the petitioner deems the petition to be complete.  
(Education Code 47605) 
 
The Board shall either grant or deny the charter renewal within 90 days of receiving the petition. The 
date may be extended by an additional 30 days if both the petitioner and the Board agree to the 
extension.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
At least 15 days before the public hearing at which the Board will grant or deny the charter petition, the 
Board shall publish all staff recommendations and recommended findings regarding the 
petition.   During the public hearing, petitioners shall have equal time and opportunity to present 
evidence and testimony to respond to the staff recommendations and findings.   (Education Code 
47605) 
 

Note:  Though 5 CCR 11966.4 provides that an "automatic renewal" results when the Board does not make a written 
factual finding on which a denial may be based within 60 days of receiving the renewal petition, the timelines specified 
in Education Code 47605 and described above should be followed, as they supersede the inconsistent regulation. The 
district should consult legal counsel in the event of a question regarding the timelines. 

 
If the Board fails to make a written factual finding when required for denial of the petition pursuant to 
the section "Criteria for Granting or Denying Renewal" above within the required time period, the 
absence of a written factual finding shall be deemed an approval of the renewal petition.  (5 CCR 
11966.4) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide notification to CDEthe California Department of 
Education, within 10 calendar days of the Board's action, whenever a renewal of the charter is granted 
or denied.   (Education Code 47604.32; 5 CCR 11962.1) 
 



Page 6 of 6 

If the Board denies a renewal petition, the charter school may submit its application for renewal to the 
County Board of Education within 30 days of the Board's written factual findings supporting the 
denial.   (Education Code 47605, 47607.5) 
 
School Closure 
 
If a charter is not renewed and the charter school ceases operation, the school closure procedures 
specified in the charter in accordance with Education Code 47605 and 5 CCR 11962 shall be 
implemented.  (Education Code 47604.32, 47605) 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 14, 2020 
revised: April 13, 2021 
revised: March 08, 2022 



Page 1 of 6 
**Revisions** 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Community Relations 
Policy 1312.3: Uniform Complaint Procedures 

 

Original Adopted Date: 04/10/2007 | Last Revised Date: 04/13/2021 | Last Reviewed Date: 04/13/2021  
 

Note:  To address prohibited discrimination and violations of state and federal laws governing educational programs, 5 
CCR 4621 mandates districts to adopt uniform complaint procedures (UCP) consistent with the state's complaint 
procedures specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670. Additionally, Education Code 52075 mandates districts to adopt policies 
and procedures implementing the use of UCP to investigate and resolve complaints alleging noncompliance with 
requirements related to the local control and accountability plan, and Education Code 8212, as renumbered by AB 131 
(Ch. 116, Statutes of 2021) mandates districts to adopt policies and procedures for resolving complaints regarding 
specified health and safety issues in license-exempt California State Preschool Programs (CSPP).  Furthermore, a 
number of federal civil rights statutes and their implementing regulations mandate districts to adopt policies and 
procedures for the prompt and equitable resolution of complaints of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying).  For example, districts are mandated pursuant to 28 CFR 35.107 to adopt policy 
and procedures to address discrimination on the basis of disability, while districts that receive federal financial 
assistance are mandated pursuant to 34 CFR 106.8 and 34 CFR 110.25 to adopt policies and procedures to address 
discrimination on the basis of sex and age. The following policy contains a list of programs and activities subject to 
these procedures pursuant to state law; see the section "Complaints Subject to UCP", below. 
 
The California Department of Education (CDE) monitors district programs and operations for compliance with these 
requirements through its Federal Program Monitoring (FPM) process. The FPM consists of a review of (1) written 
district policies and procedures for required statements, including prohibition of discrimination (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, and bullying) against students pursuant to Education Code 234.1; and (2) records of required 
activities, such as annual notification provided to students, parents/guardians, employees, and other school community 
members. 
 
The U.S. Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights (OCR) enforces federal anti-discrimination laws, including 
Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 USC 12101-12213), Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 
USC 2000d-2000e-17), Title IX of the Education Amendments Act of 1972 (20 USC 1681-1688), Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC 794), and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 USC 6101-6107). Whether a 
complaint of sexual harassment is addressed through the UCP or the federal Title IX complaint procedures adopted 
pursuant to 34 CFR 106.44-106.45, as added by 85 Fed. Reg. 30026, is dependent on whether the alleged conduct meets 
the more stringent federal definition or the state definition of sexual harassment.  See the section "Non-UCP 
Complaints" below, the accompanying administrative regulation, BP/AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment, and AR 5145.71 
- Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures. 
 
The following policy and accompanying administrative regulation reflect all components required by law, 5 CCR 4600-
4670, as amended by Register 2020, No. 21, and the 2021-22 FPM instrument. Additional details provided herein may 
help districts during a compliance check by CDE or in the event that a CDE or OCR investigation occurs. 

 
The Governing Board recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility to ensure compliance 
with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. The Board 
encourages the early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To resolve complaints which may 
require a more formal process, the Board adopts the uniform system of complaint processes specified 
in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the accompanying administrative regulation. 
 
Complaints Subject to UCP 
 

Note:  The FPM process includes a review of a district's policies and procedures to determine whether all district 
programs and activities that are subject to the UCP, as listed in the FPM instrument, are addressed. Items #1-23 list all 
programs and activities identified in the FPM instrument. According to CDE, the district's policy must list all such 
programs and activities and, at the district's discretion, may add a paragraph below the list stating the UCP programs and 
activities that are implemented in the district. 
 
For further information regarding requirements for the following programs and activities, see the law cited and/or 
related CSBA policy and/or administrative regulation. 

 



Page 2 of 6 

The district's uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve complaints 
regarding the following programs and activities: 
 
1.         Accommodations for pregnant and parenting students   (Education Code 46015) 

(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 
 

2.         Adult education programs   (Education Code 8500-8538, 52334.7, 52500-52617) 
(cf. 6200 - Adult Education) 
 

3.         After School Education and Safety programs   (Education Code 8482-8484.65) 
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 
 

4.         Agricultural career technical education   (Education Code 52460-52462) 
 

5.         Career technical and technical education and career technical and technical training programs  
(Education Code 52300-52462) 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 
(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning) 
 

6.         Child care and development programs   (Education Code 8200-8498)8488) 
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 
 

7.         Compensatory education   (Education Code 54400) 
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 
 

8.         Consolidated categorical aid programs   (Education Code 33315; 34 CFR 299.10-299.12) 
 

9.         Course periods without educational content, when students in grades 9-12 are assigned to such 
courses more than one week in any semester or in a course the student has previously 
satisfactorily completed, unless specified conditions are met  (Education Code 51228.1-
51228.3) 
(cf. 6152 - Class Assignment) 
 

10.       Discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying in district programs and activities, 
including in those programs or activities funded directly by or that receive or benefit from any 
state financial assistance, based on thea person's actual or perceived characteristics of race or 
ethnicity, color, ancestry, nationality, national origin, immigration status, ethnic group 
identification, age, religion, marital status, pregnancy, parental status, physical or mental 
disability, medical condition, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender 
expression, or genetic information, or any other characteristic identified in Education Code 200 
or 220, Government Code 11135, or Penal Code 422.55, or based on the person's association 
with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics   (5 CCR 
4610) 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
(cf. 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures) 
 

11.       Educational and graduation requirements for students in foster care, homeless students, students 
from military families, and students formerly in a juvenile court school, migrant students, and 
immigrant students participating in a newcomer program  (Education Code 48645.7, 48853, 
48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2) 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 



Page 3 of 6 

(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students) 
 

12.       Every Student Succeeds Act   (Education Code 52059.5; 20 USC 6301 et seq.) 
 

13.       Local control and accountability plan   (Education Code 52075) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
 

14.       Migrant education   (Education Code 54440-54445) 
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 
 

15.       Physical education instructional minutes   (Education Code 51210, 51222, 51223) 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 
 

16.       Student fees   (Education Code 49010-49013) 
(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 
 

17.       Reasonable accommodations to a lactating student   (Education Code 222) 
 

18.       Regional occupational centers and programs   (Education Code 52300-52334.7) 
(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 
 

19.       School plans for student achievement as required for the consolidated application for specified 
federal and/or state categorical funding   (Education Code 64001) 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
 

20.       School safety plans   (Education Code 32280-32289) 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 
 

21.       School site councils as required for the consolidated application for specified federal and/or 
state categorical funding   (Education Code 65000) 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
 

22.       State preschool programs   (Education Code 8235-8239.1)8207-8225) 
(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 8212, as renumbered by AB 131, and CDE's 2021-22 FPM instrument, the district 
must use the UCP, with modifications as necessary, to resolve complaints alleging deficiencies related to health and 
safety issues in license-exempt CSPPs. 
 
Pursuant to 5 CCR 4610, such complaints must be addressed through the procedures described in 5 CCR 4690-4694, as 
added by Register 2020, No. 21. See the section "Health and Safety Complaints in License-Exempt Preschool 
Programs" in the accompanying administrative regulations. 

 
23.       State preschool health and safety issues in license-exempt programs   (Education Code 

8235.8212) 
 

Note: 5 CCR 4621 mandates that district policy ensure that complainants are protected from retaliation as specified in 
item #24 below. 

 
24. Any complaint alleging retaliation against a complainant or other participant in the complaint 

process or anyone who has acted to uncover or report a violation subject to this policy 
 

25.       Any other state or federal educational program the Superintendent of Public Instruction or 
designee deems appropriate 
 

 



Page 4 of 6 

Note:  5 CCR 4631 authorizes the district to utilize alternative dispute resolution (ADR) methods, including mediation, 
to resolve complaints before initiating a formal investigation. However, the district should ensure that any ADR it uses, 
particularly "in-person ADR," is appropriate for the particular situation. For example, in some instances (e.g., sexual 
assault), face-to-face mediation should not be used, even if all parties voluntarily agree, given the risk that a student 
might feel pressured to "voluntarily" agree to it. Districts may not offer or facilitate an informal resolution process to 
resolve allegations that an employee sexually harassed a student; see AR 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment 
Complaint Procedures. 
 
The following optional paragraph provides for a neutral mediator and should be revised to reflect district practice. 

 
The Board recognizes that alternative dispute resolution (ADR) can, depending on the nature of the 
allegations, offer a process for resolving a complaint in a manner that is acceptable to all parties. An 
ADR process such as mediation may be offered to resolve complaints that involve more than one 
student and no adult. However, mediation shall not be offered or used to resolve any complaint 
involving sexual assault or where there is a reasonable risk that a party to the mediation would feel 
compelled to participate. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the use of ADR is consistent 
with state and federal laws and regulations. 
 

Note:  The following paragraph is mandated pursuant to 5 CCR 4621. Appropriate disclosure will vary in each case 
depending on the facts and circumstances. 

 
The district shall protect all complainants from retaliation. In investigating complaints, the 
confidentiality of the parties involved shall be protected as required by law. For any complaint alleging 
retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), 
the Superintendent or designee shall keep the identity of the complainant, and/or the subject of the 
complaint if different from the complainant, confidential when appropriate and as long as the integrity 
of the complaint process is maintained. 
(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
 
When an allegation that is not subject to UCP is included in a UCP complaint, the district shall refer 
the non-UCP allegation to the appropriate staff or agency and shall investigate and, if appropriate, 
resolve the UCP-related allegation(s) through the district's UCP. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to district staff to ensure awareness and 
knowledge of current law and requirements related to UCP, including the steps and timelines specified 
in this policy and the accompanying administrative regulation. 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 

Note:  It is important to maintain records of all UCP complaints and the investigations of those complaints. If the district 
is investigated by OCR or CDE, these are important documents in demonstrating that the district has complied with 
federal law, state law, and its own policies and regulations. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a record of each complaint and subsequent related 
actions, including steps taken during the investigation and all information required for compliance with 
5 CCR 4631 and 4633. 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
Non-UCP Complaints 
 
The following complaints shall not be subject to the district's UCP but shall be investigated and 
resolved by the specified agency or through an alternative process: 
 



Page 5 of 6 

1.         Any complaint alleging child abuse or neglect shall be referred to the County Department of 
Social Services Protective Services Division or the appropriate law enforcement agency.   (5 
CCR 4611) 
(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 
 

2.         Any complaint alleging health and safety violations by a child development program shall, for 
licensed facilities, be referred to Department of Social Services.   (5 CCR 4611) 
 

3.         Any complaint alleging that a student, while in an education program or activity in which the 
district exercises substantial control over the context and respondent, was subjected to sexual 
harassment as defined in 34 CFR 106.30 shall be addressed through the federal Title IX 
complaint procedures adopted pursuant to 34 CFR 106.44-106.45, as specified in AR 5145.71 - 
Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures. 

 
Note:  Complaints of employment discrimination are not subject to the UCP. Instead, pursuant to 2 CCR 11023, the 
district must establish an impartial and prompt process for addressing such complaints.  In addition, 5 CCR 4611 
requires that employment discrimination complaints be referred to the Department of Fair Employment and Housing. 
See AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment for applicable complaint procedures. 

 
4. Any complaint alleging employment discrimination or harassment shall be investigated and 

resolved by the district in accordance with the procedures specified in AR 4030 - 
Nondiscrimination in Employment, including the right to file the complaint with the California 
Department of Fair Employment and Housing. 
 

Note:  5 CCR 4610, as amended by Register 2020, No. 21, limits the applicability of the UCP for complaints regarding 
special education and child nutrition, as provided in Items #5-7 below. 

 
5. Any complaint alleging a violation of a state or federal law or regulation related to special 

education, a settlement agreement related to the provision of a free appropriate public 
education, (FAPE), failure or refusal to implement a due process hearing order to which the 
district is subject, or a physical safety concern that interferes with the district's provision of 
FAPE shall be submitted to the California Department of Education (CDE) in accordance with 
AR 6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for Special Education.   (5 CCR 3200-
3205) 
(cf. 6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for Special Education) 
 

6. Any complaint alleging noncompliance of the district's food service program with laws 
regarding meal counting and claiming, reimbursable meals, eligibility of children or adults, or 
use of cafeteria funds and allowable expenses shall be filed with or referred to CDE in 
accordance with BP 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance.   (5 CCR 15580-15584) 
 

7. Any allegation of discrimination based on race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability in 
the district's food service program shall be filed with or referred to the U.S. Department of 
Agriculture in accordance with BP 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance.   (5 CCR 15582) 
 

Note:  Education Code 35186 requires the district to use UCP, with modifications, to investigate and resolve complaints 
related to the issues stated in the following paragraph (i.e., "Williams complaints"). Because Education Code 35186 sets 
forth different timelines for investigation and resolution of these kinds of complaints than the timelines specified in law 
for other uniform complaints, CDE has created a separate uniform complaint process for the Williams complaints. See 
AR 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures for the separate procedure. 

 
8. Any complaint related to sufficiency of textbooks or instructional materials, emergency or 

urgent facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety of students or staff, or 
teacher vacancies and misassignments shall be investigated and resolved in accordance with 



Page 6 of 6 

AR 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures.   (Education Code 35186) 
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007  
revised: August 10, 2010  
revised: June 12, 2012 
revised: February 12, 2013 
revised: December 9, 2014 
revised: October 13, 2015 
revised: April 12, 2016 
revised: October 11, 2016 
revised: June 13, 2017 
revised: April 10, 2018 
revised: April 9, 2019 
revised: July 14, 2020 
revised: April 13, 2021 
revised: March 08, 2022 



Page 1 of 14 
**Revisions** 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Community Relations 
Regulation 1312.3: Uniform Complaint Procedures 

 

Original Adopted Date: 04/10/2007 | Last Revised Date: 08/10/2021 | Last Reviewed Date: 08/10/2021  
 

Note:  5 CCR 4621 mandates that the district's uniform complaint procedures (UCP) be consistent with the procedures 
of 5 CCR 4600-4670. Additionally, Education Code 52075 mandates districts to adopt policies and procedures 
implementing the use of UCP to investigate and resolve complaints alleging noncompliance with requirements related to 
the local control and accountability plan (LCAP), and Education Code 8212, as renumbered by AB 131 (Ch. 116, 
Statutes of 2021) mandates districts to adopt policies and procedures for resolving complaints regarding specified 
health and safety issues in license-exempt California State Preschool Programs (CSPP).  Furthermore, a number of 
federal civil rights statutes and their implementing regulations mandate districts to adopt policies and procedures for 
the prompt and equitable resolution of complaints of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying.  For 
example, all districts are mandated pursuant to 28 CFR 35.107 to adopt policy and procedures to address discrimination 
on the basis of disability, while districts that receive federal financial assistance are mandated pursuant to 34 CFR 
106.8 and 34 CFR 110.25 to adopt policies and procedures to address discrimination on the basis of sex and age.  Some 
of the factors considered by the U.S. Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights (OCR) when determining 
whether a district's procedures are "prompt and equitable" are addressed throughout the following administrative 
regulation. 
 
Apart from these mandates, state law authorizes the use of UCP to resolve complaints of noncompliance with laws 
related to the development of a school plan for student achievement and the establishment of school site councils; 
accommodations for pregnant and parenting students; prohibition against the charging of student fees; educational rights 
of foster youth, homeless students, former juvenile court school students, children of military families, migrant students, 
and students participating in a newcomer program for newly arrived immigrants; assignment of students to courses 
without educational content; and physical education instructional minutes.  See the section "Complaints Subject to 
UCP" in the accompanying Board policy. 

 
Except as the Governing Board may otherwise be specifically provideprovided in other district 
policies, these uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve only the 
complaints specified in the accompanying Board policy. 
(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 
(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials) 
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 
 
Compliance Officers 
 

Note:  5 CCR 4621 mandates the district to identify in its policies and procedures the person(s), position(s), or unit(s) 
responsible for ensuring compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational 
programs, including the receiving and investigating of complaints alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying and retaliation. During its Federal Program Monitoring (FPM) process, California Department 
of Education (CDE) staff will check to ensure that the district's procedures list the specific title(s) of the employee(s) 
responsible for receiving and investigating complaints.  Districts should identify the specific title(s) of the compliance 
officer(s) in the space provided below. If a district identifies multiple compliance officers, it is recommended that one 
be designated the lead compliance officer. 
 
The following paragraph specifies that the compliance officer will be the same person designated to serve as the Title IX 
Coordinator for addressing complaints of sexual harassment pursuant to AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment and AR 
5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures. Districts may modify this regulation to designate different 
district employees to serve these functions. 

 
The district designates the individual(s), position(s), or unit(s) identified below as responsible for 
receiving, coordinating the district's response to, and investigating complaints and for complying with 
state and federal civil rights laws.   The individual(s), position(s), or unit(s) also serve as the 
compliance officer(s) specified in AR 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment responsible for handling 
complaints regarding unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying and in AR 5145.7 
- Sexual Harassment for handling complaints regarding sexual harassment.  The compliance officer(s) 



Page 2 of 14 

shall receive and coordinate the investigation of complaints and shall ensure district compliance with 
law. 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
(cf. 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaints Procedures) 
 
James Berardi, Superintendent 
Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
PO Box 955 
109 Beckwith Road 
Loyalton, CA 96118 
(530) 993-1660 Ext. 110 
jberardi@spjusd.org 
 

Note:  The following paragraph is for use by districts that have designated more than one compliance officer. 
 
The compliance officer who receives a complaint may assign another compliance officer to investigate 
and resolve the complaint. The compliance officer shall promptly notify the complainant and 
respondent if another compliance officer is assigned to the complaint. 
 
In no instance shall a compliance officer be assigned to a complaint in which the compliance officer 
has a bias or conflict of interest that would prohibit the fair investigation or resolution of the 
complaint.   Any complaint against a compliance officer or that raises a concern about the compliance 
officer's ability to investigate the complaint fairly and without bias shall be filed with the 
Superintendent or designee who shall determine how the complaint will be investigated. 
 

Note:  5 CCR 4621 mandates that the district's policy requires employees responsible for compliance and/or for 
investigating and resolving complaints to be knowledgeable about the laws and programs at issue in the complaints they 
are assigned. Compliance officers must also have training or experience in handling discrimination complaints, 
including appropriate investigative techniques and understanding of the applicable legal standards. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees assigned to investigate and resolve 
complaints receive training and are knowledgeable about the laws and programs at issue in the 
complaints to which they are assigned.  Training provided to such employees shall cover current state 
and federal laws and regulations governing the program; applicable processes for investigating and 
resolving complaints, including those alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or 
bullying; applicable standards for reaching decisions on complaints; and appropriate corrective 
measures.   Assigned employees may have access to legal counsel as determined by the Superintendent 
or designee. 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 9124 - Attorney) 
 
The compliance officer or, if necessary, an appropriate administrator shall determine whether interim 
measures are necessary during an investigation and while the result is pending. If interim measures are 
determined to be necessary, the compliance officer or the administrator shall consult with the 
Superintendent, the Superintendent's designee, or, if appropriate, the site principal to implement one or 
more interim measures. The interim measures shall remain in place until the compliance officer 
determines that they are no longer necessary or until the district issues its final written decision, 
whichever occurs first. 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 14 

Notifications 
 
The district's UCP policy and administrative regulation shall be posted in all district schools and 
offices, including staff lounges and student government meeting rooms.   (Education Code 234.1) 
 

Note:  During the FPM process, CDE staff will check to ensure that the district's policy contains a statement ensuring 
annual dissemination of notice of the district's UCP to the persons specified below. 

 
In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall annually provide written notification of the district's 
UCP to students, employees, parents/guardians of district students, district advisory committee 
members, school advisory committee members, appropriate private school officials or representatives, 
and other interested parties.(5 CCR 4622) 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 

Note:  5 CCR 4622 requires the district to include specified information in its annual UCP notice to students, 
parents/guardians, employees, and others. The following list reflects those required components and additional content 
of the notice listed in CDE's FPM instrument. 
 
A sample of the annual notice is available through CDE's web site. It is the district's responsibility to update the notice 
as necessary to reflect new law. 

 
The notice shall include: 
 
1.         A statement that the district is primarily responsible for compliance with federal and state laws 

and regulations, including those related to prohibition of unlawful discrimination, harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying against any protected group, and a list of all programs and activities 
that are subject to UCP as identified in the section "Complaints Subject to UCP" in the 
accompanying Board policy 

 
2.         The title of the position responsible for processing complaints, the identity of the person(s) 

currently occupying that position if known, and a statement that such persons will be 
knowledgeable about the laws and programs that they are assigned to investigate 
 

3.         A statement that a UCP complaint, except a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying, must be filed no later than one year from the date the 
alleged violation occurred 
 

4.         A statement that a UCP complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, 
or bullying must be filed no later than six months from the date of the alleged conduct or the 
date the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged conduct 
 

5.         A statement that a student enrolled in a public school shall not be required to pay a fee for 
participation in an educational activity that constitutes an integral fundamental part of the 
district's educational program, including curricular and extracurricular activities 
(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 
 

6.         A statement that a complaint regarding student fees or the local control and accountability plan 
(LCAP) may be filed anonymously if the complainant provides evidence or information leading 
to evidence to support the complaint 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 

 (cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 
 



Page 4 of 14 

7.         A statement that the district will post a standardized notice of the educational rightsand 
graduation requirements of foster youth, homeless students, children of military families, and 
former juvenile court school students now enrolled in the district, children of military families, 
migrant students, and immigrant students enrolled in a newcomer program, as specified in 
Education Code 48645.7, 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, and 51225.2, and the complaint 
process 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 
(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students) 
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 
 

8.         A statement that complaints will be investigated in accordance with the district's UCP and a 
written decision will be sent to the complainant within 60 days from the receipt of the 
complaint, unless this time period is extended by written agreement of the complainant 
 

9.         A statement that, for programs within the scope of the UCP as specified in the accompanying 
Board policy, the complainant has a right to appeal the district's investigation report to the 
California Department of Education (CDE) by filing a written appeal, including a copy of the 
original complaint and the district's decision, within 30 calendar days of receiving the district's 
decision 
 

10.       A statement advising the complainant of any civil law remedies, including, but not limited to, 
injunctions, restraining orders, or other remedies or orders that may be available under state or 
federal laws prohibiting discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying, if applicable 
 

11.       A statement that copies of the district's UCP are available free of charge 
 

Note:  The following paragraph may be modified to reflect district practice. Pursuant to Education Code 221.61, a 
district and district school are required to post information related to Title IX on their web sites, including specified 
information about complaint procedures under Title IX.  See AR 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment.  A school or 
district that does not maintain a web site may comply by posting the information on the web site of its district or county 
office of education (COE), however a school, district, or COE is not required to establish a web site if it does not 
maintain one. A comprehensive list of rights based on the provisions of the federal regulations implementing Title IX 
can be found in Education Code 221.8 

 
The annual notification, complete contact information of the compliance officer(s), and information 
related to Title IX as required pursuant to Education Code 221.616 shall be posted on the district and 
district school web sitesites and may be provided through district-supported social media, if available. 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 
 

Note:  Both federal and state laws contain requirements for translation of certain information and documents. Title VI of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964 requires districts to ensure meaningful access to their programs and activities by persons 
with limited English proficiency. OCR has interpreted this to require that, whenever information is provided to 
parents/guardians, districts must notify limited-English-proficient (LEP) parents/guardians in a language other than 
English in order to be adequate.  OCR enforces this requirement consistent with the Department of Justice's 2007 
Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against National Origin 
Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons. Under the Guidance, a recipient of federal funds has an 
obligation to provide language assistance to LEP individuals based on the balancing of four factors:  (1) the number or 
proportion of LEP individuals likely to encounter the program, (2) the frequency with which LEP individuals come in 
contact with the program, (3) the nature and importance of the services provided by the program, and (4) the resources 
available to the recipient. State law is more specific than federal law:  Education Code 48985 requires translation of 
certain information and documents if 15 percent or more of students enrolled in the school speak a single primary 
language other than English. 

 



Page 5 of 14 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all students and parents/guardians, including students 
and parents/guardians with limited English proficiency, have access to the relevant information 
provided in the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the UCP. 
 
If 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a particular district school speak a single primary 
language other than English, the district's UCP policy, regulation, forms, and notices shall be translated 
into that language, in accordance with Education Code 234.1 and 48985.  In all other instances, the 
district shall ensure meaningful access to all relevant UCP information for parents/guardians with 
limited English proficiency. 
 
Filing of Complaints 
 

Note:  Complaints filed under UCP may be filed directly with a compliance officer or with any site administrator not 
designated as a compliance officer. For example, acts of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying 
may initially be reported to a principal. See AR 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment and AR 5145.7 - Sexual 
Harassment. If a site administrator not designated as a compliance officer receives a UCP complaint, the site 
administrator must notify a compliance officer. A district may also establish a site-level process for receiving informal 
reports about incidents for which a UCP complaint may be filed and notifying students and parents/guardians of their 
right to file a UCP complaint. Any site-level process established by a district should be in writing and distributed in the 
same manner as the grievance procedures listed herein with an explanation of how it interacts with the UCP complaint 
process. 

 
The complaint shall be presented to the compliance officer who shall maintain a log of complaints 
received, providing each with a code number and a date stamp. 
 
If a site administrator not designated as a compliance officer receives a complaint, the site 
administrator shall notify the compliance officer. 
 
All complaints shall be filed in writing and signed by the complainant. If a complainant is unable to put 
a complaint in writing due to conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, district staff shall assist in the 
filing of the complaint.   (5 CCR 4600) 
 
Complaints shall also be filed in accordance with the following rules, as applicable: 
 
1.         A complaint alleging district violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations 

governing the programs specified in the accompanying Board policy may be filed by any 
individual, public agency, or organization.   (5 CCR 4630)4600) 

 
Note:  Education Code 49013 and 52075 mandate districts to adopt procedures that allow for anonymous complaints to 
be filed when a district allegedly violates the prohibition against the charging of student fees or violates any requirement 
related to the LCAP. 

 
2.         Any complaint alleging noncompliance with law regarding the prohibition against student fees, 

deposits, and charges or any requirement related to the LCAP may be filed anonymously if the 
complaint provides evidence, or information leading to evidence, to support an allegation of 
noncompliance.  A complaint about a violation of the prohibition against the charging of 
unlawful student fees may be filed with the principal of the school or with the Superintendent 
or designee. 
 

Note:  Pursuant to 5 CCR 4630, complaints related to the LCAP must be filed within a year of the date that the County 
Superintendent of Schools, the reviewing authority for districts, approves the district's LCAP. 

 
3.         A UCP complaint, except for a UCP complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, 

intimidation, or bullying, shall be filed no later than one year from the date the alleged violation 
occurred.  For complaints related to the LCAP, the date of the alleged violation is the date when 



Page 6 of 14 

the County Superintendent of Schools approves the LCAP that was adopted by the Governing 
Board.   (5 CCR 4630) 
 

4.         A complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying may be 
filed only by a person who alleges having personally suffered unlawful discrimination, a person 
who believes that any specific class of individuals has been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination, or a duly authorized representative who alleges that an individual student has 
been subjected to discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying.   (5 CCR 4630) 
 

5.         A complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying shall be 
initiated no later than six months from the date that the alleged unlawful discrimination 
occurred, or six months from the date that the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts 
of the alleged unlawful discrimination. The time for filing may be extended for up to 90 days 
by the Superintendent or designee for good cause upon written request by the complainant 
setting forth the reasons for the extension.   (5 CCR 4630) 
 

6.         When a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying is 
filed anonymously, the compliance officer shall pursue an investigation or other response as 
appropriate, depending on the specificity and reliability of the information provided and the 
seriousness of the allegation. 
 

Note:  Districts should consult legal counsel before honoring a confidentiality request to withhold the victim's name 
from the alleged perpetrator, especially in the case of alleged sexual assault, as this may affect the district's ability to 
conduct a thorough investigation or provide supportive measures to the victim. In OCR's Part 1: Questions and Answers 
Regarding the Department's Title IX Regulations, it is stated that, "Title IX regulations balance a complainant's desire 
for confidentiality (in terms of, for instance, the complainant's identity not being disclosed to the respondent) with a 
school's discretion to pursue an investigation where factual circumstances warrant an investigation even though the 
complainant does not desire to file a formal complaint or participate in a grievance process." 
 
These guiding principles would also apply to harassment on the basis of race, gender, disability, or other protected 
characteristic. 

 
7.         When a complainant of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying or the 

alleged victim, when not the complainant, requests confidentiality, the compliance officer shall 
inform the complainant or victim that the request may limit the district's ability to investigate 
the conduct or take other necessary action.  When honoring a request for confidentiality, the 
district shall nevertheless take all reasonable steps to investigate and resolve/respond to the 
complaint consistent with the request. 
 

Mediation 
 

Note:  The following section should be used only by those districts that have decided to establish procedures for 
attempting to resolve complaints through alternative dispute resolution (ADR) procedures such as mediation; see the 
accompanying Board policy.  The following section may be modified to specify the ADR method and timelines 
used within the district. 
 
Districts may not offer or facilitate an informal resolution process to resolve allegations that an employee sexually 
harassed a student; see AR 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures. 

 
Within three business days after receiving the complaint, the compliance officer may informally 
discuss with all the parties the possibility of using mediation to resolve the complaint.  Mediation shall 
be offered to resolve complaints that involve more than one student and no adult.   However, mediation 
shall not be offered or used to resolve any complaint involving an allegation of sexual assault or where 
there is a reasonable risk that a party to the mediation would feel compelled to participate.  If the 
parties agree to mediation, the compliance officer shall make all arrangements for this process. 
 



Page 7 of 14 

Before initiating the mediation of a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination, 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying, the compliance officer shall ensure that all parties agree to 
permit the mediator access to all relevant confidential information.  The compliance officer shall also 
notify all parties of the right to end the informal process at any time. 
 
If the mediation process does not resolve the problem within the parameters of law, the compliance 
officer shall proceed with an investigation of the complaint. 
 
The use of mediation shall not extend the district's timelines for investigating and resolving the 
complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to such an extension of time.  If mediation is 
successful and the complaint is withdrawn, then the district shall take only the actions agreed upon 
through the mediation.  If mediation is unsuccessful, the district shall then continue with subsequent 
steps specified in this administrative regulation. 
 
Investigation of Complaint 
 

Note:  5 CCR 4631, which requires the district to provide the complainant with the opportunity to present relevant 
information, does not provide any timeline. Thus, the timeline specified below may be modified to reflect district 
practice. 

 
Within 10 business days after the compliance officer receives the complaint, the compliance officer 
shall begin an investigation into the complaint. 
 
Within one business day of initiating the investigation, the compliance officer shall provide the 
complainant and/or the complainant's representative with the opportunity to present the information 
contained in the complaint to the compliance officer and shall notify the complainant and/or 
representative of the opportunity to present the compliance officer with any evidence, or information 
leading to evidence, to support the allegations in the complaint. Such evidence or information may be 
presented at any time during the investigation. 
 

Note:  During the investigation, the compliance officer should consider all relevant circumstances, such as how the 
alleged misconduct affected one or more students' education; the type, frequency, and duration of the misconduct; the 
identity, age, and sex of the individuals involved in and impacted by the conduct and the relationship between them; the 
number of persons engaged in the conduct and at whom the conduct was directed; the size of the school, location of the 
incidents, and context in which they occurred; and other incidents at the school involving different individuals. 

 
In conducting the investigation, the compliance officer shall collect all available documents and review 
all available records, notes, or statements related to the complaint, including any additional evidence or 
information received from the parties during the course of the investigation.   The compliance officer 
shall individually interview all available witnesses with information pertinent to the complaint, and 
may visit any reasonably accessible location where the relevant actions are alleged to have taken 
place.   At appropriate intervals, the compliance officer shall inform the parties of the status of the 
investigation. 
 
To investigate a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or 
bullying, the compliance officer shall interview the alleged victim(s), any alleged offender(s), and 
other relevant witnesses privately, separately, and in a confidential manner. As necessary, additional 
staff or legal counsel may conduct or support the investigation. 
 

Note:  5 CCR 4631 allows the district to dismiss a complaint when the complainant refuses to provide the investigator 
with relevant documents or otherwise obstructs the investigation. 5 CCR 4631 also provides that, if the district refuses 
to provide the investigator with access to records or other documents, the investigator may issue a finding in favor of the 
complainant.  During the FPM process, CDE staff will check to ensure that both of these statements regarding the 
provision of access to information are included in the district's policy or procedures, as specified below. 

 



Page 8 of 14 

A complainant's refusal to provide the district's investigator with documents or other evidence related 
to the allegations in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation, or any other 
obstruction of the investigation may result in the dismissal of the complaint because of a lack of 
evidence to support the allegation.   Refusal by the district to provide the investigator with access to 
records and/or information related to the allegations in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in 
the investigation, or any other obstruction of the investigation may result in a finding based on 
evidence collected that a violation has occurred and in the imposition of a remedy in favor of the 
complainant.   (5 CCR 4631) 
 
Timeline for Investigation Report 
 

Note:  Pursuant to 5 CCR 4631, the district's investigation report must be sent to the complainant within 60 calendar 
days of receiving the complaint. Option 1 below is for districts that do not allow complainants to appeal the compliance 
officer's decision to the Governing Board.  Option 2 is for districts that allow appeals to the Board, and it requires the 
compliance officer's decision within 30 calendar days so that the Board's decision can still be given within the 60-day 
time limit. 
 
Pursuant to 5 CCR 4631, only a complainant has the right to receive the investigation report and to file a complaint with 
the Board if dissatisfied with the compliance officer's decision. However, under certain circumstances, some of the same 
rights should be extended to a respondent in order to make the process equitable.  For example, since the respondent to a 
complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying is usually an individual, the 
respondent should be notified when the complainant has agreed to an extension of timelines. Options 1 and 2 reflect 
these recommendations and may be modified to reflect district practice.  When questions arise as to what rights to 
provide to a respondent, the district should consult legal counsel accordingly. 
 
Pursuant to 5 CCR 4640, when a UCP complaint is erroneously sent to CDE without first being filed with the district, 
the 60-day period specified in 5 CCR 4631 begins when the district receives the complaint. 

 
Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, the investigation report shall be sent to 
the complainant within 60 calendar days of the district's receipt of the complaint.  
 
Within 30 calendar days of receiving the complaint, the compliance officer shall prepare and send to 
the complainant a written report, as described in the section "Investigation Report" below.  If the 
complainant is dissatisfied with the compliance officer's decision, the complainant may, within five 
business days, file the complaint in writing with the Board. 
 
The Board may consider the matter at its next regular Board meeting or at a special Board meeting 
convened in order to meet the 60-day time limit within which the complaint must be answered.   When 
required by law, the matter shall be considered in closed session.  The Board may decide not to hear 
the complaint, in which case the compliance officer's decision shall be final. 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session) 
 
If the Board hears the complaint, the compliance officer shall send the Board's decision to the 
complainant within 60 calendar days of the district's initial receipt of the complaint or within  
the time period that has been specified in a written agreement with the complainant.   (5 CCR 4631) 
 
For any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and bullying, the 
respondent shall be informed of any extension of the timeline agreed to by the complainant, shall be 
sent the district's investigation report, and, in the same manner as the complainant, may file a 
complaint with the Board if dissatisfied with the decision. 
 
Investigation Report 
 

Note:  5 CCR 4631 specifies components that are required to be part of the district's investigation report.  Inclusion of 
these items will help protect the district's position in case of an appeal to CDE, a complaint submitted to OCR, or if 
litigation is filed. 

 



Page 9 of 14 

For all complaints, the district's investigation report shall include:   (5 CCR 4631) 
 
1.         The findings of fact based on the evidence gathered 

 
2.         A conclusion providing a clear determination for each allegation as to whether the district is in 

compliance with the relevant law 
 

3.         Corrective action(s) whenever the district finds merit in the complaint, including, when 
required by law, a remedy to all affected students and parents/guardians and, for a student fees 
complaint, a remedy that complies with Education Code 49013 and 5 CCR 4600 
 

4.         Notice of the complainant's right to appeal the district's investigation report to CDE, except 
when the district has used the UCP to address a complaint not specified in 5 CCR 4610 
 

5.         Procedures to be followed for initiating an appeal to CDE 
 

The investigation report may also include follow-up procedures to prevent recurrence or retaliation and 
for reporting any subsequent problems. 
 

Note:  The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) (20 USC 1232g; 34 CFR 99.1-99.67) protects student 
privacy, including student records containing details of the actions taken in response to a UCP complaint. However, 
pursuant to 20 USC 1221, FERPA may not "be construed to affect the applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964, Title IX of Education Amendments of 1972, Title V of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Age Discrimination 
Act, or other statutes prohibiting discrimination, to any applicable program."  In February 2015, the Family Policy 
Compliance Office (FPCO), now the Student Privacy Policy Office, released a letter concluding that FERPA permits a 
district to disclose to a student who was subjected to unlawful discrimination certain information about the sanctions 
imposed upon the respondent when the sanctions directly relate to that student. Thus, if properly remedying the impact 
of discrimination would require disclosing to the alleged victim certain information on how the district disciplined the 
respondent (e.g., an order that the respondent stay away from the alleged victim), FPCO interprets FERPA as allowing 
the district to disclose that information. 
 
Given the potential liability from improperly disclosing such information, districts are advised to consult with legal 
counsel when presented with a situation where a victim of unlawful discrimination requests information about sanctions 
imposed upon the respondent. 

 
In consultation with district legal counsel, information about the relevant part of an investigation report 
may be communicated to a victim who is not the complainant and to other parties who may be 
involved in implementing the investigation report or are affected by the complaint, as long as the 
privacy of the parties is protected.   In a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, 
intimidation, and bullying, notice of the investigation report to the alleged victim shall include 
information about any sanction to be imposed upon the respondent that relates directly to the alleged 
victim. 
 

Note:  Education Code 48985 requires that reports sent to parents/guardians be written in their primary language when 
15 percent or more of a school's enrolled students speak a single primary language other than English. During the FPM 
process, CDE staff will check to ensure that UCP complaint procedures pertaining to CSPP health and safety issues 
include a statement that the district response and the investigation report must, whenever Education Code 48985 is 
applicable, be written in English and the primary language in which the complaint was filed; see the section "Health and 
Safety Complaints in License-Exempt Preschool Programs" below. The following paragraph extends this provision to 
all types of complaints to ensure compliance with Education Code 48985. In addition, based on Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, OCR requires districts to ensure meaningful access to all relevant UCP information for 
parents/guardians with limited English proficiency. 

 
If the complaint involves a limited-English-proficient (LEP) student or parent/guardian, then the 
district's response, if requested by the complainant, and the investigation report shall be written in 
English and the primary language in which the complaint was filed. 
 



Page 10 of 14 

Note:  During the FPM process, CDE staff will expect to see a statement detailing a complainant's right to pursue civil 
law remedies (i.e., action in a court of law) in addition to or in conjunction with the right to pursue administrative 
remedies from CDE. 

 
For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and bullying based on state 
law, the investigation report shall also include a notice to the complainant that: 
 
1.         The complainant may pursue available civil law remedies outside of the district's complaint 

procedures, including seeking assistance from mediation centers, but not limited to, injunctions, 
restraining orders or public/private interest attorneysother remedies or orders, 60 calendar days 
after the filing of an appeal with CDE.   (Education Code 262.3) 
 

2.         The 60 days moratorium does not apply to complaints seeking injunctive relief in state courts or 
to discrimination complaints based on federal law.   (Education Code 262.3) 
 

3.         Complaints alleging discrimination based on race, color, national origin, sex, gender, disability, 
or age may also be filed with the U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights at 
www.ed.gov/ocr within 180 days of the alleged discrimination. 
 

Corrective Actions 
 

Note:  The following section may be revised to reflect district practice. 
 
When a complaint is found to have merit, the compliance officer shall adopt any appropriate corrective 
action permitted by law.  Appropriate corrective actions that focus on the larger school or district 
environment may include, but are not limited to, actions to reinforce district policies; training for 
faculty, staff, and students; updates to school policies; or school climate surveys. 
(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 
 
For complaints involving retaliation or unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying, 
appropriate remedies that may be offered to the victim but not communicated to the respondent may 
include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
1.         Counseling 

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 
 

2.         Academic support 
 

3.         Health services 
 

4.         Assignment of an escort to allow the victim to move safely about campus 
 

5.         Information regarding available resources and how to report similar incidents or retaliation 
 

6.         Separation of the victim from any other individuals involved, provided the separation does not 
penalize the victim 
 

7.         Restorative justice 
 

8.         Follow-up inquiries to ensure that the conduct has stopped and there has been no retaliation 
 

For complaints of retaliation or unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying 
involving a student as the respondent, appropriate corrective actions that may be provided to the 



Page 11 of 14 

student include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
1.         Transfer from a class or school as permitted by law 

 
2.         Parent/guardian conference 

 
3.         Education regarding the impact of the conduct on others 

 
4.         Positive behavior support 

 
5.         Referral to a student success team 

(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 
 

6.         Denial of participation in extracurricular or cocurricular activities or other privileges as 
permitted by law 
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 
 

7.         Disciplinary action, such as suspension or expulsion, as permitted by law 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
 

When an employee is found to have committed retaliation or unlawful discrimination, harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying, the district shall take appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including 
dismissal, in accordance with applicable law and collective bargaining agreement. 
(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
 
The district may also consider training and other interventions for the larger school community to 
ensure that students, staff, and parents/guardians understand the types of behavior that constitute 
unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying, that the district does not tolerate it, and 
how to report and respond to it. 
 

Note:  Generally, when a complaint is found to have merit, an appropriate remedy is provided to the complainant or 
other affected person. However, in certain instances, the law may require a remedy to be provided to all affected 
persons, not just the complainant or subject of the complaint. For example, pursuant to Education Code 49013 and 5 
CCR 4600, if the district, or CDE on appeal, finds merit in the complaint alleging noncompliance with the law regarding 
student fees and charges, the district is required to provide a 
remedy to all affected students and parents/guardians, as specified below.  The same requirement applies to allegations 
of noncompliance with required instructional minutes for physical education pursuant to Education Code 51222 and 
51223, course periods without educational content pursuant to Education Code 51228.3, and the LCAP requirements 
pursuant to Education Code 52075. Districts that do not maintain elementary schools should delete the reference to 
physical education below. 

 
When a complaint is found to have merit, an appropriate remedy shall be provided to the complainant 
or other affected person. 
 
However, if a complaint alleging noncompliance with the law regarding student fees, deposits, and 
other charges, physical education instructional minutes, courses without educational content, or any 
requirement related to the LCAP is found to have merit, the district shall provide a remedy to all 
affected students and parents/guardians subject to procedures established by regulation of the State 
Board of Education.   (Education Code 49013, 51222, 51223, 51228.3, 52075) 
 
For complaints alleging noncompliance with the law regarding student fees, the district, by engaging in 
reasonable efforts, shall attempt in good faith to identify and fully reimburse all affected students and 
parents/guardians who paid the unlawful student fees within one year prior to the filing of the 



Page 12 of 14 

complaint.   (Education Code 49013; 5 CCR 4600) 
 
Appeals to the California Department of Education 
 
Any complainant who is dissatisfied with the district's investigation report on a complaint regarding 
any specified federal or state educational program subject to UCP may file an appeal  
in writing with CDE within 30 calendar days of receiving the district's investigation report.   (5 CCR 
4632) 
 
The appeal shall be sent to CDE with a copy of the original locally filed complaint and a copy of the 
district's investigation report for that complaint.  The complainant shall specify and explain the basis 
for the appeal, including at least one of the following:   (5 CCR 4632) 
 
1.         The district failed to follow its complaint procedures. 

 
2.         Relative to the allegations of the complaint, the district's investigation report lacks material 

findings of fact necessary to reach a conclusion of law. 
 

3.         The material findings of fact in the district's investigation report are not supported by 
substantial evidence. 
 

4.         The legal conclusion in the district's investigation report is inconsistent with the law. 
 

5.         In a case in which the district found noncompliance, the corrective actions fail to provide a 
proper remedy. 
 

Note:  5 CCR 4633 requires the district to submit the following documents to CDE within 10 days after the district has 
been notified that an appeal has been filed. The district's failure to provide a timely and complete response may result in 
CDE ruling on the appeal without considering information from the district. 

 
Upon notification by CDE that the district's investigation report has been appealed, the Superintendent 
or designee shall forward the following documents to CDE within 10 days of the date of 
notification:   (5 CCR 4633) 
 
1.         A copy of the original complaint 

 
2.         A copy of the district's investigation report 

 
3. A copy of the investigation file including, but not limited to, all notes, interviews, and 

documents submitted by the parties and gathered by the investigator 
 

4.         A report of any action taken to resolve the complaint 
 

5.         A copy of the district's UCP 
 

6.         Other relevant information requested by CDE 
 

If notified by CDE that the district's investigation report failed to address allegation(s) raised by the 
complaint, the district shall, within 20 days of the notification, provide CDE and the appellant with an 
amended investigation report that addresses the allegation(s) that were not addressed in the original 
investigation report.  The amended report shall also inform the appellant of the right to separately 
appeal the amended report with respect to the allegation(s) that were not addressed in the original 
report.   (5 CCR 4632) 
 



Page 13 of 14 

Note:  Pursuant to 5 CCR 4633, CDE is required to issue a written decision regarding the appeal within 60 days of 
CDE's receipt of the appeal, unless extended by written agreement with the appellant or documentation by CDE of 
exceptional circumstances. Pursuant to 5 CCR 4635, if CDE's decision was issued based on evidence in the 
investigation file CDE received from the district or evidence uncovered after further investigation of the allegations that 
were the basis of the appeal, either party may request reconsideration by the Superintendent of Public Instruction or 
designee within 30 days of the appeal decision. 
 
Pursuant to 5 CCR 4650, CDE may directly intervene in a complaint without waiting for action by the district when 
certain conditions exist, including the following:  (1) the complaint alleges failure to comply with the UCP, including 
failure to follow the required timelines and failure to implement the final investigation report; (2) the complainant 
requests anonymity due to the possibility of retaliation and would suffer immediate and irreparable harm if a complaint 
was filed and the complainant was named; or (3) the complainant would suffer immediate and irreparable harm as a 
result of an application of a districtwide policy that is in conflict with state or federal law and that filing a complaint 
would be futile. 

 
Health and Safety Complaints in License-Exempt Preschool Programs (remove section??) 
 

Note:  The following section is for use by districts that operate any license-exempt CSPP program.  Education Code 
8212, as renumbered by AB 131 (Ch. 116, Statutes of 2021), mandates districts to adopt policies and procedures for 
resolving complaints regarding specified health and safety issues in a license-exempt CSPP program.  Pursuant to 
Education Code 8212, the district must use the UCP, with modifications as necessary, to resolve such complaints. 
Pursuant to 5 CCR 4610, such complaints must be addressed through the procedures described in 5 CCR 4690-4694. 
 
See the accompanying exhibits for a sample classroom notice and complaint form. 

 
Any complaint regarding health or safety issues in a license-exempt CSPP programCalifornia State 
Preschool Program (CSPP) shall be addressed through the procedures described in 5 CCR 4690-4694. 
 
In order to identify appropriate subjects of CSPP health and safety issues pursuant to Health and Safety 
Code 1596.7925, a notice shall be posted in each license-exempt CSPP classroom in the district 
notifying parents/guardians, students, and teachers of the health and safety requirements of Title 5 
regulations that apply to CSPP programs pursuant to Health and Safety Code 1596.7925 and the 
location at which to obtain a form to file any complaint alleging noncompliance with those 
requirements.   For this purpose, the Superintendent or designee may download and post a notice 
available from the CDE web site.   (Education Code 8235.58212; 5 CCR 4691) 
 
The district's annual UCP notification distributed pursuant to 5 CCR 4622 shall clearly indicate which 
of its CSPP programs are operating as exempt from licensing and which CSPP programs are operating 
pursuant to requirements under Title 22 of the Code of Regulations.   (5 CCR 4691) 
 
Any complaint regarding specified health or safety issues in a license-exempt CSPP program shall be 
filed with the preschool program administrator or designee, and may be filed anonymously.   The 
complaint form shall specify the location for filing the complaint, contain a space to indicate whether 
the complainant desires a response to the complaint, and allow a complainant to add as much text as 
desired to explain the complaint.   (Education Code 8235.58212; 5 CCR 4690) 
 
If it is determined that the complaint is beyond the authority of the preschool program administrator, 
the matter shall be forwarded to the Superintendent or designee in a timely manner, not to exceed 10 
working days, for resolution.  The preschool administrator or the Superintendent or designee shall 
make all reasonable efforts to investigate any complaint within their authority.   (Education Code 
8235.58212; 5 CCR 4692) 
 
Investigation of a complaint regarding health or safety issues in a license-exempt CSPP program shall 
begin within 10 days of receipt of the complaint.   (Education Code 8235.58212; 5 CCR 4692) 
 



Page 14 of 14 

The preschool administrator or designee shall remedy a valid complaint within a reasonable time 
period not to exceed 30 working days from the date the complaint was received.   If the complainant 
has indicated on the complaint form a desire to receive a response to the complaint, the preschool 
administrator or Superintendent's designee shall, within 45 working days of the initial filing of the 
complaint, report the resolution of the complaint to the complainant and CDE's assigned field 
consultant.  If the preschool administrator makes this report, the information shall be reported at the 
same time to the Superintendent or designee.   (Education Code 8235.58212; 5 CCR 4692) 
 

Note:  Education Code 48985 requires that reports sent to parents/guardians be written in their primary language when 
15 percent or more of a school's enrolled students speak a single primary language other than English. During the FPM 
process, CDE staff will check to ensure compliance with this requirement.  Based on Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964, OCR requires districts to ensure meaningful access to all relevant UCP information for parents/guardians with 
limited English proficiency. 

 
If a complaint regarding health or safety issues in a license-exempt CSPP program involves a limited-
English-proficientan LEP student or parent/guardian, then the district's response, if requested by the 
complainant, and the investigation report shall be written in English and the primary language in which 
the complaint was filed. 
 
If a complainant is not satisfied with the resolution of a complaint, the complainant has the right to 
describe the complaint to the Board at a regularly scheduled meetinghearing and, within 30 days of the 
date of the written report, may file a written appeal of the district's decision to the Superintendent of 
Public Instruction in accordance with 5 CCR 4632.   (Education Code 8235.58212; 5 CCR 4693, 4694) 
 
All complaints and responses are public records.   (5 CCR 4690) 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
 
On a quarterly basis, the Superintendent or designee shall report summarized data on the nature and 
resolution of all CSPP health and safety complaints, including the number of complaints by general 
subject area with the number of resolved and unresolved complaints, to the Board at a regularly 
scheduled Board meeting and to the County Superintendent of Schools.  (5 CCR 4693) 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: April 10, 2007 
revised: September 11, 2012 
revised: February 12, 2013 
revised: February 11, 2014 
revised: December 9, 2014 
revised: April 12, 2016 
revised: October 11, 2016 
revised: June 13, 2017 
revised: April 10, 2018 
revised: April 9, 2019 
revised: July 14, 2020 
revised: April 13, 2021 
revised: August 10, 2021 
revised: March 08, 2022 



Page 1 of 2 
**Revisions** 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Business and Noninstructional Operations 
Regulation 3515.6: Criminal Background Checks For Contractors 

 

Original Adopted Date: 04/10/2007 | Last Revised Date: 12/12/2017  
 
Note:  Education Code 45125.1, as amended by AB 130 (Ch. 44, Statutes of 2021), and 45125.2 require any entity that has 
a contract with the district to ensure that employees ofwho interact with students outside of the immediate supervision and 
control of the student's parent/guardian or school staff, have a valid criminal records summary as described in Education 
Code 44237. 

 
Except in an emergency or exceptional situation, such as when student health or safety is endangered or 
when repairs are needed to make school facilities safe and habitable, any entity contracting with the 
district to provide specified for services will have contact with students, the entitythat may require the entity's 
employees to interact with students, outside of the immediate supervision and control of 
parents/guardians or school staff, shall certify in writing to the Superintendent or designee that noneto the 
district that each of its employees who may interact with students has a valid criminal records summary 
as described in Education Code 44237 and that neither the entity nor any of those employees has been 
convicted of a violent or serious felony as defined in Education Code 45122.1. Such contracting entity 
shall also be required to immediately provide the district with any subsequent arrest and conviction 
information received pursuant to the subsequent arrest service.  (Education Code 44237, 45125.1) 
 
On a case-by-case basis, the Superintendent or designee may require any entity with which the district 
has a contract to comply with these same requirements.  (Education Code 45125.1) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 45125.1, as amended by AB 130, the requirement for a criminal records summary also 
applies to any individual operating as a sole proprietor who contracts with the district. In the case of a sole proprietor, 
Education Code 45125.1 provides that it is the responsibility of the district to prepare and submit the sole proprietor's 
fingerprints to the Department of Justice. 

 
For an individual who is operating as the sole proprietor of an entity, the Superintendent or designee 
shall treat the individual as an employee of the entity and shall prepare and submit the individual's 
fingerprints to the Department of Justice (DOJ).  (Education Code 45125.1) 
 
Any contracting entity's employee who may have contact with students has been convicted of a violent or 
serious felony, as defined, in Education Code 45122.1, shall not be permitted to interact with students 
unless a certificate of rehabilitation and a pardon as required pursuant to EducationPenal Code 45125.1 
shall be4852.01-4852.22 has been submitted to the Superintendent or designee before the contracting 
employee is authorized to perform the work for the district..  (Education Code 45125.1) 
 
These requirements shall apply to a sole proprietor or entity contracting with the district to provide any of the 
following services: (Education Code 45125.1, 45125.2) 
1. School and classroom janitorial services 
2. School site administrative services 
3. School site grounds and landscape maintenance services 
4. Student transportation services 
5. School site food-related services 
6. Construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or repair of a school facility 
(cf. 3540 - Transportation) 
(cf. 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund) 
(cf. 3600 - Consultants) 



Page 2 of 2 

(cf. 7140 - Architectural and Engineering Services) 
 
On a case-by-case basis, the Superintendent or designee may require a contracting entity providing school 
site services other than those listed above to comply with these requirements. (Education Code 45125.1) 
The Superintendent or designee may determine that criminal background checks will not be required if: 
1. The contracting entity is providing services in an emergency or exceptional situation, such as when student 
health or safety is endangered or when repairs are needed to make school facilities safe and habitable. the 
(Education Code 45125.1) 
2. The employees of the contracting entity will have limited contact with students. In determining whether a 
contract employee has limited contact with students, the Superintendent or designee shall consider the totality of 
the circumstances, including factors such as the length of time the contractors will be on school grounds, 
whether students will be in proximity with the site where the contractors will be working, and whether the 
contractors will be working by themselves or with others. (Education Code 45125.1) 
Upon a determination that an employee will have limited contact with students, the Superintendent or designee 
shall take appropriate steps to protect the safety of any students who may come in contact with this employee. 
(Education Code 45125.1) 

These steps may include, but are not limited to, ensuring that the employee is working during nonschool 
hours, providing for regular patrols or supervision of the site from district security or personnel, ensuring 
that the employee is not working alone when students are present, limiting the employee's access to school 
grounds, and/or providing the employee with a visible means of identification. 

(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department) 
3. The contract is for the construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or repair of a school facility and 
either item #1the contracting entity is providing services in an emergency or #2 above appliesexceptional 
situation, or the district uses one or more of the following methods to ensure student safety:  (Education 
Code 45125.2) 
a.  
1. The installation of a physical barrier at the worksite to limit contact with students 
b.  
2. Continual supervision and monitoring of all employees of the entity by an employee of the entity 

whom the Department of JusticeDOJ has ascertained has not been convicted of a violent or serious 
felony 

c.  
3. Surveillance of employees of the entity by school personnel 
 

Note:  The following paragraph is optional and may be revised to reflect district practice. 
 
The Superintendent or designee may take appropriate steps to protect the safety of any students 
who may come in contact with employee's of contracting entities, including, but not limited to, 
ensuring that the employee's of such entities perform work during nonschool hours, do not work 
alone when students are present, have limited access to school grounds, are provided with a 
visible means of identification, and/or that there are regular patrols or supervision of the site from 
district security or personnel. 
(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department) 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: April 10, 2007 
revised: December 12, 2017 
revised: March 08, 2022 



Page 1 of 17 
**Revisions** 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Students 
Regulation 5125: Student Records 

 

Original Adopted Date: 04/10/2007 | Last Revised Date: 01/14/2020 | Last Reviewed Date: 01/14/2020  
 
Definitions 
 
Student means any individual who is or has been in attendance at the district and regarding whom the 
district maintains student records.   (34 CFR 99.3) 
 
Attendance includes, but is not limited to, attendance in person or by paper correspondence, 
videoconference, satellite, Internet, or other electronic information and telecommunication 
technologies for students who are not physically present in the classroom, and the period during which 
a person is working under a work-study program.   (34 CFR 99.3) 
 
Note:  Guidance issued by the U.S. Department of Education (USDOE) and U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services clarifies that a student's immunization and health record maintained by the district is a "student record" subject 
to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA). 

 
Student records are any items of information (in handwriting, print, tape, film, computer, or other 
medium) gathered within or outside the district that are directly related to an identifiable student and 
maintained by the district, required to be maintained by an employee in the performance of the 
employee's duties, or maintained by a party acting for the district. Any information maintained for the 
purpose of second-party review is considered a student record. Student records include the student's 
health record.   (Education Code 49061, 49062; 5 CCR 430; 34 CFR 99.3) 
 
Student records do not include:  (Education Code 49061, 49062; 34 CFR 99.3) 
 
1. Directory information 

(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 
 
2. Informal notes compiled by a school officer or employee which remain in the sole possession 

of the maker, are used only as a personal memory aid, and are not accessible or revealed to any 
other person except a substitute employee 

 
Note:  USDOE guidance, Balancing Student Privacy and School Safety, clarifies that records created by the district's 
law enforcement unit, such as student images appearing on security videotapes, are not considered student records under 
FERPA as long as the records are created for a law enforcement purpose. 

 
3. Records of the law enforcement unit of the district, subject to 34 CFR 99.8 

(cf. 3515 - Campus Security) 
(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department) 

 
4. Records created or received by the district after an individual is no longer a student and that are 

not directly related to the individual's attendance as a student 
 
5. Grades on peer-graded papers before they are collected and recorded by a teacher 
 
Mandatory permanent student records are those records which are maintained in perpetuity and which 
schools have been directed to compile by state law, regulation, or administrative directive. (5 CCR 
430) 
 



Page 2 of 17 

Mandatory interim student records are those records which the schools are directed to compile and 
maintain for specified periods of time and are then destroyed in accordance with state law, regulation, 
or administrative directive.   (5 CCR 430) 
 
Permitted student records are those records having clear importance only to the current educational 
process of the student.   (5 CCR 430) 
 
Disclosure means to permit access to, or the release, transfer, or other communication of, personally 
identifiable information contained in student records to any party, except the party that provided or 
created the record, by any means including oral, written, or electronic.   (34 CFR 99.3) 
 
Access means a personal inspection and review of a record or an accurate copy of a record, or receipt 
of an accurate copy of a record or an oral description or communication of a record, and a request to 
release a copy of any record.   (Education Code 49061) 
 
Personally identifiable information includes, but is not limited to:  (34 CFR 99.3) 
 
1. The student's name 
 
2. The name of the student's parent/guardian or other family members 
 
3. The address of the student or student's family 
 

Note:  Pursuant to 34 CFR 99.3, the definition of "personally identifiable information" includes a personal identifier 
such as a student's social security number. Education Code 49076.7 prohibits districts from collecting or soliciting social 
security numbers, or the last four digits of social security numbers, from students or their parents/guardians unless 
otherwise required to do so by state or federal law. If a social security number is collected under such circumstances, it 
must be classified as personally identifiable information and is subject to the restrictions related to access or de-
identification of records specified in 34 CFR 99.30-99.39 and this administrative regulation. 

 
4. A personal identifier, such as the student's social security number, student number, or biometric 

record (e.g., fingerprints, retina and iris patterns, voiceprints, DNA sequence, facial 
characteristics, and handwriting) 

5. Other indirect identifiers, such as the student's date of birth, place of birth, and mother's maiden 
name 

6. Other information that, alone or in combination, is linked or linkable to a specific student that 
would allow a reasonable person in the school community, who does not have personal 
knowledge of the relevant circumstances, to identify the student with reasonable certainty 

7. Information requested by a person who the district reasonably believes knows the identity of 
the student to whom the student record relates 

 
Adult student is a person who is or was enrolled in school and who is at least 18 years of age.   (5 CCR 
430) 
 
Parent/guardian means a natural parent, an adopted parent, legal guardian, surrogate parent, or foster 
parent.   (Education Code 49061, 56050, 56055) 
 

Note:  Education Code 49063 requires districts to include the criteria for defining "legitimate educational interest" and 
"school officials and employees" in their annual notification; see section "Notification of Parents/Guardians" below. 

 
Legitimate educational interest is an interest held by any school official, employee, contractor, or 
consultant whose official duties, responsibilities, or contractual obligations to the district, whether routine 
or as a result of special circumstances, require access to information contained in student records. 
 



Page 3 of 17 

Note:  34 CFR 99.31 defines "school officials and employees" for purposes of determining who may be given 
personally identifiable information from student records, as provided below.  In 73 Fed. Reg. 74815 (2008), USDOE 
stated that local agencies are in the best position to determine the types of parties who may serve as school officials. 
Examples cited include school transportation officials (including bus drivers), school nurses, practicum and fieldwork 
students, unpaid interns, consultants, contractors, volunteers, and other outside parties providing institutional services 
and performing institutional functions, provided that each of the requirements in 34 CFR 99.31 has been met. 

 
School officials and employees are officials or employees, including teachers, whose duties and 
responsibilities to the district, whether routine or as a result of special circumstances, require access to 
student records.   (34 CFR 99.31) 
 
Contractor or consultant is anyone with a formal written agreement or contract with the district 
regarding the provision of services or functions outsourced by the district.   Contractor or consultant 
shall not include a volunteer or other party.   (Education Code 49076) 
 
Custodian of records is the employee responsible for the security of student records maintained by the 
district and for devising procedures for assuring that access to such records is limited to authorized 
persons.  (5 CCR 433) 
 
County placing agency means the county social service department or county probation 
department.  (Education Code 49061) 
 
Persons Granted Absolute Access 
 
In accordance with law, absolute access to any student records shall be granted to: 
  
1. Parents/guardians of students younger than age 18 years, including the parent who is not the 

student's custodial parent  (Education Code 49069.7; Family Code 3025) 
 
2. An adult student, or a student under the age of 18 years who attends a postsecondary institution, 

in which case the student alone shall exercise rights related to the student's records and grant 
consent for the release of records  (34 CFR 99.3, 99.5) 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 56041.5, all the rights accorded to the parent/guardian of a student with disabilities, 
including the right to access student records, are transferred to the student at 18 years of age except when the student has 
been declared incompetent under state law. 

 
3. Parents/guardians of an adult student with disabilities who is age 18 years or older and has been 

declared incompetent under state law  (Education Code 56041.5) 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 

 
Access for Limited Purpose/Legitimate Educational Interest 
 
The following persons or agencies shall have access to those particular records that are relevant to their 
legitimate educational interest or other legally authorized purpose: 
 

Note:  Education Code 49076 and 34 CFR 99.31 require that access to relevant records be given to parents/guardians of 
a dependent child, defined by 26 USC 152 as one who lives with a parent/guardian for more than half the taxable year, 
meets the specified age requirements, has not provided more than half of one's own support during that year, and has not 
filed a joint tax return with a spouse. 

1. Parents/guardians of a dependent child as defined under 26 USC 152  (Education Code 49076; 
34 CFR 99.31) 

1. Parents/guardians of a student 18 years of age or older who is a dependent child as defined in 
26 USC 152  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31) 

 



Page 4 of 17 

2. Students who are age 16 or older or who have completed the 10th grade  (Education Code 
49076) 

 
3. School officials and employees, consistent with the definition provided in the section 

"Definitions" above  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31) 
 
4. Members of a school attendance review board (SARB) appointed pursuant to Education Code 

48321 who are authorized representatives of the district and any volunteer aide age 18 or older 
who has been investigated, selected, and trained by the SARB to provide follow-up services to 
a referred student  (Education Code 49076) 

 (cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 
(cf. 5113.12 - District School Attendance Review Board) 

 
5. Officials and employees of other public schools, school systems, or postsecondary institutions 

where the student intends or is directed to enroll, including local, county, or state correctional 
facilities where educational programs leading to high school graduation are provided, or where 
the student is already enrolled, as long as the disclosure is for purposes related to the student's 
enrollment or transfer  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31) 
 

Note:  34 CFR 99.34 requires the district to make a reasonable attempt to notify the parent/guardian or adult student 
when the district discloses certain information as described in the following paragraph.  However, if the district includes 
a statement in its annual parental notification that the district may forward education records under such circumstances, 
it is not obligated to individually notify parents/guardians or adult students.  The following optional paragraph may be 
deleted by districts that include such a statement in their annual parental notification.  See section below entitled 
"Notification of Parents/Guardians." 

 
Unless the annual parent/guardian notification issued pursuant to Education Code 48980 includes a 
statement that the district may disclose students' personally identifiable information to officials of 
another school, school system, or postsecondary institution where the student seeks or intends to enroll, 
the Superintendent or designee shall, when such a disclosure is made, make a reasonable attempt to 
notify the parent/guardian or adult student at the last known address, provide a copy of the record that 
is disclosed, and give the parent/guardian or adult student an opportunity for a hearing to challenge the 
record.   (34 CFR 99.34) 
 

Note:  Item #6 below is for use by districts that maintain high schools.  Education Code 69432.9 provides that all 
students in grade 12 will be considered Cal Grant applicants and will have their grade point average (GPA) submitted to 
the Student Aid Commission, unless they opt out or are permitted under Commission rules to submit test scores in lieu 
of the GPA. Education Code 69432.9 requires that the report be submitted on a standardized form provided by the 
Commission. Pursuant to Education Code 69432.92, the Commission may also require that districts submit verification 
of high school graduation or its equivalent for all students who graduated in the prior academic year, except for students 
who have opted out. 
 
Education Code 69432.9 requires that parents/guardians be notified that their child's GPA will be forwarded unless they 
opt out within the time period specified in the notice. This notification could be included in the annual parental 
notification issued pursuant to Education Code 48980. 

 
6. The Student Aid Commission, to provide the grade point average (GPA) of all district students 

in grade 12 and, when required, verification of high school graduation or its equivalent of all 
students who graduated in the prior academic year, for use in the Cal Grant postsecondary 
financial aid program. However, such information shall not be submitted when students opt out 
or are permitted by the rules of the Student Aid Commission to provide test scores in lieu of the 
GPA.  (Education Code 69432.9, 69432.92) 
 
No later than January 1 each year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify each student in 
grade 11, and the student's parents/guardians if the student is under age 18 years, that the 
student's GPA will be forwarded to the Student Aid Commission by October 1 unless the 



Page 5 of 17 

student opts out within a period of time specified in the notice, which shall not be less than 30 
days.  (Education Code 69432.9) 

  
 Students' social security numbers shall not be included in the submitted information unless the 

Student Aid Commission deems it necessary to complete the financial aid application and the 
Superintendent or designee obtains permission from the student's parent/guardian, or from the 
adult student, to submit the social security number.  (Education Code 69432.9) 

 
7. Federal, state, and local officials, as needed for an audit or evaluation of, or compliance with, a 

state or federally funded education program and in accordance with a written agreement 
developed pursuant to 34 CFR 99.35  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.3, 99.31, 99.35) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 49076, county placing agencies authorized to assess the effectiveness of a state or 
federally funded program on behalf of federal, state, or local officials and agencies may be allowed access to student 
records. Education Code 49076 also authorizes districts, county offices of education, and county placing agencies to 
develop cooperative agreements to facilitate confidential access to and exchange of student information by email, 
facsimile, electronic format, or other secure means, provided the agreement complies with the requirements of 34 CFR 
99.35. 

 
8. Any county placing agency acting as an authorized representative of a state or local educational 

agency which is required to audit or evaluate a state or federally supported education program 
pursuant to item #7 above  (Education Code 49076) 

 
9. Any person, agency, or organization authorized in compliance with a court order or lawfully 

issued subpoena  (Education Code 49077; 5 CCR 435; 34 CFR 99.31) 
 Unless otherwise instructed by the court, the Superintendent or designee shall, prior to 

disclosing a record pursuant to a court order or subpoena, give the parent/guardian or adult 
student at least three days' notice of the name of the requesting agency and the specific record 
requested, if lawfully possible within the requirements of the judicial order.  (Education Code 
49077; 5 CCR 435; 34 CFR 99.31) 

 
10. Any district attorney who is participating in or conducting a truancy mediation program or 

participating in the presentation of evidence in a truancy petition  (Education Code 49076) 
 
11. A district attorney's office for consideration against a parent/guardian for failure to comply with 

compulsory education laws  (Education Code 49076) 
 
12. Any probation officer, district attorney, or counsel of record for a student who is a minor for the 

purposes of conducting a criminal investigation or an investigation in regards to declaring the 
minor a ward of the court or involving a violation of a condition of probation, subject to 
evidentiary rules specified in Welfare and Institutions Code 701  (Education Code 49076) 
When disclosing records for these purposes, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain written 
certification from the recipient of the records that the information will not be disclosed to 
another party without prior written consent of the student's parent/guardian or the holder of the 
student's educational rights, unless specifically authorized by state or federal law.  (Education 
Code 49076) 
 

13. Any judge or probation officer for the purpose of conducting a truancy mediation program for a 
student or for the purpose of presenting evidence in a truancy petition pursuant to Welfare and 
Institutions Code 681  (Education Code 49076) 

 
 In such cases, the judge or probation officer shall certify in writing to the Superintendent or 

designee that the information will be used only for truancy purposes.  Upon releasing student 
information to a judge or probation officer, the Superintendent or designee shall inform, or 



Page 6 of 17 

provide written notification to, the student's parent/guardian within 24 hours.  (Education Code 
49076) 

 
14. A foster family agency with jurisdiction over a currently enrolled or former student; short-term 

residential treatment program staff responsible for the education or case management of a 
student; or a caregiver who has direct responsibility for the care of a student, including a 
certified or licensed foster parent, an approved relative or nonrelated extended family member, 
or a resource family, as defined  (Education Code 49076) 

 Such individuals shall have access to the student's current or most recent records of grades, 
transcripts, attendance, discipline, online communication on platforms established by schools 
for students and parents/guardians, and any individualized education program or Section 504 
plan developed and maintained by the district  (Education Code 49069.3)(cf. 6164.6 - Identification 
and Education Under Section 504) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 

 
15. A student age 14 years or older who is both a homeless student and an unaccompanied minor as 

defined in 42 USC 11434a  (Education Code 49076)(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
 
16. An individual who completes items #1-4 of the caregiver's authorization affidavit pursuant to 

Family Code 6552 and signs the affidavit for the purpose of enrolling a minor in school  
(Education Code 49076) 

 
17. A caseworker or other representative of a state or local child welfare agency or tribal 

organization that has legal responsibility in accordance with state or tribal law for the care and 
protection of a student, provided that the individual is authorized by the agency or organization 
to receive the records and the information requested is directly related to providing assistance to 
address the student's educational needs  (Education Code 49076; 20 USC 1232(g)) 

 
18. Appropriate law enforcement authorities, in circumstances where Education Code 48902 

requires that the district provide special education and disciplinary records of a student with 
disabilities who is suspended or expelled for committing an act violating Penal Code 245  
(Education Code 48902, 49076) 

 
When disclosing such records, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain written certification 
by the recipient of the records as described in item #12 above.  (Education Code 49076) 
 

19. Designated peace officers or law enforcement agencies in cases where the district is authorized 
by law to assist law enforcement in investigations of suspected criminal conduct or kidnapping 
and a written parental consent, lawfully issued subpoena, or court order is submitted to the 
district, or information is provided to it indicating that an emergency exists in which the 
student's information is necessary to protect the health or safety of the student or other 
individuals  (Education Code 49076.5) 

 
 In such cases, the Superintendent or designee shall provide information about the identity and 

location of the student as it relates to the transfer of that student's records to another public 
school district in California or any other state or to a California private school.  (Education 
Code 49076.5) 

 
When disclosing records for the above purposes, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain the 
necessary documentation to verify that the person, agency, or organization is a person, agency, or 
organization that is permitted to receive such records. 
 
Any person, agency, or organization granted access is prohibited from releasing information to another 
person, agency, or organization without written permission from the parent/guardian or adult student 



Page 7 of 17 

unless specifically allowed by state law or the federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act.  
(Education Code 49076) 
 
In addition, the parent/guardian or adult student may provide written consent for access to be granted 
to persons, agencies, or organizations not afforded access rights by law. The written consent shall 
specify the records to be released and the party or parties to whom they may be released.  (Education 
Code 49061, 49075) 
 
Only a parent/guardian having legal custody of the student may consent to the release of records to 
others. Either parent/guardian may grant consent if both parents/guardians notify the district, in 
writing, that such an agreement has been made.  (Education Code 49061) 
(cf. 5021 - Noncustodial Parents) 
 
Discretionary Access 
 
At the discretion of the Superintendent or designee, information may be released from a student's 
records to the following: 
 
1. Appropriate persons, including parents/guardians of a student, in an emergency if the health 

and safety of the student or other persons are at stake  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31, 
99.32, 99.36) 

 
When releasing information to any such appropriate person, the Superintendent or designee 
shall record information about the threat to the health or safety of the student or any other 
person that formed the basis for the disclosure and the person(s) to whom the disclosure was 
made.  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.32) 

 
Unless it would further endanger the health or safety of the student or other persons, the 
Superintendent or designee shall inform the parent/guardian or adult student within one week of 
the disclosure that the disclosure was made, of the articulable and significant threat to the health 
or safety of the student or other individuals that formed the basis for the disclosure, and of the 
parties to whom the disclosure was made. 

 
2. Accrediting associations in order to carry out their accrediting functions  (Education Code 

49076; 34 CFR 99.31) 
 
3. Under the conditions specified in Education Code 49076 and 34 CFR 99.31, organizations 

conducting studies on behalf of educational institutions or agencies for the purpose of 
developing, validating, or administering predictive tests, administering student aid programs, or 
improving instruction, provided that:  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31) 
 
a. The study is conducted in a manner that does not permit personal identification of 

students or parents/guardians by individuals other than representatives of the 
organization who have legitimate interests in the information. 

 
b. The information is destroyed when no longer needed for the purposes for which the 

study is conducted. 
 
c. The district enters into a written agreement with the organization that complies with 34 

CFR 99.31. 
 
4. Officials and employees of private schools or school systems where the student is enrolled or 

intends to enroll, subject to the rights of parents/guardians as provided in Education Code 
49068 and in compliance with 34 CFR 99.34  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31, 99.34) 



Page 8 of 17 

 
5. Local health departments operating countywide or regional immunization information and 

reminder systems and the California Department of Public Health, unless the parent/guardian 
has requested that no disclosures of this type be made  (Health and Safety Code 120440) 

 
Note:  Education Code 49076 includes "contractors" and "consultants," as defined in the section "Definitions" above, 
among the categories of individuals to whom a student's personally identifiable information may be disclosed under 
certain circumstances. Unlike 34 CFR 99.31, however, Education Code 49076 prohibits disclosure of such information 
to volunteers and other parties. 

 
6. Contractors and consultants having a legitimate educational interest based on services or 

functions which have been outsourced to them through a formal written agreement or contract 
with the district, excluding volunteers or other parties  (Education Code 49076) 
(cf. 3600 - Consultants) 

 
Note:  Items #7 and 8 below are for use by districts that maintain high schools. 

 
7. Agencies or organizations in connection with the student's application for or receipt of financial 

aid, provided that information permitting the personal identification of a student or the student's 
parents/guardians for these purposes is disclosed only as may be necessary to determine the 
eligibility of the student for financial aid, determine the amount of financial aid, determine the 
conditions which will be imposed regarding the financial aid, or enforce the terms or conditions 
of the financial aid  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31) 

 
8. County elections officials for the purpose of identifying students eligible to register to vote or 

offering such students an opportunity to register, subject to the limits set by 34 CFR 99.37 and 
under the condition that any information provided on this basis shall not be used for any other 
purpose or transferred to any other person or agency (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.37) 
(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 

 
When disclosing records for the above purposes, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain the 
necessary documentation to verify that the person, agency, or organization is a person, agency, or 
organization that is permitted to receive such records. 
 
Any person, agency, or organization granted access is prohibited from releasing information to another 
person, agency, or organization without written permission from the parent/guardian or adult student 
unless specifically allowed by state law or the federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act.  
(Education Code 49076) 
 
De-identification of Records 
 

Note:  20 USC 1232(g)) and Education Code 49076 authorize the district to release student records for specified 
purposes (e.g., to federal and state officials conducting program audits or to organizations conducting studies) without 
parent/guardian consent after the removal of all "personally identifiable information" as defined in the section entitled 
"Definitions" above and provided that the district has made a reasonable determination that a student's identity will not 
be personally identifiable through single or multiple releases.  Education Code 49074 further authorizes the district to 
provide de-identified statistical data to public or private agencies, postsecondary institutions, or educational research 
organizations when such actions would be "in the best educational interests of students." 
 
34 CFR 99.31 lists objective standards under which districts may release information from de-identified records.  These 
standards are applicable to both requests for individual, redacted records and requests for statistical information from 
multiple records. 

 
When authorized by law for any program audit, educational research, or other purpose, the 
Superintendent or designee may release information from a student record without prior consent of the 
parent/guardian or adult student after the removal of all personally identifiable information.   Prior to 



Page 9 of 17 

releasing such information, the Superintendent or designee shall make a reasonable determination that 
the student's identity is not personally identifiable, whether through single or multiple releases and 
taking into account other reasonably available information.   (Education Code 49074, 49076; 20 USC 
1232g; 34 CFR 99.31) 
 
Process for Providing Access to Records 
 

Note:  Education Code 49069 mandates procedures for notifying parents/guardians of the location of student records if 
not centrally located. The following paragraph may be expanded to include notification procedures. 

 
Student records shall be maintained in a central file at the school attended by the student or, when 
records are maintained at different locations, a notation shall be placed in the central file indicating 
where other records may be found.   Parents/guardians and adult students shall be notified of the 
location of student records if not centrally located.   (Education Code 49069; 5 CCR 433) 
 
The custodian of records shall be responsible for the security of student records and shall ensure that 
access is limited to authorized persons.   (5 CCR 433) 
 

Note:  5 CCR 431 mandates districts to establish written procedures to ensure the security of student records. The 
following three paragraphs reflect this mandate and should be modified to reflect any specific physical, technological, or 
administrative controls developed by the district. 
 
34 CFR 99.31 requires districts to use "reasonable methods" to (1) ensure that school officials, employees, and outside 
contractors obtain access to only those records, both paper and electronic, in which they have a legitimate educational 
interest and (2) identify and authenticate the identity of parents/guardians, students, school officials, and any other party 
to whom the district discloses personally identifiable information from education records. In addition, 34 CFR 99.31 
specifies that a district which does not use physical or technological access controls (e.g., a locked file cabinet or 
computer security limiting access) must ensure that its administrative policy for controlling access is effective and 
remains in compliance with the "legitimate educational interest" requirement. 
 
Analysis to Comments and Changes (73 Fed. Reg. 237, page 74817) suggests a balance of physical, technological, and 
administrative controls to prevent unauthorized access and to ensure that school officials do not have unrestricted access 
to the records of all students. The Analysis also clarifies that the reasonableness of the method depends, in part, on the 
potential harm involved.  For example, high-risk records, such as social security numbers or other information that 
could be used for identity theft, should receive greater and more immediate protection. 
 
In addition, as a condition of participation in an interagency data information system (e.g., California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System), Education Code 49076 requires that the district develop security procedures or devices by 
which unauthorized personnel cannot access data in the system and procedures or devices to secure privileged or 
confidential data from unauthorized disclosure. 

 
The custodian of records shall develop reasonable methods, including physical, technological, and 
administrative policy controls, to ensure that school officials and employees obtain access to only those 
student records in which they have legitimate educational interests.   (34 CFR 99.31) 
 
To inspect, review, or obtain copies of student records, authorized persons shall submit a request to the 
custodian of records.   Prior to granting the request, the custodian of records shall authenticate the 
individual's identity.   For any individual granted access based on a legitimate educational interest, the 
request shall specify the interest involved. 
 

Note:  34 CFR 99.30 specifies information that must be included in the parent/guardian consent form, as provided 
below. The provisions in the following two paragraphs are required pursuant to the California Attorney General's model 
policy developed pursuant to Education Code 234.7.  See the Office of the Attorney General's publication Promoting a 
Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All:  Guidance and Model Policies to Assist California's K-12 Schools in 
Responding to Immigration Issues. 

 
When required by law, a student's parent/guardian or an adult student shall provide written, signed, and 
dated consent before the district discloses the student record. Such consent may be given through 



Page 10 of 17 

electronic means in those cases where it can be authenticated. The district's consent form shall specify 
the records that may be disclosed, state the purpose of the disclosure, and identify the party or class of 
parties to whom the disclosure may be made. Upon request by the parent/guardian or adult student, the 
district shall provide a copy of the records disclosed.   (34 CFR 99.30) 
 
If the parent/guardian or adult student refuses to provide written consent for the release of student 
information, the Superintendent or designee shall not release the information, unless it is otherwise 
subject to release based on a court order or a lawful subpoena. 
 

Note:  Education Code 49069 and 5 CCR 431 mandate that the district adopt procedures for granting parent/guardian 
requests to inspect, review, and obtain copies of records. 

 
Within five business days following the date of request, the authorized person shall be granted access 
to inspect, review, and obtain copies of student records during regular school hours.   (Education Code 
49069) 
 

Note:  Education Code 49069 mandates procedures for the availability of qualified certificated personnel to interpret 
records when requested.  The following paragraph may be expanded to include specific procedures for persons to 
request and receive the assistance of certificated personnel. 

 
Qualified certificated personnel shall be available to interpret records when requested.   (Education 
Code 49069) 
 
The custodian of records or the Superintendent or designee shall prevent the alteration, damage, or loss 
of records during inspection.   (5 CCR 435) 
 
Access Log 
 
A log shall be maintained for each student's record which lists all persons, agencies, or organizations 
requesting or receiving information from the record and the legitimate educational interest of the 
requester.   (Education Code 49064) 
 
In every instance of inspection by persons who do not have assigned educational responsibility, the 
custodian of records shall make an entry in the log indicating the record inspected, the name of the 
person granted access, the reason access was granted, and the time and circumstances of 
inspection.   (5 CCR 435) 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. 
 
The custodian of records shall also make an entry in the log regarding any request for record(s) that 
was denied and the reason for the denial. 
 

Note:  Although Education Code 49064 does not require the district to record access by individuals specified in items 
#1-5 below, the district may consider recording access by all individuals as part of the reasonable administrative 
controls required by 34 CFR 99.31; see section above entitled "Process for Providing Access to Records." 

 
The log shall include requests for access to records by: 
 
1. Parents/guardians or adult students 
 
2. Students who are 16 years of age or older or who have completed the 10th grade 
 
3. Parties obtaining district-approved directory information 
 



Page 11 of 17 

4. Parties who provide written parental consent, in which case the consent notice shall be filed 
with the record pursuant to Education Code 49075 

 
5. School officials and employees who have a legitimate educational interest 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 234.7, any request for student information by a law enforcement agency for the 
purpose of enforcing immigration laws must be reported to the Superintendent and the Board; see the accompanying 
Board policy. Therefore, it is recommended that the custodian of records make an entry in the log regarding any such 
requests, as provided in item #6 below. 

 
6. Law enforcement personnel seeking to enforce immigration laws 
 
The log shall be open to inspection only by the parent/guardian, adult student, dependent adult student, 
custodian of records, and certain state or federal officials specified in Education Code 
49064.   (Education Code 49064; 5 CCR 432) 
 
Duplication of Student Records 
 

Note:  Education Code 49069 mandates that the district adopt procedures for granting parent/guardian requests for 
copies of student records pursuant to Education Code 49065. 

 
To provide copies of any student record, the district may charge a reasonable fee not to exceed the 
actual cost of providing the copies. No charge shall be made for providing up to two transcripts or up 
to two verifications of various records for any former student.   No charge shall be made to locate or 
retrieve any student record.   (Education Code 49065) 
(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 
 
Changes to Student Records 
 
Only a parent/guardian having legal custody of a student or an adulta student who is 18 years of age or 
is attending an institution of postsecondary education may challenge the content of a record or offer a 
written response to a record.   (Education Code 49061) 
(cf. 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records) 
 
No addition or change shall be made to a student's record after high school graduation or permanent 
departure, other than routine updating, unless required by law or with prior consent of the 
parent/guardian or adult student. (Education Code 49070; 5 CCR 437) 
 
When a former student submits a state-issued driver's license, birth certificate, passport, social security 
card, court order, or other government-issued documentation demonstrating that the former student's 
legal name and/or gender has changed, the district shall update the former student's records to reflect 
the updated legal name and/or gender. Upon request by the former student, the district shall reissue any 
documents conferred upon the former student, including, but not limited to, a transcript, a high school 
diploma, a high school equivalency certificate, or other similar documents.  The district is not required 
to modify records that the former student has not requested for modification or reissuance.  (Education 
Code 49062.5) 
 
If the former student's name or gender is changed and the requested records are reissued, a new 
document shall be added to the former student's file that includes all of the following 
information:  (Education Code 49062.5) 

1.  The date of the request 
2. The date the requested records were reissued to the former student 

3.  A list of the records that were requested by and reissued to the former student 
4. The type of documentation, if any, provided by the former student to demonstrate a legal change 
to the student's name and/or gender 



Page 12 of 17 

5. The name of the employee who completed the request 
6. The current and former names and/or genders of the student 
 

Note:  In CALPADS' "Update FLASH #158, Guidance for Changing a Student's Legal Name in CALPADS", the 
California Department of Education states that a request to change a student's legal name must be supported by legal 
documentation such as a court record, birth certificate, or passport. 

 
Any request to change aAny former student who submits a request to change the legal name or gender 
on the student's records but is unable to provide any government-issuedlegal name in the student's 
mandatory permanent student record shall be accompanied with appropriate documentation 
demonstrating the legal name or gender change, may request a name or gender change through. 
 
Any challenge to the content of a student's record shall be filed in accordance with the process 
described in Education Code 49070 andspecified in AR 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records.  
(Education Code 49070) 
 
Retention and Destruction of Student Records 
 
All anecdotal information and assessment reports maintained as student records shall be dated and 
signed by the individual who originated the data.  (5 CCR 431) 
 
The following mandatory permanent student records shall be kept indefinitely:  (5 CCR 432, 437) 
 
1. Legal name of student 
 
2. Date and place of birth and method of verifying birth date 

(cf. 5111 - Admission) 
 
3. Sex of student 
 
4. Name and address of parent/guardian of minor student 
 

a. Address of minor student if different from the above 
 

b. Annual verification of parent/guardian's name and address and student's residence 
(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 

 
5. Entrance and departure dates of each school year and for any summer session or other extra 

session 
 
6. Subjects taken during each year, half-year, summer session, or quarter, and marks or credits 

given towards graduation 
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 

 
7. Verification of or exemption from required immunizations 

(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations) 
 
8. Date of high school graduation or equivalent 
 
Mandatory interim student records, unless forwarded to another district, shall be maintained subject to 
destruction during the third school year after the school year in which they originated, following a 
determination that their usefulness has ceased or the student has left the district.  These records 
include:  (Education Code 48918, 51747; 5 CCR 432, 437, 16027) 
 
1. Expulsion orders and the causes therefor 



Page 13 of 17 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 

 
2. A log identifying persons or organizations who request or receive information from the student 

record 
 
3. Health information, including verification or waiver of the health screening for school entry 

(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry) 
 
4. Information on participation in special education programs, including required tests, case 

studies, authorizations, and actions necessary to establish eligibility for admission or discharge 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 
(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 

 
5. Language training records 

(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 
 
6. Progress slips/notices required by Education Code 49066 and 49067 
 
7. Parental restrictions/stipulations regarding access to directory information 
 
8. Parent/guardian or adult student rejoinders to challenged records and to disciplinary action 
 
9. Parent/guardian authorization or prohibition of student participation in specific programs 
 
10. Results of standardized tests administered within the past three years 

(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
 
11. Written findings resulting from an evaluation conducted after a specified number of missed 

assignments to determine whether it is in a student's best interest to remain in independent 
study 
(cf. 6158 - Independent Study) 

 
Permitted student records may be destroyed six months after the student completes or withdraws from 
the educational program and their usefulness ceases, including:  (5 CCR 432, 437) 
 
1. Objective counselor and/or teacher ratings 
 
2. Standardized test results older than three years 
 
3. Routine disciplinary data 

(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
 
4. Verified reports of relevant behavioral patterns 
 
5. All disciplinary notices 
 
6. Supplementary attendance records 
 
Records shall be destroyed in a way that assures they will not be available to possible public inspection 
in the process of destruction.  (5 CCR 437) 
 
Transfer of Student Records 
 



Page 14 of 17 

When a student transfers into this district from any other school district or a private school, the 
Superintendent or designee shall inform the student's parent/guardian of rights regarding student 
records, including a parent/guardian's right to review, challenge, and receive a copy of student records.  
(Education Code 49068; 5 CCR 438) 
 

Note:  Education Code 48201 requires districts to request records of a transferring student regarding acts that resulted in 
the student's suspension or expulsion from the previous school, as specified below.  Once the record is received, the 
Superintendent or designee must inform the student's teachers of the acts; see AR 4158/4258/4358 - Employee Security. 

 
When a student transfers into this district from another district, the Superintendent or designee shall 
request that the student's previous district provide any records, either maintained by that district in the 
ordinary course of business or received from a law enforcement agency, regarding acts committed by 
the transferring student that resulted in the student's suspension or expulsion.  (Education Code 
48201)(cf. 4158/4258/4358 - Employee Security) 
(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled From Other Districts) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 49068, a district is required to transfer a copy of a student's records to another school 
in which the student is enrolled or intends to enroll within 10 school days of receiving a request for the records.  
However, this is not applicable in circumstances where a more restrictive timeline is required.  For example, a district is 
required to transfer the records of a student who is a foster youth to the new school within two business days, pursuant 
to Education Code 48853.5. 

 
When a student transfers from this district to another school district or to a private school, the 
Superintendent or designee shall forward a copy of the student's mandatory permanent record within 10 
school days of the district's receipt of the request for the student's records. The original record or a 
copy shall be retained permanently by this district.  If the transfer is to another California public 
school, the student's entire mandatory interim record shall also be forwarded.  If the transfer is out of 
state or to a private school, the mandatory interim record may be forwarded. Permitted student records 
may be forwarded to any other district or private school.  (Education Code 48918, 49068; 5 CCR 438) 
 
Upon receiving a request from a county placing agency to transfer a student in foster care out of a 
district school, the Superintendent or designee shall transfer the student's records to the next 
educational placement within two business days.  (Education Code 49069.5) 
 
All student records shall be updated before they are transferred.  (5 CCR 438) 
 
Student records shall not be withheld from the requesting district because of any charges or fees owed 
by the student or parent/guardian.  (5 CCR 438) 
 
If the district is withholding grades, diploma, or transcripts from the student because of damage or loss 
of school property, this information shall be sent to the requesting district along with the student's 
records.(cf. 5125.2 - Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripts) 
 
Notification of Parents/Guardians 
 
Upon any student's initial enrollment, and at the beginning of each school year thereafter, the 
Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians and eligible students, in writing, of their 
rights related to student records.   If 15 percent or more of the students enrolled in the district speak a 
single primary language other than English, then the district shall provide these notices in that 
language. Otherwise, the district shall provide these notices in the student's home language insofar as 
practicable. The district shall effectively notify parents/guardians or eligible students with 
disabilities.   (Education Code 48985, 49063, 48985; 34 CFR 99.7) 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
The notice shall include:  (Education Code 49063; 34 CFR 99.7, 99.34) 



Page 15 of 17 

 
1. The types of student records kept by the district and the information contained therein 
 
2. The title(s) of the official(s) responsible for maintaining each type of record 
 
3. The location of the log identifying those who request information from the records 
 
4. District criteria for defining school officials and employees and for determining legitimate 

educational interest 
 
5. District policies for reviewing and expunging student records 
 
6. The right to inspect and review student records and the procedures for doing so 
 
7. The right to challenge and the procedures for challenging the content of a student record that 

the parent/guardian or student believes to be inaccurate, misleading, or otherwise in violation of 
the student's privacy rights 

 
8. The cost, if any, charged for duplicating copies of records 
 
9. The categories of information defined as directory information pursuant to Education Code 

49073 
 
10. The right to consent to disclosures of personally identifiable information contained in the 

student's records except when disclosure without consent is authorized by law 
 
11. Availability of the curriculum prospectus developed pursuant to Education Code 49091.14 

containing the titles, descriptions, and instructional aims of every course offered by the school 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 

 
12. Any other rights and requirements set forth in Education Code 49060-49085, and the right of 

parents/guardians to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning an 
alleged failure by the district to comply with 20 USC 1232g 

 
Note:  Pursuant to 34 CFR 99.34, if the district's annual parental notification contains the information described in 
optional item #13 below, the district does not need to attempt to individually notify a parent/guardian or adult student 
when the district discloses an education record to officials of another school, school system, or postsecondary institution 
(see item #5 in the list of persons/agencies with legitimate educational interests in the section entitled "Access for 
Limited Purpose/Legitimate Educational Interest" above). 

 
13. A statement that the district forwards education records to other agencies or institutions that 

request the records and in which the student seeks or intends to enroll or is already enrolled as 
long as the disclosure is for purposes related to the student's enrollment 

 
Note:  The following paragraph reflects the Attorney General's model policy developed pursuant to Education Code 234.7. 
 
In addition, the annual parental notification shall include a statement that a student's citizenship status, 
immigration status, place of birth, or any other information indicating national origin will not be 
released without parental consent or a court order. 
 
 
 
 



Page 16 of 17 

Student Records from Social Media 
 

Note:  The following optional section is for use by districts that have adopted a program, pursuant to Education Code 
49073.6, to gather or maintain any information obtained from students' social media activity 
that pertains directly to school safety or student safety. Districts that adopt such a program, as specified in the 
accompanying Board policy, must comply with the requirements described below. Districts that have not adopted such a 
program should delete the following section. 

 
For the purpose of gathering and maintaining records of students' social media activity, the 
Superintendent or designee shall:  (Education Code 49073.6) 
 
1. Gather or maintain only information that pertains directly to school safety or student safety 
 
2. Provide a student with access to any information that the district obtained from the student's 

social media activity and an opportunity to correct or delete such information 
 
3. Destroy information gathered from social media and maintained in student records within one 

year after a student turns 18 years of age or within one year after the student is no longer 
enrolled in the district, whichever occurs first 

 
4. Notify each parent/guardian that the student's information is being gathered from social media 

and that any information maintained in the student's records shall be destroyed as provided in 
item #3 above. The notification shall also include, but is not limited to, an explanation of the 
process by which a student or the student's parent/guardian may access the student's records for 
examination of the information gathered or maintained and the process by which removal of the 
information may be requested or corrections to the information may be made. The notification 
may be provided as part of the annual parental notification required pursuant to Education Code 
48980. 

 
5. If the district contracts with a third party to gather information on a student from social media, 

ensure that the contract: 
 
a. Prohibits the third party from using the information for purposes other than those 

specified in the contract or from selling or sharing the information with any person or 
entity other than the district, the student, or the student's parent/guardian 

 
b. Requires the third party to destroy the information immediately upon satisfying the 

terms of the contract, or when the district notifies the third party that the student has 
turned 18 years of age or is no longer enrolled in the district, whichever occurs first 

 
Updating Name and/or Gender of Former Students 
 

Note:  Education Code 49062.5 requires a district to update a former student's records to reflect a change to the former 
student's name and/or gender, as specified below. 

 
When a former student submits a state-issued driver's license, birth certificate, passport, social security 
card, court order, or other government-issued documentation demonstrating that the former student's 
legal name and/or gender has changed, the district shall update the former student's records to include 
the updated legal name and/or gender. Upon request by the former student, the district shall reissue any 
documents conferred upon the former student, including, but not limited to, a transcript, a high school 
diploma, a high school equivalency certificate, or other similar documents.  (Education Code 49062.5) 
 



Page 17 of 17 

If the former student's name or gender is changed and the requested records are reissued, a new 
document shall be added to the former student's file that includes all of the following information:  
(Education Code 49062.5) 
 
1. The date of the request 
 
2. The date the requested records were reissued to the former student 
 
3. A list of the records that were requested by and reissued to the former student 
 
4. The type of documentation, if any, provided by the former student to demonstrate a legal 

change to the student's name and/or gender 
 
5. The name of the employee who completed the request 
 
6. The current and former names and/or genders of the student 
 
Any former student who submits a request to change the legal name and/or gender on the student's 
records but is unable to provide any government-issued documentation demonstrating the legal name 
or gender change, may request a name or gender change through the process described in Education 
Code 49070 and AR 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records.  (Education Code 49062.5) 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: April 10, 2007 
revised: May 08, 2012 
revised: February 12, 2013 
revised: March 10, 2015 
revised: January 12, 2016 
revised: August 14, 2018 
revised: January 14, 2020 
revised: March 08, 2022 





Page 1 of 10 
**Revisions** 

 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Students 
Regulation 5145.3: Nondiscrimination/Harassment 

 

Original Adopted Date: 12/09/2014 | Last Revised Date: 11/10/2020 | Last Reviewed Date: 11/10/2020  
 

Note:  The following mandated administrative regulation provides measures that may be implemented by a district to 
comply with state and federal laws and regulations prohibiting unlawful discrimination at school or in school-sponsored 
or school-related activities, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying, of any student based on the 
student's actual or perceived race, color, ancestry, nationality, national origin, immigration status, ethnic group 
identification, ethnicity, age, religion, marital status, pregnancy, parental status, physical or mental disability, medical 
condition, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, genetic information, or any other legally 
protected category or association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. 
Federal and state law also prohibit retaliation against those who engage in activity to protect civil rights. 
 
5 CCR 4621 mandates the district to identify in its policies and procedures the person(s), position(s), or unit(s) responsible 
for ensuring compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs, including 
the receiving and investigating of complaints alleging unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, retaliation, or bullying. In addition, 34 CFR 106.8 and other federal regulations mandate districts that 
receive federal financial assistance to adopt procedures for the "prompt and equitable" resolution of student and employee 
discrimination complaints, including the designation of one or more responsible employees to ensure district compliance 
with federal laws and regulations governing the district's educational programs. 
 
During the Federal Program Monitoring process, California Department of Education (CDE) staff will check to ensure 
that the district's procedures list the specific title(s) of the employee(s) responsible for investigating complaints. The U.S. 
Department of Education's (USDOE) Office for Civil Rights (OCR) is the agency responsible for the administrative 
enforcement of federal antidiscrimination laws and regulations in programs and activities that receive federal financial 
assistance from the department. In reviewing a district's discrimination policies and procedures, OCR will examine 
whether the district has identified the employee(s) responsible for coordinating compliance with federal civil rights laws, 
including the investigation of complaints. 
 
The following paragraph identifies the employee(s) designated to coordinate the district's efforts to comply with state and 
federal civil rights laws as the same person designated to investigate and resolve discrimination complaints under AR 
1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.  Districts may modify the following paragraph to designate different district 
employees to serve these functions.  Note also that a district may designate more than one employee to coordinate 
compliance and/or receive and investigate complaints, although each employee designated as a coordinator/compliance 
officer must be properly trained. 
 
34 CFR 106.8, as amended by 85 Fed. Reg. 30026, requires that the employee designated by the district to coordinate its 
responsibilities under Title IX be referred to as the Title IX Coordinator.  The Title IX Coordinator is responsible for 
receiving complaints of sexual harassment and determining whether the complaint should be appropriately addressed 
through AR 1312.3 or the federal Title IX complaint procedures pursuant to 34 CFR 106.44-106.45.  The Title IX 
Coordinator may be the same person designated below and in AR 1312.3.  See AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment and AR 
5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures. 

 
The district designates the individual(s) identified below as the employee(s) responsible for 
coordinating the district's efforts to comply with applicable state and federal civil rights laws and to 
answer inquiries regarding the district's nondiscrimination policies. The individual(s) shall also serve 
as the compliance officer(s) specified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures as the 
responsible employee to handle complaints alleging unlawful discrimination targeting a student, 
including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, based on the student's actual or 
perceived race, color, ancestry, nationality, national origin, immigration status, ethnic group 
identification, ethnicity, age, religion, marital status, pregnancy, parental status, physical or mental 
disability, medical condition, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, 
genetic information, or any other legally protected status or association with a person or group with 
one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. The coordinator/compliance officer(s) may be 
contacted at:  (Education Code 234.1; 5 CCR 4621) 
 



Page 2 of 10 

 

James Berardi 
Superintendent of Schools 
PO Box 955 
109 Beckwith Road 
Loyalton, CA 96118 
(530) 993-1660 Ext 110 
jberardi@spjusd.org 
 
(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
(cf. 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures) 
 
Measures to Prevent Discrimination 
 
To prevent unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, and 
bullying, of students at district schools or in school activities and to ensure equal access of all students 
to the educational program, the Superintendent or designee shall implement the following measures: 
 

Note:  As part of its responsibility to monitor district compliance with legal requirements concerning discrimination 
pursuant to Education Code 234.1, CDE is required to ensure that the district posts its nondiscrimination policies in all 
schools, offices, staff lounges, and student government meeting rooms. 
 
In addition, federal regulations enforced by OCR require the district to notify students, parents/guardians, and employees 
of its policies prohibiting discrimination on the basis of sex (34 CFR 106.8, 106.9), disability (34 CFR 104.8 and 28 CFR 
35.107), and age (34 CFR 110.25) and of related complaint procedures. For notification requirements specifically 
pertaining to sexual harassment, see BP/AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment. 

 
1. Publicize the district's nondiscrimination policy and related complaint procedures, including the 

coordinator/compliance officer's contact information, to students, parents/guardians, 
employees, volunteers, and the general public by posting them in prominent locations and 
providing easy access to them through district-supported communications 

 
Note:  Education Code 234.6 requires a district to post its nondiscrimination policies on its web site as specified below. 
In addition to the policies listed below, if the district has a policy in regard to the prevention and response to hate 
violence, it is also required to be posted, and the following item should be modified accordingly. See BP 5145.9 - Hate-
Motivated Behavior. 

 
2. Post the district's policies and procedures prohibiting discrimination, harassment, student sexual 

harassment, intimidation, bullying, and cyberbullying, including a section on social media 
bullying that includes all of the references described in Education Code 234.6 as possible 
forums for social media, in a prominent location on the district's web site in a manner that is 
easily accessible to parents/guardians and students  (Education Code 234.6) 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 
(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 

 
3. Post the definition of sex discrimination and harassment as described in Education Code 230, 

including the rights set forth in Education Code 221.8, in a prominent location on the district's 
web site in a manner that is easily accessible to parents/guardians and students  (Education 
Code 234.6) 

 
 
 



Page 3 of 10 

 

Note:  Education Code 221.61 requires districts and public schools to post on their web sites information related to Title 
IX (20 USC 1681-1688). Education Code 234.6 requires districts to post the Title IX information required pursuant to 
221.61 in a prominent location on the district's web site in a manner that is easily accessible to parents/guardians and 
students. Additionally, districts are required to provide a link to the Title IX information included on CDE's website 
pursuant to Education Code 221.6, in the same manner. A comprehensive list of rights based on the federal regulations 
implementing Title IX can be found in Education Code 221.8. A district that does not maintain a web site may comply 
by posting the information below on the web site of its county office of education. A school without a web site may 
comply by posting the information on the web site of the district or county office of education. 

 
4. Post in a prominent location on the district web site in a manner that is easily accessible to 

parents/guardians and students information regarding Title IX prohibitions against 
discrimination based on a student's sex, gender, gender identity, pregnancy, and parental status, 
including the following:  (Education Code 221.6, 221.61, 234.6) 

 
a. The name and contact information of the district's Title IX Coordinator, including the 

phone number and email address 
 

b. The rights of students and the public and the responsibilities of the district under Title 
IX, including a list of rights as specified in Education Code 221.8 and web links to 
information about those rights and responsibilities located on the web sites of the Office 
for Equal Opportunity and the U.S. Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights 
(OCR) 

 
c. A description of how to file a complaint of noncompliance under Title IX, which shall 

include: 
 
(1) An explanation of the statute of limitations within which a complaint must be 

filed after an alleged incident of discrimination has occurred and how a 
complaint may be filed beyond the statute of limitations 

 
(2) An explanation of how the complaint will be investigated and how the 

complainant may further pursue the complaint, including web links to this 
information on the OCR's web site 

 
(3) A web link to the OCR complaints form and the contact information for the 

office, including the phone number and email address for the office 
 

d. A link to the Title IX information included on the California Department of Education's 
(CDE) web site 

 
5. Post a link to statewide CDE-compiled resources, including community-based organizations, 

that provide support to youth who have been subjected to school-based discrimination, 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying and to their families. Such resources shall be posted in a 
prominent location on the district's web site in a manner that is easily accessible to 
parents/guardians and students.  (Education Code 234.5, 234.6) 

 
6. Provide to students a handbook that contains age-appropriate information that clearly describes 

the district's nondiscrimination policy, procedures for filing a complaint, and resources 
available to students who feel that they have been the victim of any such behavior. 

 
7. Annually notify all students and parents/guardians of the district's nondiscrimination policy, 

including its responsibility to provide a safe, nondiscriminatory school environment for all 
students.  The notice shall inform students and parents/guardians that they may request to meet 
with the compliance officer to determine how best to accommodate or resolve concerns that 



Page 4 of 10 

 

may arise from the district's implementation of its nondiscrimination policies. The notice shall 
also inform all students and parents/guardians that, to the extent possible, the district will 
address any individual student's interests and concerns in private. 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 

 
Note:  Both federal and state laws contain requirements for translation of certain information and documents.  Title VI 
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 requires school districts to ensure meaningful access to their programs and activities by 
persons with limited English proficiency.  OCR has interpreted this to require that, whenever information is provided to 
parents/guardians, districts must notify limited-English-proficient (LEP) parents/guardians in a language other than 
English in order to be adequate. OCR enforces this requirement consistent with the Department of Justice's 2003 
Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against National Origin 
Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons. Under the Guidance, a recipient of federal funds has an 
obligation to provide language assistance to LEP individuals based on balancing four factors:  (1) the number or 
proportion of LEP individuals likely to encounter or be served by the program, (2) the frequency with which LEP 
individuals come in contact with the program, (3) the nature and importance of the services provided by the program, 
and (4) the resources available to the recipient and costs.  State law is more specific than federal law.  Education Code 
48985 requires translation of certain information and documents if 15 percent or more of students enrolled in the school 
speak a single primary language other than English. 

 
8. Ensure that students and parents/guardians, including those with limited English proficiency, 

are notified of how to access the relevant information provided in the district's 
nondiscrimination policy and related complaint procedures, notices, and forms in a language 
they can understand. 

 
 If 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a particular district school speak a single primary 

language other than English, the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning 
nondiscrimination shall be translated into that language in accordance with Education Code 
234.1 and 48985. In all other instances, the district shall ensure meaningful access to all 
relevant information for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency. 

 
9. Provide to students, employees, volunteers, and parents/guardians age-appropriate training 

and/or information regarding the district's nondiscrimination policy; what constitutes prohibited 
discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying; how 
and to whom a report of an incident should be made; and how to guard against segregating or 
stereotyping students when providing instruction, guidance, supervision, or other services to 
them. Such training and information shall include details of guidelines the district may use to 
provide a discrimination-free environment for all district students, including transgender and 
gender-nonconforming students.. 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 

 
10. At the beginning of each school year, inform school employees that any employee who 

witnesses any act of unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying, against a student is required to intervene if it is safe to do so.  
(Education Code 234.1) 

 (cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
 

Note:  Item #11 below may be revised to reflect district practice.  In some situations, the district may need to provide 
assistance to a student to protect the student from harassment or bullying.  Each situation will need to be analyzed to 
determine the most appropriate course of action to meet the needs of the student, based on the circumstances involved. 

 
11. At the beginning of each school year, inform each principal or designee of the district's 

responsibility to provide appropriate assistance or resources to protect students from threatened 
or potentially discriminatory behavior and ensure their privacy rights. 



Page 5 of 10 

 

 
Enforcement of District Policy 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall take appropriate actions to reinforce BP 5145.3 - 
Nondiscrimination/Harassment.  As needed, these actions may include any of the following: 
 
1. Removing vulgar or offending graffiti 

(cf. 5131.5 - Vandalism and Graffiti) 
 
2. Providing training to students, staff, and parents/guardians about how to recognize unlawful 

discrimination, how to report it or file a complaint, and how to respond 
 
3. Disseminating and/or summarizing the district's policy and regulation regarding unlawful 

discrimination 
 
4. Consistent with laws regarding the confidentiality of student and personnel records, 

communicating to students, parents/guardians, and the community the school's response plan to 
unlawful discrimination or harassment 
(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files) 
(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 

 
5. Taking appropriate disciplinary action against students, employees, and anyone determined to 

have engaged in wrongdoing in violation of district policy, including any student who is found 
to have filed a complaint of discrimination that the student knew was not true 
(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 
(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students) 

 
Process for Initiating and Responding to Complaints 
 

Note:  Education Code 234.1 requires that districts adopt a process for receiving and investigating complaints of 
unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, and bullying.  Such a process, 
which is required to be consistent with the uniform complaint procedures (UCP) specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670, must 
include (1) a requirement that school personnel who witness an act take immediate steps to intervene when safe to do so, 
(2) a timeline for investigating and resolving complaints, (3) an appeal process, and (4) translation of forms when 
required by Education Code 48985. In addition, federal regulations require districts to adopt procedures providing for 
the prompt and equitable resolution of complaints of discrimination on the basis of sex (34 CFR 106.8), disability (34 
CFR 104.7 and 28 CFR 35.107), and age (34 CFR 110.25). OCR guidance on federal civil rights requirements notes that 
districts may have a responsibility to respond to notice of discrimination whether or not a formal complaint is filed. 
 
Complaints of sexual harassment must be addressed through the federal Title IX complaint procedures established 
pursuant to 34 CFR 106.44-106.45, as added by 85 Fed. Reg. 30026, if the alleged conduct meets the federal definition 
of sexual harassment. Pursuant to 34 CFR 106.30, sexual harassment includes (1) a district employee conditioning the 
provision of a district aid, benefit, or service on an individual's participation in unwelcome sexual conduct; (2) 
unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive that it 
effectively denies a person equal access to the district's education program or activity; or (3) sexual assault, dating 
violence, domestic violence, or stalking as defined in 20 USC 1092 and 34 USC 12291.  Allegations that do not meet 
this definition should be addressed through the district's UCP.  See BP/AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment and AR 5145.71 
- Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures. 

 
Students who feel that they have been subjected to unlawful discrimination described above or in 
district policy are strongly encouraged to immediately contact the compliance officer, principal, or any 
other staff member. In addition, students who observe any such incident are strongly encouraged to 



Page 6 of 10 

 

report the incident to the compliance officer or principal, whether or not the alleged victim files a 
complaint. 
 
Any school employee who observes an incident of unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, or to whom such an incident is reported shall report 
the incident to the compliance officer or principal within a school day, whether or not the alleged 
victim files a complaint. 
 
Any school employee who witnesses an incident of unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, shall immediately intervene to stop the incident when 
it is safe to do so.  (Education Code 234.1) 
 

Note:  Though a formal complaint must be in writing pursuant to 5 CCR 4600, the district's obligation to provide a safe 
school environment for its students overrides the need to comply with formalities.  Thus, once the district receives 
notice of an incident, whether verbally or in writing, it is good practice to begin the investigation of the report and to 
take steps to stop any prohibited conduct and address any effect on students.  The following paragraph reflects such 
practice and is consistent with OCR recommendation. 

 
When a report of unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, 
retaliation, or bullying, is made to or received by the principal or compliance officer, the principal or 
compliance officer shall notify the student or parent/guardian of the right to file a formal complaint in 
accordance with AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures or, for complaints of sexual harassment 
that meet the federal Title IX definition, AR 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint 
Procedures. Once notified verbally or in writing, the compliance officer shall begin the investigation 
and shall implement immediate measures necessary to stop the discrimination and ensure that all 
students have access to the educational program and a safe school environment. Any interim measures 
adopted to address unlawful discrimination shall, to the extent possible, not disadvantage the 
complainant or a student who is the victim of the alleged unlawful discrimination. 
 
Any report or complaint alleging unlawful discrimination by the principal, compliance officer, or any 
other person to whom a report would ordinarily be made or complaint filed shall instead be made to or 
filed with the Superintendent or designee who shall determine how the complaint will be investigated. 
(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 
 
Issues Unique to Intersex, Nonbinary, Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming Students 
 

Note:  The terms and definitions used below are consistent with California law, case law, and generally accepted terms 
within academia and in publications issued by state and federal agencies such as CDE and OCR, including provisions in 
the California Gender Recognition Act that recognize three gender options, female, male, and nonbinary, and define 
"nonbinary" and other related terms such as "intersex" and "transgender". In addition to consistency with the above, the 
definition of "gender identity" below is consistent with the Resolution Agreement between the Arcadia Unified School 
District, OCR, and the U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, which defines "gender identity" as "one's 
internal sense of gender, which may be different from one's assigned sex, and which is consistently and uniformly 
asserted, or for which there is other evidence that the gender identity is sincerely held as part of the student's core 
identity." 
 
The following section is also consistent with OCR's fact sheet "Supporting Intersex Students:  A Resource for Students, 
Families, and Educators," issued in October 2021 and CDE's "Update FLASH #158, Guidance for Changing a Student's 
Gender in CALPADS," which provides guidance on changing a student's gender and/or legal name on the student's 
mandatory permanent record. 

 
Gender identity of a student means the student's gender-related identity, appearance, or behavior as 
determined from the student's internal sense, whether or not that gender-related identity, appearance, or 
behavior is different from that traditionally associated with the student's physiology or assigned sex at 
birth. 
 



Page 7 of 10 

 

Gender expression means a student's gender-related appearance and behavior, whether stereotypically 
associated with the student's assigned sex at birth.  (Education Code 210.7) 
 
Gender transition refers to the process in which a student changes from living and identifying as the 
sex assigned to the student at birth to living and identifying as the sex that corresponds to the student's 
gender identity. 
 
Gender-nonconforming student means a student whose gender expression differs from stereotypical 
expectations. 
 
Intersex student means a student with natural bodily variations in anatomy, hormones, chromosomes, 
and other traits that differ from expectations generally associated with female and male bodies. 
 
Nonbinary student means a student whose gender identity falls outside of the traditional conception of 
strictly either female or male, regardless of whether or not the student identifies as transgender, was 
born with intersex traits, uses gender-neutral pronouns, or uses agender, genderqueer, pangender, 
gender nonconforming, gender variant, or such other more specific term to describe their gender. 
 
Transgender student means a student whose gender identity is different from the gender assigned at 
birth. 
 
The district prohibits acts of verbal, nonverbal, or physical aggression, intimidation, or hostility that are 
based on sex, gender identity, or gender expression, or that have the purpose or effect of producing a 
negative impact on the student's academic performance or of creating an intimidating, hostile, or 
offensive educational environment, regardless of whether the acts are sexual in nature. Examples of the 
types of conduct which are prohibited in the district and which may constitute gender-based 
harassment include, but are not limited to: 
 
1. Refusing to address a student by a name and the pronouns consistent with the student's gender 

identity 
 
2. Disciplining or disparaging a student or excluding the student from participating in activities, 

for behavior or appearance that is consistent with the student's gender identity or that does not 
conform to stereotypical notions of masculinity or femininity, as applicable 

 
3. Blocking a student's entry to the restroom that corresponds to the student's gender identity 
 
4. Taunting a student because the student participates in an athletic activity more typically favored 

by a student of the other sex 
 
5. Revealing a student's gender identity to individuals who do not have a legitimate need for the 

information, without the student's consent 
 
6. Using gender-specific slurs 
 
7. Physically assaulting a student motivated by hostility toward the student because of the 

student's gender, gender identity, or gender expression 
 
The district's uniform complaint procedures (AR 1312.3) or Title IX sexual harassment procedures 
(AR 5145.71), as applicable, shall be used to report and resolve complaints alleging discrimination 
against intersex, nonbinary, transgender, and gender-nonconforming students. 
 
Examples of bases for complaints include, but are not limited to, the above list, as well as improper 



Page 8 of 10 

 

rejection by the district of a student's asserted gender identity, denial of access to facilities that 
correspond with a student's gender identity, improper disclosure of a student's transgender statusgender 
identity, discriminatory enforcement of a dress code, and other instances of gender-based harassment. 
 
To ensure that intersex, nonbinary, transgender, and gender-nonconforming students are afforded the 
same rights, benefits, and protections provided to all students by law and Board policy, the district 
shall address each situation on a case-by-case basis, in accordance with the following guidelines: 
 

Note:  Timelines included in items #1-2 below may be modified to reflect district practice. 
 
Pursuant to state and federal law, a district has the responsibility to ensure a safe, nondiscriminatory school environment 
for all students and equal access to the educational program for intersex, nonbinary, transgender, or gender non-
conforming students.  As part of its obligation, the district must keep a student's private information, including a 
student's gender, gender identity, or gender expression, confidential.  CDE's "School Success and Opportunity Act 
(Assembly Bill 1266) Frequently Asked Questions," references a transgender student's informational privacy right under 
Article I, Section I of the California Constitution as protecting the student's gender identity from disclosure.  However, 
CDE specifies that, pursuant to 34 CFR 99.36, disclosure of such information to appropriate parties is permitted in 
connection with an emergency, as necessary to protect the health or safety of the student or other individuals.  
Therefore, a district is required to take measures such as those specified in the following paragraph, to prevent 
unintentional release of students' private information and should contact legal counsel before disclosing a student's 
gender identity without the student's consent. 

 
1. Right to privacy:  A student's intersex, nonbinary, transgender, or gender-nonconforming status 

is the student's private information. The district shall develop strategies to prevent unauthorized 
disclosure of students' private information.  Such strategies may include, but are not limited to, 
collecting or maintaining information about student gender only when relevant to the 
educational program or activity, protecting or revealing a student's gender identity as necessary 
to protect the health or safety of the student, and keeping a student's unofficial record separate 
from the official record. 
 
The district shall only disclose the information to others with the student's prior written consent, 
except when the disclosure is otherwise required by law or when the district has compelling 
evidence that disclosure is necessary to preserve the student's physical or mental well-
being.   In any case, the district shall only allow disclosure of a student's personally identifiable 
information to employees with a legitimate educational interest as determined by the district 
pursuant to 34 CFR 99.31.  Any district employee to whom a student's intersex, nonbinary, 
transgender, or gender-nonconforming status is disclosed shall keep the student's information 
confidential. When disclosure of a student's gender identity is made to a district employee by a 
student, the employee shall seek the student's permission to notify the compliance officer.   If 
the student refuses to give permission, the employee shall keep the student's information 
confidential, unless the employee is required to disclose or report the student's information 
pursuant to this administrative regulation, and shall inform the student that honoring the 
student's request may limit the district's ability to meet the student's needs related to the 
student's status as aan intersex, nonbinary, transgender, or gender-nonconforming student. If the 
student permits the employee to notify the compliance officer, the employee shall do so within 
three school days. 
 

 As appropriate given the student's need for support, the compliance officer may discuss with 
the student any need to disclose the student's intersex, nonbinary, transgender, or gender-
nonconformity status or gender identity or gender expression to the student's parents/guardians 
and/or others, including other students, teacher(s), or other adults on campus. The district shall 
offer support services, such as counseling, to students who wish to inform their 
parents/guardians of their status and desire assistance in doing so. 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 



Page 9 of 10 

 

 
2. Determining a Student's Gender Identity:  The compliance officer shall accept the student's 

assertion of gender identity and begin to treat the student consistent with that gender identity 
unless district personnel present a credible and supportable basis for believing that the student's 
assertion is for an improper purpose. 

 
3. Addressing a Student's Transition Needs:  The compliance officer shall arrange a meeting with 

the student and, if appropriate, the student's parents/guardians to identify and develop strategies 
for ensuring that the student's access to educational programs and activities is maintained. The 
meeting shall discuss the intersex, nonbinary, transgender, or gender-nonconforming student's 
rights and how those rights may affect and be affected by the rights of other students and shall 
address specific subjects related to the student's access to facilities and to academic or 
educational support programs, services, or activities, including, but not limited to, sports and 
other competitive endeavors. In addition, the compliance officer shall identify specific school 
site employee(s) to whom the student may report any problem related to the student's status as 
aan intersex, nonbinary, transgender, or gender-nonconforming individual, so that prompt 
action can be taken to address it.   Alternatively, if appropriate and desired by the student, the 
school may form a support team for the student that will meet periodically to assess whether the 
arrangements for the student are meeting the student's educational needs and providing equal 
access to programs and activities, educate appropriate staff about the student's transition, and 
serve as a resource to the student to better protect the student from gender-based discrimination. 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 221.5, a district is required to permit a student to use facilities and participate in sex-
segregated school programs and activities consistent with the student's gender identity, regardless of the gender listed on 
the student's educational records. In implementing state law, districts may review recommended practices in the 
USDOE's Office of Elementary and Secondary Education's Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting 
Transgender Students. For more information on the rights of transgender students, see CSBA's Updated Legal 
Guidance:  Protecting Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students Against Discrimination. 

 
4. Accessibility to Sex-Segregated Facilities, Programs, and Activities:  When the district 

maintains sex-segregated facilities, such as restrooms and locker rooms, or offers sex-
segregated programs and activities, such as physical education classes, intermural sports, and 
interscholastic athletic programs, students shall be permitted to access facilities and participate 
in programs and activities consistent with their gender identity. To address any student's 
privacy concerns in using sex-segregated facilities, the district shall offer available options such 
as a gender-neutral or single-use restroom or changing area, a bathroom stall with a door, an 
area in the locker room separated by a curtain or screen, or use of the locker room before or 
after the other students. However, the district shall not require a student to utilize these options 
because the student is intersex, nonbinary, transgender, or gender-nonconforming. In addition, a 
student shall be permitted to participate in accordance with the student's gender identity in other 
circumstances where students are separated by gender, such as for class discussions, yearbook 
pictures, and field trips. A student's right to participate in a sex-segregated activity in 
accordance with the student's gender identity shall not render invalid or inapplicable any other 
eligibility rule established for participation in the activity. 
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 
(cf. 6153 - School-Sponsored Trips) 
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 

 
Note:  Education Code 49062.5 and 49070 require districts to update a former student's records to change the student's 
name and/or gender as specified below. See AR 5125 - Student Records. Pursuant to 5 CCR 432, a district is required to 
maintain for each student a mandatory permanent student record that includes the student's legal name, sex, and other 
specified details.  While 5 CCR 4910 refers to "sex" as the "biological condition or quality of being a female or male 
human being," it also defines "gender" to mean "sex," which includes "a person's gender identity and gender related 
appearance and behavior whether or not stereotypically associated with the person's assigned sex at birth." When 



Page 10 of 10 

 

responding to a request to change the gender or legal name of intersex, nonbinary, transgender, or gender non-
conforming students, districts should be mindful of laws prohibiting gender-based discrimination.  In CALPADS' 
"Update FLASH #158, Guidance for Changing a Student's Gender in CALPADS", CDE distinguishes the process for 
updating a student's legal name from the process for updating a student's gender.  According to CDE, a district must 
receive formal documentation that a student's name has been legally changed before the student's recorded legal name 
may be changed in the student's mandatory permanent student record (official record).  When documentation is not 
provided, CDE states the district should nonetheless update all other school records (unofficial records such as 
attendance sheets, report cards, and school identification) to reflect the name change.  On the other hand, to change a 
student's gender in the student's official records, CDE states that there is no specific requirement regarding formal 
documentation or process that a district should review or require in determining the gender to be recorded in the official 
records.  Pursuant to Education Code 49061, only a parent/guardian may authorize a change to a student's gender in the 
student's official record. The district should consult legal counsel in developing a policy in this regard. 

 
5. Student Records:  Upon each student's enrollment, the district is required to maintain a 

mandatory permanent student record (official record) that includes the student's gender and 
legal name. 

 
1. A student's legal name as entered on the mandatory student record required pursuant to 5 CCR 

432 shall only be changed with proper documentation. When a student presents government-
issued documentation of a name and/or gender change or submits a request for a name and/or 
gender change through the process specified in Education Code 49070, the district shall update 
the student's records.  (Education Code 49062.5, 49070) 
  A student's gender as entered on the student's official record required pursuant to 5 CCR 432 
shall only be changed with written authorization of a parent/guardian having legal custody of 
the student.  (Education Code 49061) 

 
 However, when proper documentation or authorization, as applicable, is not submitted with a 

request to change a student's legal name or gender, any change to the student's record shall be 
limited to the student's unofficial records such as attendance sheets, report cards, and school 
identification. 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 
(cf. 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records) 

 
6. Names and Pronouns:  If a student so chooses, district personnel shall be required to address the 

student by a name and the pronoun(s) consistent with the student's gender identity, without the 
necessity of a court order or a change to the student's official district record.  However, 
inadvertent slips or honest mistakes by district personnel in the use of the student's name and/or 
consistent pronouns will, in general, not constitute a violation of this administrative regulation 
or the accompanying district policy. 

 
7. Uniforms/Dress Code:  A student has the right to dress in a manner consistent with the student's 

gender identity, subject to any dress code adopted on a school site. 
(cf. 5132 - Dress and Grooming) 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: December 9, 2014  
revised: October 11, 2016  
revised: July 11, 2017 
revised: September 11, 2018 
revised: November 10, 2020 
revised: March 08, 2022 




